

Section I Notices of Development of Proposed Rules and Negotiated Rulemaking

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
6A-1.09441	Requirements for Programs and Courses Which are Funded Through the Florida Education Finance Program and for Which the Student May Earn Credit Toward High School Graduation

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule development is to update the “Course Code Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments” by which school districts receive FEFP (Florida Education Finance Program) funding. The effect will be an updated directory of courses for students to take to earn credit toward high school graduation.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Revisions to the “Course Code Directory and Instructional Personnel Assignments” for the 2012-2013 school year.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 1001.02(1), 1009.53(3), 1011.62(1)(r) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 1009.531, 1009.535, 1009.536, 1011.62(1) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Mathew Bouck, Office of Articulation, Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 1401, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400. To request a rule development workshop, please contact: Lynn Abbott, Agency Clerk, Department of Education, (850)245-9661 or e-mail lynn.abbott@fldoe.org or go to <https://app1.fldoe.org/rules/default.aspx>

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT: <https://app1.fldoe.org/rules/default.aspx>.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
6A-6.0252	Use of Prescribed Pancreatic Enzyme Supplements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of this rule development is to address self-administration of pancreatic enzyme medication by students diagnosed with pancreatic insufficiency or cystic fibrosis enrolled in the public school system.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The self-administration of pancreatic enzyme medication by students diagnosed with pancreatic insufficiency or cystic fibrosis.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 1002.20(3)(k) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 1002.20(3)(k) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 9:00 a.m. until completion

PLACE: Department of Education, Turlington Building, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 1701, Tallahassee, Florida 32399. Conference call 1(888)808-6959, When prompted, enter your Conference Code (6351196864) followed by #.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Cathy Bishop, Interim Chief, Bureau of Exceptional Education and Student Services, K-12 Public Schools, Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 614, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)245-0475. To request a rule development workshop, please contact: Lynn Abbott, Agency Clerk, Department of Education, (850)245-9661 or e-mail lynn.abbott@fldoe.org or go to: <https://app1.fldoe.org/rules/default.aspx>

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT: <https://app1.fldoe.org/rules/default.aspx>

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
6A-6.054	K-12 Student Reading Intervention Requirements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule development is to update and align the criteria for reading intervention placement with Sections 1003.4156(5)(b) and 1003.428(2)(b), (1), Florida Statutes, which provide an exemption from reading intervention for middle and high school students who score at Level 1 or Level 2 on FCAT Reading but who did not score below Level 3 in the previous 3 years. Such a student may be granted a 1-year exemption from the reading remediation requirement; however, the student must have an approved academic improvement plan already in place, signed by the appropriate school staff and the student's parent, for the year for which the exemption is granted. The

Academic Improvement Plan for students that receive an exemption must include specific actions that schools, students, and parents will take, in lieu of student enrollment in reading intervention, to improve achievement in reading. This change recognizes that certain students with a history of high performance on the FCAT in Reading scoring Level 1 or 2 on FCAT Reading and/or proficiency on other state assessments may benefit most from instruction outside of reading intervention.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: K-12 Reading Intervention Requirements.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 1003.4156, 1003.428 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 1003.4156, 1003.428, 1008.25 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Stuart Greenberg, Executive Director, Just Read, Florida! and the Office of Early Learning, Department of Education, Suite 514, 325 West Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399; (850)245-0445. To request a rule development workshop, please contact: Lynn Abbott, Agency Clerk, Department of Education, (850)245-9661 or e-mail lynn.abbott@fldoe.org or go to <https://app1.fldoe.org/rules/default.aspx>

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT: <https://app1.fldoe.org/rules/default.aspx>.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: 33-108.101 RULE TITLE: Inmate Substance Abuse Testing

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to clarify the amount of time an inmate may spend in a dry cell as a result of a claimed inability to urinate in the presence of others.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Inmate substance abuse testing.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 944.09, 944.472, 944.473 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 944.09, 944.472, 944.473 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Kendra Jowers, 501 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

33-108.101 Inmate Substance Abuse Testing.

The Office of the Inspector General shall be responsible for the development and implementation of the department's substance abuse testing program.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Procedures.

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) If an inmate claims an inability to urinate in front of or in the presence of others, the tester shall collect the urine specimen under the conditions outlined in subparagraphs (3)(c)1.-6. In this circumstance, the inability to urinate is not treated as a medical condition, and the officer does not need to verify with medical staff that the inmate possesses a specific medical condition or is taking medication that inhibits the inmate from urinating within the designated time frame. However, such inmates shall be limited to up to one hour in the dry cell rather than two.

(e) through (h) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09, 944.473 FS. Law Implemented 944.09, 944.472, 944.473 FS. History–New 2-8-00, Amended 2-5-01, Formerly 33-602.2045, Amended 7-2-02, 2-19-07, 7-29-08, 8-26-09, 2-10-10, 11-28-10,_____.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Agency for Workforce Innovation

RULE NO.: 60BB-5.014 RULE TITLE: Scheduling of Hearings

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Section 443.151(4)(b)5.c., Florida Statutes, as amended by chapter 2011- 235, Laws of Florida, requires that hearsay evidence used as the basis for a finding of fact be provided to all parties in advance of the hearing to provide a reasonable time to for the party's to review the proffered evidence. Additionally, the public must be provided an ability to listen in to the appeal hearings and review applicable documents upon request.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Unemployment Benefits Appeal Hearing.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 443.012(11) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 443.151(4) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Dorothy Johnson, Deputy General Counsel, Office of the Unemployment Appeals Commission, 101 Rhyne Building, 2740 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4151, (850)487-2685

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

60BB-5.014 Scheduling of Hearings.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) If any party wishes to submit evidence to be considered, pursuant to Section 443.151(4)(b)5.c., F.S., as the basis for a finding of fact, notwithstanding Section 120.57(1)(c), F.S., the party must arrange for delivery of the evidence to all parties and the appeals referee at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled hearing time. If the hearing is scheduled for a Monday or a day following a holiday, the Saturday and Sunday or the holiday will be excluded from the calculation of the 24 hour period. The 24 hour period will provide the party against whom the evidence is offered a reasonable opportunity to review such evidence prior to the hearing.

(4) Waiver. If the party submitting evidence to be considered, pursuant to Section 443.151(4)(b)5.c., F.S., fails to provide the evidence to all parties and the appeals referee at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled hearing time, and all parties to whom the evidence was improperly provided appear at the hearing, the referee shall inquire whether such parties are willing to waive their rights set forth in subsection (3). If the appeals referee obtains informed and intelligent consent from all parties to whom the evidence was not properly provided, the referee may proceed to consider the evidence.

(5)(3) Any member of the public wishing to listen to attend a telephone hearing and inspect documents may do so by contacting the Office of Appeals at MSC 347, 107 E. Madison Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4143 or the appeals office to which the case is assigned at the location of the appeals referee.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 443.012(11) FS. Law Implemented 443.151(4)(b), (d) FS. History—New 5-22-80, Formerly 38E-5.14, Amended 10-5-86, 3-11-99, Formerly 38E-5.014, Amended _____.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Agency for Workforce Innovation

RULE NO.: 60BB-5.024 RULE TITLE: Conduct of the Hearing

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To require that an appeals referee state on the record the reason for refusing to accept into evidence written or physical material presented at the hearing.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Unemployment Benefits Appeal Hearing.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 443.012(11) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 443.151(4) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Dorothy Johnson, Deputy General Counsel, Office of the Unemployment Appeals Commission, 101 Rhyne Building, 2740 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4151, (850)487-2685

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

60BB-5.024 Conduct of the Hearing.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Evidence.

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) The hearing need not be conducted according to the technical rules regarding evidence and witnesses. When the appeals referee declines to accept as evidence any written or physical material presented for consideration, the appeals referee should specifically address on the record or in the written decision the reason the material was rejected. A party or the party's representative may state an objection to the referee's acceptance of written or physical material or refusal to accept written or physical material as evidence. Irrelevant, immaterial or unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded, but all other evidence of a type commonly relied upon by reasonable persons in the conduct of their affairs shall be admissible, whether or not such evidence would be admissible in a trial in the courts of Florida. Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of supplementing or explaining other evidence, but it shall not be sufficient in itself to support a finding of fact unless it would be admissible over objection in civil actions. A party or the party's representative may also advise the appeals referee of a defect in the character of any evidence introduced by voicing an objection. The objecting party shall be given an opportunity to explain the grounds for the objection. Failure of a party to voice an objection to any evidence introduced at the hearing or to the referee's refusal to accept as evidence any written or physical material shall not prevent the party from raising the objection on appeal to the Unemployment Appeals Commission.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 443.012(11) FS. Law Implemented 443.151(4)(a), (b), (d) FS. History—New 5-22-80, Formerly 38E-5.24, Amended 8-20-86, Formerly 38E-5.024, Amended _____.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Agency for Workforce Innovation

RULE NO.: 60BB-5.025 RULE TITLE: Decision

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To require that an appeals referee state in the Decision of the Appeals Referee the rationale by which hearsay evidence on which a finding of fact is based was determined to be admissible pursuant to Section 443.151(4)(b)5.c.(I) and (II), Florida Statutes.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Decision of the Unemployment Appeals Referee.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 443.012(11) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 443.151(4) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Dorothy Johnson, Deputy General Counsel, Office of the Unemployment Appeals Commission, 101 Rhyne Building, 2740 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-4151, (850)487-2685

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

60BB-5.025 Decision.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) The decision shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

(a) A statement of the referee's jurisdiction;

(d) An analysis of the findings including a concise and explicit statement of the underlying evidence in the record which supports the findings.

1. Where a finding is based solely on hearsay, notwithstanding Section 120.57(1)(c), F.S., as provided in Section 443.151(4)(b)5.c., F.S., the appeals referee shall set forth the rationale by which the evidence was determined to be admissible in accordance with Section 443.151(4)(b)5.c.(I) and (II), F.S.

2. If confronted with conflicting evidence with respect to a disputed issue of fact, the finding of which is determinative of the outcome of the appeal, the appeals referee shall acknowledge such conflict and set forth the rationale by which the conflict was resolved.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 443.012(11) FS. Law Implemented 443.151(4)(a), (b), (d) FS. History--New 5-22-80, Formerly 38E-5.25, Amended 8-20-86, Formerly 38E-5.025, Amended _____.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

60S-4.020 Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: To incorporate by reference three existing Division forms that were previously adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Propose to incorporate by reference into this rule three Division forms that were previously adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 112.363(7), 121.031(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 112.363 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET

PLACE: Division of Retirement, Department of Management Services, Director's Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Richard Clifford, Senior Benefits Analyst, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61A-5.010 Completed Application

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule amendment is to update application forms to be submitted for new licensure, transfer of ownership of a license, change of business name or mailing address of a license and request to withdraw an application in process. The rule amendment also clarifies certain information to accompany the application form and removes language no longer valid or that exceeds statutory authority.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Forms.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 561.11 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 561.08, 561.01(11), 561.11, 561.15, 561.17, 561.18, 561.181, 561.19, 561.20, 561.22, 561.24, 561.25, 561.32, 561.331, 561.37, 561.371, 561.42, 565.02(3)(a) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Susan Doherty, Chief, Bureau of Licensing, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Architecture and Interior Design

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
61G1-11.005 Probable Cause Determinations
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment in order to specify the number of members on the PCP.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Probable Cause Determinations.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 455.225 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.225 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Board of Architecture and Interior Design, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Architecture and Interior Design

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
61G1-24.001 Continuing Education for Architects
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment in order for consideration of increasing the number of continuing education hours required to become aligned with the NCARB model rules.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Continuing Education for Architects.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 481.2055 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 481.215(3), (4), (5), (6) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Board of Architecture and Interior Design, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:
61G6-5.003 Requirements Certification
61G6-5.004 Requirement for Business Organizations
61G6-5.010 Statement of Authority

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to clarify language concerning the requirements for certification; to update the requirement for compliance with Section 489.522(2)(c), F.S. regarding the primary qualifying agent's authority for approving checks, payments, drafts and contracts on behalf of the business organization; to clarify the language concerning the statement of authority.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Requirements for Certification; Requirement for Business Organizations; Statement of Authority.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 489.507(3), 489.515(1), 489.521 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 489.505(12), (21), (22), 489.511(2), 489.515(1), 489.521, 489.522 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Juanita Chastain, Executive Director, Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Employee Leasing Companies

RULE NO.: 61G7-5.001 RULE TITLE: Application Procedure; Application Form; Fees; Confidential Information; Denial of Application; Request for Hearing

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to update the application procedure and forms.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Application Procedure; Application Form; Fees; Confidential Information; Denial of Application; Request for Hearing.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 120.53(1), 455.2281, 468.522, 468.5245, 468.5275 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.213(11), 455.2281, 468.524, 468.5245, 468.525, 468.526, 468.527, 468.5275, 468.529 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Richard Morrison, Executive Director, Board of Employee Leasing Companies, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0783

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Employee Leasing Companies

RULE NO.: 61G7-5.002 RULE TITLE: Annual Assessment on Gross Florida Payroll

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to consider reducing the annual assessment fee.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Annual Assessment on Gross Florida Payroll.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 468.522 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 468.526 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Richard

Morrison, Executive Director, Board of Employee Leasing Companies, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0783

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: 61J1-7.008 RULE TITLE: Mailing Address

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to clarify language concerning address of record.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Address of Record.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 475.614 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.275 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Juana Watkins, Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: 61J1-8.002 RULE TITLE: Disciplinary Guidelines

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to include disciplinary guidelines for appraisal management company violations.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Disciplinary Guidelines.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 455.2273, 475.614 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.227, 475.622, 475.6221(3), 475.624, 475.6425, 475.626 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Juana

Watkins, Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: 61J1-8.005
 RULE TITLE: Revocation

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to include requirements for appraisal management companies.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Revocation.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 455.227, 475.614 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.227 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Juana Watkins, Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Division of Resource Management

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
62C-25.001	Introduction
62C-25.002	Definitions
62C-25.006	Permits
62C-25.0075	Enforcement Actions
62C-25.008	Forms

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Department proposes to correct rule languages inconsistencies not imposing new regulatory costs, to incorporate required forms by reference, and to update obsolete organizational references.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Regulation of Oil & Gas Exploration, Drilling, and Production.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 377.22 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 377.04, 377.19, 377.21, 377.22, 377.22(2), 377.24, 377.34, 377.35, 377.36 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Ed Garrett, Administrator, Oil & Gas Section, Bureau of Mining and Minerals Regulation, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2051 E. Paul Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, FL 32310; call: (850)488-8217 ext. 12; e-mail: ed.garrett@dep.state.fl.us. For information regarding mailings, schedules, and copies of notices, contact Marjane Monahan at (850)488-8217 or e-mail: marjane.monahan@dep.state.fl.us
 THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Acupuncture

RULE NO.: 64B1-3.004
 RULE TITLE: Acupuncture Examination

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes to address a change in the name of the approved examination and amend the rule to include an effective date of implementation of this rule.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Acupuncture Examination.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.017, 457.104 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.017, 457.104 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Anthony Jusevitch, Executive Director, Board of Acupuncture/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Massage

RULE NO.: 64B7-25.004
 RULE TITLE: Endorsements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes this rule amendment to add the Board's website where forms may be obtained, delete unnecessary language and update courses.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Endorsements.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.013(2), 480.035(7), 480.041(4)(c) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 480.041(4)(c) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Anthony Jusevitch, Executive Director, Board of Massage Therapy/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Pharmacy

RULE NO.: 64B16-28.101
RULE TITLE: Prescription Area Accessible to Inspection

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to clarify the performance of pharmacy inspections.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Prescription Area Accessible to Inspection.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 465.005, 465.022 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 465.017, 465.022 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Fritz Hayes, B. Pharm, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

NAVIGATION DISTRICTS

Florida Inland Navigation District

RULE NOS.: 66B-1.004, 66B-1.005, 66B-1.008
RULE TITLES: Policy, Funds Allocation, Project Eligibility

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule development is to include the following provisions in the program rule: Ensure consistency within the rule and Chapter 374, F.S., and define terms for land acquisition eligibility, clarify public navigation eligibility, add marine fire-fighting vessel eligibility, clarify accounting for fees, and determine environmental restoration parameters.

The effect of the rule development is to implement changes in the administration of the District's Assistance Programs that will assist the District and program applicants in the review and evaluation of applications submitted pursuant to the rule.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Cooperative Assistance Program rule sections: Policy, Funds Allocation, and Project Eligibility.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 374.976(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 374.976(1)-(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 15, 2011, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: The FIND district office, 1314 Marcinski Road, Jupiter, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Mark Crosley, Assistant Executive Director, Florida Inland Navigation District, 1314 Marcinski Road, Jupiter, Florida 33477, Telephone Number: (561)627-3386

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

NAVIGATION DISTRICTS

Florida Inland Navigation District

RULE NOS.: 66B-2.004, 66B-2.005, 66B-2.008
RULE TITLES: Policy, Funds Allocation, Project Eligibility

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule development is to include the following provisions in the program rule: Ensure consistency within the rule and F.S. 374 and define terms for land acquisition eligibility, clarify public navigation eligibility, add marine fire-fighting vessel eligibility, clarify accounting for fees, and determine environmental restoration parameters.

The effect of the rule development is to implement changes in the administration of the District's Assistance Programs that will assist the District and program applicants in the review and evaluation of applications submitted pursuant to the rule.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Waterways Assistance Program rule sections: Policy, Funds Allocation, and Project Eligibility.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 374.976(2) FS.
 LAW IMPLEMENTED: 374.976(1)-(3) FS.
 IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:
 DATE AND TIME: November 15, 2011, 11:00 a.m.
 PLACE: The FIND District Office, 1314 Marcinski Road, Jupiter, Florida
 THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Mark Crosley, Assistant Executive Director, Florida Inland Navigation District, 1314 Marcinski Road, Jupiter, Florida 33477, Telephone Number: (561)627-3386
 THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
69A-58.001	Administration and General Requirements
69A-58.002	Scope: New Construction and Existing Facilities
69A-58.003	Definitions
69A-58.0031	New Construction
69A-58.004	Firesafety Inspections
69A-58.0041	Charter Schools
69A-58.005	Serious Life Safety Hazards
69A-58.006	Vacant and Abandoned Buildings
69A-58.007	Counties, Municipalities, and Special Districts Having Firesafety Responsibilities, Without Firesafety Inspectors
69A-58.008	Standards and Requirements for Existing Buildings; Exceptions to Rule Chapter 69A-60, the Florida Fire Prevention Code
69A-58.0081	Means of Egress
69A-58.0082	Relocatable Buildings
69A-58.0083	Protection from Hazards
69A-58.0084	Seclusion Time Out Rooms
69A-58.009	Florida Firesafety School Evaluation System
69A-58.010	Other Applicable Codes and Standards

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendments will update the rules in Chapter 69A-58, F.A.C., and implement the changes made by Chapter 2011-79, Laws of Florida.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Fire safety in educational facilities.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 663.01(1), (7), 1013.12(1) FS.
 LAW IMPLEMENTED: 663.01(7), 633.022, 633.025, 1013.12, 1013.371, 1013.38 FS.
 IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:
 DATE AND TIME: November 22, 2011, 10:00 a.m.
 PLACE: State Fire Marshall Conference Room, The Atrium Building, 325 John Knox Road, Tallahassee, FL
 DATE AND TIME: November 23, 2011, 10:00 a.m.
 PLACE: Florida State Fire College, Auditorium, 11655 N.W. Gainesville Road, Ocala, FL
 Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Charles Frank at (850)413-3747 or Charles.Frank@MyFloridaCFO.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Charles Frank, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshall, 200 E. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342 (850)413-3747 or Charles.Frank@MyFloridaCFO.com. A copy of the text of the proposed rules is posted on the Department's website at www.MyFloridaCFO.com/LegalServices/ruleHearing/.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

**Section II
Proposed Rules**

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
33-601.715	Visiting Application Initiation Process

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rulemaking is to incorporate forms into the rule that were previously located in Rule 33-601.737, F.A.C., and to clarify in Form DC6-111B what are appropriate items for visitors.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule incorporates forms that were previously located in Rule 33-601.737, F.A.C., and clarifies in Form DC6-111B what are appropriate items for visitors.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the agency.

Based on the fact that the rule is only being amended to incorporate forms in a different location and provide general clarification to visitors, the change will not have an impact on small business or the private sector and the rule therefore is not expected to require legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 944.09 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 20.315, 944.09, 944.23 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Kendra Lee Jowers, 501 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

33-601.715 Visiting Application Initiation Process.

(1) No change.

(2) The inmate shall be given up to fifteen copies of Form DC6-111A, the Request for Visiting Privileges, ~~Form DC6-111A~~, and Form DC6-111B, Visitor Information Summary, ~~Form DC6-111B~~, within 24 hours after arrival at his or her permanent facility. Forms DC6-111A and DC6-111B are hereby incorporated by ~~reference in Rule 33-601.737, F.A.C.~~ Copies of these forms are available from the Forms Control Administrator, 501 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective date of these forms is October 1, 2011. The inmate shall be responsible for sending the forms to each family member or friend twelve years of age or older; whom the inmate wishes to be placed in his or her approved visiting record. Minors eleven years of age and younger are not required to submit ~~a Request for Visiting Privileges, Form DC6-111B;~~ until they reach 12 years of age.

(a) No change.

(b) The prospective visitor shall be required to complete ~~a~~ Form DC6-111A, Request for Visiting Privileges, by filling in each line or inserting "NA" (not applicable) where appropriate.

(3) through (4) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 944.09, 944.23 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 944.09, 944.23 FS. History--New 11-18-01, Amended 5-27-02, 9-29-03, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:

Russell Hosford, Assistant Secretary of Institutions

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE:

Kenneth S. Tucker, Secretary

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD:

October 7, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW:

July 1, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
60S-1.004	Participation
60S-1.0045	Renewed Membership in the Regular Class and Senior Management Service Class
60S-1.005	Special Risk Class; Legislative Intent and Procedures
60S-1.0051	Criteria for Special Risk Membership – Law Enforcement
60S-1.0052	Criteria for Special Risk Membership – Firefighters
60S-1.0053	Criteria for Special Risk Membership – Correctional Officers
60S-1.00535	Criteria for Special Risk Membership – Emergency Medical Technicians and Paramedics
60S-1.0054	Special Risk Administrative Support Class
60S-1.0055	Senior Management Service Class
60S-1.007	Admission of Cities, Independent Special Districts, Metropolitan Planning Organizations, Public Charter Schools and Public Charter Technical Career Centers to the Florida Retirement System

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Rule Chapter 60S-1, F.A.C., is being amended to incorporate statutory changes up through the 2010 Legislative session, delete obsolete language and make technical corrections.

SUMMARY: The amendments set forth the available Florida Retirement System (FRS) plan choices as provided by statute and as administered by the Florida State Board of Administration (SBA) and incorporates by reference ten SBA plan election forms; adds references to metropolitan planning organizations, public charter schools and public charter technical career centers which are now statutorily permitted to participate in the FRS; incorporates by reference one new Division of Retirement form, two revised Division forms and five existing Division forms previously incorporated by reference under Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.; adds references to the closing of renewed membership to retirees of a state administered retirement systems who are initially reemployed

on or after July 1, 2010; makes technical corrections to a regularly established position in a state agency; clarifies a regularly established position and a temporary position for a local agency, expands Special Risk Class membership criteria in accordance with statute and expands compulsory membership in the Elected Officers' Class in accordance with statute.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

No State of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. The agency has determined that this rule shall not have an effect on small businesses as defined by Section 288.703, Florida Statutes, nor on small counties or small cities as defined by Section 120.52, Florida Statutes. Any person who to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimate regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein:

Not required because there are no adverse impacts on economic growth, business competitiveness or regulatory costs of more than \$1M in the aggregate within five years of implementation.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 121.031, 121.0515, 121.052(14), 121.4501(8)(a) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 27.701, 112.0515, 112.25-31, 121.011, 121.021, 121.031, 121.051, 121.0511, 121.0515, 121.052, 121.053, 121.055, 121.081, 121.091, 121.122, 121.23, 121.35, 121.355, 121.4501, 240.3195, 1012.875 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET

PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director's Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

60S-1.004 Participation.

(1) Compulsory Membership – Participation in the Florida Retirement System (FRS) shall be compulsory as a condition of employment for all officers and employees enumerated in

the following paragraphs who are filling a regularly established position as described in subsection 60S-1.004(4), F.A.C., and defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C., (exceptions are provided in subsection 60S-1.004(2) or (3), F.A.C.). Such officers and employees shall participate in one of the five Florida Retirement System classes of membership. Members shall be assigned to the Regular Class unless eligible or required by virtue of the position held to be in the Special Risk Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C., the Special Risk Administrative Support Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.0054, F.A.C., the Elected Officers' Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.0055, F.A.C., or the Senior Management Service Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.0057, F.A.C. All such officers or employees initially enrolled into the FRS or initially enrolled as renewed members of the FRS as provided in Section 121.122 and 121.053, F.S., shall be enrolled, by default, into the defined benefit plan of the FRS more commonly referred to as the FRS Pension Plan as provided in Part I of Chapter 121, F.S., and may, by the last business day of the fifth month following his or her month of hire as provided in Section 121.4501, F.S., choose to elect enrollment into the defined contribution plan of the FRS more commonly referred to as the FRS Investment Plan as provided in Part II of Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. Such election may be filed with the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., using one of the following State Board of Administration forms applicable to his or her membership class in the Florida Retirement System. The forms are: Form ELE-1-EZ (Rev. 07-11), an EZ Retirement Plan Enrollment form which is only for Regular Class, Special Risk Class, and Special Risk Administrative Support Class members; Form ELE-1 (Rev. 10-11), a General Retirement Plan Enrollment form for Regular Class, Special Risk Class, and Special Risk Class Administrative Support Class members; Form EOC-1 (Rev. 10-11), a form for Elected Officers' Class members; Form OCC-1 (Rev. 10-11), a form for members eligible for participation in the State Community College Optional Retirement Program; Form ORP-16 (Rev. 10-11), a form for members eligible for participation in the State University System Optional Retirement Plan; Form SMS-1 (Rev. 10-11), a form for members eligible for participation in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Plan; and Form SMS-3 (Rev. 10-11), a form for members eligible for participation in a local retirement plan in lieu of the Senior Management Service Class all of which are herein incorporated by reference. The form appropriate to the employee's membership class is available in the enrollment package which is sent to the employee's address of record after the employee's first reported payroll or by accessing the Division's Web site (<http://FRS.MyFlorida.com>); or by calling toll free 1(866)446-9377, or for the hearing impaired 1(888)429-2160, or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of the form to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the

employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election. After the period of initial FRS plan choice has expired, or the month following the receipt of the eligible employee's plan election, if sooner, the employee's plan choice is irrevocable except that the employee shall have one opportunity, at the employee's discretion, to change plans as provided in Section 121.4501, F.S. Such election to change FRS plans may be made using one of the following State Board of Administration forms for ease of use for employees in the several membership classes of the Florida Retirement System. These forms are: Form ELE-2 (Rev. 10-11), 2nd Election Retirement Plan Enrollment Form; and Form ELE-2-EZ (Rev. 07-11), 2nd Election Retirement Plan Enrollment Form both of which are here in incorporated by reference. These forms can be obtained by accessing the Division's Web site (<http://FRS.MyFlorida.com>); or by calling toll free 1(866)446-9377, or for the hearing impaired 1(888)429-2160, or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of the form to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election.

(a) All officers and employees within any agency, branch, department, institution, university, institution of higher education, or board of the state, or any county agency, branch, department, board, district school board, or participating independent special district, ~~or~~ municipality of the state, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center.

(b) All officers and employees who were in the employ of an employer on December 1, 1970 but who were not eligible to participate in the existing systems except those employees who meet the criteria for optional membership as provided in subsection 60S-1.004(2) or prohibited membership as provided in subsection 60S-1.004(3), F.A.C.

(c) All members of the existing systems who elect to transfer to the Florida Retirement System in accordance with the procedures established by the Administrator. Any member of one of the existing systems who was on a noncreditable leave-of-absence under his or her existing system or the entire period of leave-of-absence was not claimed for retirement purposes, shall be a compulsory member of the Florida Retirement System unless the member's account was not adjusted prior to July 1, 1978 when the statutes were amended as provided in paragraph 60S-1.004(3)(b), F.A.C.

(d) Any member, as provided in paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(f), F.A.C., who fails within 6 months of reemployment to make written notification to the Division of his or her intention to remain in the existing system.

(e) Officers and employees of a covered group of a city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical

career center which is approved for participation in the Florida Retirement System. Such officers and employees shall be compulsory members as follows:

1. If the participating city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center did not have a local retirement system at the time it was approved for participation in the Florida Retirement System, all present and future officers and employees shall be covered.

2. If the participating city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, participating public charter school or public charter technical career center had a local retirement system at the time it was approved for membership in the Florida Retirement System, all officers and employees who elect to transfer to the Florida Retirement System shall be covered and all future officers and employees shall be covered.

(f) All officers or employees of a covered group of a city or independent special district, who are members of a local retirement system established in accordance with Chapter 175 or 185, F.S., may elect coverage under the Florida Retirement System by a majority of such officers and employees in a referendum held for that purpose. Upon establishing membership in the Florida Retirement System for the covered group, all officers or employees hired thereafter shall be compulsory members of the FRS. Existing officers and employees shall be subject to paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(h), F.A.C.

(g)(f) All former members of existing systems who terminated employment and received a full or partial refund of retirement contributions; and

1. Returns to covered employment after November 30, 1970 and prior to July 1, 1988; or

2. Returns to covered employment on or after July 1, 1988 after terminating all employment relationships as provided in subsection 60S-6.001(69), F.A.C., subsection 60S-6.001(62), F.A.C., and remaining terminated from all covered employment for at least 12 months.

(g) All officers or employees of a covered group of a city or special district who are members of a local retirement system established in accordance with Chapter 175 or 185, F.S., may elect coverage under the Florida Retirement System by a majority of such officers and employees in a referendum held for that purpose. Upon establishing membership in the Florida Retirement System for the covered group, all officers or employees hired thereafter shall be compulsory members of the FRS. Existing officers and employees shall be subject to paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(h), F.A.C.

(h) All blind or partially-sighted persons who are employed or licensed by the Bureau of Blind Services as vending facility operators on or after December 1, 1970 and prior to July 1, 1996. Such persons who were members during that period shall remain compulsory members of the Florida

Retirement System for as long as the member is a vending facility operator, unless such member makes an irrevocable election on or before July 31, 1996, to withdraw from the Florida Retirement System or unless retirement contributions are not paid as required in Rule 60S-3.003, F.A.C.

(i) All regular receivership employees of the Division of Rehabilitation and Liquidation, Department of Insurance.

(j) All members who were employed with a city, independent special district, or hospital when such employer entity revoked its participation in the Florida Retirement System on January 1, 1996, as provided by Section 121.0511, or 121.051(2)(b)5., F.S. Such members shall remain as members of the Florida Retirement System for as long as they are continuously employed with that same employer entity.

(k) Effective July 1, 1996, the following employees of a dependent governmental entity within the jurisdiction of an independent participating agency that has failed to report such employees for membership in the Florida Retirement System as required under this chapter, shall become compulsory members of the Florida Retirement System:

1. Employees that were hired on or after July 1, 1996;

2. Employees as of June 30, 1996, who were not participating in a retirement plan provided by the dependent entity. Any such employees who, on June 30, 1996, were participating in a retirement plan provided by the dependent entity shall elect, in writing, to participate in the Florida Retirement System or to remain in the retirement plan provided by the dependent entity, effective July 1, 1996.

(l) All employees of a public charter school or charter technical career center, the governing body of which has elected to participate in the Florida Retirement System.

(2) Optional Membership – Participation in the Florida Retirement System shall be optional for all officers and employees enumerated in the following paragraphs who are filling a regularly established position as described in subsection 60S-1.004(4) and defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C.

(a) All members of the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System, the Teachers' Retirement System, and the Highway Patrol Pension System, when membership in the Florida Retirement System is made available by act of the State Legislature which has occurred during the following periods:

1. October 15, 1970 through November 30, 1970; membership effective December 1, 1970.

2. April 15, 1971 through May 31, 1971; membership effective June 1, 1971.

3. April 15, 1972 through June 30, 1972; membership effective July 1, 1972, retroactive to December 1, 1970.

4. September 1, 1974 through November 30, 1974; membership effective January 1, 1975.

5. September 1, 1978 through November 30, 1978; membership effective January 1, 1979.

6. January 2, 1982 through May 31, 1982; membership effective July 1, 1982.

7. January 1, 1991 through May 29, 1991, for those members who were not employed in a covered position or on a creditable leave-of-absence during the periods described in 1. through 6. above, and were never reemployed before July 2, 1978 or after June 29, 1983 when transfer upon reemployment was allowed; membership effective July 1, 1991.

(b) Members of the existing systems who were not given an opportunity to transfer to the Florida Retirement System because they were on a creditable leave-of-absence under their existing retirement system. Such members shall be given an opportunity to transfer to the Florida Retirement System immediately upon termination of their leave of absence and return to duty, and shall indicate on the application their election to remain in the existing system or transfer to the Florida Retirement System.

(c) 1. Employees filling a position classified as eligible for membership in the State University System Optional Retirement Program (SUSORP) shall by default be enrolled prospectively into the SUSORP upon such employment except that participants of the FRS Investment Plan who fill such positions shall not be prospectively enrolled into the SUSORP unless the position is a mandatory SUSORP position as provided in Section 121.051(1)(a), F.S. for the State University System and who choose membership in the Florida Retirement System within 90 days of employment, as provided in Section 121.35, F.S., and Chapter 60U, F.A.C.

2. Employees enrolled by default into the SUSORP, except for those filling a mandatory SUSORP position, may choose between membership in the Florida Retirement System or participation in the SUSORP within 90 days of employment by filing such election in writing with the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., not later than 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the 90th day from the employee's date of hire into the SUSORP eligible position in accordance with Sections 121.35 and 121.4501, F.S., and Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C., and may file such election using the State Board of Administration's designed form for ease of use: Form ORP-16, State University System Optional Retirement Program (SUSORP) Retirement Plan Enrollment Form adopted by reference in subsection (1), or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form, ORP-16, to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election.

3. Employees who file an election to participate in the SUSORP, other than mandatory SUSORP participants who must elect this option, must also execute a contract with a SUSORP provider company no later than the 90th day from the employee's date of hire into the SUSORP eligible position in accordance with Sections 121.35 and 121.4501, F.S., and Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C., or shall by default have membership in the

FRS commencing with the date of employment into the SUSORP-eligible position. Mandatory SUSORP participants must execute a contract with a SUSORP provider company otherwise contributions will not be allocated to a SUSORP provider company.

4. Employees enrolled by default in the SUSORP, except for mandatory SUSORP participants, who do not elect SUSORP participation and/or who do not execute a provider contract within the 90-day period as provided in sub-paragraph 2., shall by default have membership in the FRS Pension Plan commencing with the date of employment into the SUSORP-eligible position.

5. An election to participate in SUSORP is irrevocable for as long as an employee remains in the SUSORP-eligible position.

(d) Employees filling a position classified as eligible for participation in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program as provided in Section 121.055, F.S., and Chapter 60V, F.A.C., shall within the 90-day period of the commencement of such employment have the option of prospectively participating in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program (SMSOAP) in lieu of participating in the FRS as provided in Sections 121.055 and 121.4501, F.S.

1. An election to participate in the SMSOAP, must be made in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.S., no later than the 90th day after the date of hire which requires the selection to be made not later than 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the 90th day from the employee's date of hire in accordance with Sections 121.055 and 121.4501, F.S., and Rule 19-11006, F.A.C.

2. SMSOAP-eligible employees who wish to participate in the SMSOAP, may file their election in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator using the State Board of Administration designed form for ease of use; Form SMS-1, State Senior Management Service Employees Retirement Plan Enrollment Form, adopted by reference in subsection (1), or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form SMS-1, to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election.

3. An election to participate in SMSOAP is irrevocable for as long as an employee remains in the SMSOAP-eligible position except as provided in Section 121.055(6)(c)5., F.S.

(e) Any elected officer eligible for membership in the Elected Officers' Class as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0055(2)(b), F.A.C., may within the first six months of assuming office choose to:

1. Withdraw from the Florida Retirement System altogether, which means that the employee will not participate in the Florida Retirement System or any retirement plan offered by his or her employer; that the effective date of the

election will be the date he or she assumed elected office; and that the employee can rejoin the Elected Officers' Class during a term of office upon written request.

2. Join the Senior Management Service Class of the FRS in lieu of participating in the Elected Officers' Class of the FRS as provided in Section 121.055, F.S., wherein:

a. State elected officers who elect to participate in the Senior Management Service Class would be eligible to elect to participate prospectively in the Senior Management Optional Annuity Program in lieu of the FRS within the first 90-day period of participation in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in paragraph (d).

b. Local elected officers who elect to participate in the Senior Management Service Class would be eligible to elect to withdraw from the Florida Retirement System to participate in a local retirement program within the first 90-day period of participation in the Senior Management Service Class.

3. An elected officer may file their election in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., no later than the last business day of the 6th month after assuming elected office in accordance with Sections 121.055 and 121.4501, F.S. and Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C., using the SBA designed form for ease of use; Form EOC-1, Elected Officers' Class Retirement Plan Enrollment Form, adopted by reference in subsection (1) or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form EOC-1, to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election.

(f) Any member of an existing system or any member retired under the disability provisions of the Teachers' Retirement System who recovers and terminates his or her benefit, and

1. Who returns to employment on or after June 30, 1983 and prior to July 1, 1988; or

2. Who has terminated all employment relationships as provided in subsection 60S-6.001(69), F.A.C., subsection 60S-6.001(55), F.A.C., remains terminated from all covered employment for at least 12 months and returns to covered employment on or after July 1, 1988. Such member shall have the option of transferring to the Florida Retirement System or remaining in the existing system. To remain in the existing system the member shall, within 6 months of reemployment, make written notification to the Division of his or her intention to remain in the existing system. Such written notification may be made using Division of Retirement designed form for ease of use, Form BLE-1 (Rev 08/99), herein adopted by reference, or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form, BLE-1, to file their written notification with the Division which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election. Failure to submit notification shall result in compulsory membership in the

Florida Retirement System as provided in paragraph 60S-1.004(1)(d), F.A.C.; (See also paragraphs 60S-1.004(1)(g)(f), (3)(b) and (3)(f), F.A.C.)

(g) Those employees who specifically rejected membership in an existing retirement system prior to July 1, 1947, when the employees were given this option by law, and who continue employment without participating in the Florida Retirement System may withdraw their rejection in writing and, if otherwise eligible, participate in the Florida Retirement System. Such employee shall notify the Division of Retirement in writing of his or her desire to withdraw his or her rejection and to become a member of the Florida Retirement System. The Division shall then notify the employing agency to enroll the employee in the Florida Retirement System effective the first day of the month following the month during which the Division received notification of the employee's withdrawal of rejection.

(h) Officers or employees of a covered group of a city or independent special district, who are members of a local retirement system established in accordance with Chapter 175 or 185, F.S. All such officers and employees who elect coverage under the Florida Retirement System shall be compulsory members of the Florida Retirement System, provided a majority of such officers and employees elect such coverage in a referendum held for that purpose.

(i) Any member of a local retirement system whose employer becomes a covered group, except as provided in paragraph (h).

(j) Any employee Employees filling a position classified as eligible for participation in the State Community College System Optional Retirement Program (CCORP) ~~of the State Community College System~~ as provided in Section 121.051, and 1012.875, 240.3195, F.S.

1.a. Prior to July 1, 2003, an employee filling a CCORP eligible position, within 60 days of the date of qualifying employment, had the option of prospectively participating in the CCORP.

b. On or after July 1, 2003 and through December 31, 2008, an active CCORP participant, having made election to participate in the CCORP prior to July 1, 2003, may file an election in writing with the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., to transfer the sum representing the Present Value of the FRS Pension Plan service credit that resulted from that period(s) of time when the participant first became eligible to transfer to the CCORP and the effective date of such election as provided in Section 121.051(2)(c)7., F.S. Transfer of this sum will nullify service credit for that period under the FRS Pension Plan. Such election may be filed in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., in accordance to Section 121.4501, F.S., and Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C., using the State Board of Administration designed form for ease of use; Form OCC-2 (Rev. 10-11), "Retirement Plan

Conversion Form for Community College Optional Retirement Program (CCORP) Members", herein incorporated by reference. This form is available on the Division's Web site (<http://FRS.MyFlorida.com>); or by calling toll free (866)446-9377, or for the hearing impaired 1(888)429-2160, or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form OCC-2, to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election.

2. On or after July 1, 2003, an employee filling a CCORP eligible position, within 90 days of qualifying employment, shall have the option of electing to participate in the CCORP.

a. For an employee initially enrolled into the FRS as a result of CCORP-eligible employment, such election will be retroactive to the date of eligible employment.

b. For an employee who became eligible as a result of transfer to a CCORP-eligible position, such election will be effective the first day of the month for which a full month's participation in the CCORP could have occurred within the 90-day election window.

c. To file an election to participate in the CCORP, such election must be made in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator and to the employer, the eligible employee may use the State Board of Administration's designed form for ease of use; Form OCC-1, "Community College Optional Retirement Program (CCORP) Retirement Plan Choice Form for Eligible Employees," adopted by reference in subsection (1), or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form OCC-1, to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election.

3. An election to participate in the CCORP is irrevocable except that, effective July 1, 2003, an active participant can, at his or her discretion within the terms of his or her State Community College Optional Retirement Program contract, exercise a one-time opportunity to transfer to the FRS Pension Plan or participate prospectively in the FRS Investment Plan by filing such election in writing with the Plan Choice Administrator, the eligible employee may use the State Board of Administration's designed form for ease of use; Form OCC-2 "Retirement Plan Conversion Form for Community College Optional Retirement Program (CCORP) Members" or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form OCC-2, to file his or her election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election.

4. An employee who fills a CCORP-eligible position who does not make an election to participate in the CCORP within his or her election window, forfeits eligibility to participate in the CCORP and defaults to FRS membership.

(k) The sheriff, ~~or~~ circuit court clerk or mayor of a consolidated government as provided in Section 121.052(2)(d) and (5)(d), F.S.

(3) Membership Not Permitted – Participation in the Florida Retirement System shall not be permitted for:

(a) A person who has retired under the disability provisions of a state-administered retirement system except as provided in subsection 60S-4.007(8), F.A.C.

(b) Any member of an existing system on or after July 1, 1978 and prior to June 30, 1983 who terminated employment without receiving a total or partial refund of contributions. Such member shall remain a member of the existing system. ~~See also (1)(f) and (2)(e).~~

(c) Officers and employees of any nonprofit association or corporation; however, all officers and employees of the University Athletic Association, Inc. participating in a state-supported retirement system prior to July 1, 1979, shall continue membership in such system, except those who chose in writing between July 1, 1979 and March 30, 1980 to terminate participation in the Florida Retirement System in accordance with Section 121.051(2)(a)1., F.S.

(d) Any person participating in the State University System Optional Retirement Program (SUSORP) ~~for the State University System~~ in accordance with paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(c), F.A.C.

(e) Any person participating in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program in accordance with paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(d), F.A.C., except as provided in Section 121.055(6)(c)5., F.S.

(f) Any member of an existing system who is reemployed on or after July 1, 1988 within 12 months after terminating all employment relationships as provided in subsection Rule 60S-6.001(69), F.A.C. (~~Termination~~), regardless of whether he or she received a full or partial refund of retirement contributions. Such member shall remain a member of the existing system except as provided in Rules 60S-1.0055 and 60S-1.0057, F.A.C. (See also paragraphs 60S-1.004(1)(f), ~~(7)(2)(f)~~, and ~~(8)(3)(b)~~, F.A.C.)

(g) Any person performing services as a consultant or an independent contractor as defined in subsection Rule 60S-6.001(33), F.A.C. The determination of the employment classification of a person as an employee or an independent contractor is solely within the jurisdiction of the Division. To establish whether a person is an independent contractor or an employee, a determination may be requested from the Division, Bureau of Enrollment and Contributions. The determination will be based in substantial part on information furnished on Form ERQ-1 (Rev. 09/08) 420-035, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Employment Relationship Questionnaire for Retirees Within the 2nd – 12th Months, herein adopted by reference ~~adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.~~, which the employing agency and the person performing the services must each complete and submit to the

Division for a determination. Retroactive adjustments of retirement contributions will be required by any agency that improperly excludes or enrolls a person.

(h) Any person appointed on or after July 1, 1989, to a faculty position in a college at the J. Hillis Miller Health Center at the University of Florida or the Medical Center at the University of South Florida which has a faculty practice plan provided by rule adopted by the Board of ~~Governors Regents~~; or its predecessors. Effective July 1, 2007, any person appointed to a faculty position, including clinical faculty, in a college at a state university that has a faculty practice plan authorized by the Board of Governors. Such person ~~must shall~~ participate in the State University System Optional Retirement Program based on such service as provided in subsection 60U-1.004(4), F.A.C. and in accordance with Section 121.051(1), F.S.

(i) Any person participating in the Community College Optional Retirement Program ~~of the State Community College System~~ in accordance with Sections 121.051 and 1012.875 240.3195, F.S.; except as provided in subparagraph 60S-1.004(2)(j)3., F.A.C., and Section 121.051(2)(c)3., F.S.

(j) Any person initially employed on or after January 1, 1996, by a city, independent special district, or hospital that revoked its participation in the Florida Retirement System on that date. Such person shall participate in a retirement plan established by the employer in accordance with Section 121.0511, or 121.051(2)(b)5., F.S.

(k) All blind or partially-sighted persons who are employed or licensed by the Bureau of Blind Services as vending facility operators on or after July 1, 1996; and any such persons who were members prior to July 1, 1996, who make an irrevocable election on or before July 31, 1996, to withdraw from the Florida Retirement System, and any such persons for whom retirement contributions are not paid as required in Rule 60S-3.003, F.A.C.

(l) All employees of a not-for-profit corporation or association created by the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County for the purpose of owning, operating, or managing a public bus transit system formerly operated or managed by a private corporation subject to 49 U.S.C., Section 5333(b), F.A.C.

(m) All employees of a private charter school or charter technical career center; and all independent contractors who, either as individuals or as members of a group, contract their services to a public charter school or charter technical career center.

(n) Any retiree of a state administered retirement system initially reemployed on or after July 1, 2010, is not eligible for renewed membership as provided in Sections 121.122 and 121.053, F.S.

(o) Any retiree of a state administered retirement system who is working for a non-participating FRS employer which joins the FRS on or after July 1, 2010, is ineligible for renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System as provided in Sections 121.122 and 121.053, F.S.

(4) Membership in the Florida Retirement System shall be compulsory if the employee is filling a full-time or part-time regularly established position; except for State University System Optional Retirement Program (SUSORP)-eligible and mandatory SUSORP employees as provided in Section 121.35, F.S., and paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(c), F.A.C.; Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program (SMSOAP)-eligible employees as provided in Section 121.055 and 121.4501, F.S., and paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(d), F.A.C.; elected officers eligible for membership in the Elected Officers' Class as provided in Section 121.052, F.S., and paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(e), F.A.C.; and CCORP-eligible employees as provided in Sections 121.051 and 1012.875, F.S., and paragraph 60S-1.004(2)(j), F.A.C. An employee filling a regularly established position shall be enrolled on the first day of employment, even if the employee is serving a probationary period, or working part-time. A position meeting the definition below shall be considered a regularly established position. An elected official (with the exception of those listed in subparagraph 60S-1.004(5)(d)7., F.A.C.), shall be considered to be filling a regularly established position on the date he or she is commissioned or assumes office.

(a) A regularly established position in a state agency is a position that which is authorized and established pursuant to law and is compensated from a salaries and benefits appropriation pursuant to Section 216.011(1)(mm), F.S., or a position established pursuant to Section 216.262(1)(a) and (b), F.S., and is compensated from either a salaries and benefit appropriation pursuant to Section 216.011(1)(mm), F.S., or from a salaries account as provided for in Section 216.011(1)(nn), F.S. 216.011(1)(z)1. and 2., F.S., or a salaries account as provided for in Rule 3A-10.031, F.A.C.

(b) A regularly established position in a local agency (district school board, county agency, community college, city, independent ~~or~~ special district, metropolitan planning organization, or participating public charter school or charter technical career center) is an employment position which will be in existence beyond 6 consecutive calendar months. A local agency, when establishing an employment position, except for positions identified in sub-subparagraphs 60S-1.004(4)(c)7.a. and 8.a., F.A.C. or paragraph 60S-1.004(5)(d), F.A.C., should determine if the position will exist beyond 6 consecutive calendar months. If it will, then it is a regularly established position. If it will not, then it is a temporary position. A position which exists for any part of a month is considered to be in existence for the entire month. A local agency shall not use the 6 month period as a means for not making the required retirement contributions into the Florida Retirement System

trust fund. Records documenting the intended length of a temporary position and the dates of employment of an employee in such position must be maintained by the agency.

(c) The following shall apply to all members employed by a local agency:

1. through 6. No change.

7.a. CETA participants employed from July 1, 1979 through September 30, 1983, under the Federal Comprehensive Employment and Training Act and JTPA participants employed on or after October 1, 1983, under the Job Training Partnership Act shall be considered to be filling a temporary position for retirement purposes.

b. CETA participants employed prior to July 1, 1979 who are already covered for retirement may continue to have retirement coverage for the duration of their participation in the CETA program.

c. through d. No change.

8. No change.

(5) An employee who is filling a temporary position shall not be eligible for membership in the Florida Retirement System. Records documenting the intended length of a temporary position and the dates of employment of an employee in such position must be maintained by the agency. An employer employing a person in a temporary position shall advise the employee at the time of his or her employment that he or she is filling a temporary position and cannot participate in the Florida Retirement System or claim this temporary employment later for retirement purposes. A position shall not be considered temporary due to the uncertainty of the employee's intention to continue employment. A position meeting the definition below shall be a temporary position.

(a) A temporary position in a state agency is an employment position which is compensated from an other personal services (OPS) account as provided for in Section 216.011(1)(~~dd~~)(~~x~~), F.S.

(b) A temporary position in a local agency is:

1. An employment position which will not exist beyond 6 consecutive calendar months; or

2. An instructional position which is established with no guarantee of continuation beyond one term to teach in a community college, a district school board public school, a participating public charter school or a participating public charter technical career center; effective July 1, 1991, such a position may include a paper grader, tutor, note taker, and a lab tutor at community colleges; or

~~2. An employment position which is listed below in (d) regardless of whether it will exist beyond 6 consecutive months.~~

~~(c) When an employment position in a local agency is extended beyond 6 consecutive calendar months, with the exception of those listed in paragraph (d) below, it shall become a regularly established position for retirement purposes and the employer shall enroll the current employee~~

~~and all subsequent employees filling the position into the retirement system and shall begin to make the necessary contributions on the first day of the seventh calendar month, or on the first day of the month following the month in which the decision is made to extend the position beyond 6 months, if earlier. When a temporary position extends beyond 6 months and there is no documentation substantiating that the position was originally established as a temporary position to last for 6 months or less, the employee filling such position will be enrolled from the initial date of employment and retirement contributions shall be due retroactively to that date.~~

~~3.(d) Any of the~~ The following types of positions wherein documentation in a local agency are considered temporary positions for retirement purposes. Documents to support such temporary positions is listed below must be maintained by the agency in the employee's personnel agency's record or in the absence of the same, other agency documentation deemed acceptable by the division (see subsection 60S-5.007(2), F.A.C.).

~~a.1. Student Positions~~ (positions filled by persons who are bona fide students in an accredited educational or vocational program who perform services for a public employer in a temporary position set aside strictly for students).

~~b.2. Work-Study Positions~~ (positions filled by students participating in the Federal work-study program).

~~3. Temporary Instructional Positions~~ (positions which are established with no expectation of continuation beyond one semester or one trimester at a time, to teach in a community college, public school, or vocational institution; effective July 1, 1991, such positions may include paper graders, tutors, notetakers, and lab tutors at community colleges).

~~c.4. Substitute teacher Teacher Positions~~ (positions filled by persons not on contract called to work intermittently to substitute).

~~d.5. On call Call Positions~~ (positions filled by employees who are called to work unexpectedly for brief periods and whose work employment ceases when the job is completed purpose for being called is satisfied). If an employee has a work schedule and works consistently month after month, he or she is not considered to be filling an on call position.

~~e.6. CETA and JTPA Positions, and "enrollees"~~ in Senior Community Service Employment Program of the USDA as provided in sub-subparagraphs 60S-1.004(4)(c)7.a. and 8.a, F.A.C.

~~f.7. Non-salaried elected Elective Positions~~ (positions in which the elected officials receive no compensation, but receive expenses, e.g., per diem, stipend, or an honorarium).

~~g.8. Effective July 1, 1991, Temporary Non-instructional Community College positions~~ Positions (effective July 1, 1991, non-instructional positions filled by employees paid from an other-personal-services OPS budget for not more than 2080 hours of total service within a single community college. Such person who is employed beyond 2080 total aggregate

hours within a community college shall thereafter be an employee filling a regularly established position and a compulsory member of the Florida Retirement System regardless of the appropriation category budget from which he or she is paid.)

~~h.9.~~ Positions established on a temporary basis as a result of a state of emergency as declared by the Governor because of a disaster caused by destructive storms, winds, floods, fires, earthquakes, freezes, and other similar emergencies.

~~i.10.~~ Instructional positions in grades K-12 filled by exchange teachers on a J-1 visa when participating in an exchange visitor program designated by the United States Department of State pursuant to 22 CFR 62.24 (November 10, 2005). Employment may not exceed 3 years whether employed in regularly established positions or temporary positions with educational institutions listed on federal Form DS-2019, Certificate of Eligibility for Exchange Teacher Status. A certified copy of Form DS-2019 must be maintained in the sponsoring agency's records for each exchange teacher employed.

(6) A member who terminates employment retains membership rights to previously earned member-noncontributory service credit, and to member-contributory service credit if the member leaves his or her contributions on deposit in his or her retirement account. Such member may reinstate any previously earned member-contributory service credit for which a refund was received after completion of 1 year of reemployment and membership as provided in subsection 60S-2.004(2), F.A.C., and repayment of the refunded employee contributions, as provided in Rule 60S-3.005, F.A.C.

(7) The effective date of membership in each class enumerated in subsection (1) and defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C., shall be as follows:

(a) Regular Class members:

1. A Regular Class ~~regular~~ member shall have membership in the Regular Class effective on his or her first day of employment.

2. A Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ member who becomes ineligible for Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership shall have his or her designation of Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership discontinued and shall become a Regular Class member on the first day of the month following the date the member becomes ineligible for Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership.

(b) through (e) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.4501(8)(a) FS. Law Implemented 121.011, 121.021, 121.021(39), 121.051(1), (2), 121.051(2)(b)6, 121.0511, 121.0511(6), 121.052, 121.053, 121.055, 121.081, 121.091(8), (13), 121.122, 121.35, 121.355, 121.4501, 240.3195, 1012.875 FS. History--New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72,

12-31-74, 10-2-78, 7-1-79, 7-1-80, 8-26-81, 1-19-82, 10-11-82, 1-18-83, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-1.04, Amended 2-4-86, 1-12-87, 3-11-87, 2-7-89, 9-5-90, 5-15-91, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-1.004, Amended 3-18-93, 8-4-94, 4-5-95, 3-12-96, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 9-17-03, 1-1-06, _____.

60S-1.0045 Renewed Membership in the Regular Class and Senior Management Service Class.

(1) On and after July 1, 1991 and through June 30, 2010, any retired member of a state-administered retirement system who is employed in a regularly established position, including an elected officer not eligible for membership in the Elected Officers' Class, shall be enrolled as a compulsory member of the Regular Class, except a member participating in the Deferred Retirement Option Program as provided in Rule Chapter 60S-11, F.A.C., or as provided in subsection 60S-1.0055(4), F.A.C.; Effective and effective July 1, 1997 through June 30, 2010, any such retired member who is employed in a position included in the Senior Management Service Class shall be enrolled as a compulsory member of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(1)(a), F.A.C. 60S-1.0057(2)(a), and may elect, in lieu of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(7)(c), F.A.C. 60S-1.0057(2)(b) or (e), to participate in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program or withdraw from the Florida Retirement System altogether as provided in Section 121.055, F.S. Such Regular Class or Senior Management Service Class renewed member shall be eligible to receive a second-career retirement benefit in the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan as follows:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The member shall comply with all requirements and be eligible for all benefits applicable to Regular Class or Senior Management Service Class membership except that he or she shall not be entitled to disability benefits as provided in Rule 60S-4.007, F.A.C., and he or she shall not be eligible to participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) as provided in Section 121.091(13), F.S.

(d) The member shall be entitled to receive an additional retirement benefit upon normal retirement as provided in paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(a) or (d), F.A.C., or upon early retirement as provided in Rule 60S-4.005, F.A.C., in accordance with his or her respective membership class, if such member becomes vested as required by the provisions of the Regular Class or Senior Management Service Class. Creditable service may include:

1. For vesting in the Regular Class, service earned as an elected officer with renewed membership in the EOC or as a member with renewed membership in the Senior Management Service Class; and

2. For vesting in the Regular Class or the Senior Management Service Class, credit for post-retirement service performed prior to renewed membership and claimed by the member as provided in subsection 60S-2.008(3), F.A.C.

(e) No service for which credit was earned or which remained unclaimed at retirement may be claimed or applied toward the second-career benefit, except as provided in Section 121.122(1) (g), F.S. that a renewed member who is receiving an annuity from the Optional Retirement Program or the Optional Annuity Program, or who is receiving an IFAS Supplement, may claim such Florida Retirement System service provided that such service was not used toward another benefit.

(f) A reemployed retiree ~~Reemployed retirees~~ who elects ~~elect~~ membership in the FRS Investment Plan shall be eligible to receive benefits upon termination as provided in Section 121.4501, F.S.

(2) If the member is not receiving the maximum health insurance subsidy provided in Rule 60S-4.020, F.A.C., he or she shall be entitled to earn additional credit toward the maximum subsidy, which he or she shall receive only at the time of payment of the second-career retirement benefit. The total subsidy paid to retirees receiving benefits from initial and renewed membership shall not exceed the maximum allowed in Rule 60S-4.020, F.A.C.

(3) Applicable contributions shall be made as provided in subsections 60S-3.003(1) and (7), F.A.C.

(4) Renewed membership in the FRS is closed to any retiree of a state administered retirement system initially reemployed on or after July 1, 2010.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.091, 121.122 FS. History—New 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-1.0045, Amended 3-18-93, 5-10-99, 9-17-03, _____.

60S-1.005 Special Risk Class; Legislative Intent and Procedures.

(1) Legislative Intent. – In creating the Special Risk Class ~~special risk class~~ of membership within the Florida Retirement System, it is the intent and purpose of the Legislature to recognize that persons employed in certain categories of law enforcement, firefighting, and criminal detention, and emergency medical care positions are required as one of the essential functions of their positions to perform work that is physically demanding or arduous, or work that requires extraordinary agility and mental acuity, and that such persons, because of diminishing physical and mental faculties may find that they are not able, without risk to the health and safety of themselves, the public, or their co-workers, to continue performing such duties and thus enjoy the full career and retirement benefits enjoyed by persons employed in other positions, and that, if such persons find it necessary, due to the physical and mental limitations of their age, to retire at an earlier age and usually with less service, they will suffer an

economic deprivation therefrom. Therefore, as a means of recognizing the peculiar and special problems of this class of employees, it is the intent and purpose of the Legislature to establish a class of retirement membership that awards more retirement credit per year of service than that awarded to other employees; nothing contained herein shall require ineligibility for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership upon reaching age 55.

(2) Eligibility – Any member who is employed as a law enforcement officer, a firefighter, ~~or~~ a correctional officer, a community based probation officer with the Department of Corrections, a youth custody officer with the Department of Juvenile Justice, or an emergency medical technician or paramedic, a fixed-wing aircraft pilot conducting aerial firefighting surveillance employed by the Division of Forestry of the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, a professional health care worker in a correctional or forensic facility or institution and employed by the Department of Corrections or the Department of Children and Family Services; a forensic worker employed by the Department of Law Enforcement in the crime laboratory or employed by the Division of the State Fire Marshal in the forensic laboratory, or a forensic worker employed by a local government law enforcement agency or medical examiner's office who meet the criteria as set forth in Rule 60S-1.0051, 60S-1.0052, 60S-1.0053, ~~or~~ 60S-1.00535, 60S-1.00537, or 60S-1.00539, F.A.C., shall be eligible for approval for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership as provided in this section.

(3) Application. – The following procedures shall govern applications for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership:

(a) Application procedures for officers and employees of state agencies.

1. Applying the requirements for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership in subsection (2), the Department of Management Services shall specify those classes of positions established by the Division of Human Resource Management Personnel which shall be included in the Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership. The incumbents of such positions shall be entitled to Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership. If a class is not specified by the Department of Management Services, the employing agency may petition the State Retirement Commission for inclusion of a particular class among those specified as provided in Section 121.0515(3)(b), F.S.

2. Each state agency utilizing positions specified in subparagraph 1. shall submit the appropriate position class code on the Monthly Retirement Report, for each officer and employee who fills a position so specified.

3. The effective date of Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership for newly employed officers and employees who have been verified by the employing state agency and who are certified or required to be certified by the appropriate council or commission shall be the date of employment in a position

specified as Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ as provided in subparagraph 1. Special Risk Class ~~risk~~ contributions shall begin at that time.

a. If a Regular Class ~~regular~~ member becomes employed in a Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ position or a position is reclassified as a Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ position, the effective date of Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership shall be the first day of the month in which the employee assumes the Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ position or the position is reclassified. Special Risk Class ~~risk~~ contributions shall be payable effective with the first salary paid on or after the first day of the month of Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ coverage.

b. If a Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ member changes to another position classified as Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ within the same set of criteria (e.g., a corrections officer I changing to a corrections officer II position), the employer shall submit the appropriate position class code for the new position on the Monthly Retirement Report.

c. If a Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ member changes to a Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ position under a different set of criteria (e.g., a transfer from law enforcement to a firefighter or correctional position), his or her employer shall submit the appropriate position class code for the new position on the Monthly Retirement Report.

(b) Application procedures for officers and employees of county agencies, district school boards, community colleges, and participating cities, and independent special districts, metropolitan planning organizations, public charter schools or charter technical career centers, and those classified by the Judicial Administrative Classification Plan and the Department of Lottery.

1. Any Regular Class ~~regular~~ member who feels that he or she meets the requirements for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership set forth in subsection (2) may request that his or her employer submit an application to the Division requesting that the Division designate him or her as a Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ member. Such member shall complete the employee portions of the appropriate Special Risk Class application. Forms FRS-400 or FRS-405 adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C. The employer shall promptly certify and submit to the Division the following documents:

a. The appropriate Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Class Membership.

(I) Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Class Membership for Law Enforcement/Correctional Officers, Form (FRS-400 (Rev.04/00), herein adopted by reference; or

(II) Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Class Membership Firefighters/Paramedics/EMTs, Form (FRS-405 (Rev.10/03), herein adopted by reference; or

(III) Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Class Membership for Forensic Discipline from October 1, 2005 through June 30, 2008, Form FRS-410 (Rev. 05/08), herein adopted by reference; or

(IV) Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Class Membership for Forensic Discipline effective July 1, 2008, Form FRS-415 (05/08), herein adopted by reference.

b. A current job description of the member's duties showing the percentage of time spent performing each duty.

c. A copy of a personnel action form showing the effective date of membership in that position.

d. Organization chart including the applicant's position for any members applying under supervisory criteria.

2. If the employer refuses to submit the member's application to the Division, the employer he shall notify the member of the his refusal, together with the employer's reasons for refusal his reasons. The member may then appeal this refusal to the State Retirement Commission pursuant to Section 121.0515(3)(a), F.S.

3. Upon receipt of the completed application, which shall include all of the items designated in subparagraph 1. above, the Division shall within 90 days determine if the member meets the requirements for Special Risk Class special-risk membership set forth in subsection (2). If the requirements for Special Risk Class special-risk membership are met, the Division shall approve the member for Special Risk Class special-risk membership which shall commence as follows:

a. When a newly employed member's complete application is received by the Division of Retirement, the effective date of membership in the Special Risk Class special-risk-class shall be the date of employment in the position and Special Risk Class special-risk contributions shall be payable from that time.

b. If a Regular Class member regular employee changes to a Special Risk Class special-risk position within the employing agency and, upon submitting the complete Special Risk Class special-risk application, he or she is approved for Special Risk Class special-risk membership, the member he shall have Special Risk Class special-risk coverage effective the first day of the month in which the employee assumes the Special Risk Class special-risk position. Special Risk Class risk contributions shall be payable effective with the first salary paid on or after the first day of the month of Special Risk Class special-risk coverage.

c. If a Special Risk Class special-risk member changes to another position within the same agency that is not a preapproved Special Risk Class special-risk position listed with Class Codes in Chapter 1 of the FRS Division of Retirement Employer Handbook, or is employed with a new agency, the member he must submit a complete application as provided in sub-subparagraph (3)(b)1.a. to the Division of Retirement.

d. If a Special Risk Class special-risk member changes to a preapproved Special Risk Class special-risk position listed with Class Codes in Chapter 1 of the FRS Division of Retirement Employer Handbook under the same set of criteria (e.g., a corrections officer I changing to a corrections officer II position), the employer shall submit the appropriate position class code for the new position on the Monthly Retirement Report.

e. If a Special Risk Class special-risk member changes to a Special Risk Class special-risk position under a different set of criteria (e.g., a transfer from law enforcement to a firefighter or correctional officer position), the member he must submit a complete application for Special Risk Class special-risk membership, except that the employer of such officer who changes to a preapproved Special Risk Class special-risk position listed with Class Codes in Chapter 1 of the FRS Division of Retirement Employer Handbook must submit only the appropriate position class code for the new position on the Monthly Retirement Report for such member.

4. Within 90 days of receipt of the application, the Division shall determine whether or not the member meets the requirements for Special Risk Class special-risk membership. If it is determined that the member does not meet the requirements, the Division shall notify the member by certified mail, with a copy to his or her employer, of the Administrator's intended decision to disapprove the member's application for Special Risk Class special-risk membership. This notice shall include a summary of the factual, legal and policy grounds for the intended decision.

a. When a member receives notice that the Administrator intends to deny his or her application for Special Risk Class special-risk membership, the member he shall have 21 calendar days to present written evidence or objections challenging the grounds upon which the Administrator has based his or her intended decision.

b. If the Administrator overrules the objections of the member, the Administrator shall within 21 calendar days provide a written final decision on the merits to the member by certified mail with a copy to the member's employer, giving the reasons for his or her final decision.

c. If the member does not accept the Administrator's final decision on the merits, the member may request in writing, pursuant to Section 121.23, F.S., Chapter 60R-1, F.A.C., and the Uniform Rules in Rule Chapter 28-106, F.A.C., a hearing on the denial of his or her application for Special Risk Class special-risk membership before the State Retirement Commission pursuant to Section 120.57(1), F.S. Such request shall be filed with the Commission within 21 calendar days from the date the member receives notice of the Administrator's final decision.

d. The decisions of the State Retirement Commission on matters brought before it under this paragraph shall be final agency action.

e. The decisions of the State Retirement Commission shall be reviewable by the District Court of Appeal pursuant to Section 121.23, F.S.

5. A member who receives a final affirmative ruling on his or her appeal for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership shall have Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership retroactive to the date such member would have had Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership had such membership been approved by the employer and the Division, as determined by the Division; and the employer contributions shall be paid in full within one year of such final ruling.

(4) Review of Special Risk Class Designations. – The Division shall from time to time review the Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ designation of members and determine whether or not those members meet the criteria for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership. Upon request by the Division, recertification of a specified member or members shall be submitted by the employer. If the Administrator determines that a member or members do not meet the criteria, the notification and appeal procedure set forth in subparagraph 60S-1.005(3)(b)4., F.A.C., shall be followed. The effective date of such discontinuance shall be the first day of the month following the date of the Administrator’s final decision of discontinuance. Contributions shall be due at the Regular Class ~~regular~~ membership rate effective with the first salary paid on or after the day the member becomes a Regular Class ~~regular~~ member.

(5) Transfer to a Regular Class Position. – A Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ member who transfers to a position that does not qualify him or her for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership shall have his or her designation of Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership discontinued and shall become a Regular Class ~~regular~~ member on the first day of the month following the date of such transfer. Contributions are payable at the Regular Class ~~regular~~ membership rate effective with the first salary paid on or after the day the member becomes a Regular Class ~~regular~~ member. The employer of such a member shall report the member’s change to membership in the Regular Class ~~the regular membership class~~ on the Monthly Retirement Report.

(6) Retroactive Special Risk Class Coverage. – A Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ member who was removed from the Special Risk Class effective October, 1978 solely because he or she did not possess the certification required in Rule 60S-1.0051, 60S-1.0052, or 60S-1.0053, F.A.C., may receive Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ credit for this period during which he or she was removed, provided:

(a) Certification was obtained and membership in the Special Risk Class was approved on or before June 30, 1982; and

(b) The employer verifies that all requirements for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership were met during the period of removal except the requirement for certification or temporary waiver of certification; and

(c) The member ~~employee~~ or employer pays the contributions required in Rule 60S-3.015, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.0515, 121.4501(8)(a), FS. Law Implemented 121.021(15), 121.051, 121.0515, 121.23, FS. History–New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 8-9-76, 1-16-77, 10-2-78, 1-19-82, 9-9-82, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-1.05, Amended 2-7-89, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-1.005, Amended 1-25-94, 9-17-03, _____.

60S-1.0051 Criteria for Special Risk Class Membership – Law Enforcement.

The criteria set forth below shall be used pursuant to Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C., in determining membership in the Special Risk Class ~~special-risk class~~ for members who are filling law enforcement positions, regardless of the title of such a position.

(1) Any member, except a sheriff or an elected police chief, who seeks to be approved for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership under this section must be certified or required to be certified as a law enforcement officer in compliance with the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission as provided in Section 943.1395, F.S.

(2) Any member who seeks Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership must hold one of the following law enforcement positions:

(a) Effective October 1, 1978, a sheriff ~~Sheriff~~ or elected police chief or,

(b) Effective October 1, 1978, a law ~~Law~~ enforcement officer whose duties include the pursuit, apprehension and arrest of law violators or suspected law violators; or,

(c) Effective July 1, 1982, an active ~~Active~~ member of a bomb disposal unit whose primary responsibility is the location, handling, and disposal of explosive devices.

(d) A command ~~Command~~ officer or supervisor of a Special Risk ~~special-risk~~ member or members whose duties are listed in paragraphs (b) and (c) ~~include the pursuit, apprehension and arrest of law violators or suspected law violators or members of a bomb disposal unit~~. However, administrative support personnel cited in subsection (3) shall not be included.

(3) Except for those cited in paragraph (2)(a) above, no administrative support personnel, including but not limited to those whose primary duties and responsibilities are in accounting, purchasing, legal, and personnel, shall be admitted to Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership.

(4) Any elected sheriff may choose membership in the Special Risk Class in lieu of the Elected Officers’ Class. Within 6 months after his or her election or reelection such officer must notify the Division, in writing, of his or her decision to remain in or choose membership in the Special Risk Class.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021(15), 121.0515, 121.052 FS. History—New 10-2-78, Amended 9-9-82, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-1.051, 22B-1.0051, Amended 3-18-93, _____.

60S-1.0052 Criteria for Special Risk Class Membership – Firefighters.

The criteria set forth below shall be used pursuant to Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C., in determining membership in the Special Risk Class ~~special risk class~~ for members who are filling firefighter positions, regardless of the title of such a position.

(1) Any member who seeks to be approved for Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership under this section, must be certified or required to be certified in compliance with the Firefighters Standards and Training Council as provided in Section 633.35, F.S.

(2) Any member who seeks Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership must hold one of the following firefighter ~~firefighters~~ positions:

(a) 1. Effective October 1, 1978, a firefighter ~~Firefighter~~ whose duties and responsibilities require on the scene fighting of fires, on the scene fighting of fires, fire prevention, or firefighter training, or aerial firefighting surveillance by fixed-wing aircraft pilots employed by the Division of Forestry of the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services.

2. Effective July 1, 2001, a firefighter employed by the Division of Forestry of the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services whose duties and responsibilities require aerial firefighting surveillance as a fixed-wing aircraft pilot.

3. Effective October 1, 2001, a firefighter whose duties and responsibilities require fire prevention or firefighter training.

(b) Command officer or supervisor of a Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ member or members whose duties are listed in paragraph (a). However, administrative support personnel cited in subsection 4 shall not be included.

(3) Any member approved for the Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ must be employed solely within the fire department of the employer or agency of state government. (This shall not be construed to exclude from Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership those employees who hold two employments simultaneously and who are covered for retirement only on the salary earned as a Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ member as specified in Rule 60S-1.008, F.A.C., ~~of these rules.~~)

(4) No administrative support personnel, including but not limited to those whose primary duties and responsibilities are in accounting, purchasing, legal, and personnel, shall be admitted to Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021(15), 121.0515 FS. History—New 10-2-78, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-1.052, 22B-1.0052, Amended 9-17-03, _____.

60S-1.0053 Criteria for Special Risk Class Membership – Correctional Officers.

The criteria set forth below shall be used pursuant to Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C., in determining membership in the Special Risk Class ~~special risk class~~ for members who are filling correctional officer positions, regardless of the title of such a position.

(1) Any member who seeks to be approved for Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership under this section, must be certified or required to be certified as a correctional officer in compliance with the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, as provided in Section 943.1395, F.S.

(2) Any member who seeks Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ membership must hold one of the following correctional officer positions:

(a) ~~Effective October 1, 1978, a correctional~~ ~~Correctional~~ officer whose primary duty and responsibility is the custody and physical restraint, when necessary, of prisoners or inmates within a prison, jail, or other criminal detention facility, or while on work detail or while being transported outside the facility.

(b) Effective October 1, 1978, a Superintendent or Assistant Superintendent (regardless of title) of a correction or detention facility where duly committed inmates are confined, housed, or maintained and where correctional officers are employed. Superintendent shall mean the person directly in charge of the day-to-day operations of a specific correction or detention facility. Assistant Superintendent shall mean the one person whose responsibilities include direct line authority from the Superintendent over all subordinate employees for the day to day operations within the unit.

~~(b) Command officer or supervisor of a special risk member or members holding a position as described in paragraph (2)(a) above.~~

(c) Effective July 1, 1984, a command officer or supervisor of a Special Risk Class member or members holding a position as described in paragraph (2)(a) above.

~~(e) Superintendent or Assistant Superintendent (regardless of title) of a correction or detention facility where duly committed inmates are confined, housed, or maintained and where correctional officers are employed. Superintendent shall mean the person directly in charge of the day-to-day operations of a specific correction or detention facility. Assistant Superintendent shall mean the one person whose responsibilities include direct line authority from the Superintendent over all subordinate employees for the~~

~~day-to-day operations at the facility. If no one employee in a corrections facility has such responsibility, then for retirement purposes there is no assistant superintendent at that facility, except that in large state institutions there may be more than one assistant superintendent if the institution is divided into units, each having an assistant superintendent with direct line authority from the superintendent over all subordinate employees for the day to day operations within the unit.~~

(d) Effective January 1, 2001, a community-based correctional probation officer whose primary duties and responsibilities must be the supervised custody, surveillance, control, investigation, and counseling of assigned inmates, probationers, parolees, or community controllees within the community; or the supervisor of a member who has such responsibilities; or probation and parole circuit administrator, or deputy circuit administrator.

~~(e) Effective January 1, 2001, professional health care member employed by the Department of Corrections or the Department of Children and Family Services in one of the following positions listed in Section 121.0515(2)(f), F.S.~~

~~(e)(f) Effective July 1, 2001, a youth custody officer of the Department of Juvenile Justice whose primary duties and responsibilities must be the supervised custody, surveillance, control, investigation, apprehension, arrest, and counseling of assigned juveniles within the community.~~

(3) No administrative support personnel, including but not limited to those whose primary duties and responsibilities are in accounting, purchasing, legal, and personnel, shall be admitted to Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021(15), 121.0515 FS. History–New 10-2-78, Amended 9-9-82, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-1.053, 22B-1.0053, Amended 9-17-03, _____.

60S-1.00535 Criteria for Special Risk Class Membership – Emergency Medical Technicians and Paramedics.

The criteria set forth below shall be used pursuant to Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C., in determining membership in the Special Risk Class ~~special-risk class~~ for members who are filling emergency medical technician and paramedic positions, regardless of the title of such position.

(1) ~~Effective, October 1, 1999, any~~ Any member who seeks Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership must be employed as an emergency medical technician or a paramedic by a licensed Advance Life Support (ALS) or Basic Life Support (BLS) employer and be certified in compliance with Section 401.27, F.S., and the member’s primary duties and responsibilities must include on-the-scene emergency medical care.

(2) ~~Effective October 1, 2001, any member who seeks Special Risk Class membership~~ The member’s primary duties and responsibilities must include on the scene emergency

~~medical care, or the member~~ must be the supervisor or command officer of one or more members who have such responsibility as provided in subsection (1).

(3) No administrative support personnel, including but not limited to those whose primary duties and responsibilities are in accounting, purchasing, legal, and personnel, shall be admitted to Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021(15), 121.0515 FS. History–New 9-17-03, Amended _____.

60S-1.0054 Special Risk Administrative Support Class.

(1) Intent – In creating the Special Risk Administrative Support Class within the Florida Retirement System, the Legislature recognizes that when Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ members are employed or reassigned for training, career development or to fill a critical agency need they often fail to meet the criteria for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ membership. They are then placed in the Regular Class ~~regular class~~ of membership, thereby losing the earlier retirement date and the higher accrual rate offered Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ members. While it is not the intent of the Legislature to continue to provide the higher accrual rate for such members upon employment or reassignment to non-Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ positions, it is intended that such members who qualify for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership and satisfy the vesting requirements for the Special Risk Class shall be entitled to count such Special Risk Administrative Support Class service towards their Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ normal retirement date.

(2) Eligibility – On or after July 1, 1982, a member being reassigned or employed by an agency shall participate in the Special Risk Administrative Support Class if:

(a) The member is employed by an agency whose primary purpose is law enforcement, firefighting, corrections, or emergency medical care, or if the employer has multiple responsibilities, the member must be employed by a unit of the agency whose primary purpose is law enforcement, firefighting, corrections, or emergency medical care; and

(b) The member is employed or reassigned by his or her employer to a non-Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ position which provides training and/or career development opportunities to the member, or fulfills a critical agency need; and

(c) The member has participated in the Special Risk Class; and

(d) The member remains certified by the appropriate authority; and

(e) The member is subject to reassignment at any time to a Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ position.

(3) Application – The following procedures shall govern applications for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership:

(a) The employer of a Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ member who is reassigned or employed in a position determined by the employer to be a Special Risk Administrative Support Class ~~special-risk administrative support~~ position shall submit to the Division of Retirement the following:

1. Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Administrative Support Class (FRS-404), adopted in Rule 60S-2.0041 ~~Rule Chapter 60S-9~~, F.A.C.

2. A current job description of the member's duties showing the percentage of time spent performing each duty.

3. A copy of the appropriate certification or other evidence of certification as required by the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission in Section 943.1395, F.S., or the Firefighters Standards and Training Council in Section 633.35, F.S., or maintain certification pursuant to Section 401.27, F.S.

4. A copy of a personnel action form showing the effective date of membership in that position.

(b) The Division of Retirement shall approve or disapprove all applications for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership. If the requirements for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership are met, the Division shall approve the member for membership as provided below:

1. When a newly employed member's application is received by the Division of Retirement, the effective date of membership in the Special Risk Administrative Support Class shall be the date of employment in the position and Special Risk Administrative Support Class contributions shall be payable from that time.

2. If a former Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ member, now a Regular Class ~~regular~~ member, changes to a Special Risk Administrative Support Class position within the employing agency and, upon submitting the complete Special Risk Administrative Support Class ~~special-risk administrative support~~ application, he or she is approved for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership, he or she shall have Special Risk Administrative Support Class coverage effective the first day of the month in which the employee assumes the Special Risk Administrative Support Class position. Special Risk Administrative Support Class contributions shall be payable effective with the first salary paid on or after the first day of the month of Special Risk Administrative Support Class ~~special-risk administrative support~~ coverage.

3. If a Special Risk Administrative Support Class member changes to another position within the same agency or is employed by another agency that meets the criteria under these rules, the employer must submit the same documents as required in paragraph (3)(a) above to the Division of Retirement.

(4) Transfer to a Regular Class Position – A Special Risk Administrative Support Class member who transfers to a Regular Class ~~regular-class~~ position that does not qualify him or her for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership shall have his or her designation of Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership discontinued and shall become a Regular Class ~~regular-class~~ member on the first day of the month following the date of such transfer. Contributions are payable at the Regular Class ~~regular-class~~ membership rate effective with the first salary paid on or after the first day of the month the member becomes a Regular Class ~~regular-class~~ member. A state employer of such a member shall submit the appropriate position class code for the new position on the Monthly Retirement Report, which will indicate the member's change to the Regular Class ~~regular-class~~ of membership. A local employer of such member shall only report the member's change to ~~the regular~~ membership in the Regular Class ~~class~~ on the Monthly Retirement Report.

(5) Contribution – Contributions shall be paid in accordance with subsection 60S-3.003(3)(4), F.A.C. Employers of members who fail to satisfy the vesting requirements for the Special Risk Class shall not be refunded contributions for Special Risk Administrative Support Class service.

(6) Retention of Special Risk Class Normal Retirement Date – A member who earns Special Risk Administrative Support Class credit and satisfies the vesting requirements for the Special Risk Class, as described in paragraph 60S-2.0041(2)(b), F.A.C., shall be able to include the Special Risk Administrative Support Class service towards the satisfaction of the Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ normal retirement date. If, at retirement, the member has failed to satisfy such vesting requirements, his or her Administrative Support Class service shall be calculated as Regular Class ~~regular~~ service in a dual normal retirement benefit.

(7) Retroactive Coverage – The provisions of this section shall apply retroactively for the period October 1, 1978, to July 1, 1982, for eligible members as provided in paragraph 60S-2.0041(2)(d), F.A.C. In order to receive credit for retroactive service under this rule, the member must make application for his or her retroactive coverage and should consult paragraph 60S-2.0041(2)(d), F.A.C., of these rules for the procedure.

(8) Review of Special Risk Administrative Support Class Designations – The Division of Retirement shall from time to time review the Special Risk Administrative Support Class designation of members and determine whether or not those members meet the criteria for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership.

(a) Upon request by the Division, recertification of a specified member or members shall be submitted by the employer. If the Division determines that a member does not meet the criteria, it shall follow the appeal procedure outlined

in subsection 60S-1.0054(9), F.A.C., and notify the member of its intended decision to discontinue his or her membership in the Special Risk Administrative Support Class. The effective date of such discontinuance shall be the first day of the month following the date that final determination of the discontinuance is made. Contributions shall be due at the Regular Class ~~regular~~ membership rate effective with the first salary paid on or after the first day of the month the member becomes a Regular Class ~~regular~~ member.

(b) If the member does not accept the decision of the Division, he or she may petition the Division for an administrative hearing, pursuant to Section 120.57, F.S. Such request shall be made within the time limitations of Rule 28-106.201, F.A.C. Model Rule 28-5.201, F.A.C.

(9) Appeal – Within 90 days of receipt of the application, the Division of Retirement shall determine whether or not the member meets the requirements for Special Risk Administrative Support Class ~~special risk administrative support~~ membership. If it is determined that the member does not meet the requirements, the Division shall notify the member by certified mail, with a copy to his or her employer, of the Division’s intended decision to disapprove the member’s application for Special Risk Administrative Support Class ~~special risk administrative support~~ membership. This notice shall include a summary of the factual, legal and policy grounds for the intended decision.

(a) When a member receives notice that the Division intends to deny his or her application for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership, he or she shall have 21 ~~20~~ calendar days to present written evidence or objections challenging the grounds upon which the Division has based its intended decision. If the Division receives no objections, final denial will be issued by the Division by certified mail at the conclusion of the 21 ~~20~~ days.

(b) If objections are received in accordance with (a) above, the Division shall within 20 calendar days of receipt of the objections provide a written explanation to the member by certified mail, giving the reasons for final acceptance or denial of the application. A copy of its written explanation shall be sent to the member’s employer.

(c) If the member does not accept the decision of the Division, the member may petition the Division for an administrative hearing on the denial of his or her application for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership, pursuant to Section 120.57, F.S. Such request should be made within the time limitations of Rule 28-106.201, F.A.C. Model Rule 28-5.201, F.A.C.

(d) A member who receives a final affirmative ruling on his or her appeal for Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership shall have such membership retroactive to the date the member would have had Special Risk Administrative Support Class membership had such membership been approved by the employer and the Division as determined by the Division; and the employer contributions shall be paid in full within one year of such final ruling.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.0515(7)(c) FS. Law Implemented 121.0515(7) FS. History–New 10-12-82, Amended 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-1.054, 22B-1.0054, Amended 1-25-94, 10-11-94, 9-17-03,_____.

60S-1.0055 Elected Officers’ Class.

(1) Compulsory Membership in the Elected Officers’ Class shall be compulsory, except as provided in subsection (2), for any person elected, reelected, or appointed to an office listed below, on and after the specified dates when the subclass was included in the system:

Offices	Dates Included in Elected Officers’ Class
Governor, lieutenant governor, cabinet officer, legislator, supreme court justice, district court of appeal judge, circuit judge, state attorney;	7/1/72
County court judge;	10/1/74
Public defender;	7/1/77
Public service commissioner;	7/1/72 through 6/30/79
Any constitutional elected county officer including any sheriff, tax collector, property appraiser, supervisor of elections, clerk of the circuit court, county commissioner, district school board member, elected district school board superintendent, and any elected officer of any entity with county-wide jurisdiction who, pursuant to general or special law, exercises powers and duties that except for such law would be exercised by a constitutional elected county officer.	7/1/81
<u>Any elected officer of any entity with county-wide jurisdiction who, pursuant to general or special law, exercises powers and duties that except for such law would be exercised by a constitutional elected county officer.</u>	7/1/86

Any elected officer of a municipality or <u>independent</u> special district designated by the governing body between July 1, 1997 and December 31, 1997.	7/1/97
<u>Any elected officer of a municipality or independent special district designated by the governing body between July 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001.</u>	<u>7/1/01</u>
<u>Any elected officer of a municipality or independent special district designated by the governing body between July 1, 2009 and December 31, 2009.</u>	<u>7/1/09</u>
<u>Elected officers of a municipality or independent special district designated by governing body at the time the entity joins the Florida Retirement System.</u>	<u>1/1/10</u>

(2) Optional Membership – Any elected officer listed in subsection (1) who is dually employed may elect membership in another class for which he or she is eligible, or such officer may withdraw from participating in the Florida Retirement System in any manner whatsoever as follows:

(a) Any elected officer who is or becomes dually employed and a member of the Florida Retirement System or one of the existing systems may elect membership in any system or class for which he or she is eligible as provided in Rule 60S-1.008, F.A.C. The elected officer shall notify the Division in writing of his or her decision within 6 months of becoming dually employed.

(b) Any elected officer may elect to withdraw from participating in the Florida Retirement System altogether, except for elected officers with renewed membership as provided in subsection 60S-1.0055(4), F.A.C., as follows:

1. Within 6 months of assuming office the elected officer shall file their election to withdraw in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator as provided in subparagraph 60S-1.004(2)(e)3., F.A.C. shall notify the Division in writing of his decision to withdraw and shall file a copy with his employer.

2. Upon notification to the Division of such election to withdraw, receipt of such withdrawal request, the Division shall refund all contributions made by the elected officer, unless the elected officer has a vested right under the Florida Retirement System, in which case he or she shall not be permitted to receive a refund of contributions.

3. Any elected officer who withdraws from the Florida Retirement System in accordance with this paragraph, may rejoin the Florida Retirement System by submitting a written request to the Division. Membership shall be effective the first day of the month during which the Division receives such written request. Service credit for such period of withdrawal may be claimed as provided in Rule 60S-2.0042, F.A.C.

(c) Any elected sheriff may choose membership in the Special Risk Class in lieu of the Elected Officers’ Class. Within 6 months after his or her election or reelection such officer must notify the Division, in writing of his or her decision to remain in or choose membership in the Special Risk Class class.

(d) through (f) No change.

(3) Membership Not Permitted –

(a) Any member of the Elected Officers’ Class who fails to win reelection to an office covered by the Elected Officers’ Class, and who returns to a position covered under the Florida Retirement System, shall receive credit thereafter based on the class of membership of his or her position.

(b) Any public service commissioner who was removed from the Elected Officers’ Class on July 1, 1979 in accordance with Chapter 79-375, Laws of Florida, shall retain any retirement credit earned in the Elected Officers’ Class as of that date. If such an officer has earned 8 years of credit in the Elected Officers’ Class he or she shall be eligible for retirement in accordance with Rule 60S-4.003, F.A.C.

(4) Renewed membership in the Elected Officers’ Class –

(a) Any retired member of a state-administered retirement system who, on and after July 1, 1990 and through June 30, 2010, holds an elective office covered by the Elected Officers’ Class, except as provided in paragraph (f), shall be enrolled in the Elected Officers’ Class, or, effective July 1, 1997 and through June 30, 2010, such elected officer may elect renewed membership in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.0045, F.A.C., and may elect to participate in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program or a local agency annuity program in lieu of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(7)(c) or (d) 60S-1.0057(7)(b) or (e), F.A.C. Such elected officer who becomes a member of the Elected Officers’ Class shall be eligible to elect to participate in the FRS Investment Plan as provided in Section 121.4501, F.S., or to receive a second career benefit in the FRS Pension Plan as follows:

1. The officer shall be eligible to receive retirement benefits as well as compensation for service as an elected officer, and shall not be subject to the reemployment limitations provided in Rule 60S-4.012, F.A.C.

2. The officer shall be entitled to receive an additional retirement benefit as provided in paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(c), F.A.C., if such officer satisfies vesting requirements as provided in Rule 60S-4.003, F.A.C. completes at least eight years of service in the Elected Officers’ Class. Such service

may include credit for post-retirement service as an elected officer prior to July 1, 1990 that the officer claims under the Elected Officers' Class pursuant to paragraph 60S-2.008(2)(a), F.A.C.

3. through 4. No change.

(b) through (d) No change.

(e) Any such officer who held an elected office prior to July 1, 1990, suspended his or her retirement benefit, and reinstated his or her Florida Retirement System membership shall have his or her retirement benefit recomputed using such period of creditable reemployment as provided in subsection 60S-2.008(1), F.A.C.

(f) No change.

(g) Renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System is closed to any retiree of a state administered retirement system who is initially reemployed on or after July 1, 2010.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.031, 121.051, 121.052, 121.053 FS. History—New 11-6-84, Amended 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-1.055, Amended 3-11-87, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-1.0055, Amended 3-18-93, 2-24-99, 9-17-03,_____.

60S-1.0057 Senior Management Service Class (SMSC).

(1) Compulsory Membership – Membership in the Senior Management Service Class shall be compulsory, except as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(7)(2), F.A.C., for any member of the Florida Retirement System or an existing system who holds any of the following positions:

<u>Position</u>	<u>Effective date</u>
<u>(a) Positions assigned to the Senior Management Service, as provided in Part III of Chapter 110, F.S., and Chapter 60L-31, F.A.C.</u>	<u>February 1, 1987 and after</u>
<u>(b) Certain legislative positions as follows:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>Up to 75 nonelective positions at the level of committee staff director or higher or equivalent managerial or policy-making positions within the House of Representatives, as selected by the Speaker of the House of Representatives.</u> • <u>Up to 50 nonelective positions at the level of committee staff director or higher or equivalent managerial or policy-making positions within the Senate, as selected by the President of the Senate.</u> • <u>All staff directors of Joint Committees of the Legislature.</u> • <u>The Auditor General and up to nine managerial or policy-making positions within his or her office as selected by the Auditor General.</u> • <u>The executive director of the Commission on Ethics.</u> 	<u>January 1, 1990</u>
<u>(c) Certain local agency positions as follows:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>The president of each community college.</u> • <u>The manager of each participating city or county.</u> • <u>All appointed district school superintendents.</u> 	<u>January 1, 1990</u>
<u>(d) Certain State University System positions as follows:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>State University System Executive Service positions.</u> • <u>State university presidents.</u> 	<u>January 1, 1991</u>
<u>(e) Certain State Board of Administration positions as follows:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • <u>The senior managers who have policy-making authority as determined by the Governor, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Attorney General acting as the State Board of Administration.</u> 	<u>January 1, 1991</u>

(f) Certain judicial system positions as follows: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> State Courts Administrator; Deputy State Courts Administrators; Clerk of the Supreme Court; Marshal of the Supreme Court; Executive Director of the Justice Administration Commission; Capital Collateral Regional Counsels; Clerks of the District Courts of Appeals; Marshals of the District Courts of Appeals; and Trial Court Administrators of each Judicial Circuit. 	January 1, 1994
Chief Deputy Court Administrator	June 1, 2002
(g) Certain Department of Military Affairs positions as follows: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> The Adjutant General, Assistant Adjutant General-Army, Assistant Adjutant General-Air, State Quartermaster, Director of Military Personnel, Director of Administration, and up to 4 additional directors as designated by the agency head, not to exceed a total of 10 positions. 	July 1, 1996
(h) Judges of compensation claims within the Department of Labor and Employment Security.	July 1, 1999
(i) Assistant state attorneys, assistant statewide prosecutors, assistant public defenders, and assistant capital collateral regional counsels.	January 1, 2001
(j) Assistant attorneys general.	January 1, 2002
(k) Executive directors or staff directors of Metropolitan Planning organization participating in the FRS.	July 1, 2007

(2) Agency Optional Designation of SMSC Positions – certain positions within certain agencies may be designated for inclusion in the SMSC by the employing agency and if so designated shall have compulsory membership in the SMSC, except as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(7), F.A.C., for any member of the Florida Retirement System or an existing system.

(a) These certain positions with certain agencies which may be designated for inclusion in the SMSC are as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 1994 – positions in the offices of the state attorney and the public defender in each judicial circuit may be designated for inclusion in the Senior Management Service Class as follows:

a. One nonelective full-time position may be designated for each state attorney’s office and each public defender’s office.

b. Additional nonelective full-time positions in such offices with 200 or more filled, regularly established positions may be designated, not to exceed 0.5 percent of the filled, regularly established positions in the office or agency.

2. Effective January 1, 1994, for local agencies such positions may be designated by each local agency employer as follows:

a. One nonelective full-time position may be designated for each local agency employer. Effective July 1, 2000, up to 10 nonelective full-time positions may be designated for each local agency employer.

b. Additional nonelective full-time positions in such agencies with 200 or more filled, regularly established positions may be designated, not to exceed 0.5 percent of the filled, regularly established positions in the office or agency. Effective June 17, 1998, additional nonelective full-time positions in such agencies with 100 or more filled, regularly established positions may be designated, not to exceed 1 percent of the filled, regularly established positions in the office or agency.

3. Effective July 1, 2007, for participating metropolitan planning organizations such positions may be designated by each metropolitan planning organization employer as follows:

a. Up to 10 nonelective full-time positions may be designated.

b. Additional nonelective full-time positions in such agencies with 100 or more filled, regularly established positions may be designated, not to exceed 1 percent of the filled, regularly established positions in the office or agency.

(b) Such designated positions must meet the following requirements:

- The position must be managerial or policymaking; and
- The position must be the head of an organizational unit or responsible for effecting or recommending personnel, budget, expenditure, or policy decisions in its area of responsibility; and

3. The position must be one in which the employee filling the position is not subject to continuing contract and does not have civil service protection, that is, is subject to termination without cause.

(c) The employer designating such positions must:

1. Publish in a newspaper of general circulation in the county or counties affected, once a week for 2 consecutive weeks, a notice of intent to designate a position or positions for inclusion in the class; and

2. Complete Form SMSD-1 (Rev 08/00), Florida Retirement System Senior Management Service Class Designated Position Form, herein adopted by reference. The position number of the designated position, consisting of from 1 to 10 numeric digits, must be included on the Form SMSD-1.

(d) Inclusion of the position in the SMSC shall be effective on January 1, 1994 or, if Form SMSD-1 is received by the Division after February 20, 1994, on the first day of the month following the month in which Form SMSD-1 is received by the Division.

(3) Removal of Positions from the SMSC – Each local agency employer may between July 1, 1997 and December 31, 1997, reassess its designation of positions for inclusion in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in subsection (2), and may request removal of any such previously designated positions that it deems appropriate. Such removal of positions shall be effective on the first day of the month following receipt of written notification by the Division before January 1, 1998.

(a) Effective February 1, 1987— positions assigned to the Senior Management Service, as provided in Part III of Chapter 110, F.S., and Chapter 60N-1, F.A.C.

(b) Effective January 1, 1990 — certain legislative positions as follows:

1. Up to 75 nonelective positions at the level of committee staff director or higher or equivalent managerial or policy-making positions within the House of Representatives, as selected by the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

2. Up to 50 nonelective positions at the level of committee staff director or higher or equivalent managerial or policy-making positions within the Senate, as selected by the President of the Senate.

3. All staff directors of Joint Committees of the Legislature.

4. The Auditor General and up to nine managerial or policy-making positions within his office as selected by the Auditor General.

5. The executive director of the Commission on Ethics.

(e) Effective January 1, 1990 — certain local agency positions as follows:

1. The president of each community college;
2. The manager of each participating city or county;
3. All appointed district school superintendents.

(d) Effective January 1, 1991 — certain State University System positions as follows:

1. State University System Executive Service positions.

2. State university presidents.

(e) Effective January 1, 1991 — certain State Board of Administration positions as follows:

1. The senior managers who have policy-making authority as determined by the Governor, Treasurer, and Comptroller acting as the State Board of Administration.

(f) Certain judicial system positions as follows:

1. Effective January 1, 1994:

a. State Courts Administrator;

b. Deputy State Courts Administrators;

c. Clerk of the Supreme Court;

d. Marshal of the Supreme Court;

e. Executive Director of the Justice Administration Commission;

f. Capital Collateral Regional Counsels;

g. Clerks of the District Courts of Appeals;

h. Marshals of the District Courts of Appeals; and

i. Trial Court Administrators of each Judicial Circuit.

2. Effective June 1, 2002 — Chief Deputy Court Administrator.

(g) Effective January 1, 1994 — positions may be designated for inclusion in the Senior Management Service Class as provided below:

1. In the offices of the state attorney and the public defender in each judicial circuit, such positions may be designated by each state attorney and public defender as follows:

a. One nonelective full time position may be designated for each state attorney's office and each public defender's office.

b. Additional nonelective full-time positions in such offices with 200 or more filled, regularly established positions may be designated, not to exceed 0.5 percent of the filled, regularly established positions in the office or agency.

2. In local agencies such positions may be designated by each local agency employer as follows:

a. One nonelective full-time position may be designated for each local agency employer. Effective July 1, 2000, up to 10 nonelective full time positions may be designated for each local agency employer.

b. Additional nonelective full-time positions in such agencies with 200 or more filled, regularly established positions may be designated, not to exceed 0.5 percent of the filled, regularly established positions in the office or agency. Effective June 17, 1998, additional nonelective full time positions in such agencies with 100 or more filled, regularly established positions may be designated, not to exceed 1 percent of the filled, regularly established positions in the office or agency.

~~e. Each local agency employer may between July 1, 1997 and December 31, 1997, reassess its designation of positions for inclusion in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in subsubparagraph b., and may request removal of any such previously designated positions that it deems appropriate. Such removal of positions shall be effective on the first day of the month following receipt of written notification by the Division before January 1, 1998.~~

~~3. Such designated positions must meet the following requirements:-~~

~~a. The position must be managerial or policymaking; and
b. The position must be the head of an organizational unit, or responsible for effecting or recommending personnel, budget, expenditure, or policy decisions in its area of responsibility; and~~

~~e. The position must be one in which the employee filling the position is not subject to continuing contract and does not have civil service protection, that is, is subject to termination without cause.~~

~~4. The employer designating such positions must:~~

~~a. Publish in a newspaper of general circulation in the county or counties affected, once a week for 2 consecutive weeks, a notice of intent to designate a position or positions for inclusion in the class; and~~

~~b. Complete Form SMSD 1, Senior Management Service Class Designated Position Form, adopted in Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C. The position number of the designated position, consisting of from 1 to 10 numeric digits, must be included on the Form SMS-1.~~

~~5. Inclusion of the position in the SMSC shall be effective on January 1, 1994 or, if Form SMSD 1 is received by the Division after February 20, 1994, on the first day of the month following the month in which Form SMSD 1 is received by the Division.~~

~~6. Eligible employees filling designated positions must complete and submit application forms as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(3), F.A.C.~~

~~(h) Effective July 1, 1996 certain Department of Military Affairs positions including the Adjutant General, Assistant Adjutant General Army, Assistant Adjutant General Air, State Quartermaster, Director of Military Personnel, Director of Administration, and up to 4 additional directors as designated by the agency head, not to exceed a total of 10 positions.~~

~~(i) Effective July 1, 1999 Judges of compensation claims within the Department of Labor and Employment Security.~~

~~(j) Effective January 1, 2001 — Assistant state attorneys, assistant statewide prosecutors, assistant public defenders, and assistant capital collateral regional counsels.~~

~~(k) Effective January 1, 2002 — Assistant attorneys general.~~

~~(4)(t) Renewed Membership in the SMSC – Effective July 1, 1997 and through June 30, 2010, any retiree of a state-administered retirement system employed in a position~~

included in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in this subsection, shall have renewed membership in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.0045, F.A.C. Any retiree of a state retirement system initially reemployed on or after July 1, 2010, is not eligible for renewed membership as provided in Sections 121.122 and 121.053, F.S.

~~(5)(m) Effective Date of Membership in the SMSC – the~~ The effective date of membership shall be the latest of the following dates:

~~(a)†~~ Date of inclusion of position in the Senior Management Service Class, or

~~(b)‡~~ Date of appointment to a Senior Management Service Class position, or

~~(c)‡~~ For members of existing systems or the Special Risk or Special Risk Administrative Support Classes who are eligible for the options provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(7)(2), F.A.C., the first day of the month during which such member files his or her written election makes application for membership in the Senior Management Service Class, or 90 days after employment begins in a Senior Management Service Class position for such member who fails to elect membership in the Senior Management Service Class within such 90 day period.

~~(6)(n) Termination of Membership in the SMSC –~~ Membership in the Senior Management Service Class shall cease when a member terminates employment in a Senior Management Service Class position.

~~(7)(2) Optional Membership –~~ Membership in the Senior Management Service Class shall be optional for certain eligible members according to the following:

(a) Any member holding a position eligible for membership in the Senior Management Service Class who is a member of an existing retirement system may elect to remain in such system in lieu of participation in the Senior Management Service Class as follows:

1. Such election shall be made in writing with the personnel office of the employer and the Division within 90 days after employment begins in a Senior Management Service Class position.

2. Any such employee who fails to elect to remain in such system within such 90-day period shall be a compulsory member of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(1), F.A.C.

~~(b)(a)~~ Any member holding a position eligible for membership in the Senior Management Service Class position as provided in paragraphs 60S-1.0057(1) (a), (b), ~~(e), (f), (g) and (h) (e), (d), and (e)~~, F.A.C., who is a member of ~~an existing retirement system, or~~ the Special Risk Class or the Special Risk Administrative Support Class of the Florida Retirement System, may elect to remain in such ~~system or~~ class in lieu of participation in the Senior Management Service Class as follows:

1. Such election shall be made in writing, ~~as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(3), F.A.C., and filed with the personnel office of the employer and the Division within 90 days after employment begins in a Senior Management Service Class position.~~

2. Any such employee who fails to elect to remain in such ~~system or class, or elect to participate in the Senior Management~~ Optional Annuity Program as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(7)(c), ~~(2)(b)~~, F.A.C., within such 90-day period, shall be a compulsory member of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(1), F.A.C.

3. If a Special Risk Class or a Special Risk Administrative Support Class member wishes to make such an election, the Senior Management Service Class position to which he or she is assigned must be an eligible Special Risk Class or Special Risk Administrative Support Class position.

~~(c)(b)~~ Any member of the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan or an existing system who is eligible for membership in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in paragraphs 60S-1.0057(1)(a), (b), (e), (f), (g)+, (h), ~~(i)~~ and ~~(7)(f)1., (2)(e)1.,~~ F.A.C., may elect to participate in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program (SMSOAP) as provided in Section 121.055, F.S., and Chapter 60V, F.A.C., in lieu of the Senior Management Service Class as follows:

1. Such election shall be made in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., within the 90-day period of the commencement of such eligible employment as provided in Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C. Such election may be filed using the State Board of Administration designed form for ease of use: Form SMS-1, State Senior Management Service Employees Retirement Plan Form adopted by reference in subsection 60S-1.004(1), F.A.C., or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form SMS-1, to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election. Such election requires that a contract with a SMSOAP provider company be executed within that 90-day period. ~~as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(3), F.A.C., and filed with the personnel office of the employer and the Division within 90 days after employment begins in a Senior Management Service Class position.~~ The effective date of such member's participation in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program shall be the date of employment or the first day of any month in which such election is received by the Plan Choice Administrator within during the 90-day period after employment begins in the Senior Management Service Class position, if so specified by the member, as provided in subsection 60V-1.005(2), F.A.C.

2. Any such eligible employee who fails to elect to participate in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program, and/or execute a contract with a SMSOAP provider company, or to make the election as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(7)(a) or (b) ~~(2)(a)~~, F.A.C., within such 90-day period, shall be a compulsory member of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(1), F.A.C.

~~(d)(e)~~ Any member of the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan or an existing system who is eligible for membership in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in paragraphs 60S-1.0057(1)(c), ~~(2)(a)2., (g)2., and (7)(f)2., F.A.C., (2)(e)2., F.A.C.,~~ may elect to withdraw from the Florida Retirement System altogether, in lieu of membership in the Senior Management Service Class as follows:

1. Such election shall be made in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., in accordance with Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C. Such election may be filed using the State Board of Administration form designed for ease of use: Form SMS-3, Local Senior Management Service Employees Retirement Plan Enrollment Form, adopted by reference in subsection 60S-1.004(1), F.A.C., or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form SMS-3, to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(3), F.A.C., and filed with the personnel office of the employer and the Division. The election to withdraw altogether shall be irrevocable for as long as the employee holds a position eligible for membership in the Senior Management Service Class. The effective date of such election shall be the first day of the month following the month in which the Plan Choice Administrator receives the written election Form SMS-3 is received by the Division.

2. Such members are not eligible to participate in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program administered by the Division of Retirement.

~~(e)(d)~~ Any member of the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan or an existing system who is eligible for membership in the Senior Management Service Class as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(1)(d), F.A.C., shall by default be enrolled into the State University System Optional Retirement Program (SUSORP) prospectively upon such eligible employment and; except for those filling a mandatory SUSORP position, may choose between membership in the Florida Retirement System or participation in the SUSORP within 90 days of employment may elect to participate in the Optional Retirement Program of the State University System as provided in Section 121.35, F.S., and Chapter 60U, F.A.C., in lieu of the SMSC as follows:

1. Employees enrolled by default into the SUSORP, except for those filling a mandatory SUSORP position as provided in Section 121.051, F.S., may choose between membership in the Florida Retirement System or participation in the SUSORP within 90 days of employment by filing such election in writing with the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., not later than 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the 90th day from the employee's date of hire into the SUSORP eligible position in accordance with Sections 121.35 and 121.4501, F.S., and Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C. The eligible employee may use the State Board of Administration's designed form for ease of use: ORP-16, State University System Optional Retirement Program (SUSORP) Retirement Plan Enrollment Form, adopted by reference in subsection 60S-1.005(1), F.A.C., to file such election or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form ORP-16, to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her plan election.

2. Employees who file an election to participate in the SUSORP, other than mandatory SUSORP participants who must elect this option, must also execute a contract with a SUSORP provider company no later than the 90th day from the employee's date of hire into the SUSORP eligible position in accordance with Sections 121.35 and 121.4501, F.S., and Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C., or shall by default have membership in the FRS commencing with the date of employment into the SUSORP-eligible position. Mandatory SUSORP participants must execute a contract with a SUSORP provider company otherwise contributions will not be allocated to a SUSORP provider company.

3. Employees enrolled by default in the SUSORP, except for mandatory SUSORP participants, who do not elect SUSORP participation and/or who do not execute a provider contract within the 90-day period as provided in subparagraph 2. or to make the election as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(1)(a) or (b), shall by default have membership in the FRS commencing with the date of employment into the SUSORP-eligible position.

4. An election to participate in SUSORP is irrevocable for as long as an employee remains in the SUSORP-eligible position.

1. Such election shall be made in writing, as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(3), F.A.C., and filed with the personnel office of the employer and the Division within 90 days after employment begins in a Senior Management Service Class position.

2. Any such eligible employee who fails to elect to participate in the Optional Retirement Program of the State University System or to make the election as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(2)(a), F.A.C., within such 90-day period shall be a compulsory member of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(1), F.A.C.

(f)1.(e) Effective July 1, 1997, within 6 months of assuming office or within 6 months of July 1, 1997, the following elected officers eligible for membership in the Elected Officers' Class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0055(1), F.A.C., and who have not previously retired from a State of Florida administered retirement plan, may elect membership in the Senior Management Service Class in lieu of the Elected Officers' Class:

a.1- Any elected state officer; and

b.2- Any elected county, city, or independent special district officer.

2. Such elected officer may file their election in writing to the Plan Choice Administrator as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(50), F.A.C., no later than the last business day of the 6th month after assuming elected office as provided in Sections 121.055, and 121.4501, F.S. and Rule 19-11.006, F.A.C., using the SBA designed form for ease of use: Form EOC-1, Elected Officers' Class Retirement Plan Enrollment Form adopted by reference in subsection 60S-1.004(1), F.A.C., or alternatively the employee may choose to submit a separate document in lieu of Form EOC-1 to file their election with the Plan Choice Administrator which at minimum shall provide the employee's name, social security number and his or her election.

(g)(f) Assistant state attorneys, assistant statewide prosecutors, assistant public defenders, and assistant capital collateral regional counsels shall not be eligible to participate in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program.

(3) Employees who are eligible to participate in the Senior Management Service Class shall complete and submit to the Division of Retirement the following:

(a) State employees:

1. Employees who elect to participate in the Senior Management Service Class or the Senior Management Service Class Optional Annuity Program, as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(2)(b), F.A.C., shall complete and submit Form SMS-1, Senior Management Service Class Optional Annuity Program (SMSOAP)/FRS Ballot, adopted in Chapter 60S-9 F.A.C.

2. Elected officers who elect to participate in the Senior Management Service Class, as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(2)(e), F.A.C., or the Senior Management Service Class Optional Annuity Program as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(2)(b), F.A.C., shall complete and submit Form SMS-1, "Senior Management Service Class Optional Annuity Program (SMSOAP)/FRS Ballot or Form EOC-1, Florida Retirement System Ballot Form for Employees of Elected Officers' Class, adopted in Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C.

(b) Local employees:

1. Employees who elect to participate in the Senior Management Service Class shall complete and submit Form SMS-3, and Form SMSC Ballot/Enrollment Form for Local Agency Employees, adopted in Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C.

~~2. Employees who elect to withdraw from the Florida Retirement System altogether, as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0057(2)(c), F.A.C., shall complete and submit Form SMS-3, and Form SMSC Ballot/Enrollment Form for Local Agency Employees.~~

(8)(4) A member of the Senior Management Service Class shall retain all rights and creditable service accumulated in the Florida Retirement System or existing system prior to membership in the Senior Management Service Class.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.4501(8)(a) FS. Law Implemented 27.701, 121.051, 121.055 FS. History—New 1-12-87, Amended 2-7-89, 9-5-90, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-1.0057, Amended 1-25-94, 8-4-94, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 9-17-03, _____.

60S-1.007 Admission of Cities, Independent Special Districts, Metropolitan Planning Organizations, Public Charter Schools and Public Charter Technical Career Centers and to the Florida Retirement System.

(1) Social Security Coverage Required – Any city or independent special district or unit thereof, or metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center desiring to participate in the Florida Retirement System must be approved for social security coverage by the United States Secretary of Health and Human Services and the Administrator prior to participating in the Florida Retirement System. Application for social security coverage shall be made to the Administrator in accordance with Chapter 650, F.S.

(2) Request for Membership – The governing body of the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center desiring to participate in the Florida Retirement System shall submit a request to the Administrator. This request must indicate whether or not the present officers and employees are covered by a retirement system and whether or not they are covered by social security.

(3) ~~Ordinance~~ ~~ordinance~~ or Resolution – The Administrator shall furnish the governing body of the city, or independent special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center a sample ordinance or resolution, whichever is applicable, which may be used by the governing body of the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center in setting forth the terms under which the benefits of the Florida Retirement System will be extended to the officers and employees of the covered group.

(4) The ordinance adopted by a city and the resolution adopted by an independent special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center shall include the following:

(a) Designation of those officers and employees who are eligible and those officers and employees who are not eligible for participation in the Florida Retirement System.

(b) A declaration of the intent of the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center to extend the benefits of the Florida Retirement System to all eligible officers and employees as of a specific date.

(c) Designation of an official of the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center to execute agreements and amendments thereto with the Director of the Division of Retirement.

(d) Provisions for withholding from employees' compensation each pay period the social security contributions required by Rule 60S-3.010, F.A.C.

(e) Provisions for the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center to remit to the Division each pay period in accordance with Rule 60S-3.011, F.A.C., the contributions required to be paid pursuant to Rule 60S-3.003, F.A.C.

(f) Provisions for the establishment, maintenance, and submission of such records relating to the Florida Retirement System as are required by the Administrator.

(g) Certification of the effective date of the ordinance or resolution.

(5) Agreement – The governing body of each city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center not participating in an existing retirement system on November 30, 1970, which desires to participate in the Florida Retirement System shall be required to enter into an agreement with the Director of the Division of Retirement. The agreement shall include the following provisions:

(a) That benefits shall be provided for all eligible officers and employees in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 121, F.S., and these rules and regulations.

(b) That the required contributions for social security shall be deducted from the compensation of all members each pay period and shall be remitted as required by Rule 60S-3.010, F.A.C.

(c) That the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center shall remit to the Division each pay period in accordance with Rule 60S-3.011, F.A.C., the contributions required to be paid pursuant to Rule 60S-3.003, F.A.C.

(d) That failure of the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center to comply with the agreement with regard to the payment of employer and employee retirement contributions when due shall be the basis for the Administrator invoking the applicable provisions of Rule 60S-3.011, F.A.C.

(e) That the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center shall establish and maintain such records and make such reports relating to the Florida Retirement System as may be required by the Administrator.

(f) That the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center shall or shall not provide for all or any part of the past service of its employees. This part of the agreement shall be binding and irrevocable effective with the date of coverage in the Florida Retirement System.

1. If past service is to be provided, the agreement must stipulate the amount of past service to be provided by the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center. The cost of such past service shall be computed by the Division of Retirement. If the agency does not wish to pay the entire cost immediately, a 10% down payment shall be required and the balance shall be paid in yearly installments amortized over a period determined by the following formula: The average age of the employees of the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center joining the system is subtracted from 62 (normal retirement age for a Regular Class ~~regular~~ member of the Florida Retirement System), and the difference shall be the maximum number of years, not to exceed 15 years, over which the payments may be amortized. The agency may elect to amortize payments over a shorter period of time than the maximum years allowed. Interest charged shall be 4 percent compounded annually until July 1, 1975 and 6.5 percent compounded annually thereafter until date of payment.

2. At the time the agency begins participating in the Florida Retirement System, the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center shall provide certification of monthly service and earnings for all employees eligible to claim past service credit, whether or not the past service credit is purchased by the employer.

(g) That the agreement may not be revoked, except as provided in subsection 60S-1.007(8), F.A.C., and that all officers and employees employed on or after the effective date of the agreement shall be compulsory members of the Florida Retirement System as a condition of employment.

(6) Certified Financial Statement – The governing body of a city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center which has a local retirement system shall, prior to the city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center being approved for participation in the Florida Retirement System, submit to the Administrator a certified

financial statement showing the condition of the local retirement system as of a date within 3 months prior to the effective date of membership in the Florida Retirement System. The statement shall be certified by a recognized accounting firm which is independent of the local retirement system.

(7) All required documents necessary for extending Florida Retirement System coverage shall be delivered to the Division of Retirement for consideration at least 15 days prior to the effective date of coverage. If this is not complied with, the Division of Retirement may require that the effective date of coverage be changed.

(8) The governing body of a city or independent special district that participates in the Florida Retirement System may revoke its election to participate with an effective date of January 1, 1996, in accordance with the provisions of Section 121.0511, or 121.051(2)(b)5, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021(34), 121.051(2)(b), (3), 121.051, 121.0511 FS. History–New 1-1-72, Amended 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 8-26-81, 1-19-82, 11-6-84, Formerly 22B-1.07, Amended 5-19-91, Formerly 22B-1.007, Amended 3-12-96, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Sarabeth Snuggs, Director, Division of Retirement
 NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John P. Miles, Secretary, Department of Management Services
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 18, 2010, Vol. 36/24

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Division of Retirement

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
60S-1.00537	Criteria for Special Risk Class Membership-Certain Professional Health Care Workers
60S-1.00539	Criteria for Special Risk Class Membership-Forensic Disciplines

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the new proposed Rule 60S-1.00537, F.A.C., is to move the criteria for Special Risk Class Membership for Certain Professional Health Care workers previously found in paragraph 60S-1.0053(2)(e), F.A.C., under the section of rule titled, “Criteria for Special Risk Membership – Correctional Officers,” to an appropriately titled section of rule. The purpose of new proposed Rule 60S-1.00539, F.A.C., is to provide in rule the criteria for Special Risk Class membership for those employed in Forensic Disciplines as a result of statutory changes expanding the class to include those employed in such disciplines.

SUMMARY: The new rule sections set forth Special Risk Class membership criteria in accordance with statute.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

No State of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. The agency has determined that this rule shall not have an effect on small businesses as defined by Section 288.703, Florida Statutes, nor on small counties or small cities as defined by Section 120.52, Florida Statutes.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimate regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein:

Not required because there are no adverse impacts on economic growth, business competitiveness or regulatory costs of more than \$1M in the aggregate within five years of implementation.

Any person who to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 121.031 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 121.021(15), 121.0515 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET

PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director's Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

60S-1.00537 Criteria for Special Risk Class Membership – Certain Professional Health Care Workers.

The criteria set forth below shall be used pursuant to Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C., in determining membership in the Special Risk Class for members who are filling certain professional health care positions, regardless of the title of such a position.

(1) Effective January 1, 2001, a professional health care worker employed by the Department of Corrections or the Department of Children and Family Services who spends at least 75 percent of his or her time performing duties which involve contact with patients or inmates in a correctional or forensic facility or institution in one of the following positions and class codes: Dietitian (class codes 5203 and 5204); Public health nutrition consultant (class code 5224); Psychological

specialist (class codes 5230 and 5231); Psychologist (class code 5234); Senior psychologist (class codes 5237 and 5238); Regional mental health consultant (class code 5240); Psychological Services Director – DCF (class code 5242); Pharmacist (class codes 5245 and 5246); Senior pharmacist (class codes 5248 and 5249); Dentist (class code 5266); Senior dentist (class code 5269); Registered nurse (class codes 5290 and 5291); Senior registered nurse (class codes 5292 and 5293); Registered nurse specialist (class codes 5294 and 5295); Clinical associate (class codes 5298 and 5299); Advanced registered nurse practitioner (class codes 5297 and 5300); Advanced registered nurse practitioner specialist (class codes 5304 and 5305); Registered nurse supervisor (class codes 5306 and 5307); Senior registered nurse supervisor (class codes 5308 and 5309); Registered nursing consultant (class codes 5312 and 5313); Quality management program supervisor (class code 5314); Executive nursing director (class codes 5320 and 5321); Speech and hearing therapist (class code 5406); or Pharmacy manager (class code 5251).

Rulemaking Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021(15), 121.0515 FS. History–New _____.

60S-1.00539 Criteria for Special Risk Class Membership – Forensic Disciplines.

The criteria set forth below shall be used pursuant to Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C., in determining membership in the Special Risk Class for members who are employed in a recognized forensic discipline regardless of the title of that position.

(1)(a) Effective October 1, 2005 through June 30, 2008, the member must be employed by an agency which either proclaims itself to be a law enforcement agency or a medical examiner's office and be employed in a forensic discipline recognized by the International Association for Identification (IAI) and must be eligible for membership in the IAI and the member's primary duties and responsibilities must include the collection, examination, preservation, documentation, preparation, or analysis of physical evidence or testimony, or both, or the member must be the direct supervisor, quality management supervisor, or command officer of one or more individuals with such responsibility.

Administrative support personnel, including, but not limited to, those whose primary duties are clerical or in accounting, purchasing, legal, and personnel, shall not be included.

(b) Effective July 1, 2008, the member with Special Risk Class membership based on the criteria of (a) shall be removed from the Special Risk Class.

(2)(a) Effective July 1, 2008, the member must be employed by the Department of Law Enforcement in the crime laboratory or by the Division of State Fire Marshal in the forensic laboratory in one of the following positions and class codes: Forensic technologist (class code 8459); Crime laboratory technician (class code 8461); Crime laboratory analyst (class code 8463); Senior crime laboratory analyst

(class code 8464); Crime laboratory analyst supervisor (class code 8466); Forensic chief (class code 9602); or Forensic services quality manager (class code 9603).

(b) The member must be employed by a local government law enforcement agency or medical examiner's office and must spend at least 65 percent of his or her time performing duties that involve the collection, examination, preservation, documentation, preparation, or analysis of human tissues or fluids or physical evidence having potential biological, chemical, or radiological hazard or contamination, or use chemicals, processes, or materials that may have carcinogenic or health damaging properties in the analysis of said evidence, or the member must be the direct supervisor of one or more individuals having such responsibility.

Rulemaking Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021(15), 121.0515 FS. History—New

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Sarabeth Snuggs, Director, Division of Retirement
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John P. Miles, Secretary, Department of Management Services
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 18, 2010, Vol. 36/24

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
60S-2.002	Statements of Policy
60S-2.003	Credit for Past Service
60S-2.004	Credit for Prior Service
60S-2.0041	Credit Toward Special Risk Class Normal Retirement Date
60S-2.005	Credit for Military Service
60S-2.006	Credit for Leaves of Absence Under the Florida Retirement System
60S-2.007	Credit for Out-of-State and In-State Service
60S-2.009	Credit for Previous Service
60S-2.013	Credit for Upgraded Previous Service
60S-2.015	Value of Each Year of Creditable Service

60S-2.016 Credit for Periods of Suspension Without Pay or Rescinded Dismissal

60S-2.019 Credit for Unreported Service
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect are to amend Division of Retirement rules to correspond with statutory changes up through the 2010 Legislative session and delete obsolete language.

SUMMARY: The amendments to this rule reflect the statutory changes allowing metropolitan planning organizations, public charter schools and public charter technical career centers to participate in the Florida Retirement System; the statutory changes regulating the purchase of past service credit by certain employees of the City of Jacksonville; the statutory changes identifying additional wartime military service dates that are eligible for purchase; and the statutory changes allowing certain special risk class members to purchase an upgrade of certain service within the purview of the class to special risk class service. In addition this rule deletes antiquated wartime military service dates; provides the formulary for the calculation of creditable military service credit; clarifies the historical definition of regularly established position chronologically for purposes of credit for Unreported Service; deletes obsolete rule requiring affidavits to substantiate service credit adjustments when records are not available under certain circumstances and incorporates by reference 10 Division forms into this rule that were previously adopted under Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No State of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. The agency has determined that this rule shall not have an effect on small businesses as defined by Section 288.703, Florida Statutes, nor on small counties or small cities as defined by Section 120.52, Florida statutes.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimate regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein:

Not required because there are no adverse impacts on economic growth, business competitiveness or regulatory costs of more than \$1M in the aggregate within five years of implementation.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 121.031, 121.052(7), (14), 238.175(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 120.045, 121.011(3), 121.021, 121.031, 121.051, 121.0515, 121.052, 121.053, 121.055, 121.071, 121.081, 121.091, 121.111, 121.1115, 121.1122, 121.121, 121.122, 121.125, 121.65(2), 122.07, 238.06(4), 238.07, 238.175 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET

PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director's Conference Room Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

60S-2.002 Statements of Policy.

(1) The Administrator may require the submission of any evidence necessary to establish a member's claim of creditable service.

(2) A member shall not receive more than one ~~a~~ year of creditable service for any 12-month ~~twelve-month~~ period of employment.

(3) No change.

(4) Method for determining retirement service credit:

(a) A member's retirement service credit shall be measured in terms of years and fractions thereof during each fiscal year, as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(29)(28), F.A.C. A year of service credit consists of 12 months of service credit in a fiscal year (July 1 through June 30), except as otherwise provided herein pursuant to the Florida Statutes for employees whose approved work year is less than 12 months or whose approved service credit year is not July 1 through June 30. A member who earns 12 full months of service credit during the service credit year shall be granted one year of service credit for that year. A member who earns less than 12 months of service credit, except when a work year less than 12 months has been approved pursuant to Florida Statutes, shall receive a fraction of a year of service credit, such fraction to be determined by dividing the number of months and fractions thereof of service credit earned by 12. A member for whom a shorter work year has been approved pursuant to law shall receive a year of service credit if he or she earns a full month of service credit for each month of the approved work year. If such member earns service credit for fewer months than comprise his or her work year, he or she shall receive a fraction

of a year of service credit, such fraction to be determined by dividing the number of months and fractions thereof of service earned by the number of months in the approved work year.

(b) The approved work year pursuant to Florida Statutes for the purpose of determining service credit in accordance with this policy is as follows:

1. For academic ~~Academic~~ or instructional employees (including substitute teachers eligible for membership) of a district school board, participating public charter school or charter technical career center, community college, or state university: The work year shall be the number of months in the full contract year or nine months, whichever is greater, as specified by the contract between the employee and the school system in accordance with law (Chapters 1012 and 1001, F.S.). The approved work year for any member included in the definition of "teacher" in Section 238.01(3), F.S., who is not an employee of a district school board, participating public charter school or charter technical career center, community college, or state university, but whose work year is less than 12 ~~twelve~~ months, shall be the school or contract year or nine months, whichever is greater, as approved by the Division of Retirement.

2. For non-academic ~~Non-academic~~ or non-instructional employees (including teacher aides) of a district school board, participating public charter school or charter technical career center, community or junior college, or state university; or employees of a participating employer other than a school board whose total employment is to provide services to a school board for the school year only: The work year shall be the number of months in the school year, or nine months, whichever is greater, as certified by the employing agency, subject to review and approval by the Division of Retirement.

3. For seasonal ~~Seasonal~~ employees (pursuant to Sections 121.051(6)(a) and 122.07, F.S.): The work year shall be 12 months during the fiscal year.

4. For all ~~All~~ other employees: The work year shall be 12 months during the fiscal year.

5. For an ~~An~~ employee of any district school board, participating public charter school or charter technical career center, community or junior college, or state university, who moves from one position to another position having a different approved work year: If all employments are with any school, college, or university system of the state, all of his or her service credit for that fiscal year shall be based on the shortest work year under which any service credit was earned. If all employments are not with a school, college, or university system of the state, the employee's service credit for that fiscal year shall be based on each of the different work years under which service credit was earned.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (d), ~~monthly~~ Monthly service credit shall be awarded as follows:

1. ~~For service~~ Service performed prior to July 1, 1974: A month of service credit shall be awarded for each month during which the member is paid a salary payment for employment.

2. ~~For service~~ Service performed on and after July 1, 1974: A month of service credit shall be awarded for each month during which the member is paid a salary payment of at least \$100. If a member is paid less than \$100 during a month of employment, his or her service credit for that month shall be a fraction of a month of credit, such fraction to be determined by dividing his or her actual salary payment by \$100.

3. ~~For service~~ Service performed on and after July 1, 1979: A month of service credit shall be awarded for each month during which the member is paid a salary payment of at least \$250. If a member is paid less than \$250 during a month of employment, his or her service credit for that month shall be a fraction of a month of credit, such fraction to be determined by dividing his or her actual salary payment by \$250. If a member earns \$250 in a month, but is paid less than that amount because of participation ~~he participates~~ in a deferred salary plan, he or she shall be entitled to receive a full month of service credit for each such month, provided the Division is notified and verification of deferred salary payments is submitted.

4. ~~For service~~ Service performed on and after July 1, 1985: A month of service credit shall be awarded for each month during which the member is paid a salary payment for employment.

(d)1. ~~For service performed prior~~ Prior to January 1, 1999, service credit for members holding an elective public office shall be granted as follows:

a. All elected public officials holding a commission of office from the Secretary of State shall receive service credit based on their terms of office.

b. All other elective public officers shall receive service credit in accordance with paragraph (c).

2. ~~For service performed on~~ On and after January 1, 1999, service credit for members holding an elective public office shall be granted in accordance with paragraph (c).

(e) ~~In Employers shall,~~ in accordance with instructions issued by the Division of Retirement, employers shall identify all members of the retirement systems who work for a school system (district school board, participating public charter school or charter technical career center, community college, or state university) whose work year is less than 12 months. Each such identification shall also indicate the number of months in the member's work year. If salary payments are made in a greater or lesser number of months than the work year due to agency payroll procedures, the work year reported shall be the lesser of either the number of months paid or the number of months in the work year except that it shall not be less than 9 months.

(f) Service credit shall not be granted beyond the month of termination at retirement or death, except as provided in subsection 60S-2.010(4), F.A.C.

~~(g) The Division of Retirement may adjust a member's record of service credit only upon presentation of evidence sufficient to warrant such adjustment. In the event official records are not available affidavits may be accepted as evidence of proof of employment or salary earned, provided the following conditions are met:~~

~~1. Affidavits are submitted by 2 people who have personal knowledge of the member's employment as supervisor or administrator of the employee at the time in question. If no former supervisor or administrator can be located, the affidavit of co-workers may be substituted.~~

~~2. The member's employer at the time in question provides the following:~~

~~a. A statement indicating why records for that period of time are not available. (If records are available and the employee does not appear on the records, the service credit shall not be creditable);~~

~~b. Copies of additional proof of employment such as the member's personnel file or some mention of the employee in board minutes, except when all agency records have been destroyed. (If records have been destroyed, compliance with a. and c. shall be sufficient);~~

~~e. The salary of the member on which the retirement contributions shall be based. Since no records are available this shall be the employer's best estimate using salaries of employees filling similar position at that time. Contributions shall be charged in accordance with subsection 60S 3.005(1)(e) or (3), F.A.C., as applicable for the service to be purchased.~~

~~3. An affidavit shall not be accepted to verify leaves of absence or out-of-state service.~~

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.031, 121.0515, 121.091, 121.111 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 7-1-79, 12-22-80, 8-26-81, 2-6-84, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-2.02, Amended 2-4-86, 3-11-87, 9-5-90, Formerly 22B-2.002, Amended 2-24-99, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-2.003 Credit for Past Service.

Past service credit in the Florida Retirement System is available to the member for service rendered in seven ~~five~~ different sets of circumstances, with the particular set of circumstances under which the service is rendered determining the cost for claiming past service credit. The conditions and circumstances under which the past service credit may be claimed are as follows:

(1) Past service may be claimed by a member who was an officer or employee of a city, independent ~~or~~ special district, metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school on the date it was approved for participation in the Florida Retirement System, subject to the following:

(a) The member must have been in the active employ of the city, ~~independent~~ or special district, ~~metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~ on the date the city, ~~independent~~ or special district or ~~metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~ commenced participating in the Florida Retirement System, and must have selected membership in the Florida Retirement System if such option was given;

(b) The member must have been filling a regularly established position, as defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C., during the period of service for which he or she claims past service credit;

(c) The member may not receive past service credit for any leaves of absence without pay, with the exception of active military service leaves of absence claimed in accordance with subsection 60S-2.005(1), F.A.C.;

(d) If the member does not desire to receive credit for all of his or her past service, the period he or she claims must be the most recent past service prior to his or her participation in the Florida Retirement System;

(e) Certification of monthly service and earnings for the past service claimed must be submitted by the member's employer; and

(f) The required contributions must be made in accordance with subsection 60S-3.004(1), F.A.C.

(g) Past service under this subsection may be claimed as ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service valued at 2% per year by current or former ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ members of the Florida Retirement System. Such additional credit may be purchased at the time the employee becomes a member of the Florida Retirement System or at any time prior to retirement. In addition to conditions (a) through (f), the following conditions must be met:

1. The service must satisfy the criteria established for ~~the Special Risk Class special-risk~~ as provided in Rule 60S-1.0051, 60S-1.0052, ~~or~~ 60S-1.0053, ~~60S-1.00535 or 60S-1.00539~~, F.A.C., of these rules, except that a certificate or waiver of certificate shall not be required. Verification that the service satisfies the criteria shall be provided by the city, ~~or independent~~ special district, ~~metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~ on ~~Form FRS-401 (Rev. 07/99), Florida Retirement System Special Risk Credit for Past Service, herein adopted by reference, the forms provided by the Division~~ and must be approved by the Division.

2. The member will be notified of the additional contributions required in accordance with paragraph 60S-3.004(1)(d), F.A.C. Such contributions may be paid by the member or by the employer on behalf of the member.

(2) A member who has service with a city, ~~independent~~ or special district or ~~metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~ of the state which cannot be claimed under subsection (1) above, because the city, ~~or~~

~~independent~~ special district, ~~metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~ has not joined the Florida Retirement System, because the member was not an employee of the city, ~~or independent~~ special district, ~~metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~, at the time it commenced participating in the Florida Retirement System, or because the member rejected the Florida Retirement System at the time the city, ~~or independent~~ special district, ~~metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~ began participating in the Florida Retirement System, may receive past service credit for employment with any city, ~~or independent~~ special district, ~~metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~ of the state, subject to the following:

(a) The member must have been filling a regularly established position, as defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C., during the period of service for which he or she claims past service credit;

(b) through (d) No change.

(3) Past service credit may be claimed by a person who becomes a member of the Florida Retirement System by virtue of the transfer, consolidation or merger of governmental units or functions at any level of government or through the assumption of functions or activities by an employer under the system from an employing entity that was not an employer under the system. A person who, prior to becoming a member of the Florida Retirement System, became a member of an existing system prior to December 1, 1970 by virtue of a transfer, consolidation, merger or assumption of functions or activities as described herein, shall also be eligible to claim past service in accordance with this subsection. The following conditions shall apply to past service credit under this subsection:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) If the member does not desire to receive credit for all of his or her past service, the period he or she claims must be the most recent past service prior to his or her participation in the Florida Retirement System;

(e) through (f) No change.

(g) Past service credit under this subsection may be claimed as ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service valued at 2% per year by current or former ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ members of the Florida Retirement System. Such additional credit may be purchased at the time the employee becomes a ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ member of the Florida Retirement System or at any time prior to retirement. In addition to conditions (a) through (f), the following conditions must be met:

1. The service must satisfy the criteria established for ~~the Special Risk Class special-risk~~ as provided in Rule 60S-1.0051, 60S-1.0052, ~~or~~ 60S-1.0053, ~~60S-1.00535, or 60S-1.00539~~, F.A.C., of these rules, except that a certificate or waiver of certificate shall not be required. Verification that the service

satisfies the criteria shall be provided by the city, ~~or independent special district, metropolitan planning organization, charter school, or charter technical school~~ on the forms provided by the Division. Such verification is subject to approval by the Division.

2. The member will be notified of the additional contributions and interest required in accordance with paragraph 60S-3.004(1)(d), F.A.C. Such contributions and interest may be paid by the member or by the employer on behalf of the member.

(4) No change.

(5) Past service may be claimed for retirement credit for the period of time a member was employed in a Multiple Offender Project funded by a Federal Government grant to a local government not covered by Chapter 121, F.S., if:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The member worked under the supervision of the State Attorney or his or her subordinate;

(d) through (e) No change.

(6) Past service with the City of Jacksonville prior to July 1, 2004, may be claimed for retirement credit by employees of the Fourth Judicial Circuit who were in an employee-employer relationship with the City of Jacksonville on June 30, 2004, and who became employees of the State Courts System on July 1, 2004, as a result of the implementation of Revision 7 to Article V of the State Constitution if:

(a) Credit for such service has not been and will not be granted under any other state or local retirement or pension system; and

(b) The required contributions are made in accordance with subsection 60S-3.004(6), F.A.C.

~~(7)(6)~~ Past service may be claimed for retirement credit for the period of time a member was employed prior to July 1, 1996 by a dependent governmental entity within the jurisdiction of an independent participating agency when such independent agency failed to report such employee for membership in the Florida Retirement System as required by this chapter. Such employees may claim past service as provided in subsection 60S-2.003(1), F.A.C.

~~(8)(7)~~ A member may not claim credit for past service which is used to qualify for a benefit under any retirement system.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021(18), 121.0515, 121.65(2), 121.081(1) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 1-16-77, 8-26-81, 1-19-82, 1-18-83, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-2.03, Amended 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-2.003, Amended 4-5-95, 12-12-96, _____.

60S-2.004 Credit for Prior Service.

(1) No change.

(2) The provisions for claiming prior service are as follows:

(a) The member must be reemployed for one complete year of creditable service within a period of 12 consecutive months except as provided in subsections 60S-2.010(3) and (4), F.A.C. Service which may be used to satisfy this requirement may include:

1. Any period of leave, with or without pay, after initial reemployment and during the 12-month period.

2. Service with more than one employer, provided the service is continuous.

3. Service performed as a participant of the State University System Optional Retirement Program ~~for the State University System~~ in accordance with Section 121.35, F.S., and Chapter 60U, F.A.C.

4. Service performed as a participant of the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program in accordance with Section 121.055, F.S., and Chapter 60V, F.A.C.

(b) The member must make the required contributions for such prior service in accordance with subsection 60S-3.005(1), F.A.C.

(c) If a member does not claim credit for all of his or her prior service, the service he or she claims must be his or her most recent period of service.

(3) A member who elected to transfer to the Florida Retirement System from an existing system may receive credit for prior service under the provisions of the existing system provided:

(a) He or she was eligible under the provisions of the existing system to claim the prior service at the time of the transfer.

(b) He or she makes the required contributions for such prior service as provided in subsection 60S-3.005(3), F.A.C.

(4) Prior service as described in paragraph (1)(a), (b), or (c) of this rule may only be claimed as Regular Class ~~regular~~ service. Prior service as described in paragraph (1)(d) or (e) will be credited according to the class of membership of the member during the period claimed. Prior service claimed as provided in subsection (3) above shall be credited in accordance with the provisions of the former system. Prior service as described in paragraph (1)(e) of this rule shall be credited in accordance with the provisions of the highway patrol pension plan in effect during the period claimed. However, if the member terminated and withdrew his or her retirement contributions, and was thereafter enrolled in the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System and/or the Florida Retirement System, the service shall be credited as Regular Class ~~regular~~ service in the Florida Retirement System.

(5) through (6) No change.

(7) Educational Leave with Pay – Employees of a state agency, who were members of a state administered retirement system and who were granted educational leave with pay

pursuant to a written educational leave with pay policy, may claim such periods of educational leave as prior service subject to the following conditions:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) The employee must be a member of the Florida Retirement System at the time he or she claims such service; and

(e) through (f) No change.

(g) The member must make the required contributions for such prior service in accordance with paragraph 60S-3.005(1)(~~d~~)(~~e~~), F.A.C.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.081 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 1-16-77, 7-1-79, 1-19-82, 11-6-84, Formerly 22B-2.04, Amended 2-4-86, 3-11-87, 2-7-89, Formerly 22B-2.004, Amended 12-30-99, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-2.0041 Credit Toward Special Risk Class Normal Retirement Date.

Credit toward Special Risk Class Normal retirement date is earned for Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ service, high hazard service in the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System, and service earned in the Highway Patrol Pension Fund. In addition, a Special Risk Class member or a former Special Risk Class member may receive credit toward such date for the following service:

(1) Service in the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System; service as a correctional counselor with the Department of Corrections between December 1, 1970 and September 30, 1979 including such service for which the member received a refund and which was reclaimed as prior service; or service in the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System (Chapter 122, F.S.), or in the Highway Patrol Pension Fund (Chapter 321, F.S.), for which the member received a refund and which was reclaimed as prior service under the Florida Retirement System. Such service shall have been performed as provided below.

(a) The position filled at that time shall satisfy the criteria as provided in Rule 60S-1.0051, 60S-1.0052 or 60S-1.0053, F.A.C., except the requirement for a certificate or waiver of certificate. The member shall apply for such credit and the agency shall provide verification ~~Verification~~ that the position satisfies the criteria on Form FRS-402 (Rev. 10/01), Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Equivalent Credit, herein adopted by reference, shall be provided by the agency on the forms provided by the Division and must be approved by the Division.

(b) through (c) No change.

(2) Service earned in the Special Risk Administrative Support Class, as provided below:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The percentage value of each year earned in the Special Risk Administrative Support Class shall be the value of Regular Class ~~regular~~ membership in the Florida Retirement System.

(d) Retroactive coverage in the Special Risk Administrative Support Class shall be granted as follows:

1. Any member filling an administrative support position during the period October 1, 1978 through June 30, 1982, shall be covered, provided the member meets the requirements of subsection 60S-1.0054(2), F.A.C., and was:

a. Removed from Special Risk Class membership effective October 1, 1978, due to a change in the Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ criteria; or

b. Was reassigned or employed for training and/or career development or to fill a critical agency need.

2. The member must apply to the Division of Retirement and complete the member information section Section 2 of Form FRS-404 (Rev. 11/02), Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Administrative Support Class, herein adopted by reference, membership (FRS 404) prior to retirement to claim such credit. The employing agency at the time the service was performed shall complete the portion of the form verifying that the member filled a Special Risk Administrative Support Class position and retained his or her certification per Rule 60S-1.0051, 60S-1.0052, or 60S-1.0053, F.A.C., during the retroactive period.

3. Service in the Special Risk Administrative Support Class shall be granted without payment of additional contributions for the period October 1, 1978 through June 30, 1982.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.0515 FS. History—New 1-19-82, Amended 10-12-82, Formerly 22B-2.041, Amended 2-7-89, Formerly 22B-2.0041, Amended 8-13-03,_____.

60S-2.005 Credit for Military Service.

(1) Military Leave of Absence – A member may receive up to 5 years of retirement credit, or more if required for the convenience of the Federal Government as provided in the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act, for active military service in the Armed Forces of the United States which interrupts continuous employment, regardless of whether or not an official leave of absence was granted, in accordance with the following:

(a) The member must be entitled to reemployment under the provisions of the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act, 38 U.S.C. §§ 4301 ~~et seq. 4333, F.S.~~, or other law applicable to such reemployment which provides that:

1. The member shall have been employed in a position other than temporary, and shall have left that position for the purpose of induction into the Armed Forces of the United States or entry for active duty in the Armed Forces of the

United States. When applied to the Florida Retirement System, “a position other than temporary” shall mean a regularly established position with a Florida Retirement System employer, and it shall be construed that the member left his or her employment for military purposes if he or she reported for active duty within 60 days of leaving such employment, unless a determination of the member’s entitlement to reemployment under the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act is made by the Veterans’ Administration and submitted to the Division of Retirement by the member; and

2. The member shall have been discharged from the military service under honorable conditions; and

3. The member shall have applied for reemployment with the same employer within 90 days from his or her date of discharge or separation from active military service or within the time limits set forth in the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act for hospitalization continuing after discharge, and was reemployed by such employer; and

(b) The member submits required documentation to the Division (DD214 or other official military document) showing the dates of entry into active duty and discharge from active duty; and

(c) The required employer contributions shall be paid by the employer if the member was released from military service on or after December 3, 1974, or by the member if he or she was released from military service prior to December 3, 1974 in accordance with subsection 60S-3.006(1), F.A.C. If any employee contributions are required they shall be paid by the member; and

(d) The member shall receive service credit in the membership class to which the member belonged immediately prior to his or her military service. Such service may be claimed immediately upon reemployment and shall count toward the years required for vesting.

(2) Wartime Military Service – A member whose initial date of employment in a regularly established position is before January 1, 1987, who has full-time, active “wartime” military service, other than active duty for training or attendance at a military academy, in the Armed Forces of the United States or in the Allied Forces for which he or she is not eligible to receive retirement credit as provided in subsection 60S-2.005(1), F.A.C., may receive retirement credit for such active wartime military service, not to exceed a total of 4 years, provided that:

(a) The member served one or more days of his or her military service during one of the following periods:

~~1. Spanish-American War: Service from April 21, 1898 through July 4, 1902, and including the Philippine Insurrection and the Boxer Rebellion.~~

~~2. Mexican Border Period: Service from May 9, 1916, through April 5, 1917, in the case of a veteran who during such period served in Mexico, on the borders thereof, or in the waters adjacent thereto.~~

~~3. World War I: Service from April 6, 1917 through November 11, 1918; extended through April 1, 1920, for those veterans who served in Russia; also extended through July 1, 1921, for those veterans who served after November 11, 1918, and before July 2, 1921, provided that such veterans had at least 1 day of service between April 5, 1917 and November 12, 1918.~~

~~1.4. World War II: Service from December 7, 1941 through December 31, 1946. Wartime service as a member of the American Merchant Marine in Oceangoing Service from December 7, 1941 through August 15, 1945, may be credited only for such periods certified on a federal form DD214.~~

~~2.5. Korean Conflict: Service from June 27, 1950 through January 31, 1955.~~

~~3.6. Vietnam Era: Service from February 28, 1961 through May 7, 1975, and~~

~~4.7. Persian Gulf War: Service from August 2, 1990 through January 2, 1992 a date to be determined by presidential proclamation or by law.~~

~~5. Operation Enduring Freedom: October 7, 2007 through a date to be determined by presidential proclamation or by law.~~

~~6. Operation Iraqi Freedom: March 19, 2003 through a date to be determined by presidential proclamation or by law.~~

(b) The member’s wartime military service in the Allied Forces shall be limited to service with any nation which was allied with the United States in ~~World War I or~~ World War II; any nation which provided military contingents in support of the United Nations during the Korean conflict; or any nation which provided military assistance to South Vietnam in cooperation with forces of the United States during the Vietnam Era, and

(c) The member was discharged from the military service under honorable conditions, and

(d) The member is vested, and

(e) The member makes application to the Division to claim such military service credit and submits required documentation (DD214 or other official military document) showing the dates of entry into active duty and discharge from active duty, and

(f) The member pays the required contributions in accordance with paragraph 60S-3.006(2)(a) or (b), F.A.C.

(g) The member shall receive service credit in the Regular ~~Members~~² Class for all wartime military service claimed under this subsection, regardless of the member’s class of membership, and

(h) The member shall not receive credit for any military service for which the member also receives credit under any federal or state retirement or pension system where “length of service” is a factor in determining the amount of compensation

received, except for a pension system providing retired pay for non-regular (i.e. Reserve and National Guard) service in the Armed Forces of the United States in accordance with 10 U.S.C. ss.1331 et seq. Chapter 67 of Title 10 of the United States Code. Credit for wartime military service for which the member also receives credit in a pension system providing retired pay for such non-regular service may be claimed as follows:

1. Any person whose retirement date under the Florida Retirement System is prior to July 1, 1985 may claim such service at any time, as provided in this subsection upon payment of contributions as provided in paragraph 60S-3.006(2)(b), F.A.C.

2. Any person whose retirement date is on or after July 1, 1985 must claim such service prior to the commencement of his or her retirement benefits, as provided in this subsection, and upon payment of contributions as provided in paragraph 60S-3.006(2)(a), F.A.C.

(i) Any member claiming credit in accordance with this subsection shall certify on Form MF-1 (Rev. 07/06), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Statement of Military Eligibility, herein adopted by reference, the form prescribed by the Division that credit for such service has not and will not be claimed for retirement purposes under any federal or state retirement or pension system where “length of service” is a factor in determining the amount of compensation received, except where credit for such service has been granted in a pension system providing retired pay for non-regular (i.e. Reserve and National Guard) service in accordance with paragraph 60S-2.005(2)(h), F.A.C. In the event of the member’s death prior to retirement, the member’s beneficiary shall make the required certification. If such certification is not made by the member or the member’s beneficiary, credit for wartime military service will not be allowed.

(j) Service credit awarded for wartime military service shall be the total number of years, months and days from and including the date of entry into active duty through the date of discharge from active duty, up to a maximum of four years. If the military service includes a partial year, it shall be stated as a fraction of a year. Creditable military service shall be calculated as follows:

$$\text{Creditable military service} = \frac{A}{\pm} \frac{[B + (C/30)]}{12}$$

Where:

A is total complete years;

B is total complete months in excess of complete years; and

C is total days in excess of complete months.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.052(5)(d), 121.111 FS. History–New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 1-16-77, 7-1-79, 1-19-82, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-2.05, Amended 2-4-86, 2-7-89, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-2.005, Amended 3-18-93, 4-5-95, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-2.006 Credit for Leaves of Absence Under the Florida Retirement System.

(1) A member may receive retirement credit for a total of two work years of creditable service for authorized leaves of absence under the Florida Retirement System, subject to the following:

(a) through (f) No change.

(g) The member shall make application to the Division for leave of absence retirement credit on Form FR-28 (Rev 06/04), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application to Purchase Retirement Credit for a Pension Plan Leave of Absence, herein adopted by reference.

(2) If a member is granted a leave of absence with full pay at the rate he or she was being paid prior to the leave of absence, and the compensation received during such period is paid in accordance with paragraph 60S-1.004(4)(a) or (b), F.A.C., the member shall not be considered on leave of absence for retirement purposes and the contributions required by Rule 60S-3.003, F.A.C., shall continue to be made and he or she shall continue to receive full retirement credit for the period he or she is on leave of absence with pay.

(3) If a member is granted a leave of absence with partial pay and the compensation received during such period is in accordance with paragraph 60S-1.004(4)(a) or (b), F.A.C., the contributions required by Rule 60S-3.003, F.A.C., shall continue to be made and he or she shall continue to receive full retirement credit for the period he or she is on leave of absence with pay. For this partial pay he or she shall receive credit in accordance with paragraph 60S-2.002(4)(c), F.A.C. However, the member may elect, upon his or her return from such leave, to make additional contributions in accordance with subsection 60S-3.007(2), F.A.C., and receive retirement credit for this period based on the full salary he or she was earning prior to the leave of absence. The purpose in making such contributions would be to permit the member’s full salary to be included in his or her average final compensation. If additional contributions are not made, only the member’s partial pay shall be used should such period be included in the member’s average final compensation.

(4) through (7) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.071, 121.121 FS. History–New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 7-1-79, 8-26-81, 1-18-83, Formerly 22B-2.06, Amended 3-11-87, 2-7-89, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-2.006, Amended 8-4-94, 2-24-99, 12-30-99, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-2.007 Credit for Out-of-State and In-State Service.

(1) Any member who is a seasonal state employee who works for and draws compensation from the State for a period of more than 6 calendar months during any fiscal year and who works for another state in the same or similar capacity during the same fiscal year, may receive retirement credit for the actual time employed by the other state during that fiscal year, in accordance with the following:

(a) He or she shall provide to the Division a statement from the state in which he or she was employed, listing days employed and monthly earnings.

(b) He or she shall make the required contributions in accordance with Rule 60S-3.008, F.A.C.

(2) A member of the Teachers' Retirement System who transferred to the Florida Retirement System and was eligible to claim retirement credit for out-of-state service under the Teachers' Retirement System at the time he or she transferred to the Florida Retirement System shall be allowed to claim, pay for, and receive retirement credit for out-of-state service in accordance with the provisions of the Teachers' Retirement System, subject to the following:

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) No member who receives or is entitled to receive a pension or annuity from any other state or county or municipality or taxing district may, by a withdrawal of contributions therefrom, become eligible to purchase credit for such out-of-state service under this section unless:

1. Said withdrawal of contributions completely divests the member of all rights under such other system, including the right to reinstate his or her eligibility for a benefit by repayment of the withdrawn contributions; or

2. Said withdrawal of contributions prevents the member under the provisions of such other system from reinstating his or her eligibility for a benefit unless he or she accepts reemployment in such state.

3. The member submits Form TR-4 (Rev. 04/99), Florida Retirement System Verification of Out-of-State Teaching Service, herein adopted by reference, completed by the certificate of the administrator of the retirement system of such other state, county, municipality or taxing district stating that he or she is ineligible for a benefit therein. Such form certificate should, if possible, be obtained by the member prior to submitting his or her application for retirement and should be attached to his or her application.

(3) A member of the Florida Retirement System may purchase credit for up to 5 years of out-of-state public employment; employment with the federal government (which may include military service not claimed under Rule 60S-2.005, F.A.C.); non-FRS, in-state public employment; or in-state employment in charter schools, charter technical career centers, or nonpublic schools and colleges accredited by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools; as follows:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) A member of the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan who wishes to claim such service shall obtain the following from the out-of-state or in-state employer's retirement or pension plan on Form FR-30 (Rev. 07/04), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Verification for In-State or Out-of-State Service Credit, herein adopted by reference; or on Form FR-30a (Rev. 07/04), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Out-of-State Employer Request, herein adopted by reference, if the information provided by the out-of-state in-state employer's retirement or pension plan on Form FR-30 is incomplete; or in the case of a deceased member, a beneficiary who wishes to claim such service on the behalf of the member shall obtain the following from the out-of-state or in-state employer's retirement or pension plan on Form FR-30b (Rev. 07/99), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Verification for In-State or Out-of-State Service Credit, herein adopted by reference; adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.:

1. A statement verifying that the member was a member of a retirement or pension plan provided by the employer and to which the employer paid contributions, and that he or she has not been, is not, and will not be eligible to receive either a lump sum distribution, other than a refund of member contributions, or a continuing benefit from that plan based on that service.

2. Certification of years and partial years of service by fiscal year, and length of work year.

(f) The service shall be claimed and credited as Regular Class service.

(g) A member shall be eligible to receive credit for such service performed after leaving the Florida Retirement System only upon return to membership and completion of a least 1 year of creditable service following the out-of-state or in-state service.

(h) The required contributions shall be paid by the member or his or her employer as provided in subsection 60S-3.008(3), F.A.C.

(i) A member claiming military service under these provisions must also complete and submit to the Division, Form MF-2 (Rev. 07/06), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Statement of Military Eligibility to Purchase Military Service under the Out-of-State Provisions, herein adopted by reference, attesting to the fact that the military service for which he or she requests credit has not and will not be claimed for retirement purposes under any other public pension plan.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 120.045, 121.021, 121.051(6)(a), 121.1115, 121.1122, 122.07, 238.06(4) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 8-20-75, 8-5-76, 7-1-79, Formerly 22B-2.07, 22B-2.007, Amended 3-18-93, 4-5-95, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 8-13-03.

60S-2.009 Credit for Previous Service.

A member who has earned creditable service under state-administered retirement system and has terminated his or her employment without retiring, leaving his or her

contributions on deposit, shall upon his or her return to employment under the Florida Retirement System, receive credit for all previous service in accordance with the provisions of the retirement system under which the service was earned. Additional service earned under the Florida Retirement System shall be added to all of his or her previous service and used in the calculation of any benefits which may be payable in accordance with Chapter 60S-4, F.A.C. No application or additional contributions shall be required to claim credit for previous service, except as provided in Rule 60S-2.013, F.A.C., for a member who upgrades previous service within the purview of the Elected Officers' Class, ~~of~~ the Senior Management Service Class, or Special Risk Class.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.011(3) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Formerly 22B-2.09, Amended 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-2.009, Amended 4-5-95, _____.

60S-2.013 Credit for Upgraded Previous Service.

(1) A current or former member of the Elected Officers' Class, or former elected officer as provided in paragraph (b) may upgrade to the Elected Officers' Class creditable service earned as an elected officer within the purview of that class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0055(1), F.A.C., by notifying the Division ~~in writing~~ of his or her desire to receive credit for such service and making the required contributions in accordance with Rule 60S-3.013, F.A.C. Such creditable service shall include:

(a) Service earned in any state-administered retirement system prior to the officer's membership in the Elected Officers' Class; or

(b) Service earned by a member who served after the applicable subclass of the Elected Officers' Class was established, where the officer chose to participate in a membership class of the Florida Retirement System other than the Elected Officers' Class;

(c) Service as a county solicitor, elected county prosecuting attorney, county judge, judge of a court of record, judge of a criminal or civil court of record, or judge of any metropolitan court established pursuant to section 6 of Article VIII of the State Constitution, judge of a small claims court or justice of the peace. Such service may be upgraded by a member of the Elected Officers' Class.

(2) A member of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0057(1), F.A.C., who has earned creditable service within the purview of the Senior Management Service Class may purchase additional retirement credit in the Senior Management Service Class for such service retroactive to February 1, 1987, provided that:

(a) He or she notifies the Division ~~in writing~~ of his or her desire to receive credit for such service, and

(b) The required contributions are made in accordance with Rule 60S-3.013, F.A.C.

(3) If the member does not claim credit for all of the previous service as provided in subsection (1), (2), (5), ~~and~~ (6) and (7), the service claimed must be the most recent period of service.

(4) A reemployed retiree with renewed membership in the Senior Management Service Class who has earned post-retirement creditable service in the Regular Class which was within the purview of the Senior Management Service Class may purchase additional retirement credit in the Senior Management Service Class, as provided in subsection (2), for such service from February 1, 1987 through June 30, 1997. Such service may be used toward a second career benefit as provided in Rule 60S-1.0045, F.A.C.

(5) A state attorney or state public defender in the Elected Officers' Class may purchase additional retirement credit in the Senior Management Service Class for previous service as an assistant state attorney or assistant state public defender in accordance with subsection (2).

(6) A Special Risk Class member may upgrade to the Special Risk Class previous service that included fire prevention or firefighter training within the purview of the Special Risk Class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0052(2), F.A.C., provided that:

(a) He or she notifies the Division ~~in writing~~ of his or her desire to receive credit for such service, and

(b) The required contributions are made in accordance with subsection 60S-3.013(4) ~~60S-3.012(4)~~, F.A.C.

(7) A Special Risk Class member may upgrade to the Special Risk Class previous service as a medical technician or paramedic within the purview of the Special Risk Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.00535, F.A.C., provided that:

(a) He or she notifies the Division of his or her desire to receive credit for such service; and

(b) The required contributions are made in accordance with subsection 60S-3.013(5), F.A.C.

(8) A Special Risk Class member may upgrade to the Special Risk Class previous service in a forensic discipline within the purview of the Special Risk Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.00539, F.A.C., provided that:

(a) He or she notifies the Division of his or her desire to receive credit for such service; and

(b) He or she is employed in a forensic discipline meeting the Special Risk Class criteria of subsection 60S-1.00539(2), F.A.C.; and

(c) The previous service to be upgraded meets the Special Risk Class criteria of subsection 60S-1.00539(2), F.A.C.; and

(d) The cost to upgrade such previous service, pursuant to Section 121.0515(9)(c), F.S., is paid in full within 60 days of the date on the Division's notification of such cost to the member.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.052, 121.055 FS. History—New 10-20-72, Amended 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 7-1-79, 8-26-81, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-2.13, Amended 3-11-87, 9-5-90, 5-15-91, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-2.013, Amended 4-5-95, 2-24-99, 8-13-03.

60S-2.015 Value of Each Year of Creditable Service.

(1) No change.

(2) Each complete year of creditable service earned and claimed under the Florida Retirement System shall have the percentage value indicated below, which shall represent the percentage of the member's average final compensation (AFC) that each complete year of creditable service having that same percentage value shall entitle him or her to receive under Option 1 upon his or her normal retirement:

(a) Each year of creditable service as a Regular Class regular member shall be worth:

1.60% of AFC when retiring at age 62

1.63% of AFC when retiring at age 63

1.65% of AFC when retiring at age 64

1.68% of AFC when retiring at age 65 or over, not to exceed 1.68%;

OR

1.60% of AFC when retiring with 30 years of creditable service

1.63% of AFC when retiring with 31 years of creditable service

1.65% of AFC when retiring with 32 years of creditable service

1.68% of AFC when retiring with 33 years of creditable service or more, not to exceed 1.68%

(b) Each year of creditable service earned as a Special Risk Class special-risk member shall be worth:

2% of AFC for service from December 1, 1970 through September 30, 1974;

3% of AFC for service from October 1, 1974 through September 30, 1978;

2% of AFC for service from October 1, 1978 through December 31, 1988;

2.2% of AFC for service from January 1, 1989 through December 31, 1989;

2.4% of AFC for service from January 1, 1990 through December 31, 1990;

2.6% of AFC for service from January 1, 1991 through December 31, 1991;

2.8% of AFC for service from January 1, 1992 through December 31, 1992; and

3% of AFC for service on and after January 1, 1993.

Effective July 1, 2000, for members retiring after that date, 3% of AFC for service on and after October 1, 1978.

(c) Each year of creditable service as a Special Risk Class Administrative Support Class special-risk administrative support member shall be worth:

When the member has satisfied the vesting requirements for the Special Risk Class but has less than 25 years of creditable Special Risk Class Administrative Support Class special-risk administrative support and Special Risk Class special-risk administrative support service, the Special Risk Class Administrative Support Class administrative support service shall be worth:

1.60% of AFC at age 55

1.63% of AFC at age 56

1.65% of AFC at age 57

1.68% of AFC at age 58 or over, not to exceed 1.68%;

OR

When retiring with 25 or more years of creditable Special Risk Class Administrative Support Class special-risk administrative support and Special Risk Class special-risk administrative support service that includes credit for military service, the Special Risk Administrative Support Class administrative support service shall be worth the greater of:

1.60% of AFC with a minimum of 25 years of creditable service at age 52 or older, or

1.63% of AFC with a minimum of 26 years of creditable service at age 53 or older, or

1.65% of AFC with a minimum of 27 years of creditable service at age 54 or older, or

1.68% of AFC with a minimum of 28 years of creditable service at age 55 or older, not to exceed 1.68%;

OR

When retiring with 25 or more years of creditable Special Risk Administrative Support Class special-risk administrative support and Special Risk Class special-risk administrative support service, regardless of age, the Special Risk Administrative Support Class administrative support service shall be worth:

1.60% of AFC with 25 years of creditable service

1.63% of AFC with 26 years of creditable service

1.65% of AFC with 27 years of creditable service

1.68% of AFC with 28 or more years of creditable service, not to exceed 1.68%

(d) Upon reaching normal retirement date, each year of creditable service as an elected state and county officer member shall be worth:

1. 3-1/3% of his or her AFC for all service in the Elected Officers' Class as a supreme court justice, district court of appeal judge, circuit court judge, or a county court judge;

2. 3-1/3% of his or her AFC for service for which additional credit is purchased pursuant to Rule 60S-2.013, F.A.C., and which was earned in one of the positions listed in paragraph 60S-2.013(1)(c), F.A.C.;

3. 3% of his or her AFC for any service in the Elected Officers' Class other than as a justice or judge, or for such service upgraded as provided in paragraphs 60S-2.013(1)(a) and (b), F.A.C.

(e) Each year of creditable service as a member of the Senior Management Service Class as provided in Rule 60S-1.0057, F.A.C., shall be worth: 2.00% of AFC for service on and after February 1, 1987 or the effective date of membership in the Senior Management Service Class, whichever is later, or for such service upgraded as provided in subsection 60S-2.013(2), F.A.C.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.091(1), 121.021, 121.052(10), 121.055 FS. History--New 10-20-72, Amended 12-31-74, 7-21-75, 7-1-79, 1-18-83, 5-11-83, 2-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-2.15, Amended 1-12-87, 2-7-89, 9-5-90, 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-2.015, Amended 1-25-94, 4-5-95, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-2.016 Credit for Periods of Suspension Without Pay or Rescinded Dismissal.

(1) A member who has been or is suspended without compensation and is later reinstated and who is not retired, may receive retirement credit for the period of suspension without compensation provided:

(a) The creditable service claimed for the period of suspension does not exceed 2 years;

(b) The member returns to active employment and remains on the employer's payroll for at least one calendar month ~~30 calendar days~~; and

(c) The member pays the total required contributions in accordance with subsection 60S-3.014(1), F.A.C. A period of suspension without compensation will not be considered a break in service if the member elects to purchase credit for the entire period of suspension.

(2) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.011(3)(e), (g) FS. History--New 1-16-77, Formerly 22B-2.16, 22B-2.016, Amended 2-24-99,_____.

60S-2.019 Credit for Unreported Service.

Retirement credit for service that was performed after December 1, 1970 under the Florida Retirement System and, due to error, was never reported to the Division as required in Rule 60S-3.011, F.A.C., may be claimed by a member of the Florida Retirement System provided:

(1) The unreported service was performed by an employee filling a regularly established position based on the definition in effect at the time of the service as follows:

(a) A regularly established position during the period from January 1, 1972 ~~December 1, 1970~~ through June 30, 1979 was any position authorized in an employer's approved budget for which salary funds were specifically appropriated to pay the salary of the position. Included within this definition were temporary, part-time, full-time, probationary, and seasonal employment positions. Not included within this definition was any position the salary for which was derived from a fund for Other Personal Services or from any account or sub-account

other than the regular salary account which was the source of funds for the salaries of those positions which were regularly established and reported to the Division.

(b) A regularly established position after June 30, 1979 through September 4, 1990 is any position that qualifies under the definition provided in subsection 60S-6.001(58)(46), F.A.C., except that a regularly established position in a local agency is one that is in existence for a period beyond four consecutive calendar months instead of six calendar months.

(c) A regularly established position after September 4, 1990 is any position that qualifies under the definition provided in subsection 60S-6.001(58), F.A.C.

(2) through (4) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.081 FS. History--New 3-11-87, Formerly 22B-2.019, Amended_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Sarabeth Snuggs, Director, Division of Retirement
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Jack P. Miles, Secretary, Department of Management Services
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: 06-18-2010, Vol. 36/24

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
60S-3.002	Statements of Policy
60S-3.003	Retirement Contributions for Regular, Special Risk, Elected Officer, Special Risk Administrative Support and Senior Management Service Classes of the Pension and Investment Plans of the Florida Retirement System; Contributions for the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy; and Contributions for the Deferred Retirement Option Program
60S-3.004	Retirement Contributions for Past Service Credit
60S-3.006	Retirement Contributions for Military Service Credit
60S-3.007	Retirement Contributions for Leave of Absence Credit
60S-3.010	Contributions for Social Security
60S-3.011	Payment of Contributions

- 60S-3.013 Retirement Contributions for Upgraded Previous Service Credit
- 60S-3.015 Retirement Contributions for Retroactive Special Risk Class Service

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect are to amend Division of Retirement rules to correspond with statutory changes up through the 2010 Legislative session and delete obsolete language.

SUMMARY: The amendments to this rule reflect the statutory revisions that: limit the renewal of membership in the Florida Retirement System (FRS); change contribution rates; allow metropolitan planning organizations, public charter schools and public charter technical career centers to participate in the FRS; and regulate the purchase of past service credit with the City of Jacksonville by certain employees of the Fourth Judicial Circuit. Other amendments to this rule: update compensation methodology used to calculate the contributions due for a military leave-of-absence, as necessary to comply with the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act; clarify when a state university system employer may be subject to a special assessment based upon faculty salary increases; and the adopt by reference of one existing Division form previously adopted under Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No State of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. The agency has determined that this rule shall not have an effect on small businesses as defined by Section 288.703, Florida Statutes, nor on small counties or small cities as defined by Section 120.52, Florida statutes.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimate regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein:

Not required because there are no adverse impacts on economic growth, business competitiveness or regulatory costs of more than \$1M in the aggregate within five years of implementation.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 112.363(7), 121.031, 121.052(7) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 112.215(13), 112.363, 121.021, 121.031, 121.0515, 121.052, 121.055, 121.061, 121.071, 121.081, 121.091, 121.111, 121.113, 121.121(4), 121.122, 121.30, 121.70, 121.71, 121.72, 121.73, 121.74, 121.75, 121.76 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET
 PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director’s Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

60S-3.002 Statements of Policy.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) All service credit for which the required contributions have been made and remain on deposit in the retirement trust fund shall be used in determining the benefits for which the member and his or her joint annuitant or surviving spouse are eligible.

(4) The required employee contributions for all service other than current service, including but not limited to prior service, past service, military service, leave of absence service, and out-of-state and in-state service, shall be paid by cash, personal check, cashier’s check, or money order. Direct rollovers from eligible retirement plans as described in Section 401(a)(31), Internal Revenue Code, will be accepted for the purchase of creditable service, however, such payment must be accompanied with a properly executed Form PRO-1 (Rev. 10/07), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan (401(a)Plan) Pretax Direct Rollover Form, herein adopted by reference. Such contributions shall be accompanied by a statement identifying the service for which payment is made; and shall be made in a lump sum for the total amount due or in annual payments of not less than \$100, except for the final payment if less than \$100, unless another method of payment is authorized in these rules. Interest will be added annually to any unpaid balance not received at the Division on or before June 30 as provided in Rule 60S-3.0035, F.A.C.

(5) No change.

(6) On and after July 1, 1972, all remittances (including member contributions, matching contributions and all interest thereon) made by a member for the purchase of current service, prior service, past service, military service, leave of absence service or out-of-state service credit shall be credited to the member’s account. A refund of a member’s retirement contributions at termination, as provided in subsection 60S-4.009(3)(~~5~~), F.A.C., shall include all such remittances made by the member that have been credited to his or her account. If requested, a member may receive at the time of his

or her retirement a refund of any contributions he or she made for the purchase of any additional service. A refund of member contributions cancels the member's right to any retirement service credit represented by the refunded contributions. A member is not entitled to a refund of contributions paid by an employer, except as provided in subparagraph 60S-3.004(1)(c)4., F.A.C.

(7) No change.

(8) In the case of a State University System faculty member who receives compensation from faculty practice funds or other sources that do not contribute to the FRS, and who receives a salary increase from sources that do contribute to the FRS that are greater than twice the appropriated average State University System faculty salary percentage increase for that year (where such increase is determined by the Division to have significant fiscal impact upon the FRS), an assessment payable to the FRS may be required of the State University.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 112.215(13), 121.031, 121.091(7), 121.71 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 8-26-81, 1-19-82, Formerly 22B-3.02, Amended 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-3.002, Amended 8-4-94, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-3.003 Retirement Contributions for Regular, Special Risk, Elected Officer, Special Risk Administrative Support and Senior Management Service Classes of the Pension and Investment Plans of the Florida Retirement System; Contributions for the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy; and Contributions for the Deferred Retirement Option Program.

The following tables state the required retirement and Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy contribution rates for members of the Florida Retirement System and their employers in terms of percentages of members' gross compensation as defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C.; however, effective July 1, 1990, retirement contributions shall not be made on fiscal year compensation in excess of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) section 401(a)(17) maximum as provided in the definition of Compensation in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C. Contribution rates for both members and employers have changed since they were originally established and these changes are reflected in these tables. Employer contribution rates for the Florida Retirement System Investment Plan are effective on and after July 1, 2002. Changes in the contribution rates are always effective with the first salary paid on or after the beginning date of a change. Contributions are required to be made or deducted as may be appropriate, each pay period.

Effective July 1, 2002, contribution rates represent a blended rate actuarially determined to combine the Pension Plan and Investment Plan rates, by class, (including the Investment Plan disability rates), reduced by application of funds from the surplus in the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund.

(1) Retirement contributions for Regular Class regular members are as follows:

Dates of Rate Changes	Members	Employers
December 1, 1970 through December 31, 1974, for state agencies, state universities, community colleges and district school boards	4%	4%
December 1, 1970 through September 30, 1975, for county agencies, cities and <u>independent</u> special districts	4%	4%
January 1, 1975 through September 30, 1978, for state agencies and state universities	0%	9%
January 1, 1975 through July 31, 1978, for community colleges and district school boards	0%	9%
October 1, 1975 through September 30, 1978, for county agencies, cities and <u>independent</u> special districts	0%	9%
August 1, 1978 through September 30, 1981, for community colleges and district school boards	0%	9.1%
October 1, 1978 through September 30, 1981, for state agencies, state universities, county agencies, cities, and <u>independent</u> special districts	0%	9.1%
October 1, 1981 through September 30, 1984	0%	10.93%
October 1, 1984 through September 30, 1986	0%	12.24%
October 1, 1986 through December 31, 1988	0%	13.14%
January 1, 1989 through December 31, 1989	0%	13.90%
January 1, 1990 through December 31, 1990	0%	14.66%
January 1, 1991 through December 31, 1991	0%	15.72%
January 1, 1992 through December 31, 1992	0%	16.51%
January 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993	0%	17.27%
January 1, 1994 through December 31, 1994	0%	17.10%
January 1, 1995 through December 31, 1995	0%	16.91%
January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996	0%	17.00%

July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1998	0%	16.77%
July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999	0%	15.51%
July 1, 1999 through June 30, 2000	0%	9.21%
July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2001	0%	8.11%
July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2002	0%	6.09%
<u>Effective July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2003</u>	0%	4.50%
<u>July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004</u>	0%	6.18%
<u>July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005</u>	0%	6.20%
<u>July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006</u>	0%	6.67%
<u>July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2010</u>	0%	8.69%
<u>Effective July 1, 2010</u>	0%	9.63%

December 31, 1995		
January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996	0%	26.84%
July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1998	0%	26.44%
July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999	0%	24.38%
July 1, 1999 through June 30, 2000	0%	20.22%
July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2001	0%	19.25%
July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2002	0%	17.23%
<u>Effective July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2003</u>	0%	14.75%
<u>July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004</u>	0%	17.32%
<u>July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005</u>	0%	17.34%
<u>July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006</u>	0%	17.37%
<u>July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2010</u>	0%	19.76%
<u>Effective July 1, 2010</u>	0%	22.11%

(2) Retirement contributions for Special Risk Class special risk members are as follows:

Dates of Rate Changes	Members	Employers
December 1, 1970 through September 30, 1974	6%	6%
October 1, 1974 through December 31, 1974, for state agencies, state universities, community colleges, and district school boards	8%	8%
October 1, 1974 through September 30, 1975, for county agencies, cities and <u>independent</u> special districts	8%	8%
January 1, 1975 through September 30, 1978, for state agencies, state universities, community colleges, and district school boards	0%	13%
October 1, 1975 through September 30, 1978, for county agencies, cities, and <u>independent</u> special districts	0%	13%
October 1, 1978 through September 30, 1981	0%	13.95%
October 1, 1981 through September 30, 1984	0%	13.91%
October 1, 1984 through September 30, 1986	0%	14.67%
October 1, 1986 through December 31, 1988	0%	15.11%
January 1, 1989 through December 31, 1989	0%	17.50%
January 1, 1990 through December 31, 1990	0%	19.90%
January 1, 1991 through December 31, 1991	0%	25.52%
January 1, 1992 through December 31, 1992	0%	26.35%
January 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993	0%	27.14%
January 1, 1994 through December 31, 1994	0%	27.03%
January 1, 1995 through	0%	26.83%

(3) Retirement contributions for Special Risk Administrative Support Class members are as follows:

Dates of Rate Changes	Members	Employers
July 1, 1982 through September 30, 1984	0%	11.14%
October 1, 1984 through September 30, 1986	0%	13.09%
October 1, 1986 through December 31, 1988	0%	15.44%
January 1, 1989 through December 31, 1989	0%	14.76%
January 1, 1990 through December 31, 1990	0%	14.09%
January 1, 1991 through December 31, 1991	0%	20.16%
January 1, 1992 through December 31, 1992	0%	19.51%
January 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993	0%	18.83%
January 1, 1994 through December 31, 1994	0%	18.59%
January 1, 1995 through December 31, 1995	0%	17.81%
January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996	0%	17.80%
July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1998	0%	17.20%
July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999	0%	14.64%
July 1, 1999 through June 30, 2000	0%	11.53%
July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2001	0%	10.64%
July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2002	0%	8.62%
<u>Effective July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2003</u>	0%	5.30%
<u>July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004</u>	0%	8.71%
<u>July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005</u>	0%	8.73%
<u>July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006</u>	0%	8.76%
<u>July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2010</u>	0%	11.39%
<u>Effective July 1, 2010</u>	0%	12.10%

(4) Retirement contributions for Elected Officers' Class members are as follows:

Dates of Rate Changes	Members	Employers
July 1, 1972 through September 30, 1977		
Legislators	8%	8%

All Other Members	8%	8%	December 31, 1993		
October 1, 1977 through			Justice, Judge	0%	29.91%
September 30, 1978			County Elected Officers	0%	25.84%
Legislators	8%	8%	All Other Members	0%	22.14%
All Other Members	4%	12%	January 1, 1994 through		
October 1, 1978 through			December 31, 1994		
September 30, 1979			Justice, Judge	0%	30.52%
Legislators	8%	10.57%	County Elected Officers	0%	26.07%
All Other Members	4%	16.78%	All Other Members	0%	22.65%
October 1, 1979 through			January 1, 1995 through		
September 30, 1981			December 31, 1995		
Legislators	8%	10.57%	Justice, Judge	0%	30.21%
Governor, Lt. Governor,	4%	16.78%	County Elected Officers	0%	27.48%
Cabinet Officer			All Other Members	0%	22.80%
All Other Members	0%	20.78%	January 1, 1996 through		
July 1, 1981 through June 30, 1984			June 30, 1996		
County Elected Officers	0%	19.30%	Justice, Judge	0%	30.15%
July 1, 1984 through			County Elected Officers	0%	27.54%
September 30, 1984			All Other Members	0%	22.90%
County Elected Officers	0%	20.25%	July 1, 1996 through June 30, 1998		
October 1, 1981 through			Justice, Judge	0%	29.55%
September 30, 1984			County Elected Officers	0%	27.33%
Legislators	0%	19.30%	All Other Members	0%	23.07%
Governor, Lt. Governor,	0%	21.03%	July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999		
Cabinet Officer			Justice, Judge	0%	27.21%
State Attorney, Public	0%	20.95%	County Elected Officers	0%	26.99%
Defender			All Other Members	0%	22.33%
Justice or Judge	0%	22.55%	July 1, 1999 through June 30, 2000		
October 1, 1984 through			Justice, Judge	0%	20.48%
September 30, 1986			County Elected Officers	0%	17.05%
Justice or Judge	0%	21.79%	All Other Members	0%	14.31%
County Elected Officers	0%	16.97%	July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2001		
All Other Members	0%	10.98%	Justice, Judge	0%	19.38%
October 1, 1986 through			County Elected Officers	0%	15.95%
December 31, 1988			All Other Members	0%	13.21%
Justice or Judge	0%	20.94%	July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2002		
County Elected Officers	0%	17.19%	Justice, Judge	0%	17.35%
All Other Members	0%	11.50%	County Elected Officers	0%	13.93%
January 1, 1989 through			All Other Members	0%	11.19%
December 31, 1989			<u>Effective July 1, 2002 through</u>		
Justice, Judge	0%	22.58%	<u>June 30, 2003</u>		
County Elected Officers	0%	18.44%	Justice, Judge	0%	14.60%
All Other Members	0%	13.70%	County Elected Officers	0%	10.60%
January 1, 1990 through			All Other Members	0%	8.15%
December 31, 1990			<u>July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004</u>		
Justice, Judge	0%	24.22%	<u>Justice, Judge</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>17.44%</u>
County Elected Officers	0%	19.71%	<u>County Elected Officers</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>14.02%</u>
All Other Members	0%	15.91%	<u>All Other Members</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>11.28%</u>
January 1, 1991 through			<u>July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005</u>		
December 31, 1991			<u>Justice, Judge</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>17.46%</u>
Justice, Judge	0%	26.63%	<u>County Elected Officers</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>14.04%</u>
County Elected Officers	0%	23.32%	<u>All Other Members</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>11.30%</u>
All Other Members	0%	17.73%	<u>July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006</u>		
January 1, 1992 through			<u>Justice, Judge</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>17.49%</u>
December 31, 1992			<u>County Elected Officers</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>14.07%</u>
Justice, Judge	0%	28.27%	<u>All Other Members</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>11.33%</u>
County Elected Officers	0%	24.59%	<u>July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2010</u>		
All Other Members	0%	19.94%	<u>Justice, Judge</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>18.40%</u>
January 1, 1993 through			<u>County Elected Officers</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>15.37%</u>

<u>All Other Members</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>13.32%</u>
<u>Effective July 1, 2010</u>		
<u>Justice, Judge</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>20.65%</u>
<u>County Elected Officers</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>17.50%</u>
<u>All Other Members</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>15.20%</u>

(5) Retirement contributions for Senior Management Service Class members are as follows:

Dates of Rate Changes	Members	Employers
February 1, 1987 through December 31, 1988	0%	13.88%
January 1, 1989 through December 31, 1989	0%	14.95%
January 1, 1990 through December 31, 1990	0%	16.04%
January 1, 1991 through December 31, 1991	0%	18.39%
January 1, 1992 through December 31, 1992	0%	19.48%
January 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993	0%	20.55%
January 1, 1994 through December 31, 1994	0%	23.07%
January 1, 1995 through December 31, 1995	0%	23.88%
January 1, 1996 through June 30, 1996	0%	24.14%
July 1, 1996, through June 30, 1998	0%	21.58%
July 1, 1998 through June 30, 1999	0%	23.10%
July 1, 1999 through June 30, 2000	0%	11.19%
July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2001	0%	10.09%
July 1, 2001 through June 30, 2002	0%	8.07%
<u>Effective July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2003</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>4.80%</u>
<u>July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>8.16%</u>
<u>July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>8.18%</u>
<u>July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>9.29%</u>
<u>July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2010</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>11.96%</u>
<u>Effective July 1, 2010</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>13.43%</u>

(6) Retirement contributions for any retiree reemployed in a regularly established position by an employer, except for a retiree who is elected or appointed to a position eligible for the Elected Officers' Class, shall be as follows:

(a) Prior to July 1, 1991, the contributions for such retiree shall be equal to the unfunded actuarial accrued liability portion of the employer contribution required for Regular Class members.

Dates of Rate Changes	Members	Employers
July 1, 1985 through September 30, 1986	0%	5.71%
October 1, 1986 through December 31, 1988	0%	5.91%
January 1, 1989 through December 31, 1989	0%	3.37%
January 1, 1990 through December 31, 1990	0%	4.13%
January 1, 1991 through June 30, 1991	0%	4.81%

(b) Effective July 1, 1991 and through June 30, 2010, such retiree shall be enrolled as a renewed member and the contributions shall be equal to the total contributions required for members of the Regular Class or the Elected Officers' Class, as appropriate. Effective July 1, 1997 and through June 30, 2010, a retiree whose position is assigned to the Senior Management Service Class shall have renewed membership in the Senior Management Service Class and the contributions shall be equal to the total contributions required for Senior Management Service Class members.

(c) On and after July 1, 2010, any retiree of a state administered retirement system who is initially reemployed in a regularly established position shall not be eligible for renewed membership and the retirement contributions for such reemployed retirees shall be equal to the unfunded actuarial accrued liability portion of the employer contribution required for other active members of the FRS.

(7) In addition to the above retirement contributions, contributions for the following shall be made for all active members, and reemployed retired members initially reemployed prior to July 1, 2010, and for all Deferred Retirement Option Program participants of state-administered retirement systems. Reemployed retirees initially reemployed in a regularly established position on or after July 1, 2010, shall only be subject to the additional contributions as provided in paragraph (a):

(a) Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy:

Dates of Rate Change	Members	Employers
October 1, 1987 through December 31, 1988	0%	0.24%
January 1, 1989 through December 1, 1993	0%	0.48%
January 1, 1994, through December 1, 1994	0%	0.56%
January 1, 1995 through June 30, 1998	0%	0.66%
July 1, 1998 through June 30, 2001	0%	0.94%
Effective July 1, 2001	0%	1.11%

(b) For transfer to the State Board of Administration's Administrative Expense Trust Fund to offset the costs of implementing the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program:

July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2002	0%	0.10%
<u>Effective July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2003</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>0.15%</u>
<u>July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>0.10%</u>
<u>July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2005</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>0.08%</u>
<u>Effective July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2010</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>0.05%</u>
<u>July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2014</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>0.03%</u>
<u>Effective July 1, 2014</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>0.04%</u>

(8) Retirement contributions for all participants in the Deferred Retirement Option Program are as follows:

July 1, 1998 through June 30, 2002	0%	11.56%
<u>Effective July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2005</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>8.00%</u>
<u>July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>8.22%</u>
<u>July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2010</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>9.80%</u>
<u>Effective July 1, 2010</u>	<u>0%</u>	<u>11.14%</u>

Rulemaking Specific Authority 112.363(7), 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 112.363, 121.052, 121.055, 121.071, 121.091, 121.122, 121.30, 121.70, 121.71, 121.72 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 7-1-79, 8-26-81, 10-12-82, 11-6-84, 9-24-85, Formerly 22B-3.03, Amended 1-12-87, 5-18-88, 2-7-89, 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-3.003, Amended 8-4-94, 3-12-96, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-3.004 Retirement Contributions for Past Service Credit.

The cost of claiming past service credit varies with the kind of past service credit claimed. Each of the contribution formulas below corresponds to a Rule of 60S-2.003, F.A.C., which authorizes retirement credit for a particular kind of past service credit.

(1) Past service claimed in accordance with subsection 60S-2.003(1), F.A.C., shall require a contribution as follows:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The payment of contributions for past service credit under this subsection shall be subject to the following additional requirements:

1. A city, independent ~~or~~ special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center may elect to make the required contributions for past service for its members; however, it must provide past service for all members on an equal basis.

2. A member may make the required contributions for any past service not provided by his or her employer.

3. The cost of past service purchased by an employing agency for its employees may be amortized over such period of time as provided in the agreement and as calculated in accordance with paragraph 60S-1.007(5)(f), F.A.C., not to exceed 15 years.

4. The retirement account of each member for whom past service is being provided by his or her employer shall be credited with all past service his or her employer agrees to purchase as soon as the agreement between the employer and the Division is executed. Each member's account shall also be posted with the total contribution his or her employer agrees to make in his or her behalf for past service earned prior to October 1, 1975, except those contributions representing the employer's matching share and the compound interest calculation on the total contribution. However, no portion of any contributions paid by an employer for past service credit earned on and after October 1, 1975, shall be posted to a member's account. A refund of contributions payable after an employer has made a written agreement to purchase past service for employees of the covered group shall include contributions for past service which are posted to a member's account. Contributions for past service earned on and after October 1, 1975, are not refundable.

(d) The required contributions for additional Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ past service credit purchased in accordance with paragraph 60S-2.003(1)(g), F.A.C., shall be equal to the

difference in the contributions paid under (a) through (c) above and the contributions required at the Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ contribution rate in effect at the time the member requests to purchase the service and the account is audited to determine the additional costs, plus interest compounded annually as provided in (b).

(2) through (5) No change.

(6) Past service claimed in accordance with subsection 60S-2.006(6), F.A.C., for service with the City of Jacksonville prior to July 1, 2004, that may be claimed for retirement credit by employees of the Fourth Judicial Circuit who were in an employee-employer relationship with the City of Jacksonville on June 30, 2004, and who became employees of the State Courts System on July 1, 2004, as a result of the implementation of Revision 7 to Article V of the State Constitution shall require contributions equal to the combined employee and employer contributions required for the class of membership under which the service was rendered during the period of such employment, plus interest from the fiscal year of the service claimed as provided in paragraphs 60S-3.004(1)(a) and (b)5., F.A.C. The contributions and interest due may be paid by either the member or the prior employer on behalf of the member.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.081(1) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 1-19-82, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-3.04, Amended 2-7-89, 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-3.004, Amended _____.

60S-3.006 Retirement Contributions for Military Service Credit.

(1) For Military Leave of Absence – The required contributions for active duty military leaves of absence in accordance with subsection 60S-2.005(1), F.A.C., shall equal:

(Contribution rate × months claimed × compensation) + interest.

Where:

The “contribution rate” is the total employee and employer contribution rates in effect during the time of the military service for the class of membership to which the member belonged immediately prior to the leave of absence; the employer contributions shall be paid by the employer if the member was released from military service on or after December 3, 1974, or by the member if he or she was released from military service prior to December 3, 1974, and, if applicable, any employee contributions shall be paid by the employee.

The “months claimed” is the total number of months of military service credit claimed;

The “compensation” is the member's monthly rate of compensation that would have been received if working during in effect immediately prior to the leave of absence; and

The “interest” shall be as provided in Rule 60S-3.0035, F.A.C., beginning with the fiscal year of the military service claimed.

(2) For Wartime Military Service – A member who wishes to claim retirement credit for wartime military service in accordance with subsection 60S-2.005(2), F.A.C., may make the required contributions for such service only after he or she has satisfied the service requirements for vesting. Such military service shall be creditable as Regular Class ~~regular~~ service only.

(a) The required contributions for such wartime military service, except for persons who retired prior to July 1, 1985 as provided in paragraph 60S-3.006(2)(b), F.A.C., shall equal:
Contribution rate × years claimed × compensation + interest.

Where:

The contribution rate shall equal 4%;

The “years claimed” are the total number of years and portion of years claimed as provided in paragraph 60S-2.005(2)(j), F.A.C.;

The “compensation” is the actual compensation received during the period commencing July 1, 1945 and ending on the date the member completes one full year of creditable service subsequent to July 1, 1945; and

The interest shall be as provided in Rule 60S-3.0035, F.A.C., beginning with the first fiscal year in which the member earned creditable service subsequent to July 1, 1945.

(b) No change.

(3) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.111 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 12-31-74, 8-26-81, 2-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-3.06, Amended 2-4-86, 2-7-89, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-3.006, Amended 3-18-93, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-3.007 Retirement Contributions for Leave of Absence Credit.

The required contributions for any member who is eligible to claim creditable service for leaves of absence in accordance with Rule 60S-2.006, F.A.C., shall be determined as follows:

(1) Retirement contributions for leaves of absence credit are 8 percent for leaves of absence prior to January 1, 1975, 9 percent for leaves of absence from January 1, 1975 until June 30, 1980, and for leaves of absence after July 1, 1980 all leaves must be purchased at the combined rate of employee and employer contributions required for the class of membership under which the leave was granted. However, service credit purchased prior to July 1, 1980 for leave of absence in a class of membership other than the Regular Class of ~~regular~~ membership ~~class~~ may be purchased by paying the appropriate additional contributions. The member shall receive creditable service for such leave in the membership class from which it was granted. The appropriate percentage is then multiplied by the number of months of the leave of absence multiplied by the rate of the member’s monthly compensation in effect

immediately prior to the commencement of the leave of absence, plus interest from the fiscal year of the leave of absence as provided in Rule 60S-3.0035, F.A.C.

(2) The required contributions to claim full retirement credit as allowed in subsection 60S-2.006(3), F.A.C., for a leave of absence during which the member received partial salary (which was paid from a salary fund and on which retirement contributions were paid) shall be determined as follows:

Contributions shall be charged for any portion of the leave of absence on which retirement contributions have not already been paid. The rate of contributions shall be 8 percent for leaves of absence prior to January 1, 1975, 9 percent for leaves of absence from January 1, 1975 until June 30, 1980 and for leaves of absence after July 1, 1980 all leaves must be purchased at the combined rate of employee and employer contributions required for the class of membership under which the leave was granted. However, service credit purchased prior to July 1, 1980 for a leave of absence in a class of membership other than the Regular Class of ~~regular~~ membership ~~class~~, may be purchased by paying the appropriate additional contributions. The member shall receive creditable service for such leave in the membership class from which it was granted. The appropriate percentage is then multiplied by the number of months of the leave of absence, multiplied by the rate of monthly compensation in effect immediately prior to the commencement of the leave of absence. The amount of contributions already paid shall be subtracted from the total amount due and interest on the remaining amount due shall be charged from the fiscal year of the leave of absence as provided in Rule 60S-3.0035, F.A.C.

(3) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.121(4) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 7-1-79, 8-26-81, Formerly 22B-3.07, Amended 2-7-89, Formerly 22B-3.007, Amended _____.

60S-3.010 Contributions for Social Security.

(1) Social Security contributions shall be required of each member of the Florida Retirement System and each reemployed retired member who renews membership as provided in Rules 60S-1.0045 and subsection 1.0055(4), F.A.C., as well as for any reemployed retiree who is initially reemployed in a regularly established position on or after July 1, 2010. Contributions shall be withheld from the member’s salary each pay period in the amount required for Social Security coverage as provided by the Federal Social Security Act.

(2) Each employer shall contribute an amount equal to the total of his or her employees’ contributions for Social Security each pay period.

(3) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.071 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 10-12-82, 9-24-85, Formerly 22B-3.10, Amended 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-3.010, Amended 3-18-93,_____.

60S-3.011 Payment of Contributions.

(1) All retirement contributions for current services rendered by covered employees of all state-administered retirement plans shall be paid to the Division of Retirement. The required contribution rate shall be the rate in effect at the time the member is paid, as determined by his or her class of membership. Retirement contributions and accompanying payroll data for each payroll period are due and payable each month no later than the 5th working day of the month following the month in which covered wages are paid.

(2) through (4) No change.

(5) If the agency fails to pay the total amount due within 120 calendar days from the date of the Division’s invoice, the following action shall be taken:

(a) In the case of a state agency, the Administrator shall notify the Governor and certify the amounts due to the Director of Planning and Budgeting, Office of the Governor. If arrangements cannot be made to pay the amount due, then the amount shall be appropriated from the General Revenue Fund of the state as prescribed in Section 121.061, F.S.

(b) In the case of a county, city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center the Administrator shall request the Department of Banking and Finance or the Department of Revenue to withhold the amount owed to the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund or the Social Security Contribution Trust Fund from any State funds allocated to the county, city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center. If existing funds do not equal the amount owed to the trust funds, the Administrator shall certify to the local tax collector the amount owed, and the tax collector shall deduct the amount so certified from any taxes collected for the employer and pay the amount to the proper trust fund.

(6) through (9) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.052(7), 121.055(3), 121.061, 121.071(3), (5), 121.091(7), (9), 121.113, 121.71, 121.72, 121.73, 121.74, 121.75, 121.76 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 7-1-79, 1-19-82, 10-12-82, 11-6-84, 9-24-85, Formerly 22B-3.11, Amended 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-3.011, Amended 12-30-99, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-3.013 Retirement Contributions for Upgraded Previous Service Credit.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) The required contributions for a member of the Special Risk Class to claim retirement credit in such class for previous service in fire prevention or firefighter training within the

purview of the Class as specified in subsection 60S-2.013(6)(4), F.A.C., shall be equal to the difference between the total employee and employer contribution rate actually paid and the total contribution rate required at the time the service was rendered based on the gross salary received, plus interest as provided in Rule 60S-3.0035, F.A.C., from the first fiscal year of the service being claimed. The required contributions may be paid by the member’s employer on behalf of the member.

(5) The required contributions for a member of the Special Risk Class to claim retirement credit in such class for previous service as an emergency medical technician or paramedic within the purview of the Class as specified in subsection 60S-2.013(7), F.A.C., shall be equal to the difference between the total employee and employer contribution rate actually paid and the total contribution rate required at the time the service was rendered based on the gross salary received, plus interest as provided in Rule 60S-3.0035, F.A.C., from the first fiscal year of the service being claimed. The required contributions may be paid by the member’s employer on behalf of the member.

(6) The required contributions for a member of the Special Risk Class to claim retirement credit in such class for previous service in a forensic discipline within the purview of the Class as specified in subsection 60S-2.013(8), F.A.C., shall be an amount representing the actuarial accrued liability for the difference in the accrual value during the affected period of service as provided in Section 121.052(9)(c), F.S. Local government employers may purchase the upgraded service on behalf of the member if that member has been employed by that employer for at least three years.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.0515, 121.052, 121.055 FS. History—New 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 1-16-77, 11-6-84, Formerly 22B-3.13, Amended 2-4-86, 3-11-87, 9-5-90, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-3.013, Amended 8-4-94, 4-5-95, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-3.015 Retirement Contributions for Retroactive Special Risk Class Service.

The required contributions for claiming Special Risk Class ~~special-risk~~ service retroactively by a member removed from the Special Risk Class effective October, 1978 as provided in subsection 60S-1.005(6), F.A.C., shall be equal to the difference in the contributions that were paid during the period and the contributions required for Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ members during this period, plus 6.5% interest thereon compounded each June 30 from date of service until date of payment.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.0515 FS. History—New 11-6-84, Formerly 22B-3.15, 22B-3.015, Amended_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Sarabeth Snuggs, Director, Division of Retirement

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John P. Miles, Secretary, Department of Management Services
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 18, 2010, Vol. 36/24

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
60S-4.001	Scope and Purpose
60S-4.002	Statements of Policy
60S-4.003	Retirement Eligibility
60S-4.0035	Retirement Application and Effective Retirement Date
60S-4.004	Benefits Payable Upon Normal Retirement
60S-4.005	Benefits Payable Upon Early Retirement
60S-4.006	Benefits Based on Dual Retirement Ages
60S-4.007	Benefits Payable for Disability Retirement
60S-4.008	Benefits Payable Upon Death
60S-4.009	Benefits Payable After Termination
60S-4.010	Retirement Benefit Payment Options
60S-4.011	Designation of Beneficiary
60S-4.012	Employment After Retirement
60S-4.015	Deductions from Monthly Benefits
60S-4.021	Forfeiture of Benefits

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect are to amend Division of Retirement rules to correspond with statutory changes up through the 2010 Legislative session and delete obsolete language.

SUMMARY: These amendments reflect the statutory changes occurring in Chapter 2009-209, Laws of Florida, regarding: the requirements for “termination of employment”; and limitations on reemployment and renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System; and incorporate by reference one new Division form, one State Board of Administration form and 37 Division Forms previously adopted by reference in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No State of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. The agency has determined that this rule shall not have an effect on small businesses as defined in Section 288.703, Florida Statutes, nor on small counties or small cities as defined in Section 120.52, Florida statutes. Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 121.031, 121.052, 121.4501(8)(a) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 61.1301, 112.18, 112.181, 112.362, 112.65, 121.021, 121.031, 121.046(4), 121.051(2), 121.052, 121.053, 121.055, 121.091, 121.23, 121.450 (16), 121.591(2), 222.21, 238.181 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET
 PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director’s Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

60S-4.001 Scope and Purpose.

This chapter sets forth the rules and regulations providing for benefits for members of the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan administered by the Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services unless otherwise specifically stated.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.031 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-74, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Formerly 22B-4.01, Amended 9-8-92, Formerly 22B-4.001,_____.

60S-4.002 Statements of Policy.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) After a retirement benefit payment has been cashed or deposited or after a DROP payment is credited:

(a) No additional service, which remained unclaimed at retirement, may be claimed or purchased;

(b) The selection of an option may not be changed; and

(c) The type of retirement, i.e. normal, early, or disability, may not be changed, except for the following:

1. When a member recovers from disability and subsequently applies for normal or early retirement as provided in subsections 60S-4.007(8)(7) and (9)(8), F.A.C.,

2. When a member begins receiving normal or early service retirement benefits while appealing a denial of his or her application for disability retirement and such disability application is subsequently approved as provided in paragraph 60S-4.007(3)(g), F.A.C., or

3. When an elected officer requests, prior to July 1, 1990, that his or her benefit be suspended and recalculated as provided in paragraph 60S-4.012(6)(b), F.A.C.

(5) Any person who retires under the noncontributory retirement plan for state officers and employees established by Section 112.05, F.S., shall forfeit all rights and benefits under the Florida Retirement System, except for a refund of his or her accumulated contributions.

(6) No change.

(7) A person who is retired under the Florida Retirement System may not have his or her monthly retirement benefit reduced for the purpose of preserving his or her eligibility for pensions or benefits under some other state or federal program. A person may refuse application of the minimum benefit as provided in Rule 60S-4.0025, F.A.C., or the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy as provided in Rule 60S-4.020, F.A.C.

(8) Immediately upon reducing, suspending or terminating a benefit or, if possible, prior to taking such action, the Division may give notice in writing to each person known by the Division to be substantially affected by the action. The notice shall:

(a) State the nature of the action and the reason for it.

(b) State that a person who does not agree with the action may request a hearing on the decision by filing, within 21 days of receipt of the notice, a petition prepared in accordance with Rule 28-106.201 ~~60S-10.003~~, F.A.C.

(c) State that a person who does not file a petition within 21 days of receipt of the notice shall have waived his or her right to request a hearing on the decision.

(d) Include a reference to this rule and a copy of Rule 28-106.201 ~~60S-10.003~~, F.A.C.

(9) To ensure the removal of names of deceased retirees or beneficiaries from the benefit payroll, the Division shall, at least once each year, conduct an audit of the benefit payroll to determine that the persons to whom benefits are being paid are still living. The benefit payment recipient may be sent Form SAPS (Rev. 10/02), Florida Retirement System Statement Attesting to Payee Status, or Form AAPS (Rev. 08/00), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Affidavit Attesting to Payee Status, both of which are herein incorporated by reference, and requires the still living benefit payee recipient to sign and return the form to the Division. The Division shall suspend the benefits payable to any retiree or beneficiary not confirmed to be living.

(10) It is the responsibility of a payee to notify the Division of any change in his or her address. The Division may suspend benefit payments to a payee if correspondence sent to the payee's mailing address is returned due to incorrect address. Benefit payments will be resumed upon notification to the Division of the payee's new address.

(11) No change.

(12) A member or payee may designate an attorney in fact to handle his or her affairs by executing a power of attorney. To establish a power of attorney with the Division, a copy of the original power of attorney must be submitted with the member's or payee's signature properly witnessed, and must designate the authorized attorney in fact to act on his or her behalf. The document must clearly state the specified acts to be performed on behalf of the member or payee. A power of attorney may be revoked by either written notification from the member or payee, death of the member or payee, or acts deemed to be inconsistent with authority. Once a power of attorney has been filed with the Division, the Division must be notified if the power of attorney is ever revoked.

(13) No change.

(14) Any state warrant issued by the Chief Financial Officer ~~Comptroller~~ for the payment of retirement benefits from the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund, or any other pension trust fund administered by the Division, that is not presented for payment within 1 year after the last day of the month in which it was originally issued, shall be cancelled by the Chief Financial Officer ~~Comptroller~~ and the amount of the warrant credited to the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund or other pension trust fund administered by the Division, as appropriate. The Division may issue a replacement warrant when it deems appropriate.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.052, 121.055 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-20-74, Amended 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 7-1-79, 12-22-80, 8-26-81, 2-6-84, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22-2.02, Amended 2-4-86, 3-11-87, 9-5-90, Formerly 22-B-2.002, Amended 2-24-99, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-4.003 Retirement Eligibility.

(1) An FRS Pension Plan member shall be eligible to receive a retirement benefit based on age and service provided:

(a) He or she terminates all employment with all employers participating in the Florida Retirement System as provided in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C., (termination) or subsection (3) of this Rule, except as provided in subsection 60S-4.012(8), F.A.C., and

(b) He or she satisfies vesting requirements by completing creditable service as follows:

1. Six 6 years of creditable service, subject to the following:

a. A member who is employed in a covered position on July 1, 2001 or a new member who begins employment in a covered position on or after July 1, 2001 shall satisfy the vesting requirement for retirement eligibility upon completion of a total of 6 years of creditable service in any membership class;

b. A member with service before July 1, 2001 who is not employed on July 1, 2001 must be employed in a regularly established position for one work year after that date to become eligible for 6-year vesting as provided in sub-subparagraph a.

However, when such member completes the vesting requirements in sub-subparagraphs 60S-4.003(1)(b)2.a.-c., F.A.C., prior to completing the one work year, such member shall be vested.

2. No change.

(c) He or she attains one of the following:

1. Normal retirement age with benefits payable according to Rule 60S-4.004, F.A.C., as follows:

a. He or she has completed 30 years of creditable service, regardless of age; (all creditable service, including military service is applicable); or

b. All of his or her creditable service is in the Regular Class, the Elected Officers' Class, and/or the Senior Management Service Class, and he or she has reached age 62; or

c. All of his or her creditable service is Special Risk Class service or a combination of Special Risk Class service and Special Risk Administrative Support Class service, State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System high-hazard service, Highway Patrol Pension System service, or service as provided in Rule 60S-2.0041, F.A.C., and:

(I) He or she has satisfied vesting requirements in paragraph (b) but has completed less than 25 years of such creditable service and has reached age 55; or

(II) He or she has completed 25 years of such creditable service that includes credit for military service, and has reached age 52; or

(III) He or she has completed 25 years of such creditable service, regardless of age.

2. Early retirement age with benefits payable in accordance with Rule 60S-4.005, F.A.C., as follows:

a. All of his or her creditable service is in the Regular Class, the Elected Officers' Class, and/or the Senior Management Service Class and he or she has neither reached age 62, nor completed 30 years of service; or

b. All of his or her creditable service is in the Special Risk Class or in a combination of the Special Risk Class and the Special Risk Administrative Support Class, the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System High-Hazard service, the Highway Patrol Pension System, or service as provided in Rule 60S-2.0041, F.A.C., and:

(I) He or she has satisfied vesting requirements in paragraph (b) but has completed less than 25 years of such creditable service and has not reached age 55, or

(II) He or she has completed 25 years of such creditable service that includes credit for military service, but has not reached age 52.

3. Dual retirement ages with benefits payable in accordance with Rule 60S-4.006, F.A.C., when he or she has creditable service as a Regular Class, Elected Officers' Class

or Senior Management Service Class member; and as a Special Risk Class member, or a Special Risk Class member with high-hazard or Highway Patrol service.

(2) No change.

(3) Any member who meets the eligibility requirements under subsection 60S-4.003(1), F.A.C., and who is a participant in the State University System Optional Retirement Program, the Community College Optional Retirement Program or the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program shall not be eligible to receive a Florida Retirement System retirement benefit until he or she terminates the employment which qualifies him or her for participation in the State University System Optional Retirement Program, the Community College Optional Retirement Program or the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program.

(4) A member of the State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System shall be eligible to receive a retirement benefit in accordance with Chapter 122 of the Florida Statutes.

(5) A member of the Teachers' Retirement System shall be eligible to receive a retirement benefit in accordance with Chapter 238 of the Florida Statutes.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.051(2), 121.052(3), 121.055 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 7-1-79, 9-9-82, 2-6-84, Formerly 22B-4.03, Amended 2-4-86, 1-12-87, 9-5-90, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-4.003, Amended 3-18-93, 1-25-94, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-4.0035 Retirement Application and Effective Retirement Date.

(1) It shall be the responsibility of the FRS Pension Plan member, the State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System member, the Teachers' Retirement System member or the beneficiary of any such member in the event of the member's death, to make proper application to the Division for retirement benefits. A member may apply for retirement benefits within 6 months prior to his or her date of termination of employment. If a member terminates his or her employment and elects to defer his or her retirement to some future date, he or she may apply for deferred benefits up to 6 months prior to the date he or she desires his or her retirement to become effective. Application for retirement benefits shall be made as follows:

(a) Application for normal or early retirement for FRS Pension Plan members as provided in Rules 60S-4.004 and 60S-4.005, F.A.C., respectively shall be made on Form FR-11 (Rev. 11/10), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Service Retirement, herein adopted by reference; if by the beneficiary of a deceased member as provided in Rule 60S-4.008, F.A.C.;

(b) Application for normal or early retirement for members of the State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System as provided in Rules 60S-4.004 and

60S-4.005, F.A.C., respectively, shall be filed with the Division on Form SR-11 (Rev. 09/07), State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Application for Service Retirement, herein incorporated by reference;

(c) Application for normal or early retirement for members of the Teachers' Retirement System as provided in Rules 60S-4.004 and 60S-4.005, F.A.C., respectively, shall be filed with the Division on Form TR-11 (Rev. 09/07), Teachers' Retirement System Application for Service Retirement, herein incorporated by reference;

(d) Application for retirement benefits by a beneficiary of a deceased FRS Pension Plan member, State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System member or a Teachers' Retirement System member as provided in Rule 60S-4.008, F.A.C., shall be filed with the Division on Form FST-11b (Rev 12/02), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Monthly Retirement Benefits, herein incorporated by reference. Application for retirement benefits by the contingent beneficiary of a deceased FRS Pension Plan member who selected an Option 2 benefit as provided in Rule 60S-4.010, F.A.C., wherein the primary beneficiary receiving the Option 2 benefit dies within the 10-year period following the member's effective date of retirement, shall be filed with the Division on Form FST-11so2 (Rev. 12/02), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Survivor Benefits, herein adopted by reference;

(e) Application ~~or~~ for disability retirement as provided in Rule 60S-4.007, F.A.C., shall be made as follows: ~~Such forms are adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.~~

1. FRS Pension Plan members shall file such application for disability retirement with the Division on Form FR-13 (Rev. 07/06), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Disability Retirement, herein adopted by reference.

2. FRS Investment Plan members shall file such application for disability retirement with the Division on Form PR-13 (Rev. 07/06), Florida Retirement System Investment Plan Application for Disability Retirement, herein adopted by reference.

3. State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System members shall file such application for disability retirement with the Division on Form SR-13 (Rev. 09/71), State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Application for Disability Retirement, herein adopted by reference.

4. Teachers' Retirement System members shall file such application for disability retirement with the Division on Form TR-13 (Rev. 10/86), Teachers' Retirement System Employees' Retirement Sytem of Florida Application for Disability Retirement, herein adopted by reference.

(2) No change.

(3) The Division shall establish the member's effective retirement date as follows:

(a) For a FRS Pension Plan member who makes application for a normal or early retirement benefit as provided in Rule 60S-4.004 or 60S-4.005, F.A.C., or for a State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System member who makes application for a normal or early retirement benefit as provided in Section 122.08, F.S., or for a Teachers' Retirement System member who makes application for a normal or early retirement benefit as provided in Section 238.07, F.S., the effective retirement date shall be the first day of the month following the month in which the member's termination occurs, provided the Division receives such member's application for retirement no later than 30 calendar days after such termination. If a member fails to apply for retirement within 30 calendar days after termination or if the member chooses to defer his or her retirement to a later date, the effective retirement date shall be the first day of the month following the month in which the Division receives the member's application, or the first day of a later month specified by the member. However, for a member who retires under the provisions of the Deferred Retirement Option Program as provided in Chapter 60S-11, F.A.C., the member's effective date of retirement shall be the DROP begin date as defined in subsection 60S-11.001(5)(3), F.A.C.

(b) For a member who makes application for and is approved for disability retirement in accordance with Rule 60S-4.007, F.A.C., and for whom the Division has received from the employer the required documentation of the member's termination of employment, the effective retirement date shall be:

1. The first day of the month following the Division's receipt of the Disability Retirement application as provided in subsection (1), Form FR-13 when receipt is before the documented termination date, and provided no salary or workers' compensation payments are reported and no creditable service is granted past the month in which the Disability Retirement application Form FR-13 is received; or

2. The first day of the month following the documented termination date, provided the Division's receipt of the Disability Retirement application Form FR-13 is within 30 calendar days after such date; or

3. The first day of the month following the Division's receipt of the Disability Retirement application Form FR-13 when receipt is more than 30 calendar days after the documented termination date; or

4. The first day of the month following the last month for which salary is reported or creditable service is granted, provided the Division receives the Disability Retirement application Form FR-13 before such day and the documented termination date occurs after such day.

5. For a member who is receiving Workers' Compensation payments, the effective retirement date shall not be prior to the date the member reaches Maximum Medical Improvement (MMI), except when the member terminates employment prior to reaching MMI.

(c) For a member who dies prior to an effective retirement date established pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b), the effective retirement date shall be the first day of the month following the month in which the member died, provided the joint annuitant makes timely application for benefits; or, for a deferred monthly benefit, the first day of the month following the month in which the Division receives the joint annuitant's application for benefits, or the first day of a later month specified by the joint annuitant.

(4) When a member's application for retirement benefits is received, the Division will:

(a) Acknowledge the receipt of the member's application and advise him or her of any required information or documents that have not yet been received. Such information may include but is not limited to birthdate verification, beneficiary designation, option selection as required by Rule 60S-4.010, F.A.C., spousal acknowledgment by an FRS Pension member applying for retirement benefits or an Investment Plan participant applying for Disability retirement if option 1 or 2 is selected as required by subsection 60S-4.010(9), F.A.C., any payments due the member's account for purchase of additional service credit or a written statement from the member that the member does not wish to claim such service credit, and final certification of earnings.

(b) Establish the effective retirement date as provided in paragraph 60S-4.0035(3)(a), F.A.C., for normal or early retirement, or as provided in paragraph 60S-4.0035(3)(b), F.A.C., for disability retirement.

(c) No changes.

(d) If all the required information or documents have not been received by the Division after 3 follow-up notices have been sent to the member, a certified letter will be sent advising the member he or she has 21 days to provide such information or documents without loss of benefits.

(e) If all the required information or documents have not been received by the Division after the 21 days specified in the certified letter, a final agency action letter will be sent to the member advising the member that his or her application is canceled and he or she must reapply to receive benefits, with a new effective retirement date established upon application.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.4501(8)(a) FS. Law Implemented 112.65, 121.021, 121.091, 121.4501(16), 121.591(2) FS. History—New 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-4.0035, Amended 8-4-94, 12-12-96, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-4.004 Benefits Payable Upon Normal Retirement.

(1) The maximum normal monthly retirement benefit for a member who retires with creditable service only under the Florida Retirement System shall be calculated by multiplying

the years of service times the percentage value per year of service times the average final compensation, and dividing the product by 12, as follows:

(a) For a member who has creditable service only as a Regular Class ~~regular~~ member:

Normal Monthly Benefit =

$$\frac{A \times B \times AFC}{12}$$

Where:

A is –

1.60% at age 62

1.63% at age 63

1.65% at age 64

1.68% at age 65

or over, not to exceed 1.68% Or

1.60% with 30 years of creditable service

1.63% with 31 years of creditable service

1.65% with 32 years of creditable service

1.68% with 33 years of creditable service or more, not to exceed 1.68%

B is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable Regular Class ~~regular~~ service under the Florida Retirement System.

AFC (Average Final Compensation) is – The average annual compensation of the 5 highest years of compensation of creditable service prior to retirement, termination or death.

Average Final Compensation shall be figured in the following manner:

1. Identify the total salary paid for each July 1 through June 30 fiscal year.

2. Rank the fiscal years of salary in order from the highest annual salary to the lowest annual salary. In order to determine the annual salary for ranking purposes only, during a year for which a member receives less than a full year of creditable service, divide the actual salary received by the percentage of a year of creditable service earned for that year.

3. Total the actual salary received for the highest 5 years. If the highest 5 fiscal years do not constitute 5 complete years of creditable service, add the necessary percentage of the next highest fiscal years' salaries to complete 5 years of creditable service.

4. The average final compensation shall be the annual average of the total obtained in 3.

(b) For a member who has creditable service only as a Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ member:

Normal Monthly Benefit =

$$\frac{(\text{Product of } A_i \times B_i) \times AFC}{12}$$

as i varies from 1 to 6

Where A_i corresponds to B_i as follows:

A_1 is – 2% at any age.

B₁ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service under the Florida Retirement System prior to October 1, 1974 and all creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service performed October 1, 1978 through December 31, 1988.

A₂ is – 3% at any age.

B₂ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service under the Florida Retirement System October 1, 1974 through September 30, 1978 and all creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service performed on and after January 1, 1993; and for Special Risk Class members who retire on or after July 1, 2000, all creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service performed on and after October 1, 1974.

A₃ is – 2.2% at any age.

B₃ is – The sum of the complete year or fraction of the year of creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service under the Florida Retirement System January 1, 1989 through December 31, 1989.

A₄ is – 2.4% at any age.

B₄ is – The sum of the complete year or fraction of the year of creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service under the Florida Retirement System January 1, 1990 through December 31, 1990.

A₅ is – 2.6% at any age.

B₅ is – The sum of the complete year or fraction of the year of creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service under the Florida Retirement System January 1, 1991 through December 31, 1991.

A₆ is – 2.8% at any age.

B₆ is – The sum of the complete year or fraction of the year of creditable ~~Special Risk Class special-risk~~ service under the Florida Retirement System January 1, 1992 through December 31, 1992.

AFC (Average Final Compensation) is – Computed the same as in paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(a), F.A.C.

(c) For a member who has creditable service only as an Elected Officer member:

Normal Monthly Benefit =

$$\frac{(A \times B) + (A_1 \times B_1) \times AFC}{12}$$

Where:

A is – 3^{1/3}% for all service in the Elected Officers’ Class as a supreme court justice, district court of appeal judge, circuit court judge, or a county court judge, and all service as judge of a court of record, judge of a civil or criminal court of record, judge of any metropolitan court established pursuant to section 6, Article VIII of the State Constitution, judge of a small

claims court, or justice of the peace, for which additional credit in the Elected Officers’ Class has been purchased by a member of that class who is or was a justice or judge.

B is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service having the value of 31/3%.

A₁ is – 3% for all service in the Elected Officers’ Class other than that service represented by the alphabetic designation of A.

B₁ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service having the value of 3%.

AFC (Average Final Compensation) – is computed the same as in paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(a), F.A.C. If a member receives compensation as a member of the Elected Officers’ Class and at the same time receives compensation for employment in some other position covered by the Florida Retirement System, only the salary received as a member of the Elected Officers’ Class shall be used in the calculation of his or her average final compensation. If a member has received credit for upgraded previous Elected Officers’ Class service as provided in Rule 60S-2.013, F.A.C., and the upgraded service salary is greater than his or her actual salary, the upgraded service salary shall be used in the calculation of his or her average final compensation.

(d) For a member who has creditable service only as a senior management service member:

Normal Monthly Benefit =

$$\frac{A \times B \times AFC}{12}$$

Where:

A is – 2.00% at any age.

B is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service in the Senior Management Service Class on and after February 1, 1987.

AFC (Average Final Compensation) is – Computed the same as in paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(a), F.A.C.

(e) No change.

(2) The normal monthly retirement benefit for a member who retires with creditable service under the Florida Retirement System and the State and County Officers and Employees’ Retirement System, the Judicial Retirement System, the Teachers’ Retirement System, or the Highway Patrol Pension System shall be the sum of the normal monthly benefit for his or her creditable service under the Florida Retirement System as calculated in accordance with subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C., and the normal monthly benefit the member would have been eligible to receive for his or her creditable service under any of the other-named retirement systems, calculated as follows:

(a) A member with creditable service under the Florida Retirement System and Plan A of the State and County Officers and Employees’ Retirement System:

$$\text{Normal Monthly Benefit} = \frac{(A \times B \times \text{AFC}) + (A_1 \times B_1 \times \text{AFC})}{12}$$

Where:

A and B are – The same as in subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C.

A₁ is – 2%

B₁ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service under Plan A.

AFC is – The same average as calculated in paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(a), F.A.C.

(b) A member with creditable service under the Florida Retirement System and Plan B of the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System:

$$\text{Normal Monthly Benefit} = \frac{(A \times B \times \text{AFC}) + (A_2 \times B_2 \times \text{AFC})}{12}$$

Where:

A and B are – The same as in subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C.

A₂ is – 1.50%

B₂ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service under Plan B and by Metro Dade County employees employed on or after July 1, 1969.

AFC is – The same average as calculated in paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(a), F.A.C.

(c) A member with creditable service under the Florida Retirement System and the Judicial Retirement System:

$$\text{Normal Monthly Benefit} = \frac{(A \times B \times \text{AFC}) + (A_3 \times B_3 \times \text{AFC})}{12} \text{ plus } \frac{(A_4 \times B_4 \times \text{AFC}) + (A_5 \times B_5 \times \text{AFC})}{12}$$

Where:

A and B are – The same as in subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C.

A₃ is – 3.33%

B₃ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service as a justice or judge, except service as a supreme court justice, if the justice was in office on July 1, 1957.

A₄ is – 5%

B₄ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service as a supreme court justice if in office on July 1, 1957.

A₅ is – 2%

B₅ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service not as a justice or judge, and which the member was eligible to claim prior to transferring to the Florida Retirement System.

AFC is – The same average as calculated in subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C.

(d) A member with creditable service under the Florida Retirement System and Plan E of the Teachers' Retirement System:

$$\text{Normal Monthly Benefit} = \frac{(A \times B \times \text{AFC}) + (A_6 \times B_6 \times \text{AFC})}{12}$$

Where:

A and B are – The same as in subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C.

A₆ is – 2%

B₆ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service under Plan E of the Teachers' Retirement System:

AFC is – The same average as calculated in subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C.

(e) A member with creditable service under the Florida Retirement System and the Highway Patrol Pension System:

$$\text{Normal Monthly Benefit} = \frac{(A \times B \times \text{AFC}) + (A_7 \times B_7 \times \text{AFC})}{12} \text{ plus } \frac{(A_8 \times B_8 \times \text{AFC})}{12}$$

Where:

A₇ is – 2.50% for creditable service under the Highway Patrol Pension System not to exceed 20 years of credit, if the member was employed on or before June 30, 1953.

B₇ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service under the Highway Patrol Pension System not to exceed 20 years, if the member was employed on or before June 30, 1953.

A₈ is – 2%

B₈ is – The sum of all complete years and fractions of a year of creditable service under the Highway Patrol Pension System not valued at 2.50%.

AFC is – The same average as calculated in subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C.

(f) No change.

(g) The normal retirement benefit for a member of the State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of chapter 122, F.S., and the normal retirement benefit for a member of the Teachers' Retirement System shall be calculated in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 238, F.S.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.052, 121.055, 121.091(1) FS. History–New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 7-1-79, 2-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-4.04, Amended 1-12-87, 2-7-89, 9-5-90, 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-4.004, Amended 8-13-03.

60S-4.005 Benefits Payable Upon Early Retirement.

(1)(a) Upon proper application to the Administrator, an FRS Pension Plan member may receive an early retirement benefit if he or she has satisfied the service requirements for vesting as provided in paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(b), F.A.C., but he or she has not reached his or her normal retirement age.

(b)1. Upon proper application to the Administrator, a State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System member other than a high hazard member may receive an early retirement benefit if he or she has satisfied the requirements of Section 122.08(2), F.S., but he or she has not reached the age and service requirements for normal retirement as provided in Section 122.08(1), F.S.

2. Upon proper application to the Administrator, a State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System high hazard member may receive an early retirement benefit if he or she has satisfied the requirements of Section 122.34(4), F.S., but he or she has not reached the age and service requirements for normal retirement as provided in Section 122.34(3), F.S.

(c) Upon proper application to the Administrator, a Teachers' Retirement System member may receive an early retirement benefit if he or she has satisfied the requirements of Section 238.07(2)(e)2., F.S., but he or she has not reached the age and service requirements for normal retirement as provided in Section 238.07(2)(e)1., F.S.

(2)(a) The maximum early retirement benefit for FRS Pension Plan a member shall be calculated as follows:

1.(a) Compute the normal benefit in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, F.A.C.

2.(b) This normal retirement benefit is multiplied by the applicable early retirement factor found in the Early Retirement Factors table in Rule 60S-7.003, F.A.C., to determine the maximum early retirement benefit. The early retirement factor shall be selected by determining the number of complete months that the member's early retirement date precedes his or her normal retirement age of 62 for a Regular Class regular member, Elected Officers' Class elected state officer member or Senior Management Service Class senior management service member, and age 55 for a Special Risk Class special-risk member.

3.(e) Notwithstanding the above, if the employment of a member is terminated by reason of death after the completion of 20 years of creditable service, the monthly benefit payable to the member's beneficiary shall be calculated in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, F.A.C., but based on average monthly compensation and creditable service as of the date of death. The benefit computed shall be reduced by five-twelfths of 1 percent of each complete month by which death precedes the normal retirement age or the date on which the member would have attained 30 years of creditable service had he or she survived and continued his or her employment, whichever provides a higher benefit. This paragraph shall not apply to a member who dies after he or she has terminated employment.

(b) The maximum early retirement benefit for a member of the State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System shall be calculated as follows:

1. Compute the normal benefit in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, F.A.C.

2. This normal retirement benefit is multiplied by the applicable early retirement factor found in the Early Retirement Factors table in Rule 60S-7.003, F.A.C., to determine the maximum early retirement benefit. The early retirement factor shall be selected by determining the number of complete months that the member's early retirement date precedes his or her normal retirement date as provided in Section 122.08, F.S., for a non high hazard member and in Section 122.34, F.S. for a high hazard member.

(c) The maximum early retirement benefit for a member of the Teachers' Retirement System shall be calculated as follows:

1. Compute the normal benefit in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, F.A.C.

2. This normal retirement benefit is multiplied by the applicable early retirement factor found in the Early Retirement Factors table in Rule 60S-7.003, F.A.C., to determine the maximum early retirement benefit. The early retirement factor shall be selected by determining the number of complete months that the member's early retirement date precedes his or her normal retirement date as provided in Section 238.07, F.S.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.021(30), 121.091(3), 121.052(5), 121.055 FS. History--New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 8-26-81, Formerly 22B-4.05, Amended 1-12-87, Formerly 22B-4.005, Amended 12-12-96, 8-13-03,_____.

60S-4.006 Benefits Based on Dual Retirement Ages.

(1) Upon proper application to the Division, an FRS Pension Plan a member who has creditable service as a Regular Class regular, Elected Officers' Class, or Senior Management Service Class senior management service member, and as a Special Risk Class special-risk member shall be eligible to receive benefits in accordance with this section.

(2) An FRS Pension Plan A member shall be eligible to receive a benefit based on dual retirement ages equal to the normal benefit for his or her Regular Class regular, Elected Officers' Class, or Senior Management Service Class senior management service as calculated in accordance with paragraphs 60S-4.004(1)(a), (c) or (d), F.A.C., and the normal benefit for his or her Special Risk Class special-risk service as calculated in accordance with paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(b), F.A.C., if he or she has satisfied the service requirements for vesting as provided in paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(b), F.A.C., and has attained normal retirement age as follows:

(a) He or she has reached age 62; or

(b) He or she has completed 30 years of creditable service, regardless of age.

(3) An FRS Pension Plan A member shall be eligible to receive a benefit based on dual retirement ages equal to the sum of the early benefit for his or her Regular Class ~~regular~~, Elected Officers' Class, or Senior Management Service Class ~~special management~~ service as calculated in accordance with Rule 60S-4.005, F.A.C., and the normal benefit for his or her Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ service as calculated in accordance with paragraph 60S-4.004(1)(b), F.A.C., if he or she has satisfied the service requirements for vesting as provided in paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(b), F.A.C., and has not attained normal retirement age as listed in paragraphs 60S-4.006(2)(a) and (b), F.A.C., but has attained normal Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ retirement age as follows:

(a) He or she has reached age 55; or

(b) He or she has completed 25 years of creditable service that includes credit for military service, and has reached age 52; or

(c) He or she has completed 25 years of creditable service, regardless of age.

(4) A member shall be eligible to receive a benefit based on dual retirement ages equal to the sum of the early retirement benefit for his or her Regular Class ~~regular~~, Elected Officers' Class, or Senior Management Service Class ~~senior management~~ service as calculated in accordance with Rule 60S-4.005, F.A.C., and the early retirement benefit for his or her Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ service as calculated in accordance with Rule 60S-4.005, F.A.C., if he or she has satisfied the service requirements for vesting as provided in paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(b), F.A.C., and he or she has not attained normal Special Risk Class ~~special risk~~ retirement age as listed in paragraphs 60S-4.006(3)(a), (b) and (c), F.A.C.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.052(5), 121.055, 121.091(2) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 7-1-79, Formerly 22B-4.06, Amended 1-12-87, Formerly 22B-4.006, Amended 1-25-94, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-4.007 Benefits Payable for Disability Retirement.

(1) A member of the Pension Plan or a participant of the Investment Plan shall be eligible to apply for a disability benefit in accordance with Section 121.091(4), F.S., provided:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) The member has creditable service as follows:

1. through 4. No change.

5. The member was employed on July 1, 1980, had completed less than 5 years of creditable service on that date, but has since completed a total of 5 years creditable service and provides proof that he or she has not attained a fully insured status for benefits under the federal Social Security Act; and

(d) The member's eligibility to apply is verified by the Administrator upon the receipt of the disability retirement application: Form FR-13, for FRS Pension Plan members and Form PR-13, for FRS Investment Plan members as adopted in paragraph 60S-4.003 (1)(c), ~~Rule 60S-9.004~~, F.A.C., according to the following:

1. If the Administrator determines that the member has satisfied the eligibility requirements, the Administrator will then consider the member's total and permanent disability claim (Form FR-13 for FRS Pension Plan members or Form PR-13 for FRS Investment Plan members) as provided in paragraphs 60S-4.007(2)(b) and (d), F.A.C.

2. Should the Administrator determine that the member has failed to satisfy such eligibility requirements, the member shall be notified by certified mail with return receipt requested. If the member disagrees with the determination, he or she may petition in writing the State Retirement Commission Division of Retirement for an administrative hearing pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57(1) ~~Chapter 120~~, F.S. If no petition is filed within 21 calendar days of receipt of the certified letter, the determination will become final.

(2) An FRS A member who is eligible in accordance with subsection 60S-4.007(1), F.A.C., shall receive a disability benefit provided:

(a) The member is totally and permanently disabled by reason of a medically determinable physical or mental impairment which prevents him or her from rendering useful and efficient service as an officer or employee. The unavailability of an employment position that the member is physically and mentally capable of performing shall not be a factor in such determination of total and permanent disability. The member shall be considered disabled in the line-of-duty if his or her injury or illness arose out of and in the actual performance of duty required by the member's employment. Documentation must show that:

1. The member's medical condition occurred or became symptomatic during the time the member was employed in an employee/employer relationship with his or her employer; and

2. The member was totally and permanently disabled at the time he or she terminated his or her covered employment; and

3. The member was not employed with any other employer after such termination; and

4. If the application is for in-line-of-duty disability, the disability must have been caused or aggravated by a job-related illness or accident which occurred while the member was in an employee/employer relationship with his or her employer; and

(b) The member makes proper application in accordance with Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C., and submits the following to the Division which must include documentation attesting to the criteria in paragraph (a):

1. Application for Disability Retirement (~~Form FR-13 to be completed by the member~~);

a. An FRS Pension Plan member shall submit application on Form FR-13, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Disability Retirement, adopted in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C.;

b. An FRS Investment Plan member shall submit application on Form PR-13, Florida Retirement System Investment Plan Application for Disability Retirement, adopted in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C.;

2. Statement of Disability by Employer, (Form FR-13a) (Rev. 07/06), Florida Retirement System Statement of Disability by Employer, herein adopted by reference; ~~adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.;~~ to be completed by the member's employer;

3. Two Physician's Reports (~~Form FR-13b) adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.;~~ to be completed by two Florida licensed physicians ~~as follows; and~~

a. Such reports shall be completed and submitted to the Division on Form FR-13b (Rev. 06/06) Florida Retirement System Physician's Report, herein adopted by reference.

b. Effective July 1, 2005, a member employed in a Florida Retirement System (FRS)-covered position who is permanently assigned by his or her FRS employer to work outside the State of Florida, but within the United States, may have the FR-13b forms completed by two licensed physicians of the state of work assignment;

4. Any other evidence of disability requested by the Administrator which may include reports from vocational rehabilitation, evaluation, or testing specialists who have evaluated the applicant for employment; and

(c) The member terminates all employment; and

(d) The Administrator approves the member's application for regular disability or in-line-of-duty disability according to the following:

1. Upon receipt of the completed application and all required documents as provided in paragraph 60S-4.007(2)(b), F.A.C., (~~Forms FR-13, FR-13a and FR-13b~~) the Administrator shall determine if the member is totally and permanently disabled by reason of a medically determinable physical or mental impairment which prevents him or her from rendering useful and efficient service as an officer or employee. If the member has applied for in-line-of-duty disability, the Administrator will also determine if the member's injury or illness arose out of and in the actual performance of duty required by the member's employment.

2. Any firefighter, paramedic, emergency medical technician, law enforcement officer or correctional officer who is approved for disability retirement due to hepatitis, meningococcal meningitis, or tuberculosis, is presumed to be disabled in the line of duty, unless the contrary is shown by competent evidence, provided:

a. The member, after diagnosis of hepatitis, meningococcal meningitis, or tuberculosis, verifies by written affidavit that he or she was not exposed, outside the scope of his or her employment, to such diseases, as provided in paragraphs 112.181(2)(a), (b) and (c), F.S.; and

b. The member, prior to diagnosis, undergoes immunization or prophylaxis for the prevention of hepatitis, meningococcal meningitis, or tuberculosis, when such immunization or prophylaxis exists and where medically indicated, and unless the member is advised by his or her doctor in writing that immunization or prophylaxis would pose a significant risk to his or her health, as provided in subsection 112.181(3), F.S.; and

c. through d. No change.

3. No change.

4. The member shall be notified of the Administrator's approval as follows:

a. If the Administrator approves the member's application for regular disability or in-line-of-duty disability benefits the member shall be notified and shall receive benefits as provided in subsection 60S-4.007(5), F.A.C.

b. For a member who has applied for in-line-of-duty disability benefits, if the Administrator determines that the member is totally and permanently disabled but that such member's illness or injury did not arise out of and in the actual performance of duty required by the member's employment, the Administrator shall notify the member that his or her application for in-line-of-duty disability benefits is denied but that, if eligible, such member shall receive regular disability benefits as provided in paragraph 60S-4.007(5)(b), F.A.C. If such member chooses to appeal the Administrator's denial of in-line-of-duty disability benefits as provided in subsection 60S-4.007(3), F.A.C., the member may choose to begin receiving the regular disability benefits while appealing such denial.

(3) Should the Administrator determine that a member has failed to demonstrate total and permanent regular disability or in-line-of-duty disability, as provided in paragraph 60S-4.007(2)(a), F.A.C., the following procedure shall be followed:

(a) The member shall be notified by certified mail with return receipt requested. The notice shall include a summary of the factual, legal and policy grounds for the Administrator's intended decision. ~~A copy of the notice shall be sent to the member's employer.~~

(b) When a member receives notice that the Administrator intends to deny his or her application, he or she shall have 21 calendar days to present written evidence to the Administrator in opposition to the intended action or written objections challenging the grounds upon which the Administrator has based his or her intended decision.

(c) If the Administrator overrules the objections of the member, he or she shall within 21 calendar days provide a written explanation to the member by certified mail with return receipt requested, giving the reasons for his or her decision and advising the member of his or her right of appeal under the law. A copy of this final decision on the merits shall be sent to the member's employer.

(d) If the member does not accept the Administrator's final decision on the merits, the member may request in writing a hearing on his or her disability claim before the State Retirement Commission pursuant to Section 120.57(1), F.S. Such request shall be made within 21 calendar days from the date the member receives notice of the Administrator's final decision. If the State Retirement Commission's decision upholds the member's request for disability retirement benefits, the Commission may include in the retirement order an amount for reasonable attorney's fees and taxable costs. The amount of the attorney's fee shall be determined by the commission and shall not exceed 50 percent of the initial yearly benefit awarded to the member. The taxable costs shall be calculated in accordance with the statewide uniform guidelines for taxation of costs in civil actions.

(e) through (f) No change.

(g) A member whose application for regular disability retirement has been denied may, if eligible, elect to receive normal or early service retirement benefits after he or she has filed an appeal to the State Retirement Commission and is awaiting the decision on the appeal. If the member elects to receive service retirement benefits and disability benefits are later approved as a result of the appeal, the payment option chosen by the member cannot be changed. If the member elects to receive early service retirement and the appeal is later denied, the member cannot change his or her election of early retirement. Before beginning to receive regular or early retirement benefits, the member must complete and submit Form SRA-1 (Rev. 12/04), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Service Retirement Agreement, herein adopted by reference, to the Division attesting to the fact provide to the Division a statement that he or she understands that he or she cannot make such changes after he or she begins receiving the benefits.

(4) A member, whose initial application for disability retirement has been denied, may reapply for disability benefits; however, such member's reapplication will be considered only if the member presents new medical evidence of a medical condition that existed prior to the member's termination of employment.

(a) To reapply, the FRS member shall submit to the Division:

1. A new Application for Disability Retirement as provided in paragraph 60S-4.0035(1)(c), F.A.C. (Form FR-13). The member's effective retirement date shall be established as provided in paragraph 60S-4.0035(3)(b), F.A.C., based on the date of receipt of the new application; and

2. A new Statement of Disability by Employer as provided in subparagraph 60S-4.007(3)(b)2., F.A.C. (Form FR-13a); only if an employee/employer relationship has existed since the date of the initial disapproval; and

3. Two new Physician's Reports ~~(Form FR-13b)~~ completed as provided subparagraph 60S-4.007(3)(b)3., F.A.C. by two Florida licensed physicians. The application will be considered only if the physician certifies the following:

a. The member's medical condition occurred or became symptomatic during the time the member was employed in an employee/employer relationship with his or her employer; and

b. The member was totally and permanently disabled at the time he or she terminated his or her covered employment, and he or she has not been employed with any other employer after such termination; and

c. If the application is for in-line-of-duty disability, the disability was caused ~~or aggravated~~ by a job-related illness or accident which occurred while the member was in an employee/employer relationship with his or her employer.

(b) The reapplication for disability retirement will be reviewed to determine if the information had not been previously available or if new information from the previous physicians has been submitted, as follows:

1. If no new medical information is received, the reapplication for disability retirement will be disapproved as provided in subsection 60S-4.007(3), F.A.C., and the member will be advised of his or her right to an Administrative Hearing under Chapter 120, F.S.

2. If new medical information is received, the same review and approval or disapproval process will be followed as for an initial application as provided in subsection 60S-4.007(2), F.A.C. If the reapplication is disapproved, and regardless of whether the member appealed the initial disapproval decision to the State Retirement Commission, the member may request a hearing before the State Retirement Commission under Section 120.57(1), F.S., as provided in subsection 60S-4.007(3), F.A.C.

(5) An FRS member who has received approval from the Administrator shall receive benefits in accordance with the following:

(a) The FRS member approved for in-line-of-duty disability may elect to receive:

1. A monthly benefit computed in the same manner as for a normal retirement benefit under Option 1 in subsection 60S-4.010(1), F.A.C., as if the member had reached normal retirement age, but based on his or her average final compensation and creditable service as of his or her disability retirement date, except that, if this produces a benefit which is

less than 42 percent of his or her average monthly compensation as of his or her disability retirement date, he or she shall receive a benefit equal to 42 percent of his or her average monthly compensation, except that a Special Risk Class member who retires on or after July 1, 2000, shall receive a benefit equal to at least 65 percent of his or her average monthly compensation; or

2. A monthly benefit computed in the same manner as for a normal retirement benefit under Options 2, 3 or 4 as provided in paragraphs 60S-4.010(1)(b), (c) and (d), F.A.C. The benefit payable shall be the actuarial equivalent of the disability benefit as described in subparagraph 1. above to which the member would otherwise be entitled.

(b) The FRS member approved for regular disability may elect to receive:

1. A monthly benefit computed in the same manner as for a normal retirement benefit under Option 1 in subsection 60S-4.010(1), F.A.C., as if the member had reached normal retirement age, but based on his or her average final compensation and creditable service as of his or her disability retirement date, except that if this produces a benefit which is less than 25 percent of his or her average monthly compensation as of his or her disability retirement date, he or she shall receive a benefit equal to 25 percent of his or her average monthly compensation; or

2. A monthly benefit computed in the same manner as for a normal retirement benefit under Options 2, 3 or 4 as provided in paragraphs 60S-4.010(1)(b), (c) and (d), F.A.C. The benefit payable shall be the actuarial equivalent of the disability benefit as described in subparagraph 1. above to which the member would otherwise be entitled.

3. The FRS Pension Plan member shall make his or her option selection as prescribed in subsection 60S-4.010(1), F.A.C. A married member who selects option 1 under paragraph (a) or option 2 under paragraph (b) shall notify his or her spouse of such option selection, and the spouse shall acknowledge any such option selection in accordance with subsection 60S-4.010(9), F.A.C.

4. The FRS Investment Plan member shall make his or her option selection on Form PR-11o (Rev. 02/10), Florida Retirement System Investment Plan Option Selection for Disability Retirement, herein adopted by reference, which also requires such member to attest to his or her marital status on Form SA-2 (02/10), Florida Retirement System Investment Plan Spousal Acknowledgment Form for Disability Retirement, herein adopted by reference. A married member who selects option 1 under paragraph (a) or option 2 under paragraph (b) shall notify his or her spouse of such option selection, and the spouse shall acknowledge any such option selection on the SA-2 form.

(6) No change.

(7) Nonadmissible causes of disability shall be as follows:

(a) A member shall not be entitled to receive any disability retirement benefit other than a refund of his or her contributions if his or her disability is a result of any of the following:

1. Injury or disease sustained by a member who is convicted of willfully participating in riots, civil insurrections, or other acts of violence while committing a felony;

2. Injury or disease sustained by the member after his or her employment has terminated; or

3. Intentional self-inflicted injury.

(b) A member shall not be entitled to receive in-line-of-duty disability benefits when the disability results from drug or alcohol abuse except when the member is expected to use alcohol in the course of official undercover law enforcement work and such use clearly results in his or her disability.

(8) A member who retires under disability, subsequently recovers, and does not reenter covered employment shall notify the Division immediately to have his or her disability benefits discontinued and shall be subject to the following provisions:

(a) If he or she was not vested as of his or her disability retirement date, he or she shall be entitled to the excess, if any, of his or her accumulated contributions over the total disability benefits received up to his or her date of recovery.

(b) If he or she was vested as of his or her disability retirement date, he or she may elect to receive:

1. The excess, if any, of his or her accumulated contributions over the total disability benefits received up to his or her date of recovery; or

2. If the member has not reached normal retirement age at the time of recovery, he or she may receive a monthly benefit at the time he or she reaches normal retirement age, calculated in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, F.A.C., based on his or her average final compensation and creditable service as of his or her disability retirement date.

3. If the member has not reached normal retirement age at the time of recovery, he or she may receive an early retirement benefit calculated as provided in Rule 60S-4.005, F.A.C., based on his or her average final compensation and creditable service as of his or her disability retirement date.

4. If the member has reached normal retirement age at the time of recovery, he or she may receive a normal retirement benefit as calculated in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, F.A.C., based on his or her average final compensation and creditable service as of his or her disability retirement date.

(9) An FRS member who retires under disability, subsequently recovers and reenters covered employment shall notify the Division immediately to have his or her disability benefits discontinued and shall be subject to the following provisions:

(a) If he or she reenters covered employment within 6 months after his or her recovery, his or her service will be considered to have been continuous, but the period beginning

with his or her disability retirement date and ending with the date he or she reenters employment will not be counted as creditable service for the purpose of computing benefits, except as provided in paragraphs 60S-4.007(9)(8)(b) and (c), F.A.C.

(b) He or she shall notify the Division immediately upon reemployment. Any employer who employs a disability retiree who is receiving disability benefits shall notify the Division upon employment of such member, and the Division shall terminate such member's disability benefits effective the first day of the month following the month in which notification of recovery is received. If the member is reemployed with a Florida Retirement System employer at the time of benefit termination and he or she has received disability retirement benefit and salary payments concurrently prior to notifying the Division, he or she may elect within 30 days to:

1. Retain the retirement benefits received prior to termination of disability benefits and begin receiving retirement service credit effective the date of termination of benefits, or

2. Repay within 12 months of his or her decision to receive service credit, the retirement benefits received for each month of reemployment prior to termination of disability benefits and begin receiving retirement service credit effective the date of reemployment. Any such unpaid benefits shall have compound interest of 6.5 percent added June 30.

3. No member shall receive both retirement service credit for employment, and retirement benefits for the same month.

(c) If he or she is continuously reemployed in a regularly established position for a minimum of one work year he or she may claim as creditable service the months during which he or she received a disability benefit as provided in Rule 60S-2.018, F.A.C.

(10) The Division of Retirement may conduct periodic reexaminations of FRS members who have been granted either regular or in-line-of-duty disability under the provisions of Chapter 121, F.S., to determine whether or not such members continue to meet the disability criteria applicable in their cases. The following procedures shall govern disability reexamination cases:

(a) The Division will mail the member the following forms which are to be completed by the member and his or her physician and returned to the Disability Determination Section of the Division within 60 days, unless an extension of time is requested and approved by the Division:

1. Form FR-13e (Rev. 07/06), "Florida Retirement System Retiree's Report of Continuing Disability" herein adopted by reference; and

2. Form FR-13f (Rev. 07/06), "Florida Retirement System FRS Physician's Report of Reexamination" herein adopted by reference.

~~in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C. Such forms should be completed by the member and his physician and returned to the Disability Determination Section within 60 days, unless an extension of time is requested and approved by the Division.~~

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) Based on the information obtained pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs (a) and (b), if the Administrator finds the member is no longer disabled and is employable under the criteria used to determine his or her original disability, the member will be notified by certified mail of the initial findings and conclusions and that the Administrator intends to discontinue his or her disability retirement benefit. The notice shall include a summary of the factual, legal and policy grounds for the intended decision.

(e) When a member receives notice that the Administrator intends to discontinue his or her disability retirement benefits, he or she shall have 21 calendar days to present written evidence in opposition to the intended action or written objections challenging the grounds upon which the Administrator has based his or her intended decision. The member may submit additional evidence or a written statement for reconsideration of the Division's denial of benefits and his or her retirement benefit will continue subject to reconsideration.

(f) After reconsideration of the member's file, including any additional evidence or written statement submitted by the member or obtained by the Division, the Administrator shall within 21 calendar days provide a written final decision on the merits to the member by certified mail if the member was found not to be disabled or by regular mail if the member was found to be disabled. Such written final decision shall give giving the reasons for the decision and will notify the member that his or her benefits will continue if he or she is found to be disabled or will terminate effective the first day of the following month if he or she is found to be not disabled.

(g) through (i) No change.

(11) An FRS member who has completed the vesting requirements as provided in paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(b), F.A.C., with service as a justice of the supreme court, judge of a district court of appeals, circuit judge, judge of a county court, or as an elected constitutional Judicial Officer, including service as a Judicial Officer in any court abolished pursuant to Article V of the State Constitution and who is retired for disability by order of the supreme court upon recommendation of the Judicial Qualifications Commission pursuant to the provisions of Article V, State Constitution, shall:

(a) Receive an Option 1 monthly benefit as provided in paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(a), F.A.C., that shall be not less than two-thirds of his or her monthly compensation as of his or her disability retirement date; or he or she may elect to receive a disability retirement benefit under any other option as provided in subparagraph 60S-4.007(5)(4)(b)2., F.A.C.; and

(b) Have all contributions made by him or her or his or her employer in his or her behalf transferred to the General Revenue Fund of the State; and

(c) Have the amount necessary to pay his or her benefits appropriated annually from the General Revenue Fund and paid into the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund.

(12) A member of the State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System (SCOERS) shall be eligible to apply for a disability benefit in accordance with Chapter 122, F.S., provided:

(a) The member's eligibility to apply is verified by the Administrator upon the receipt of Form SR-13, State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Application for Disability Retirement, as adopted in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C., according to the following:

1. If the Administrator determines that the member has satisfied the eligibility requirements of Chapter 122, F.S., the Administrator will then consider the members' disability claim (Form SR-13).

2. Should the Administrator determine that the member has failed to satisfy such eligibility requirements, the member shall be notified by certified mail with return receipt requested. If the member disagrees with the determination, he may petition in writing the Division of Retirement for an administrative hearing pursuant to Chapter 120, F.S. If no petition is filed within 21 calendar days of receipt of the certified letter, the determination will become final.

(13) A SCOERS member who is eligible in accordance with subsection 60S-4.007(12), F.A.C., shall receive a disability benefit provided:

(a) The member satisfies the eligibility criteria of Chapter 122, F.S. and provides documentation to substantiate satisfaction of the eligibility criteria; and

(b) The member makes proper application in accordance with Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C., and submits the following to the Division which must include documentation attesting to the criteria in paragraph (a):

1. Application for Disability Retirement, Form SR-13, State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Application for Disability Retirement, adopted in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C., completed by the member;

2. Statement of Disability by Employer, Form SR-13a (Rev. 09/71), State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Statement of Disability by Employer, herein adopted by reference to be completed by the member's employer;

3. A Physician's Report, Form SR-13b (Rev. 09/71), State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Physician's Report, herein adopted by reference to be completed by a Florida licensed physician;

4. Any other evidence of disability requested by the Administrator which may include reports from vocational rehabilitation, evaluation, or testing specialists who have evaluated the applicant for employment; and

(c) The member terminates all employment; and

(d) Upon receipt of the completed application and all required documents as provided in paragraph 60S-4.007(13)(b), F.A.C., the Administrator shall determine if the member is disabled by reason of a medically determinable physical or mental impairment in accordance with Chapter 122, F.S. If a high hazard member has applied for in-line-of-duty disability, the Administrator will also determine if the member's injury or illness arose out of and in the actual performance of duty required by the member's employment.

(e) The member shall be notified of the Administrator's approval as follows:

1. If the Administrator approves the member's application for regular disability or in-line-of-duty disability benefits the member shall be notified and shall receive benefits in accordance with Chapter 122, F.S.

2. For a high hazard member who has applied for in-line-of-duty disability benefits, if the Administrator determines that such member's illness or injury did not arise out of and in the actual performance of duty required by the member's employment, the Administrator shall notify the member that his or her application for in-line-of-duty disability benefits is denied. Such member may choose to appeal the Administrator's denial of in-line-of-duty disability benefits as provided in subsection 60S-4.007(3), F.A.C.

(14) The Division of Retirement may conduct periodic reexaminations of members who have been granted either regular or in-line-of-duty disability under the provisions of Chapter 122, F.S., to determine whether or not such members continue to meet the disability criteria applicable in their cases. The following procedures shall govern disability reexamination cases:

(a) The Division will mail the member forms SR-13e (Rev.10/86), State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Retiree's Report of Continuing Disability and SR-13f (Rev. 07/81), State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Physician's Report of Reexamination, herein adopted by reference. Such forms should be completed by the member and his physician and returned to the Disability Determination Section within 60 days, unless an extension of time is requested and approved by the Division.

(b) The Division will review the reports in paragraph (a) and other available sources, such as, but not limited to, Workers' Compensation and Unemployment Compensation.

(c) If the Division finds the member continues to be disabled under the criteria used to determine the original disability, the member will be notified in writing of the findings and conclusions, and further, that disability benefits will continue to be paid.

(d) Based on the information obtained pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs (a) and (b), if the Administrator finds the member is no longer disabled and is employable under the criteria used to determine his original disability, the member will be notified by certified mail of the initial findings and conclusions and that the Administrator intends to discontinue his or her disability retirement benefit. The notice shall include a summary of the factual, legal and policy grounds for the intended decision.

(e) When a member receives notice that the Administrator intends to discontinue his disability retirement benefits, he or she shall have 21 calendar days to present written evidence in opposition to the intended action or written objections challenging the grounds upon which the Administrator has based his or her intended decision. The member may submit additional evidence or a written statement for reconsideration of the Division's denial of benefits and his or her retirement benefit will continue subject to reconsideration.

(f) After reconsideration of the member's file, including any additional evidence or written statement submitted by the member or obtained by the Division, the Administrator shall within 21 calendar days provide a written final decision on the merits to the member by certified mail giving the reasons for the decision and will notify the member that his or her benefits will continue if he or she is found to be disabled or will terminate effective the first day of the following month if he or she is found to be not disabled.

(g) If the member does not accept the Administrator's final decision on the merits, the member may request in writing, pursuant to Section 121.23, F.S. and Chapter 60R-1, F.A.C., a hearing before the State Retirement Commission pursuant to Section 120.57(1), F.S. Such request shall be filed with the Commission within 21 calendar days from the date the member receives the Administrator's final decision.

(h) The decisions of the State Retirement Commission on matters brought before it under this section shall be final agency action.

(i) The decisions of the State Retirement Commission shall be reviewable by the District Court of Appeal pursuant to Section 121.23, F.S.

(15) A member of the Teachers' Retirement System (TRS) shall be eligible to apply for a disability benefit in accordance with Chapter 238, F.S., provided:

(a) The member's eligibility to apply is verified by the Administrator upon the receipt of Form TR-13, Teachers' Retirement System Application for Disability Retirement, as adopted in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C., according to the following:

1. If the Administrator determines that the member has satisfied the eligibility requirements of Chapter 238, F.S., the Administrator will then consider the members' disability claim (Form TR-13).

2. Should the Administrator determine that the member has failed to satisfy such eligibility requirements, the member shall be notified by certified mail with return receipt requested. If the member disagrees with the determination, he or she may petition in writing the Division of Retirement for an administrative hearing pursuant to Chapter 120, F.S. If no petition is filed within 21 calendar days of receipt of the certified letter, the determination will become final.

(16) A member who is eligible in accordance with subsection 60S-4.007(15), F.A.C., shall receive a disability benefit provided:

(a) The member satisfies the eligibility criteria of chapter 238, F.S. and provides documentation to substantiate satisfaction of the eligibility criteria; and

(b) The member makes proper application in accordance with Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C., and submits the following to the Division:

1. Application for Disability Retirement, Form TR-13, Teachers' Retirement System Application for Disability Retirement, adopted in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C., completed by the member;

2. Statement of Disability by Employer, Form TR-13a (Rev. 10/86), Teachers' Retirement System Statement of Disability by Employer, herein adopted by reference, to be completed by the member's employer; and

3. A Physician's Report, Form TR-13b (Rev. 10/86), Teachers' Retirement System Physician's Report, herein adopted by reference to be completed by a Florida licensed physician; and

4. Documentation attesting to the criteria in paragraph (a); and

5. Any other evidence of disability requested by the Administrator which may include reports from vocational rehabilitation, evaluation, or testing specialists who have evaluated the applicant for employment; and

(c) The member terminates for the type of position the member is presently employed in; and

(d) Upon receipt of the completed application and all required documents as provided in paragraph 60S-4.007(15)(b), F.A.C., the Administrator shall determine if the member is totally and permanently disabled by reason of a medically determinable physical or mental impairment in accordance with Chapter 122, F.S. If the Administrator approves the member's application for regular disability or in-line-of-duty disability benefits the member shall be notified and shall receive benefits in accordance with Chapter 122, F.S.

(e) If the Administrator denies the member's application for regular disability or in-line-of-duty disability, such member may chose to appeal the Administrator's denial as provided in subsection 60S-4.007(3), F.A.C.

(10) The Division of Retirement may conduct periodic reexaminations of members who have been granted disability under the provisions of Chapter 238, F.S., to determine whether or not such members continue to meet the disability criteria applicable in their cases. The following procedures shall govern disability reexamination cases:

(a) The Division will mail the member forms TR-13e (Rev. 02/88), Teachers' Retirement System Retiree's Report of Continuing Disability and TR-13f (Rev.07/81), Teachers' Retirement System Physician's Report of Reexamination, herein adopted by reference. Such forms should be completed by the member and his or her physician and returned to the Disability Determination Section within 60 days, unless an extension of time is requested and approved by the Division.

(b) The Division will review the reports in subsection (a) and other available sources, such as, but not limited to, Workers' Compensation and Unemployment Compensation.

(c) If the Division finds the member continues to be disabled under the criteria used to determine the original disability, the member will be notified in writing of the findings and conclusions, and further, that disability benefits will continue to be paid.

(d) Based on the information obtained pursuant to the provisions of subsections (a) and (b), if the Administrator finds the member is no longer disabled and is employable under the criteria used to determine his original disability, the member will be notified by certified mail of the initial findings and conclusions and that the Administrator intends to discontinue his or her disability retirement benefit. The notice shall include a summary of the factual, legal and policy grounds for the intended decision.

(e) When a member receives notice that the Administrator intends to discontinue his disability retirement benefits, he or she shall have 21 calendar days to present written evidence in opposition to the intended action or written objections challenging the grounds upon which the Administrator has based his or her intended decision. The member may submit additional evidence or a written statement for reconsideration of the Division's denial of benefits and his or her retirement benefit will continue subject to reconsideration.

(f) After reconsideration of the member's file, including any additional evidence or written statement submitted by the member or obtained by the Division, the Administrator shall within 21 calendar days provide a written final decision on the merits to the member by certified mail giving the reasons for the decision and will notify the member that his or her benefits will continue if he is found to be disabled or will terminate effective the first day of the following month if he or she is found to be not disabled.

(g) If the member does not accept the Administrator's final decision on the merits, the member may request in writing, pursuant to Section 121.23, F.S. and Rule Chapter 60R-1, F.A.C., a hearing before the State Retirement Commission pursuant to Section 120.57(1), F.S. Such request shall be filed with the Commission within 21 calendar days from the date the member receives the Administrator's final decision.

(h) The decisions of the State Retirement Commission on matters brought before it under this section shall be final agency action.

(i) The decisions of the State Retirement Commission shall be reviewable by the District Court of Appeal pursuant to Section 121.23, F.S.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 112.18, 112.181, 121.021, 121.052(5)(c), 121.055, 121.091(4), 121.23 FS. History--New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 11-18-75, 1-16-77, 7-1-79, 8-26-81, 1-19-82, 11-6-84, Formerly 22B-4.07, Amended 2-4-86, 1-12-87, 2-7-89, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-4.007, Amended 3-18-93, 4-5-95, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 8-13-03,

60S-4.008 Benefits Payable Upon Death.

(1)(a) If the death of an FRS Pension Plan a member occurs, other than in-line-of-duty, prior to the member becoming vested, the member's designated beneficiary shall receive a refund of the member's accumulated contributions, except as provided in subsection 60S-2.010(4), F.A.C., and shall make application to the Division for such refund on Form FST-11g (Rev. 03/10), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Benefit Payment, herein adopted by reference.

(b) If the death of a State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System member occurs prior to the member meeting the requirements for retirement under Chapter 122, F.S., other than for a high-hazard member killed in the line of duty as provided in Section 122.34(6), F.S., the member's designated beneficiary shall only receive a refund of the member's accumulated contributions as provided in Section 122.12, F.S., and shall make application to the Division for such refund on Form FST-11g, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Benefit Payment as adopted in paragraph (a).

(c)1. If the death of a Teachers' Retirement System member occurs prior to the member obtaining 10 years of creditable service, the member's designated beneficiary shall receive a refund of the member's accumulated contributions as provided in Section 238.07, F.S., and shall make application to the Division for such refund on Form FST-11g, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Benefit Payment as adopted in paragraph (a).

2. In addition, survivor benefits may be payable in accordance with Section 238.07(18), F.S. Survivors meeting the eligibility criteria for such benefits as provided in Section 238.07(18), F.S., shall make application to the Division on

Form TR-11c (Rev. 12/02), Teachers' Retirement System Application for Survivor Benefits herein incorporated by reference. An unmarried surviving dependent child of the deceased member over 18 years of age but not over 22 years of age and enrolled as a student in an accredited education institution meeting the eligibility criteria for survivor benefits under Section 238.07(18), F.S., shall also be required to submit the following to the Division for survivor benefit eligibility determination:

a. An acceptance letter from an accredited educational institution or Form SRF-2 (Rev. 07/99), Teachers' Retirement System Student Report Form, herein adopted by reference, completed by the accredited educational institution; and

b. A completed Form SRF-3 (Rev.07/99), Teachers' Retirement System Authorization for Release of Information, herein adopted by reference; and

c. A completed Form SVF-2 (Rev 07/99), Teachers' Retirement System Affidavit Attesting to Eligibility, herein adopted by reference.

(2)(a) If the death of an FRS Pension Plan a member occurs other than in-line-of-duty after he or she has become vested, but prior to his or her effective date of retirement as provided in subsection 60S-4.0035(3), F.A.C., the following shall apply:

1.(a) If the member's designated beneficiary is not his or her spouse or other dependent who qualifies as a joint annuitant, the Division shall refund the member's accumulated contributions to the member's designated beneficiary; or

2.(b) If a member's designated beneficiary qualifies as joint annuitant (spouse or other dependent) the following shall apply:

a.1- The joint annuitant may elect to receive a refund of the member's accumulated contributions; or

b.2- The joint annuitant may elect to receive a monthly benefit calculated as if the member had terminated and retired as of his or her date of death (i.e., with benefits payable effective the first of the month following the member's death) and paid in accordance with Option 3 of paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(c), F.A.C.; or

c.3- The joint annuitant may elect to receive a deferred monthly benefit calculated on the age the member would have attained at the date the benefit commences and the age of the joint annuitant on the date the benefit commences and paid in accordance with Option 3 in paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(c), F.A.C.

d.4- If the member's joint annuitant dies without having received in benefits an amount equal to the member's accumulated contributions, the Division shall pay to the joint annuitant's estate an amount equal to the excess of the member's accumulated contributions over the total benefits received by the joint annuitant.

(b) If the death of a State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System member occurs other than for a high hazard member killed in the line of duty, after he or she

has met the requirements for retirement under chapter 122, F.S., but prior to his or her effective date of retirement as provided in subsection 60S-4.0035(3), F.A.C., the surviving spouse shall be entitled to receive either the accumulated contributions of such officer or employee at the date of death or the monthly retirement benefit in accordance with Section 122.08(9), F.S.

1. The surviving spouse may make application to the Division for a refund of the accumulated contributions on Form FST-11g, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Benefit Payment as adopted in subsection (1); or

2. The surviving spouse may make application to the Division for monthly retirement benefits on Form FST-11b, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Monthly Retirement Benefits as adopted in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C.

(c)1. If the death of a Teachers' Retirement System member occurs after having completed 10 years of creditable, but prior to his or her effective date of retirement as provided in subsection 60S-4.0035(3), F.A.C., the surviving spouse, regardless of the member's designated beneficiary, may elect to receive an option three monthly retirement benefit as provided in Section 238.08(3), F.S. If the designated beneficiary is the surviving spouse, then the surviving spouse shall have the option of receiving the accumulated contributions of such officer or employee at the date of death in lieu of the option three monthly benefit in accordance with 238.08(3), F.S.

a. The beneficiary may make application to the Division for a refund of the accumulated contributions on Form FST-11g, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Benefit Payment as adopted in subsection (1);

b. The surviving spouse may make application for make application to the Division for monthly retirement benefits on Form FST-11b, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Monthly Retirement Benefits as adopted in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C.

2. In addition, survivor benefits may be payable to the beneficiaries of a deceased member as provided in Section 238.07(18), F.S., and such beneficiaries shall make application to the Division for these benefits on as provided in subparagraph 60S-4.008(1)(c)2., F.A.C.

(3) If the death of an FRS Pension Plan a member occurs, other than in-line-of-duty, on or after his or her effective date of retirement, as provided in subsection 60S-4.0035(3), F.A.C., but prior to a benefit payment being cashed or deposited, the following shall apply:

(a) If the member's designated beneficiary is not his or her spouse or other dependent who qualifies as a joint annuitant, any benefits payable shall be paid in accordance with the

option selected by the member; or if the member had not yet selected an option, benefits shall be paid as provided in subparagraph 60S-4.010(6)(c)1., F.A.C.

(b) No change.

(4) If an FRS Pension Plan a member is killed in the line of duty the following shall apply:

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) If the member had any children under 18 years of age at the time of his or her death, the surviving spouse shall not be permitted to receive a refund of the member's contributions in lieu of the benefits provided in paragraph 60S-4.008(4)(a), F.A.C.

(d) through (f) No change.

(5) Upon the death of a retired FRS member, joint annuitant, or beneficiary who is receiving monthly benefits, the benefits will be paid as follows:

(a) The monthly benefit shall be paid through the last day of the month of death and shall terminate, or be adjusted, if applicable, as of such date in accordance with the optional form of retirement benefit selected by the member at his or her date of retirement.

(b) through (c) No change.

(d) If the deceased member's joint annuitant dies without having received in benefits all remaining accumulated contributions made by the member and not received by the member before his or her death, the Division shall pay to the deceased joint annuitant's estate an amount equal to the excess of the member's accumulated contributions over the total benefits received by the member and/or the joint annuitant.

(e) Deductions from monthly benefits for payments to an alternate payee for Qualified Domestic Relations Orders (QDRO) or Income Deduction Orders (IDO) in the month of death shall be paid to the alternate payee. Deductions from monthly benefits for Internal Revenue Service (IRS) levies in the month of death shall be paid to the IRS. Any overpayment (received by the IRS or an alternate payee) in months after the month of the member's death shall be collected by the Division for repayment to the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund.

(6) If the designated beneficiary of a retirement account under the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan wishes to refuse his or her interest in such account, he or she shall disclaim such interest as provided in Chapter 739 Section 689.21, F.S., as follows:

(a) If there is no designated beneficiary or if all designated beneficiaries are deceased or have disclaimed their interest in the account, the beneficiaries shall be determined as provided in subsection 60S-4.011(2), F.A.C. When a beneficiary disclaims his or her interest in an account, he or she shall be considered to have predeceased the member. The next beneficiary designated by the member or as stated in subsection 60S-4.011(2), F.A.C., as applicable, may then

accept or disclaim any interest to which he or she is entitled. A beneficiary cannot disclaim in favor of a particular individual who is not the next designated beneficiary.

(b) Any such beneficiary may disclaim his or her interest in the retirement account of a nonretired member as provided in subsection 60S-4.008(1) and (2), F.A.C., or of a member retired under option 1 or option 2 as provided in subsection 60S-4.009(2) or paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(b), F.A.C., respectively.

(c) Such beneficiary may disclaim his or her interest in such member's retirement account whether or not the beneficiary is entitled to any monetary benefit from the account (refund or monthly benefit).

(d) If joint beneficiaries are named and only one qualifies as joint annuitant, the nondependent beneficiary may disclaim his or her interest, allowing the remaining joint annuitant to receive the full benefit payable.

(e) Disclaimers must be filed within 24 months after the event that created the interest, that is, the death of the member or annuitant. Such disclaimer must be submitted to the Division on Form DIS-1 (Rev. 03/07), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Disclaimer of Benefits, if the disclaimer is by a surviving beneficiary; or on Form DIS-2 (Rev. 03/07), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Disclaimer of Benefits, if the disclaimer is by a surviving child; or on Form DIS-3 (Rev. 03/07), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Disclaimer of Benefits, if the disclaimer is by a surviving beneficiary and child. All such disclaimer forms are herein adopted by reference.

(7) For the purpose of determining the eligibility of a joint annuitant under paragraphs (2)(b) and (3)(b), for whom financial dependency is required as provided in paragraphs 60S-6.001(36)(34)(b) and (c), F.A.C., the member must have provided at least one-half of the joint annuitant's total support for the 12 months immediately preceding the member's death. This determination shall be made by first calculating the joint annuitant's total support for the period from all sources, as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(66)(64), F.A.C.; and then determining the amount of such support provided by the member. The member's portion of such support must equal at least one-half of the total amount.

(8) Death shall be presumed to be in the line of duty for the following FRS members that satisfy the requirements of Section 112.18 or 112.181 112.081, F.S., unless the contrary is shown by competent evidence:

(a) through (d) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 61.1301, 112.18, 112.181, 121.021(14), 121.052(5), 121.055, 121.091(7) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 7-21-75, 8-26-81, Formerly 22B-4.08, Amended 2-6-84, 1-12-87, 2-7-89, 9-5-90, 5-15-91, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-4.008, Amended 3-18-93, 1-25-94, 8-4-94, 12-12-96, 5-10-99, 8-13-03_____.

60S-4.009 Benefits Payable After Termination.

(1) An FRS Pension member whose employment is terminated for any reason other than death or retirement shall be eligible for benefits upon proper application to the Division, subject to the following provisions:

(a) If he or she was not vested at the time of his or her termination he or she shall be entitled to a refund of his or her accumulated contributions; or

(b) If he or she was vested at the time of his or her termination he or she may elect to receive:

1. A refund of his or her accumulated contributions; or

2. A deferred monthly benefit which shall commence on his or her normal or early retirement date based on his or her average final compensation and creditable service as of his or her date of termination and computed in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, 60S-4.005, or 60S-4.006, F.A.C., and shall receive benefits in accordance with Rule 60S-4.010, F.A.C.

(2) If a retired FRS Pension Plan member has elected to receive the retirement benefit payable to him or her under Option 1 and dies without having received in benefit payments an amount equal to his or her accumulated contributions, his or her designated beneficiary shall be entitled to an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the member's accumulated contributions over the total benefit payments made to the member prior to his or her date of death.

(3) In order to receive a refund of contributions under the Florida Retirement System, an FRS ~~a~~ member must terminate all employment relationships as provided in the definition of termination in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C., and submit a request for refund on (Form FRS-M81 (Rev. 07/01), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Request for Refund, herein adopted by reference.) to the Administrator through his or her employer, containing a certification by his or her employer of his or her termination of employment. By obtaining a refund of contributions a member waives all rights under the Florida Retirement System to the service credit represented by the refunded contributions, except the right to purchase his or her prior service credit in accordance with Rule 60S-2.004, F.A.C.

(4) A State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System member whose employment is terminated for any reason other than death or retirement shall be eligible for benefits in accordance with Chapter 122, F.S., upon proper application to the Division.

(5) A Teachers' Retirement System member whose employment is terminated for any reason other than death or retirement shall be eligible for benefits in accordance with Chapter 238, F.S., upon proper application to the Division.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.052(5)(c), 121.055, 121.091 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-10-72, 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 8-26-81, Formerly 22B-4.09, Amended 1-12-87, 2-7-89, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-4.009, Amended 8-4-94, 2-24-99.

60S-4.010 Retirement Benefit Payment Options.

(1) Prior to the receipt of his or her first monthly benefit payment, an FRS Pension Plan member who is eligible for a retirement benefit computed in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, 60S-4.005, or 60S-4.006, F.A.C., shall select one of the four optional forms of payment of such benefits, as provided in paragraphs (a), (b), (c), or (d), on Form FRS-110 (Rev 01/10), "Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Option Selection for FRS Members", herein adopted by reference, which also requires such member to attest to his or her marital status on Form SA-1 (Rev. 01/10), Florida Retirement System Spousal Acknowledgment Form, herein adopted by reference. ~~the appropriate retirement application as required in subsection 60S-4.0035(1), F.A.C., or the Option Selection for FRS Members;~~ A married member who selects option 1 under paragraph (a) or option 2 under paragraph (b) shall notify his or her spouse of such option selection, and the spouse shall acknowledge any such option selection in accordance with subsection 60S-4.010(9), F.A.C. The four options are as follows:

(a) Option 1. The maximum retirement benefit payable to the member during his or her lifetime.

(b) Option 2. A retirement benefit payable during his or her lifetime and, in the event of his or her death within a period of 10 years after his or her retirement, the same monthly amount to be payable to his or her beneficiary for the balance of such 10-year period.

(c) Option 3. A retirement benefit which shall be payable during the joint lifetime of both the member and his or her joint annuitant and which shall continue after the death of either during the lifetime of the survivor in the same amount, except as provided in paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(e), F.A.C.

(d) Option 4. A retirement benefit payable during the joint lifetime of the member and his or her joint annuitant, and which shall continue after the death of either during the lifetime of the survivor in an amount equal to 66 2/3 percent of the amount which was payable during the joint lifetime of the member and his or her joint annuitant, except as provided in paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(e), F.A.C.

(e) A joint annuitant, as defined in paragraph 60S-6.001(36)(34)(b), F.A.C., who is under age 25 or disabled will receive, upon the member's death, the amount of the option 1 benefit determined under paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(a), F.A.C., only until such joint annuitant reaches age 25 unless he or she is disabled, in which case, the option 1 benefit amount will continue for the duration of the disability. The following shall apply to the payment of benefits under this paragraph:

1. A person designated as a joint annuitant who is over age 25 shall qualify as a disabled joint annuitant provided:

a. The person is totally and permanently disabled from performing gainful employment by reason of a medically determinable physical or mental impairment, and

b. The Division receives two Physician's Reports, ~~(Form SB-13b (Rev. 03/01), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Physician's Report, herein adopted by reference FR-13b, adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C., completed by two Florida licensed physicians attesting to the total and permanent disability of the person, and any other evidence of disability requested by the Administrator which may include reports from vocational rehabilitation, evaluation, or testing specialists who have evaluated the applicant for employment.~~

2. Should the Administrator determine that such person has failed to demonstrate total and permanent disability, as provided in subparagraph 1. the following procedure shall be followed:

a. The person shall be notified by certified mail with return receipt requested. The notice shall include a summary of the factual, legal and policy grounds for the Administrator's intended decision.

b. When a person receives notice that the Administrator intends to deny his or her application, he or she shall have 21 calendar days to present written evidence to the Administrator in opposition to the intended action or written objections challenging the grounds upon which the Administrator has based his or her intended decision.

c. If the Administrator overrules the objections of the person, he or she shall provide a written explanation to the person by certified mail with return receipt requested, giving the reasons for his or her decision and advising the person of his or her right of appeal under the law.

d. If the person does not accept the Administrator's final decision on the merits, the person may request in writing an administrative hearing on his or her disability claim by filing within 21 calendar days from the date the annuitant receives notice of the Administrator's final decision, a petition in accordance with Rule 28-106.201, F.A.C. 60S-10.003, F.A.C.

3. The Division of Retirement may conduct periodic reexaminations of joint annuitants who have been granted disability under this paragraph to determine whether or not such joint annuitants continue to meet the disability criteria applicable in their case. The following procedures shall govern such disability reexamination cases:

a. The Division will mail the joint annuitant forms FR-13e, "Florida Retirement System Retiree's Report of Continuing Disability" and FR-13f, "Florida Retirement System ~~FRS~~ Physician's Report of Reexamination" adopted in Rule 60S-4.007 60S-9.001, F.A.C. Such forms should be completed by the joint annuitant and his or her physician and returned to the Disability Determination Section within 60 days, unless an extension of time is requested and approved by the Division.

b. through c. No change.

d. Based on the information obtained pursuant to the provisions of subparagraphs a. and b., if the Administrator finds the joint annuitant is no longer disabled under the criteria

used to determine his or her original disability, the joint annuitant will be notified by certified mail of the initial findings and conclusions and that the Administrator intends to discontinue his or her benefit. The notice shall include a summary of the factual, legal and policy grounds for the intended decision.

e. When a joint annuitant receives notice that the Administrator intends to discontinue his or her benefits, he or she shall have 21 calendar days to present written evidence in opposition to the intended action or written objections challenging the grounds upon which the Administrator has based his or her intended decision. The joint annuitant may submit additional evidence or a written statement for reconsideration of the Division's denial of benefits and his or her benefit will continue subject to reconsideration.

f. After reconsideration of the joint annuitant's file, including any additional evidence or written statement submitted by the joint annuitant or obtained by the Division, the Administrator shall provide a written final decision on the merits to the joint annuitant by certified mail giving the reasons for the decision and will notify the joint annuitant that his or her benefits will continue if he or she is found to be disabled or will terminate effective the first day of the following month if he or she is found to be not disabled.

g. If the joint annuitant does not accept the Administrator's final decision on the merits, he or she may request in writing an administrative hearing on his or her disability claim by filing within 21 calendar days from the date he or she receives notice of the Administrator's final decision, a petition in accordance with Rule 28-106.201, F.A.C. 60S-10.003, F.A.C.

4. A joint annuitant who is determined to be disabled under this paragraph, and subsequently recovers, shall notify the Division immediately to have his or her benefits discontinued.

(2) through (3) No change.

(4) The benefits payable under Options 3 or 4 shall be calculated as follows:

(a) Determine the maximum retirement benefit the member is eligible for under Option 1.

(b) Using the member's age and the joint annuitant's age at date of retirement, select the actuarial factor listed for the option selected by the member. The following exception exists, however, for any member who continues employment with a covered employer after becoming eligible to retire with an Option 1 benefit equal to 100% of his or her A. F. C. When the member retires, the actuarial factor shall be determined by the age of the member and that of his or her joint annuitant at the time the member became eligible for the benefit equal to 100% of his or her A. F. C.

(c) Multiply the maximum retirement benefit obtained in paragraph (a) above by the actuarial factor obtained in paragraph (b) above to determine the benefit which the member shall receive.

(d) The benefit of a member who chooses Option 3 and designates more than one joint annuitant, shall be the total of the portions of the benefit designated for each such joint annuitant, calculated based on the age of the member and the age of each joint annuitant for each separate percentage of the benefit.

(5) A member shall select an option for receiving benefits and may change such option selection until the time a benefit payment has been cashed or deposited. Thereafter, the member shall not be permitted to change the option he or she selected and, upon the member's death, benefits shall be paid in accordance with such option selected.

(6) The following shall apply to the option selection of any member who dies prior to the time a benefit payment has been cashed or deposited:

(a) If the member should die prior to his or her effective date of retirement, as described in Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C., his or her employment will be considered to have been terminated by death (even if the death occurred after his or her last day of employment), his or her option selection shall be null and void, and benefits shall be payable in accordance with the provisions of Rule 60S-4.008, F.A.C. This paragraph shall not be construed to allow the benefit of a member who dies after he or she has terminated employment to be calculated according to the provisions of paragraph 60S-4.005(2)(c), F.A.C.

(b) If the member should die after his or her effective date of retirement, his or her employment will be considered to have been terminated by retirement, and benefits shall be payable in accordance with the retirement option selected as provided by this section, except as follows:

1. When the designated beneficiary qualifies as a joint annuitant benefits shall be payable in accordance with the provisions of Rule 60S-4.008, F.A.C.; or,

2. When the spouse is the designated beneficiary and the member had selected option 3, the spouse may elect to receive such option 3 benefit as of the member's effective date of retirement in lieu of the benefits provided in Rule 60S-4.008, F.A.C.

(c) If the member should die after his or her effective date of retirement and without having selected an option, benefits shall be payable as follows:

1. If the member's designated beneficiary does not qualify as a joint annuitant, benefits shall be paid under option 1, with any benefits due from his or her effective date of retirement through the month of death payable to the member's estate.

2. If the member's designated beneficiary qualifies as a joint annuitant, his or her previously established effective date of retirement shall be null and void and benefits shall be paid in accordance with the provisions of Rule 60S-4.008, F.A.C.

(7) If the member retires due to disability and dies after his or her effective date of retirement and prior to cashing or depositing a retirement benefit payment, benefits will be payable in accordance with the provisions of subsection 60S-4.010(6), F.A.C., except as follows:

(a) If the member had satisfied the service requirements for vesting and his or her designated beneficiary qualifies as a joint annuitant, the beneficiary may select a refund of member contributions, an Option 3 benefit under disability retirement as of the member's effective date of retirement, or an Option 3 benefit under service retirement as provided in Rule 60S-4.008(3), F.A.C., with the member's previously established effective date of retirement deemed null and void.

(b) If the member had not satisfied the service requirements for vesting, was approved for in-line-of-duty disability and his or her designated beneficiary was qualified as a joint annuitant, the beneficiary may select a refund of member contributions or an Option 3 benefit under disability retirement as of the member's effective date of retirement.

(8) A member who selects Option 3 or 4 shall designate a joint annuitant to receive the benefits which continue to be payable upon his or her death. If, after benefits have commenced under Option 3 or 4, the retired member desires to change his or her designation of a joint annuitant, he or she may do so as follows:

(a) From October 1, 1979 through June 30, 1984, a retired member may change his or her designated joint annuitant only if his or her first designated joint annuitant is alive and can show evidence of good health as shall be substantiated by a statement from a Florida licensed physician. A member desiring to change his or her designation shall file such change with the Division on Form JA-1 (Rev. 12/02, "Florida Retirement System Pension Plan a-notarized Change of Joint Annuitant (Retired members only)" form (JA-1), herein adopted by reference, as adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C. Upon receipt of the completed form, the Division shall adjust the member's monthly benefit in accordance with subparagraph 60S-4.010(8)(c)1., F.A.C. The consent of a retired member's first designated joint annuitant to any such change shall not be required. The effective date of the change will be the first day of the month following receipt of the JA-1 "Change of Joint Annuitant" form by the Division.

(b) Effective July 1, 1984, a retired member may change his or her designated joint annuitant twice during his or her retired life. A retired member desiring to change his or her designation shall file with the Division a Form JA-1, "Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Change of Joint Annuitant (Retired members only)" form (JA-1) and notify, in writing, his or her former joint annuitant, if living, of such change. Upon receipt of the completed form, the Division shall adjust the retired member's monthly benefit in accordance with paragraph 60S-4.010(8)(c), F.A.C. The consent of a retired member's first designated joint annuitant to any such change

shall not be required. The effective date of the change will be the first day of the month following receipt of the JA-1 "Change of Joint Annuitant" form by the Division, provided the member and the new joint annuitant are alive on that date. If the member and the new joint annuitant do not live until the effective date of the change, the change of joint annuitant will not take effect.

(c) The monthly benefit of a member who elects to change his or her designated joint annuitant shall be adjusted by the application of actuarial tables and calculations developed to ensure that the benefit paid is the actuarial equivalent of the present value of the member's monthly benefit at the time of the joint annuitant change. The computation of such adjustment shall depend upon the status of the member's current joint annuitant at the time of the joint annuitant change, and shall be calculated as follows:

1. through 2. No change.

(d) In the event of the dissolution of marriage of a retired member and his or her designated joint annuitant, such member may, on or after June 17, 1998, elect to nullify the joint annuitant designation of the former spouse, unless there is an existing qualified domestic relations order preventing such action. The member must file with the Division a ~~written~~, notarized statement of nullification on Form JA-NUL (Rev. 07/99), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Joint Annuitant Nullification Form, herein adopted by reference and a copy of the divorce decree. The nullification shall be effective on the first day of the next month following receipt by the Division of the properly completed form and a copy of the divorce decree. Benefits due the member shall be adjusted, if appropriate, and shall be paid as if the former spouse predeceased the member. A member who makes such an election may not reverse the nullification. Such nullification shall not count as a change of joint annuitant unless the member chooses to designate a new joint annuitant in accordance with paragraph (b) and subparagraph (c)2., in which case the member's monthly benefit will be adjusted as though the member's nullified joint annuitant is not living.

(9) A married member who selects option 1 as provided in paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(a), F.A.C., or option 2 as provided in paragraph 60S-4.010(1)(b), F.A.C., shall notify his or her spouse of such option selection, and the spouse shall acknowledge such option selection as follows:

(a) A member who selects option 1 or 2 shall be required to indicate if he or she is married or not married on ~~the appropriate application form as required in subsection 60S-4.010(1), F.A.C., or the Spousal Acknowledgment Form SA-1 (Rev. 01/10), Florida Retirement System Spousal Acknowledgment Form, herein adopted by reference, FST-40e1, as adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.~~ If the member is married, his or her spouse shall complete the spousal acknowledgment section of sign such form acknowledging that the member has selected option 1 or 2.

(b) If the Division does not receive a completed spousal acknowledgment of option selection, the Division will advise the member in writing that his or her benefits will not commence until:

1. Such completed spousal acknowledgment of option selection is received by the Division; or

2. It is established in writing to the satisfaction of the Division that the spouse cannot be located; or

3. In the case of refusal by the spouse to sign the spousal acknowledgment of option selection, the Division shall notify the spouse member provides evidence that he has notified his spouse in writing of the his option selection. Such notification evidence shall constitute acknowledgment by the spouse of such selection.

(10) Prior to the receipt of his or her first monthly benefit payment, a State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System member who is eligible for a retirement benefit computed in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, 60S-4.005 or 60S-4.006, F.A.C., shall select one of the four optional forms of payment of such benefits, as provided in Section 122.08, F.S., on Form FST-11o (Rev 07/06), Teacher's Retirement System and State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Option Selection for Members, herein adopted by reference.

(11) Prior to the receipt of his or her first monthly benefit payment, a Teachers' Retirement System member who is eligible for a retirement benefit computed in accordance with Rule 60S-4.004, 60S-4.005, or 60S-4.006, F.A.C., shall select one of the four optional forms of payment of such benefits, as provided in section 238.08, F.S., on Form FST-11o, Option Selection for TRS and SCOERS Members, as adopted in subsection (10).

~~Rulemaking Specific~~ Authority 121.031, 121.052(14), ~~121.31~~ FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.052, 121.055, 121.091(6), (11) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 12-31-74, 7-1-79, 5-18-80, 8-26-81, 1-18-83, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-4.10, Amended 3-11-87, 9-5-90, 5-15-91, 9-8-92, Formerly 22B-4.010, Amended 3-12-96, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-4.011 Designation of Beneficiary.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) If a member has transferred from an existing system, any person whom the member had designated as his or her beneficiary under that existing system shall remain the member's designated beneficiary and shall receive the benefits, if any, which may be payable pursuant to these rules in the event of the member's death, unless the member changes his or her designation of beneficiary on the proper form provided by the Division.

(4) A member may designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries at any time prior to retirement, as follows:

(a) A member may designate one or more beneficiaries, to receive benefits sequentially, or jointly.

(b) A member may designate as beneficiary any person, organization, trust, or his or her estate; or he or she may designate that benefits be paid according to law as provided in subsection 60S-4.011(2), F.A.C., and Section 121.091(8), F.S.

(c) Such beneficiary designation shall be made on the Form BEN-001 (Rev. 06/04), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Beneficiary Designation Form Active Members Only, herein adopted by reference as ~~adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.~~

(d) A member may change his or her designation of a beneficiary at any time prior to retirement on the Form BEN-001 FST-12.

(e) No change.

(5) Upon application for retirement, a member shall be required to complete a new designation of beneficiary on the appropriate application form as provided in subsection 60S-4.0035(1), F.A.C., as follows:

(a) A member who selects option 1 or 2, as provided in paragraphs 60S-4.010(1)(a) or (b), F.A.C., may:

1. Designate as beneficiary any person, organization, trust, or his or her estate; or designate that benefits be paid according to law as provided in subsection 60S-4.011(2), F.A.C., and Section 121.091(8), F.S.

2. Designate one or more beneficiaries to receive benefits jointly or sequentially.

3. Change his or her designation of beneficiary at any time on ~~the Beneficiary Designation For Retired Members, Form FST-12 (Rev. 12/02), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Beneficiary Designation Form (Retired Members Only), herein adopted by reference as adopted in Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.~~

(b) through (c) No change.

(6) An active or retired member may designate a trust as beneficiary or may designate a beneficiary whose benefits are to be paid through a trust, subject to the following:

(a) If a member who dies prior to his or her effective date of retirement has designated a trust as his or her beneficiary, such trust shall be entitled only to a refund of the member's contributions as provided in subsection 60S-4.008(1) or (2)(a), F.A.C.

(b) If a member who dies prior to his or her effective date of retirement has designated a beneficiary to receive benefits through a trust, such beneficiary shall be entitled to the same benefits, in accordance with Rule 60S-4.008, F.A.C., as if the member had designated such beneficiary without specifying that benefits be paid through a trust.

(c) No change.

(d) When a member makes a beneficiary designation involving a trust, either upon application for retirement or after retirement, he or she shall file with the Division:

1. through 3. No change.

(e) through (f) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.091(6), (8) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 12-31-74, 1-19-82, 9-9-82, Formerly 22B-4.11, Amended 2-7-89, 9-5-90, 5-15-91, 11-14-91, 9-8-92, Formerly 22B-4.011, Amended 3-12-96, 2-24-99, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-4.012 Employment After Retirement.

(1) Any retired member of a state-administered retirement system of Florida except for a retiree under the disability retirement provisions of Section 121.091(4), F.S. may be employed by a private employer or a public employer who does not participate in the Florida Retirement System without affecting his or her retirement benefits.

(2) The following reemployment limitations shall apply to any retiree of a state-administered retirement system who is reemployed by a Florida Retirement System employer in either a regularly established position or a temporary position, during the first 12 calendar months of retirement. For service retirements without DROP participation this 12 calendar month reemployment limitation period shall commence the month of the retiree's after his effective date of retirement. For DROP participants such reemployment limitation period shall apply and commence in the calendar month following the participant's DROP termination date. Any person employed in violation of any of the limitations in this section, and any employing agency which knowingly employs or appoints such person without notifying the Division to suspend retirement benefits shall be jointly and severally liable for reimbursement to the retirement trust fund of any benefits paid during the reemployment limitation period. To avoid liability, Such such employing agency shall have a written statement from the retiree that he or she is not retired from a state-administered retirement system or may use the State Board of Administration Form CERT (Rev. 06/2011), Florida Retirement System (FRS) – Certification Form, created for such purpose and herein adopted by reference.

(a) 1. For retirements without DROP participation effective before July 1, 2010 and for DROP termination dates before July 1, 2010, reemployment Reemployment with an employer during the first calendar month of the 12 calendar month reemployment limitation period after his effective date of retirement shall result in cancellation of retirement; the member's retirement application shall be void and he or she shall be required to repay all retirement benefits received including any DROP accrual.

2. For retirements without DROP participation effective on or after July 1, 2010 and for DROP termination dates on or after July 1, 2010, reemployment with an employer during the first six calendar months of the 12 calendar month reemployment limitation period shall result in cancellation of retirement; the member's retirement application shall be void and he or she shall be required to repay all retirement benefits received including any DROP accrual.

~~(b)1. For retirements without DROP participation effective before July 1, 2010 and for DROP termination dates before July 1, 2010, reemployment with an employer during the second through twelfth calendar months of the reemployment limitation period after his effective date of retirement shall result in suspension of retirement benefits except as provided in subsection 60S-4.012(3), F.A.C. If the retiree is reemployed prior to expiration of the reemployment limitation period stated in subsection (2) above he shall:~~

~~2. For retirements without DROP participation effective on or after July 1, 2010 and for DROP termination dates on or after July 1, 2010, reemployment with an employer during the seventh through the twelfth calendars of the reemployment limitation period shall result in suspension of retirement benefits.~~

~~3. If a retiree is reemployed during the calendar months of the reemployment limitation period applicable to his or her effective retirement date or DROP termination date as provided in sub paragraphs 1., or 2., above, he or she shall:~~

~~a.1- Notify the Division in writing of such employment and have his or her benefits suspended effective the first day of the first month of reemployment which may be done utilizing Form FR-23 (Rev. 07/10), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Notification of Reemployment for Suspension of Retirement Benefits, herein adopted by reference. This suspension shall remain in effect for the balance of the reemployment limitation period or for every month of the reemployment limitation period in which he or she is employed, and benefits that would have been paid during the period of suspension are forfeited;~~

~~b.2- Notify the employer in writing that he or she is receiving retirement benefits from a state-administered retirement system;~~

~~c.3- Upon expiration of the reemployment limitation period or upon termination of employment prior to expiration of the reemployment limitation period, notify the Division in writing that his or her reemployment limitation period has been completed or that he or she is no longer employed and desires to have his or her benefits reinstated which may be done utilizing Form FR-23a (Rev. 05/05), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application to Reactivate Retirement Benefits, herein adopted by reference. Upon verification by his or her employer, his or her retirement benefits will then be reinstated effective the first day of the month following termination of employment or expiration of the reemployment limitation period;~~

4. If he or she returns to work again during the reemployment limitation period, notify the Division to suspend his or her benefits again for any month in which he or she is employed.

(c) If he or she is reemployed by an employer and fails to have his or her retirement benefits suspended during the reemployment limitation period stated in subsection (2) above he or she shall:

1. Have his or her retirement benefits suspended;

2. Repay to the Division any retirement benefits received while reemployed during the reemployment limitation period. Such suspension shall continue until full repayment has been made for all retirement benefits received during the reemployment limitation period stated in subsection (2) above. Benefits suspended beyond the reemployment limitation period shall apply toward repayment of benefits received in violation of the reemployment limitation.

~~(3)(a) For retirements without DROP participation effective before July 1, 2010 and for DROP termination dates before July 1, 2010, after After the first calendar month of the reemployment limitation period retirement, certain retirees may be reemployed for 780 hours during the reemployment limitation period of the second through the twelfth calendar months of the reemployment limitation period following the effective date of retirement as follows:~~

~~(a) Any retiree of the Florida Retirement System or the Teachers' Retirement System may be reemployed by a district school board or a participating charter school as a substitute or an hourly teacher on a noncontractual basis; or~~

~~(b) Any retiree of the Florida Retirement System may be reemployed by a district school board or a participating charter school as an education paraprofessional, transportation assistant, bus driver, or food service worker on a noncontractual basis; or~~

~~1.(c) Such Any retiree of the Florida Retirement System or the Teachers' Retirement System may be reemployed by a community college board of trustees as an adjunct instructor (i.e., an instructor who is noncontractual and part-time. A part-time community college instructor is one who teaches less than 15 course hours per week, or if paid hourly, teaches less than 40 hours per week); or~~

~~2.(d) Such Any retiree of the Florida Retirement System or the Teachers' Retirement System may be reemployed by a community college board of trustees as a participant in a phased retirement program, within the State Community College System; or~~

~~3.(e) Such Any retiree of the Florida Retirement System or the Teachers' Retirement System may be reemployed as an adjunct faculty member as defined in paragraph 6C-5.910(4)(a) 6C-5.105(5)(e), F.A.C., or as a participant in a phased retirement program, within the State University System; or~~

~~(f) Any retiree of the Florida Retirement System or the Teachers' Retirement System may be reemployed as a noncontractual substitute teacher, substitute residential instructor, or substitute nurse for the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind; or~~

~~(g) Any retiree of the Florida Retirement System may be reemployed as a firefighter or paramedic.~~

~~4.(h) Such retiree as described in subparagraphs 1.(a) through 3.(g) who is reemployed is subject to the following:~~

~~a.1- He or she may concurrently receive retirement benefits and compensation for such employment for a total of 780 hours during the second through the twelfth calendar months of the reemployment limitation period stated in subsection 60S-4.012(2), F.A.C.;~~

~~b.2- He or she shall notify the employer in writing that he or she is receiving retirement benefits from the Florida Retirement System or the Teachers' Retirement System;~~

~~c.3- If he or she is reemployed for more than 780 hours during the reemployment limitation period he or she shall:~~

~~I.a- Notify the employer and the Division in writing of the date on which he or she will complete 780 hours of employment, at which time the Division shall suspend his or her retirement benefits effective the first day of the month following the month in which he or she completes 780 hours of employment. This suspension shall remain in effect for every month in which he or she is employed during the remainder of the reemployment limitation period, and benefits that would have been paid during the period of suspension are forfeited;~~

~~II.b- Repay to the Division any retirement benefits received during the reemployment limitation period while reemployed beyond the month in which he or she completes 780 hours of employment. Benefits suspended beyond the end of the reemployment limitation period shall apply toward repayment of benefits received during the reemployment limitation period while reemployed beyond the month in which he or she completes 780 hours of employment;~~

~~III.e- Upon expiration of the reemployment limitation period or upon termination of employment prior to expiration of the reemployment limitation period, notify the Division in writing that his or her reemployment limitation period has expired or that he or she is no longer employed and desires to have his or her benefits reinstated. Upon verification by his or her employer, his or her retirement benefits will then be reinstated effective the first day of the month following termination of employment or expiration of the reemployment limitation period;~~

~~IV.d- If he or she returns to work again during the reemployment limitation period, notify the Division to suspend his or her benefits again for any month in which he or she is employed.~~

~~(b) For retirements without DROP participation effective before July 1, 2010 and for DROP termination dates before July 1, 2010, after the first calendar month of the reemployment limitation period, certain retirees may be reemployed during the second through the twelfth months of the reemployment limitation period as follows:~~

1. Such retiree may be reemployed by a district school board as a classroom teacher (as defined in Section 1012.01(2)(a), F.S.) on an annual contractual basis, non-contractual substitute or hourly teacher, education paraprofessional, transportation assistants, bus drivers, or food service workers; or

2. Such retiree may be reemployed by the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind as a substitute teacher, substitute residential instructor, or substitute nurse on a non-contractual basis; or

3. Such retiree may be reemployed by participating charter schools as a classroom teacher (as defined in Section 1012.01(2)(a), F.S.) on an annual contractual basis, or as substitute or hourly teacher on a non-contractual basis.

4. Such retiree may be reemployed by Developmental Research school on an annual contractual basis as a classroom teacher as defined in Section 1012.01(2)(a), F.S., or as substitute or hourly teacher or education paraprofessional on a non-contractual basis.

5. Such retiree who is reemployed as described in subparagraphs 1., through 4., is subject to the following:

a. He or she may concurrently receive retirement benefits and compensation for such employment during the second through the twelfth calendar months of the reemployment limitation period stated in subsection 60S-4.012(2), F.A.C.;

b. He or she shall notify the employer in writing that he or she is receiving retirement benefits from the Florida Retirement System or the Teachers' Retirement System;

(c) For retirements without DROP participation effective on or after July 1, 2010 and for DROP termination dates on or after July 1, 2010, there are no reemployment limitation exceptions during the seventh through the twelfth calendar month of the reemployment limitation period.

(4) Any retired member who is reemployed under the provisions of subsection 60S-4.012(2) or (3), F.A.C., shall not have his or her average final compensation or years of creditable service adjusted because of such employment.

(5) Any employer who employs a retired member of a state administered retirement system, in a regularly established position, shall pay the required contributions in accordance with subsections 60S-3.003(6) and (7), F.A.C.:-

(a) Those retirees who are initially reemployed in a regularly established position prior to July 1, 2010 shall have renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System. Submit a Personal History Record, Form FRS M10, for each employee, and

(b) Those retirees who are initially reemployed in a regularly established position on or after July 1, 2010 shall not be eligible for renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System. Pay the required contributions in accordance with subsection 60S-3.003(5), F.A.C.

(6)(a)1. Any person previously retired from a state-administered retirement system who holds an elective public office or an appointment to an elective public office on or before June 30, 2010, shall have renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System as provided by Rule 60S-1.0045, F.A.C., for an office not covered by the Elected Officers' Class, or as provided by subsection 60S-1.0055(4), F.A.C., for an office that is covered by the Elected Officers' Class. Such Elected Officers shall continue to receive retirement benefits as well as compensation for the elected office without regard to the limitations provided in this section.

2. Any person previously retired from a state-administered retirement system who is initially reemployed as a result of holding an elective public office or an appointment to an elective public office on or after July 1, 2010, shall not be eligible for renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System.

(b) Any retired member who was elected to an office prior to July 1, 1990, suspended his or her retirement benefit, and reinstated his or her Florida Retirement System membership, shall, upon subsequent retirement, have his or her retirement benefits recomputed using such period of creditable reemployment as provided in subsection 60S-2.008(1), F.A.C. All required contributions shall be made by the employer and/or the member for the entire period of reemployment, as required in Rule 60S-3.009, F.A.C.

(c) Any elected officer participating in the Deferred Retirement Optional Program as a member of the Elected Officers' Class prior to July 1, 2002 may continue in elected office upon reaching the Deferred Retirement Optional Program end date and shall become a renewed member of the Elected Officers' Class the first of the month following Deferred Retirement Optional Program termination.

(d)1. Effective July 1, 2002 through June 30, 2010, any ~~Any~~ elected officer participating in the Deferred Retirement Optional Program as a member of the Elected Officers' Class ~~on or after July 1, 2002~~ may continue in elected office upon reaching the Deferred Retirement Optional Program end date and shall not be eligible to become a renewed member of the Florida Retirement System for as long as such officer holds an office covered by the Elected Officers' Class under the Florida Retirement System. Any such elected officer who chooses to continue in elected office beyond his or her DROP end date would be subject to the termination requirements and reemployment limitations in effect on the date when he or she no longer holds elective office.

2. Effective on and after July 1, 2010, any elected officer participating in the Deferred Retirement Optional Program regardless of membership class on or after July 1, 2010 is subject to termination as defined in Section 121.021, F.S. and reemployment limitations as provided in Section 121.091(9), upon completion of his or her DROP participation period. However, such elected officer may defer termination and

reemployment limitations until the end of his or her current term of office or, if the officer is consecutively elected or reelected to an elective office eligible for coverage under the Florida Retirement System, until he or she no longer holds an elective office. Such elected officer who chooses to defer termination and reemployment limitations beyond his or her DROP end date would be subject to the termination and reemployment limitations in effect on the date he or she terminates elective office.

3. Any elected officer as provided in subparagraph (d)1. above, who chooses to continue in elected office beyond his or her DROP end date or any elected officer as provided in subparagraph (d)2. above, who chooses to defer termination and reemployment limitations beyond his or her DROP end date the following applies:

a. The officer shall not be eligible to receive his or her accumulated DROP account and commence receiving monthly retirement benefits until termination of elective office. Monthly retirement benefits shall be paid on a prospective basis only.

b. The officer shall be subject to the termination requirement and reemployment limitations in effect on the date he or she terminates elective office.

c. The officer's DROP account may not accrue additional monthly benefits beyond the DROP end date.

d. If the officer's DROP participation began prior to July 1, 2010, the officer's DROP account shall continue to earn interest beyond the DROP end date as provided in Section 121.090(13), F.S.

e. If the officer's DROP participation began on or after July 1, 2010, the officer's DROP account shall not earn interest beyond the DROP end date.

(7)(a) A retired Justice or Judge whose retirement without DROP participation is effective prior to July 1, 2010 or whose DROP termination date is prior to July 1, 2010 who after meeting termination as defined in Section 121.021, F.S., is assigned to active judicial service pursuant to Article V of the State Constitution shall continue to receive retirement benefits without being affected by the restrictions of this section but shall not be eligible for renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System.

(b) A retired Justice or Judge whose retirement without DROP participation is effective on or after July 1, 2010 or whose DROP termination date is on or after July 1, 2010 who after meeting termination as defined in Section 121.021, F.S., is assigned to active judicial service pursuant to Article V of the State Constitution shall be subject to reemployment limitations as provided in Section 121.091(9), F.S., and shall not be eligible for renewed membership in the Florida Retirement System.

(8) Any person who holds an elective public office and is concurrently employed in nonelected covered employment may elect to retire effective on or before June 1, 2010, from his

or her nonelected employment while continuing employment in his or her elective public office. Such person shall be required to terminate his or her nonelected covered employment as provided in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C. (termination). Any person exercising this election shall receive his or her retirement benefits in addition to the compensation of the elective office without regard to the limitations otherwise provided in paragraph 60S-4.012(2)(b), F.A.C.; and,

(a) Effective effective July 1, 1990, any such person whose elective office is covered by the Elected Officers' Class whose effective retirement date for his or her nonelected covered employment is on or before June 1, 2010, shall be reenrolled in such class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0055(4), F.A.C.

(b) Effective July 1, 1991 and through June 30, 2010, any such person whose elective office is covered by the Regular Class shall be reenrolled in such class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0045, F.A.C.

(9) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.053, 121.091(9), 121.046(4), 238.181 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Amended 7-1-79, 8-26-81, 9-9-82, 10-11-82, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, 9-24-85, Formerly 22B-4.12, Amended 3-11-87, 2-7-89, 9-5-90, 11-14-91, 9-8-92, Formerly 22B-4.012, Amended 3-18-93, 4-5-95, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-4.015 Deductions from Monthly Benefits.

Subject to approval by the Division, a payee (retiree or beneficiary) receiving retirement benefits under the Florida Retirement System, State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System and the Teachers' Retirement System may have certain payments deducted from his or her monthly benefit as follows:

(1) Federal income tax shall be withheld in accordance with federal law unless the payee elects otherwise on Form W-4P.

(2) Premiums for life and health-related insurance policies from approved companies may be deducted, provided:

(a) New deductions, or a restart of previously closed deductions, Deductions are authorized in writing by the payee and by the insurance company;

(b) A minimum of 50 25 payees have authorized deductions and are covered by each such company participating in the payroll deduction program;

(c) through (g) No change.

(3) Life insurance premiums for the State Group Life Insurance Plan may be deducted, provided deductions are authorized in writing by the payee and the Division of State Group Employees² Insurance.

(4) Repayment of overpayments from the Florida Retirement System Trust Fund or the State Employees' Group Health Insurance Trust Fund may be deducted upon notification to the payee by the Division of Retirement or the Division of State Group Employees² Insurance.

(5) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 61.1301, 121.031, 222.21 FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, Formerly 22B-4.15, Amended 5-15-91, Formerly 22B-4.015, Amended 8-4-94, 8-13-03, _____.

60S-4.021 Forfeiture of Benefits.

(1) Any member who has been found guilty by a verdict of a jury or by the court trying the case without a jury, or who has entered a plea of guilty or a plea of nolo contendere to committing, aiding, or abetting any embezzlement or theft from his or her employer, bribery in connection with his or her employment, or any other felony specified in Chapter 838, F.S., except for commercial bribery as provided in Sections 838.15 and 838.16, F.S., committed prior to retirement; or any member whose employment is terminated by reason of his or her admitted commission, aiding or abetting of any of the offenses above, or any elected official who is convicted by the Senate of an impeachable offense, shall forfeit all rights and benefits under the Florida Retirement System except the return of his or her accumulated contributions. If such member is subsequently reemployed, he or she shall be eligible for benefits based on creditable service earned subsequent to his or her reemployment, but shall not be eligible to claim as creditable service any period prior to his or her reemployment for which he or she was required to forfeit all rights and benefits except his or her contributions.

(2) Any member who, prior to retirement, is adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to have violated any state law against strikes by public employees or who has been found guilty by such courts of violating any state law prohibiting strikes by public employees shall forfeit all rights and benefits under this chapter except the return of his or her accumulated contributions. If such a member is subsequently reemployed he or she shall be eligible for benefits based on creditable service earned subsequent to his or her reemployment, but shall not be eligible to claim as creditable service any period prior to his or her reemployment for which he or she received a refund of contributions.

(3) Any member who, prior to retirement, is convicted of a felony committed on or after October 1, 2008, as defined in Section 800.04, F.S., against a victim younger than 16 years of age, or defined in Chapter 794, F.S., against a victim, younger than 18 years of age, through the use of power, rights, privileges, duties, or position of the member's public office or employment position shall forfeit all rights and benefits under this chapter except the return of his or her accumulated contributions. If such member is subsequently reemployed, he or she shall be eligible for benefits based on creditable service

earned subsequent to his or her reemployment, but shall not be eligible to claim as creditable service any period prior to his or her reemployment for which he or she was required to forfeit all rights and benefits except his or her contributions.

~~(4)(3)~~ The following shall apply concerning forfeiture of benefits for members:

(a) A member who has had an information or an indictment filed against him or her in a circuit court relating to a crime that may result in the forfeiture of benefits shall not begin receiving retirement benefits until all criminal charges have been determined by the circuit court and a determination made by the Administrator concerning forfeiture of benefits; except that such a member who has employee contributions on deposit may, upon the approval of the Administrator, receive benefits equal to the total of such contributions, at which time benefits will be suspended until all criminal charges have been determined by the circuit court and a determination made by the Administrator concerning forfeiture of benefits.

(b) A member who has been convicted of a felony that would result in forfeiture of retirement benefits upon his or her retirement, and who subsequently receives a full pardon, is entitled to receive retirement benefits for which he or she is eligible as though the offense had never been committed, provided such member makes application for retirement benefits in accordance with Rule 60S-4.0035, F.A.C. The restoration of civil rights or the sealing of criminal records of such a member does not entitle such member to receive retirement benefits.

~~(5)(4)~~ The following shall apply concerning forfeiture of benefits for retired members:

(a) A retired member who has had an information or an indictment filed against him or her in a circuit court relating to a crime committed prior to his or her retirement that may result in the forfeiture of benefits shall have his or her retirement benefits suspended until all criminal charges have been determined by the circuit court and a determination made by the Administrator concerning forfeiture of benefits; except that such a retired member who has employee contributions on deposit may, upon the approval of the Administrator, receive benefits equal to the total of such contributions, at which time benefits will be suspended until all criminal charges have been determined by the circuit court and a determination made by the Administrator concerning forfeiture of benefits.

(b) A retired member who has forfeited his or her retirement benefits as provided in subsections 60S-4.021(1) and (2), F.A.C., and who subsequently receives a full pardon is entitled to have his or her retirement benefits reinstated prospectively. The restoration of civil rights or the sealing of criminal records of such a member does not entitle such member to the resumption of forfeited retirement benefits.

~~(6)(5)~~ Any person who is the designated beneficiary of a member, and who by a verdict of a jury or by the court trying the case without a jury is found guilty, or who has entered a

plea of guilty or nolo contendere, of unlawfully and intentionally killing or procuring the death of such member shall forfeit all rights to the deceased member's retirement benefits. Any benefits will be paid as if such beneficiary had predeceased the deceased member, however, benefits may not be paid by the Division pending final resolution of such charges against the beneficiary.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.091(5) FS. History—New 8-4-94, Amended 4-5-95, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Sarabeth Snuggs, Director, the Division of Retirement
 NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John P. Miles, Secretary, Department of Management Services
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 18, 2010, Vol. 36/24

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NO.: 60S-4.016
 RULE TITLE: Survivor Benefits under Chapter 238, Florida Statutes

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule amendment will be to repeal a rule identified during the comprehensive rule review required by Executive Order 11-01 as duplicative, unnecessarily burdensome, or no longer necessary.

SUMMARY: This rule is being repealed.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the agency.

Not required because there are no adverse impacts on economic growth, business competitiveness or regulatory costs of more than \$1M in the aggregate within five years of implementation.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The repeal of this rule is not expected to require legislative ratification pursuant to Section 120.541(3)(a)1., F.S., as there will be no impact on economic growth, job creation or employment, private-sector investment, or business competitiveness and no increase in regulatory costs.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 121.031 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 121.051(2)(a)2. FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET

PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director’s Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Richard Clifford, Senior Benefits Analyst, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

60S-4.016 Survivor Benefits under Chapter 238, Florida Statutes.

Rulemaking Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 121.051(2)(a)2. FS. History—New 1-1-72, Repromulgated 12-31-74, 7-1-79, Formerly 22B-4.16, 22B-4.016, Repealed.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Sarabeth Snuggs, Director of the Division of Retirement

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John P. Miles, Secretary of the Department of Management Services

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

60S-6.001 Definitions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect are to amend Division of Retirement rules to correspond with statutory changes up through the 2010 Legislative session and delete obsolete language.

SUMMARY: The amendments in this rule: clarify that the authority and responsibility for administration of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) Pension Plan rest with the Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement. Also, clarify the definitions of the terms “termination,” “gross compensation,” and “average final compensation”; establish the blended or uniform contribution rate for employers participating in the FRS; add and expand certain definitions as required by statute.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

No State of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. The agency has determined that this rule shall not have an effect on small businesses as defined by Section 288.703, Florida Statutes, nor on small counties or small cities as defined by Section 120.52, Florida statutes. Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimate regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein:

Not required because there are no adverse impacts on economic growth, business competitiveness or regulatory costs of more than \$1M in the aggregate within five years of implementation.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 121.031, 121.052(7) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 121.021, 121.031, 121.051, 121.0515, 121.052, 121.091(5)(e), 112.215, 121.4501, 121.70, 943.22(2)(e) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET

PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director’s Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of

Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

60S-6.001 Definitions.

Whenever used in these rules, unless otherwise expressly stated, or unless the context or subject matter requires a different meaning, the following words and terms shall have the respective meanings indicated:

(1) ACCUMULATED ANNUAL LEAVE PAYMENT – Means any payment, made either during an employee’s employment or at termination or retirement, for leave accrued during such employee’s career and which was intended but never utilized by the employee for his or her personal use. General leave, which may be used for both sickness and vacation, is considered accumulated annual leave. When leave is initially accrued separately as annual leave or sick leave and later combined into a consolidated leave account, only the payment for that portion which represents annual leave shall be considered as compensation. If any single lump-sum annual leave payment, made anytime during a member’s employment, exceeds 500 hours, only a maximum of 500 hours of such annual leave payment shall be considered as compensation. Accumulated annual leave payments that may be included in the Average Final Compensation are limited to a combined total of 500 hours as provided in subsection (6).

(2) ACCUMULATED CONTRIBUTIONS – Means the sum of:

(a) A member’s contributions without interest subsequent to December 1, 1970;⁵ and

(b) The single-sum amount the member would have received if he or she were covered by an existing system prior to December 1, 1970, and had terminated membership in such system on November 30, 1970; subject to reduction on account of benefit payments as provided under certain options.

(3) ACCUMULATED SICK LEAVE PAYMENT – Means leave accrued during an employee’s career which was intended for use in the event of sickness, injury or other health problems of a member or his or her family. General leave that which may be used for both sickness and vacation is not considered sick leave. When leave is initially accrued separately as annual leave or sick leave and later combined into a consolidated leave account, the payment that which represents sick leave shall not be considered compensation. Payment for any accumulated sick leave shall not be considered compensation for retirement purposes and shall not be included in the Average Final Compensation.

(4) ADMINISTRATOR – Means the person charged with the responsibility and authority for administering the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan. Such person is the Secretary of the Department of Management Services. From July 1, 1970, through June 30, 1972, this term means the Director of

~~the Division of Personnel and Retirement of the Department of Administration. On and after July 1, 1972, this term shall mean the Director of the Division of Retirement.~~

(5) ANNUAL COMPENSATION – Means the total compensation paid a member during a fiscal year. A year is 12 continuous months.

(6) AVERAGE FINAL COMPENSATION – Means the average of the 5 highest fiscal years of compensation for creditable service prior to retirement, termination or death calculated in accordance with subsection 60S-4.004(1), F.A.C.

(a) The average final compensation shall include:

1. Accumulated annual leave payments as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(1), F.A.C., not to exceed 500 hours,

2. All payments defined as compensation in subsection 60S-6.001(16), F.A.C.,

(b) The average final compensation shall not include:

1. Compensation paid to professional persons for special or particular services.

2. Payments made due to retirement or termination for accumulated sick leave as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(3), F.A.C.

3. Payments for annual leave in excess of 500 hours.

4. Bonuses as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(11), F.A.C.

5. Third party payments made on and after July 1, 1990.

6. Automobile allowances.

7. Housing allowances.

8. Uniform or tool allowances.

9. Fair market value of employer-provided vehicles or reimbursement to employee of market value of employer-provided vehicles.

10. Stipends in lieu of an employer-furnished vehicle.

11. Stipends for reimbursement of parking expenses.

12. Value of meals and lodgings and/or reimbursement for the same.

13. Refunds of insurance premiums paid by the employee provided that the employee does not file an insurance claim.

14. Employer payments for a Health and Life Insurance Program in addition to the base salary.

15. Cash payments paid under a flexible benefits program when the employee’s base salary has not been increased.

(7) through (9) No change.

(10) BLENDED OR UNIFORM CONTRIBUTION RATE – Means the single contribution rate required for each class of membership in the Florida Retirement System, which shall be sufficient to fund both Part I and Part II of the Florida Retirement System in an actuarially sound manner, as provided in Part III of Chapter 121, F.S.

~~(11)(10)~~ BONUS – Means a payment made in addition to an employee’s regular or overtime salary that is usually non-recurring, does not increase the employee’s base rate of pay and includes no commitment for payment in a subsequent year. Such payments are not considered compensation and,

effective July 1, 1989, shall not be reported to the Division as salary, and retirement contributions shall not be made on such payments.

(a) A payment is a bonus if any one of the following applies ~~apply~~:

1. The payments are not paid according to a formal written policy applying to all eligible employees equally; ~~or~~
2. The payments commence later than the eleventh year of employment; ~~or~~
3. The payments are not based on permanent eligibility; or
4. The payments are paid less than annually;

(b) Bonuses shall include but not be limited to the following:

1. Exit bonus or severance pay;
2. Longevity payments made in conformance with the provisions of paragraph 60S-6.001(11)(a), F.A.C., above;
3. Salary increases granted due to an employee's agreement to retire, including increases paid over several months or years prior to retirement;
4. Payments for accumulated overtime or compensatory time, reserve time, or holiday time worked, if not made within 11 months of the month in which the work was performed; and
5. Lump sum payments in recognition of employees' accomplishments.

~~(12)(11)~~ BREAK IN SERVICE – Means an interruption in the continuous service of a member where any of the following occurs:

(a) The member terminates his or her employment in a position covered by the Florida Retirement System or any existing retirement system and receives a refund of the accumulated contributions he or she has made, even though the member later claims prior service and repays the refunded contributions plus interest.

(b) The member has an absence of one calendar month or more from an employer's payroll except for periods of absence where an employer-employee relationship continues to exist and such absence is creditable under the Florida Retirement System or one of the existing systems.

~~(13)(12)~~ CALENDAR MONTH – Means one of the 12 divisions of a year as determined by the Gregorian calendar (e.g., January, April, etc.).

~~(14)(13)~~ CALENDAR YEAR – Means a period of time beginning January 1 and ending on the following December 31.

~~(15)(14)~~ CLOSED RETIREMENT SYSTEM – Means "existing systems" – the retirement systems which existed prior to December 1, 1970, and which were consolidated by Chapter 121, F.S. From December 1, 1970, through June 30, 1972, this term means the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System, the Teachers' Retirement System and the Highway Patrol Pension System created by Chapters 122, 238, and 321, F.S., respectively. On and after

July 1, 1972, this term also includes ~~shall include~~ the Judicial Retirement System established by Chapter 123, F.S. On and after July 1, 2007, this term also includes the Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences Supplemental Retirement Program, established by Section 121.40, F.S.

~~(16)(15)~~ COMPENSATION OR GROSS COMPENSATION –

(a) Compensation means the total gross monthly salary paid a member by his or her employer for work performed arising from that employment, including:

1. Overtime payments, except as provided in subparagraph 60S-6.001(11)(b)4., F.A.C.;
2. Accumulated annual leave payments, as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(1), F.A.C.;
3. Payments in addition to the employee's base rate of pay if all the following apply:

- a. The payments are paid according to a formal written policy that applies to all eligible employees equally; ~~and~~
- b. The policy provides that payments shall commence not later than the eleventh year of employment; ~~and~~
- c. The payments are paid for as long as the employee continues his or her employment; and
- d. The payments are paid at least annually.

4. Amounts withheld for tax-sheltered annuities or deferred compensation programs, or any other type of salary reduction plan authorized under the Internal Revenue Code;

5. Payments, whether made annually or in 12 or 26 equal payments within a 12-month period, made in lieu of a permanent increase in the base rate of pay when the member's base pay is at the maximum of his or her pay range. When a portion of a member's annual increase raises his or her base pay to the maximum of his or her pay range, and the excess is paid as a lump sum payment, such lump sum payment shall be compensation for retirement purposes;

6. Salary supplements paid on or after July 1, 2002 and prior to July 1 2008, to teachers under the Excellent Teaching Program or the Florida Mentor Teacher Pilot Program, as provided in and subject to the requirements of Sections 1012.72 and 1012.73, F.S.

(b) Compensation shall not include:

1. Any bonuses or other payments prohibited from inclusion in the member's average final compensation as defined in paragraph 60S-6.001(6)(b), F.A.C.;

2. Any public funds paid by an employer into an employee's salary reduction, deferred compensation, or tax-sheltered annuity program on or after July 1, 1990 (the date as of which all employers were notified in writing by the Division to cease making contributions based on such amounts). However, if an employer was notified in writing by the Division to cease making such contributions as of a different date, that employer shall be subject to the requirements of such written notice.

3. Any amounts in excess of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 401(a)(17), F.S., limitation as follows:

a. For any person who first became a member before July 1, 1996, compensation for all plan years beginning on or after July 1, 1990, shall not include any amounts in excess of the maximum of \$200,000 in 1989, adjusted for changes in the cost of living thereafter;

b. For any person who first became a member on or after July 1, 1996, compensation for any plan year shall not include any amounts in excess of the maximum of \$150,000 in 1996, adjusted for changes in the cost of living as published by the Internal Revenue Service only in increments of \$10,000.

~~(17)(16)~~ CONTINUOUS SERVICE – Means service in a regularly established position beginning with the first day of employment with an employer covered under a state-administered retirement system consolidated herein and continuing for as long as the member remains in an employer-employee relationship with an employer covered under the system. Continuous service shall cease if the member has a break in service as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(12), F.A.C. Continuous service shall also include past service provided such service is continuous within this definition.

The following types of creditable service shall be considered continuous if the specific criteria listed for each is met:

(a) Military Service Subsequent to Membership in a Retirement System: Military service which interrupts employment and for which retirement credit has been granted under an existing system or the Florida Retirement System pursuant to subsection 60S-2.005(1), F.A.C., shall constitute continuous service.

(b) Leave of Absence Credit: A leave of absence for which credit has been granted under the Florida Retirement System pursuant to Rule 60S-2.006, F.A.C., or an existing retirement system shall not constitute a break in continuous service.

(c) Past Service: Past service as defined by subsection ~~60S-6.001(46)~~ ~~60S-6.001(42)~~, F.A.C., may be claimed as continuous creditable service, if such service was, in fact, continuous within this definition.

(d) Workers' Compensation Service: Creditable service received in accordance with Rule 60S-2.012, F.A.C., for periods during which workers' compensation payments are received shall be considered continuous provided there has been no break in the continuous nature of the member's service other than for the period for which workers' compensation payments were received.

~~(e) Law Enforcement Service: A law enforcement officer who meets the criteria specified in Rule 60S 1.0051, F.A.C., and who is laid off from his position as provided in Section 110.203(24), F.S., resigns his position under Chapter 122 or 321, F.S., or resigns his position to run for an elected office covered by Rule 60S 1.0051, shall be deemed to have continuous service provided he meets the criteria specified in paragraph 60S-2.002(5)(e), (f), or (g), F.A.C.~~

~~(f) Correctional Officer Service: A correctional officer who meets the criteria specified in Rule 60S 1.0053, F.A.C., and whose membership is terminated by privatization of a county detention facility shall be deemed to have continuous service provided he meets the criteria specified in paragraph 60S-2.002(5)(h), F.A.C.~~

~~(18)(17)~~ COVERED EMPLOYMENT – Means employment in a regularly established position with an employer that participates in the Florida Retirement System.

~~(19)(18)~~ COVERED GROUP – Means a city or independent special district or a unit thereof, a metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or a public charter technical career center that ~~which~~ is approved for Social Security coverage by the United States Secretary of Health and Human Services and approved by the Administrator for membership in the Florida Retirement System.

~~(20)(19)~~ CREDITABLE SERVICE – Means the sum of a member's past service, prior service, military service, workers' compensation credit, future service, and all other service allowed within the provisions of Chapter 121, F.S., and these rules and regulations, provided that all required contributions have been paid and all other requirements have been met; however, in no case shall a member receive credit for more than a year's service during any 12-month period. Service as applied to a teacher or a non-academic employee of a school board shall be based on contract years of employment or school term years of employment as provided in Chapters 122 and 238, F.S., rather than 12-month periods of employment.

~~(21)(20)~~ DEATH IN LINE OF DUTY – Means death arising out of and in the actual performance of duty required by a member's employment during his or her regularly scheduled working hours or irregular working hours as required by the employer.

~~(22)(21)~~ DISABILITY – Means total and permanent disability by reason of a medically determinable physical or mental impairment that ~~which~~ prevents a person from rendering useful and efficient service as an officer or employee.

(a) Disability In-Line-of-Duty – Means disability resulting from an injury or illness arising out of and in the actual performance of duty required by a member's employment during his or her regularly scheduled working hours or irregular working hours as required by the employer.

(b) Regular Disability – Means other than in-line-of-duty disability.

~~(23)(22)~~ DEFERRED MONTHLY BENEFIT – A benefit to which a member or his or her designated beneficiary is entitled at the time the member terminates employment, but for which the member or his or her designated beneficiary chooses to postpone applying until a later date. Upon application, the deferred monthly benefit shall commence based on the actual service earned, the average final compensation at the time of termination and the member's age at the time of application.

~~(24)~~~~(23)~~ EARLY RETIREMENT AGE – Means the first day of the month following the date a member satisfies the service requirements for vesting as provided in paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(b), F.A.C., and elects to receive retirement benefits when the member has not attained normal retirement age as provided in paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(c), F.A.C. Such benefits shall be based on the average monthly compensation and creditable service as of the member's early retirement date, and the benefit so computed shall be reduced by 5/12 of 1 percent for each complete month by which the early retirement age precedes his or her normal retirement age.

~~(25)~~~~(24)~~ EFFECTIVE RETIREMENT DATE – Means the first day of the month in which retirement benefits begin to accrue as provided in Rule 60S-4.0035 or subsection ~~60S-11.001(5), F.A.C. 60S-11.001(3), F.A.C.~~

~~(26)~~~~(25)~~ ELECTED OFFICERS' CLASS MEMBER – Means any governor, lieutenant governor, cabinet officer, legislator, supreme court justice, district court of appeal judge, county court judge, circuit judge, state attorney, public defender or any elected ~~county~~ officer of a county, municipality or independent special district who participates in the Elected Officers' Class of the Florida Retirement System in accordance with Rule 60S-1.0055, F.A.C.

~~(27)~~~~(26)~~ EMPLOYER – Means any agency, branch, department, institution, university, institution of higher education, or board of the state, or any county agency, branch, department, board, district school board, or independent special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center of the state or any city of the state which participates in the system for the benefit of certain of its employees. This term shall also apply to any hospital, municipality or independent special district that withdrew from the Florida Retirement under Sections 121.051(2)(b) and 121.0511, F.S., until such time their last remaining employee who retained membership in the Florida Retirement System terminates employment.

~~(28)~~~~(27)~~ EXISTING SYSTEMS – Means the retirement systems ~~that which~~ existed prior to December 1, 1970, and ~~which~~ were consolidated by Chapter 121, F.S. From December 1, 1970, through June 30, 1972, this term means the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System, the Teachers' Retirement System and the Highway Patrol Pension System created by Chapters 122, 238, and 321, F.S., respectively. On and after July 1, 1972, this term also includes shall include the Judicial Retirement System established by Chapter 123, F.S. On or after July 1, 2007, this term also includes the Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences Supplemental Retirement Program, established by Section 121.40, F.S.

~~(29)~~~~(28)~~ FISCAL YEAR – Means a period of time beginning July 1 and ending on the following June 30, both dates inclusive.

~~(30)~~~~(29)~~ FUTURE SERVICE – Means service subsequent to the date of the member's participation in the Florida Retirement System and may include authorized leaves of absence as provided in Rule 60S-2.006, F.A.C.

~~(31)~~~~(30)~~ HIGHWAY PATROL PENSION SYSTEM – Means the retirement system established by Chapter 321, F.S., for all employees of the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles who have subscribed to the constitutional oath of office.

~~(32)~~~~(31)~~ INITIAL BENEFIT – Means the first monthly retirement benefit payable to a retiree or beneficiary in accordance with the laws governing the determination of such benefit at time of retirement or death.

~~(33)~~~~(32)~~ INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR – Means an individual who is not subject to the control and direction of the employer for whom work is being performed, with respect not only to what shall be done but also to how it shall be done. If the employer has the right to exert such control, an employee-employer relationship exists and the person is an employee and not an independent contractor. The Division has adopted the following factors as guidelines to aid in determining whether an individual is an employee or an independent contractor. The weight given each factor is not always the same and varies depending on the particular situation.

(a) INSTRUCTIONS: An employee must comply with instructions from his or her employer about when, where, and how to work. The instructions may be oral or may be in the form of manuals or written procedures that which show how the desired result is to be accomplished. Even if no actual instructions are given, the control factor is present if the employer has the right to give instructions.

(b) TRAINING: An employee is trained to perform services in a particular manner. This is relevant when the skills and experience which would be used as an independent contractor were gained as a result of previous employment. Independent contractors ordinarily use their own methods and receive no training from the purchasers of their services.

(c) INTEGRATION: An employee's services are integrated into the business operations because the services are critical and essential to the success or continuation of an agency's progress/operation. This shows that the employee is subject to direction and control.

(d) SERVICES RENDERED PERSONALLY: An employee renders services personally. This shows that the employer is interested in the methods as well as the results. Lack of employer control may be indicated when a person has the right to hire a substitute without the employer's knowledge or approval.

(e) **HIRING ASSISTANTS:** An employee works for an employer who hires, supervises, and pays assistants. An independent contractor hires, supervises, and pays assistants under a contract that requires him or her to provide materials and labor and to be responsible only for the result.

(f) **CONTINUING RELATIONSHIP:** An employee has a continuing relationship with an employer. A continuing relationship may exist where work is performed at frequently recurring, although irregular intervals.

(g) **SET HOURS OF WORK:** An employee usually has set hours of work established by an employer. An independent contractor is the master of his or her own time and works on his or her own schedule.

(h) **FULL-TIME OR PART-TIME WORK:** An employee may work either full-time or part-time for an employer. Full-time does not necessarily mean an 8-hour day or a 5 or 6-day week. Its meanings may vary with the intent of the parties, the nature of the occupation and customs in the locality. These conditions should be considered in defining "full-time." An independent contractor can work when and for whom he or she chooses.

(i) **WORK DONE ON PREMISES:** An employee works on the premises of an employer, or works on a route or at a location designated by an employer. The performance of work on the employer's premises is not controlling in itself; however, it does imply that the employer has control over the employee. Work performed off the employer's premises does indicate some freedom from control; however, it does not in itself mean the worker is not an employee.

(j) **ORDER OR SEQUENCE OF SERVICES:** An employee generally performs services in the order or sequence set by an employer. This shows that the employee is subject to direction and control of the employer.

(k) **REPORTS:** An employee submits oral or written reports to an employer. This shows that the employee must account to the employer for his or her actions.

(l) **PAYMENTS:** An employee is usually paid by the hour, week, or month. An independent contractor is paid periodically (usually a percent of the total payment) by the job or on a straight commission.

(m) **EXPENSES:** An employee's business and/or travel expenses are paid by an employer. This shows that the employer is in a position to control expenses and therefore the employee is subject to regulations and control.

(n) **TOOLS AND MATERIALS:** An employee is furnished significant tools, materials, and other equipment by an employer. An independent contractor usually provides his or her own tools, materials, etc.

(o) **INVESTMENT:** An employee is usually furnished the necessary facilities. An independent contractor has a significant investment in the facilities he or she uses in performing services for someone else.

(p) **PROFIT OR LOSS:** An employee performs the services for an agreed upon wage and is not in a position to realize a profit or suffer a loss as a result of his or her services. An independent contractor can make a profit or suffer loss. Profit or loss implies the use of capital by the individual in an independent business of his or her own.

(q) **WORKS FOR MORE THAN ONE PERSON OR FIRM:** An employee usually works for one organization. However, a person may work for a number of people or organizations and still be an employee of one or all of them. An independent contractor provides his or her services to two or more unrelated persons or firms at the same time.

(r) **OFFERS SERVICES TO GENERAL PUBLIC:** An independent contractor makes his or her services available to the general public. This can be done in a number of ways: Having his/her own office and assistants, hanging out a "shingle", holding business licenses, having listings in business directories and telephone directories, and advertising in newspapers, trade journals, etc.

(s) **RIGHT TO TERMINATE EMPLOYMENT:** An employee can be fired by an employer. An independent contractor cannot be fired so long as he or she produces a result that meets the specifications of the contract. An independent contractor can be terminated but usually he or she will be entitled to damages for expenses incurred, lost profit, etc.

(t) **RIGHT TO QUIT:** An employee can quit his or her job at any time without incurring liability. An independent contractor usually agrees to complete a specific job and is responsible for its satisfactory completion, or is legally obligated to make good for failure to complete it.

(34) INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICT – Means an independent local unit of special-purpose, as opposed to general-purpose, government within a limited boundary, created by general law, special act, local ordinance, or by rule of the Governor and Cabinet. The special purpose or purposes of special districts are implemented by specialized functions and related prescribed powers. The term does not include a school district, a community college district, a special improvement district created pursuant to Section 285.17, F.S., a municipal service taxing or benefit unit as specified in Section 125.01, F.S., or a board that provides electrical service and which is a political subdivision of a municipality or is part of a municipality. The membership of the governing body of an independent special district shall not be identical to, appointed by, or subject to removal by the governing body of a single county or a single municipality; nor shall the budget of an independent special district require approval by such a governing body. A district that includes more than one county is an independent special district.

(35) INVESTMENT PLAN – Means the Florida Retirement System defined contribution plan, otherwise known as the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program, as provided in Part II of Chapter 121, F.S.

~~(36)~~(33) JOINT ANNUITANT – Means:

(a) The spouse; or

(b) A natural or legally adopted child who is either under 25 or physically or mentally disabled and incapable of self-support, regardless of age, or any other person under 25 for whom the member is the legal guardian and who is financially dependent for no less than one-half of his or her support from the member at retirement or at the time of death of such member, whichever occurs first; or

(c) a parent, or grandparent, or a person age 25 or older for whom the member is the legal guardian, provided that such parent, grandparent, or other person is financially dependent for no less than one-half of his or her support from the deceased member at retirement or at time of the death of such member, whichever occurs first. See also paragraph 60S-4.011(5)(c), F.A.C.

~~(37)~~(34) JUDICIAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM – Means the retirement system established by Chapter 123, F.S., for supreme court justices, district court of appeal judges, and circuit judges of the state, consisting of:~~(a)~~ Division A – Members of the Judicial Retirement System who are members as of July 1, 1963, and who have not elected to become members of Division B.~~(b)~~ Division B – Members of the Judicial Retirement System who are members as of July 1, 1963, who elected to become members of Division B and receive social security coverage.~~(c)~~ Division C – Members of the Judicial Retirement System who became members on or after July 1, 1963.~~(38)~~(35) LEAVE OF ABSENCE (Authorized Leave of Absence) – Means a leave of absence from employment under the Florida Retirement System, subsequent to November 30, 1970, for which retirement credit may be received in accordance with Rule 60S-2.006, F.A.C.~~(39)~~(36) LOCAL AGENCY EMPLOYER – Means any of the following entities that which participate in the system for the benefit of certain of its employees: ~~The~~ the board of county commissioners or other legislative governing body of a county, including that of a consolidated or metropolitan government; a clerk of the circuit court; a sheriff, property appraiser, tax collector, or supervisor of elections, provided that such officer is elected or has been appointed to fill a vacancy in an elective office; a community college board of trustees or district school board; a public charter school; a public charter technical career center; the governing body of any city or independent special district of the state; a metropolitan planning organization; or the governing body of any council, commission, authority, or other governmental entity that is created or authorized by general or special law, and that which is independent of any other local agency employer. This term shall also apply to any hospital, municipality or independent special district that withdrew from the Florida Retirement under Sections121.051(2)(b) and 121.0511, F.S., until such time their last remaining employee who retained membership in the Florida Retirement System terminates employment.~~(40)~~(37) MEMBER – Means any officer or employee who is covered by the provisions of the Florida Retirement System, including any officer or employee who is on an approved leave of absence.~~(41)~~ METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION OR MPO – Means an entity created by an interlocal agreement pursuant to Section 339.175, F.S., or any other entity created pursuant to Section 339.175, F.S., that has applied for and been approved for participation in the Florida Retirement System.~~(42)~~(38) NON-COVERED EMPLOYER – Means any public or private employer that does not participate in the Florida Retirement System.~~(43)~~(39) NORMAL RETIREMENT AGE OR DATE – Means the time at which a member is first eligible to receive a normal retirement benefit without actuarial reduction to such benefit because of early retirement as provided in subsection 60S-4.003(23), F.A.C. paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(b), F.A.C.~~(44)~~(40) OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE – Means any person receiving compensation for work performed in a regularly established position with any agency, branch, department, institution, university, institution of higher education, or board of the state, or any county agency, branch department, board, district school board, or any city or independent special district, or metropolitan planning organization, or participating public charter school or public charter technical career center of the state ~~that which~~ participates in the Florida Retirement System. (See definition of “regularly established position”.)~~(45)~~(41) PARTICIPATION IN THE FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM – Means being subject to the provisions of the Florida Retirement System and making the contributions required by Chapter 121, F.S., and these rules and regulations.~~(46)~~(42) PAST SERVICE – Means the number of years, complete months and any fractional part of a month of employment during which an employee is in the active employ of a city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center prior to the time such city, independent or special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or public charter technical career center becomes a covered group under the Florida Retirement System, or service prior to January 1, 1968, in the Cuban Refugee Assistance Program administered by the Florida State Department of Public Welfare or other service as described in Rule 60S-2.003, F.A.C. Credit for past ~~Past service with a city or special district can be purchased in accordance with applicable conditions and circumstances as set forth in Rule 60S-2.003, F.A.C. claimed as creditable service only by a member who was in the active employ of said city or special district at the time the city or special district becomes a covered group under the Florida~~

~~Retirement System. Credit for service in the Cuban Refugee Assistance Program may be granted only if credit for such service has not or will not be granted under any other state or federal retirement or pension system.~~

~~(47)(43) PAYEE~~ – Means a retiree or beneficiary of a retiree who is receiving a retirement benefit payment.

~~(48) PENSION PLAN~~ – Means the Florida Retirement System defined benefit plan as provided in Part I of Chapter 121, F.S.

~~(49)(44) PHASED RETIREMENT PROGRAM~~ – Means a program contracted by the governing board of a participating university or community college in which a retired member may be reemployed in a faculty position provided:

(a) The member retired and met the definition of termination as provided in subsection 60S-6.001(69), F.A.C. ~~in this section;~~

(b) The retired member is reemployed for not more than 780 hours during the first 12 months of retirement; and

(c) The retired member is reemployed with the university or community college from which he or she retired.

~~(50) PLAN CHOICE ADMINISTRATOR or THIRD-PARTY ADMINISTRATOR~~ – Means the entity hired by the State Board of Administration, pursuant to Section 121.4501(8)(b)1., F.S., to provide administrative services for the Florida Retirement System Investment Plan and is responsible for processing enrollment forms received from employees making a retirement plan choice either by form, by telephone, or on the MyFRS.com website (www.MyFRS.com).

~~(51)(45) PLAN YEAR~~ – Means the period of time beginning July 1 and ending on the following June 30, both dates inclusive, for all state-administered retirement systems.

~~(52)(46) PREVIOUS SERVICE~~ – Means the number of years, complete months and any fractional part of a month, recognized and credited by an employer and approved by the Administrator, of service under one of the retirement systems established by Chapter 121, 122, 123, 238, or 321, F.S., on which the required contributions were paid at the member's termination of employment, and for which the member has received no refund of contributions.

~~(53)(47) PRIOR SERVICE~~ – Means employment in a regularly established position with an agency participating in a state administered retirement system in Florida for which no contributions were paid or contributions were withdrawn service as described in subsection 60S-2.004(1), F.A.C.

~~(48) PRIVATIZATION~~ – Means the transfer of control or ownership of a county detention facility by contract with a private entity pursuant to Section 951.062, F.S.

~~(54) PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL~~ – Means a public school established pursuant to Section 1002.33, F.S., which is established as a public employer in its charter as provided in subparagraph 1002.33(12)(i), F.S., that has applied for and been approved for participation in the Florida Retirement System.

~~(55) PUBLIC CHARTER TECHNICAL CAREER CENTER~~– Means a public school or a public technical center operated under a public charter granted by a district school board or community college board of trustees or a consortium, including one or more district school boards and community college boards of trustees, that includes the district in which the facility is located, pursuant to Section 1002.34(3)(a), F.S., that has applied for and been approved for participation in the Florida Retirement System.

~~(56)(49) PUBLIC OFFICE~~ – Means an office created by the Constitution of the State of Florida or by the Legislature pursuant thereto, which must be filled by vote of the electorate.

~~(57)(50) REGULAR CLASS MEMBER~~ – Means any member of the Florida Retirement System other than a Special Risk Class member, a Special Risk Administrative Support Class member, an Elected Officers' Class member, or a Senior Management Service Class member.

~~(58)(51) REGULARLY ESTABLISHED POSITION~~ – A regularly established position in a State agency is a position which is authorized and established pursuant to law and is compensated from a salaries and benefits appropriation pursuant to paragraphs Sections 216.011(1)(c) and (d) ~~(x)~~ and 2., F.S., or an established position which is authorized pursuant to Sections 216.262(1)(a) and (b), F.S., and is compensated from a salaries and benefit appropriation pursuant to Sections 216.011(c) and 216.011(1)(dd), F.S., as defined in Section 216.011(mm), F.S. account in accordance with Rule 3A-10.031, F.A.C. A regularly established position in a local agency (district school board, county agency, community college, participating city, independent and special district, metropolitan planning organization, public charter school or charter technical career center) is an employment position which will be in existence for a period beyond 6 consecutive calendar months, except as provided in paragraph 60S-1.004(5)(d), F.A.C.

~~(59)(52) RETIREE~~ – Means a former member of one of the retirement systems established by Chapters 121, 122, 123, 238, and 321, F.S., who has terminated his or her employment and is receiving benefits from the system in which he or she was a member. This term also includes a person who retired and is receiving benefits under Section 112.05, F.S., and a DROP participant as provided in Chapter 60S-11, F.A.C., who has not terminated his or her employment.

~~(60)(53) SENIOR MANAGEMENT SERVICE CLASS MEMBER~~ – Means any member who is eligible to participate in the Senior Management Service Class of the Florida Retirement System in accordance with Rule 60S-1.0057, F.A.C.

~~(54) SPECIAL DISTRICT~~ – Means an independent local unit of special purpose, as opposed to general purpose, government within a limited boundary, created by general law, special act, local ordinance, or by rule of the Governor and Cabinet. The special purpose or purposes of special districts

~~are implemented by specialized functions and related prescribed powers. The term does not include a school district, a community college district, a special improvement district created pursuant to Section 285.17, F.S., a municipal service taxing or benefit unit as specified in Section 125.01, F.S., or a board which provides electrical service and which is a political subdivision of a municipality or is part of a municipality. The membership of the governing body of an independent special district shall not be identical to, appointed by, or subject to removal by the governing body of a single county or a single municipality; nor shall the budget of an independent special district require approval by such a governing body. A district that includes more than one county is an independent special district.~~

~~(61)(55) SPECIAL RISK CLASS MEMBER – Prior to October 1, 1978, Special Risk Class member means any officer or employee receiving salary payments for work performed as a peace officer, law enforcement officer, policeman, highway patrolman, custodial employee at a correctional or detention facility, fireman or any other job in the field of law enforcement or fire protection; provided that the duties of such person are certified as hazardous by his or her employer and approved by the Division of Retirement.~~

~~(a) Effective October 1, 1978, Special Risk Class member shall mean any officer or employee employed as a law enforcement officer, firefighter or correctional officer who complies with the criteria set forth in Rules 60S-1.0051, 60S-1.0052, and 60S-1.0053, F.A.C., and is approved for Special Risk Class special-risk membership by the Division of Retirement pursuant to Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C.~~

~~(b) Effective October 1, 1999, Special Risk Class member shall also include officer or employee employed as an emergency medical technician or paramedic who complies with the criteria set forth in Rule 60S-1.00535, F.A.C., and is approved for Special Risk Class special-risk membership by the Division of Retirement pursuant to Rule 60S-1.005, F.A.C.~~

~~(c) Effective January 1, 2001, Special Risk Class member shall also mean any officer or employee employed as a community-based correctional probation officer, and certain professional health care members employed by the Department of Corrections or the Department of Children and Family Services as provided in paragraph 60S-1.0053(2)(d), F.A.C.; and shall also mean certain professional health care workers employed by the Department of Corrections or the Department of Children and Family Services who meet the criteria set forth in Section 60S-1.00537, F.A.C.~~

~~(d) Effective July 1, 2001, Special Risk Class member shall also mean any officer or employee employed by the Department of Juvenile Justice who meets the criteria set forth in paragraph 60S-1.0053(2)(f), F.A.C.~~

~~(e) Effective October 1, 2005 through June 30, 2008, Special Risk Class member shall also mean certain forensic workers employed by either an agency which proclaims itself~~

~~to be a law enforcement agency or a medical examiner's office who meet the criteria set forth in subsection 60S-1.00539(1), F.A.C.~~

~~(f) Effective July 1, 2008, Special Risk Class member shall also mean certain forensic workers employed by the Department of Law Enforcement in the crime laboratory, or the Division of State Fire Marshal in the forensic laboratory or certain forensic workers employed by a local government law enforcement agency or medical examiner's office who meet the criteria set forth in subsection 60S-1.00539(2), F.A.C.~~

~~(62)(56) STATE – Means the State of Florida.~~

~~(63)(57) STATE-ADMINISTERED RETIREMENT SYSTEM – Means any of the retirement systems administered by the Division of Retirement, Department of Management Services state Division of Retirement. These systems are the Florida Retirement System (including the State University Optional Retirement Program and the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program), Teachers' Retirement System, State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System, Highway Patrol Pension System, and Judicial Retirement System and Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences Supplemental Retirement Program.~~

~~(64)(58) STATE AND COUNTY OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM – Means the retirement system established by Chapter 122, F.S., for all full-time officers or employees who receive compensation for employment or service from any agency, branch, department, institution, or branch of the state or any county of the state, or any independent special district of the state, except those members of a retirement system established by Chapters 123, 238, or 321, F.S., and those employees who were hired prior to July 1, 1947, and who rejected membership in a retirement system, which consists of:~~

~~(a) Division A – Consists of those members of the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System who were employed prior to January 1, 1958, or those members who were reemployed subsequent to January 1, 1958, and allowed to remain in Division A.~~

~~(b) Division B – Consists of those members of the State and County Officers and Employees' Retirement System who elected to become members of Division B or who were employed on or after January 1, 1958, or Metro Dade County Employees, employed on or after July 1, 1969.~~

~~(65)(59) SUBORDINATE OFFICER – Means a person who has been delegated by an officer the authority to exercise the sovereign power of a state, county, district, or municipality.~~

~~(66)(60) SUPPORT – Means the total amount spent to provide food, lodging, clothing, education, medical and dental care, transportation, and similar necessities for a person. Support shall include the person's gross income and any payments received by the person from any other person or agency. Expenses related to all members of a household, must be divided by the number of members in the household.~~

~~(67)~~(61) **TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM** – Means the retirement system established by Chapter 238, F.S., for all full-time members of the teaching or professional staff and all certificated employees of any public school system of the State, and any tax-supported institution of higher learning of the State, and employees of the Department of Education of the State and employees of the Teachers' Retirement System, and any county school superintendent of public instruction who holds a valid Florida teacher's certificate. Only those members electing Plan E of the Teachers' Retirement System were eligible to transfer to the Florida Retirement System.

Plan E – Consists of those members of the Teachers' Retirement System who were employed on or after July 1, 1955, or who elected to transfer to Plan E from one of the original retirement plans.

~~(68)~~(62) **TEMPORARY POSITION** – A temporary position in a state agency is an employment position ~~that which~~ is compensated from an other personal services (OPS) account as provided for in Section 216.011(1)(~~dd~~)(~~*~~), F.S. A temporary position in a local agency is an employment position ~~that which~~ will exist for less than 6 consecutive calendar months, or an instructional position which is established with no guarantee of continuation beyond one term to teach in a community college, district school board public school or participating public charter school or participating public charter technical career center as provided in subparagraph 60S-1.004(5)(b)2., F.A.C. or an employment position ~~that which~~ is listed in sub-paragraph 60S-1.004(5)(b)3.(~~d~~), F.A.C., regardless of whether it will exist for 6 consecutive calendar months or more.

~~(69)~~(a)(63) **TERMINATION** – Termination occurs, except as provided in paragraph (b), when a member of the Florida Retirement System or an existing system ceases all employment relationships with all covered employers which includes employment relationships with an employer that withdrew under Sections 121.051(2)(b) and 121.0511, F.S. ~~However, provided that the member shall not be reemployed by any such employer within the next calendar month.~~

1. For retirements without Deferred Retirement Optional Program (DROP) participation effective before July 1, 2010, if a member is employed by any such employer within the next calendar month, termination shall be deemed not to have occurred. A leave of absence shall constitute a continuation of the employment relationship except as provided in paragraph 60S-4.002(4)(c), F.A.C., for certain members retiring on disability. The Division of Retirement may request additional evidence of termination if available evidence is conflicting, for example, a copy of the member's resignation letter, a copy of the advertised vacancy of the member's position, evidence of payments to the member for unused annual and sick leave or of loss of unused annual and sick leave due to termination, or a copy of the employer's termination document.

2. For retirements without DROP participation effective on or after July 1, 2010, if a member is employed by any such employer within the next 6 calendar months, termination shall be deemed not to have occurred. A leave of absence shall constitute a continuation of the employment relationship except as provided in paragraph 60S-4.002(4)(c), F.A.C., for certain members retiring on disability. The Division of Retirement may request additional evidence of termination if available evidence is conflicting, for example, a copy of the member's resignation letter, a copy of the advertised vacancy of the member's position, evidence of payments to the member for unused annual and sick leave or of loss of unused annual and sick leave due to termination, or a copy of the employer's termination document.

(b) Termination for a member electing to participate in the DROP occurs when the program participant ceases all employment relationships with all covered employers, which includes employment relationships with an employer that withdrew under Sections 121.051(2)(b) and 121.0511, F.S., however:

1. For DROP termination dates occurring before July 1, 2010, if the participant is employed by any such employer within the next calendar month, termination will be deemed not to have occurred, except as provided in Sections 121.090(13)(b)4.c., F.S. A leave of absence shall constitute a continuation of the employment relationship.

2. For DROP termination dates occurring on or after July 1, 2010, if the participant is employed by any such employer within the next six calendar months, termination will be deemed not to have occurred, except as provided in Sections 121.090(13)(b)4.c., F.S. A leave of absence shall constitute a continuation of the employment relationship.

~~(70)~~(64) **VESTED OR VESTING** – The guarantee that a member is eligible to receive a future retirement benefit upon completion of the required years of creditable service for the employee's class of membership even though the member may have terminated covered employment before reaching normal or early retirement age, as defined in this section. A member will lose vested rights to any creditable service for which a refund of contributions is received; or if required to forfeit benefits as provided in Section 121.091(5), F.S. Being vested does not entitle a member to a disability benefit based on a disability caused by an injury or disease that occurs after termination of covered employment.

~~(71)~~(65) **WORK YEAR** – Means the period of time an employee is required to work to receive a full year of retirement credit, as determined in subsection 60S-2.002(4), F.A.C.

~~(72)~~(66) **WORKERS' COMPENSATION CREDIT** – Means retirement credit received by a member for a period during which he or she is eligible to receive or receives

Workers' Compensation payments in accordance with Rule 60S-2.012, F.A.C., for an illness or injury occurring during his or her employment as a member.

~~(67) PENSION PLAN — Means the Florida Retirement System defined benefit plan as provided in Part I of Chapter 121, F.S.~~

~~(68) INVESTMENT PLAN — Means the Florida Retirement System defined contribution plan, otherwise known as the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program, as provided in Part II of Chapter 121, F.S.~~

~~(69) BLENDED OR UNIFORM CONTRIBUTION RATE — Means the single contribution rate required for each class of membership in the Florida Retirement System, which shall be sufficient to fund both Part I and Part II of the Florida Retirement System in an actuarially sound manner, as provided in Part III of Chapter 121, F.S.~~

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.052(7) FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.021(39), 121.031, 121.051, 121.051(2)(b)6, 121.051(6), 121.0515, 121.052, 121.091(5)(e), 112.215, 121.4501, 121.70, 943.22(2)(e) FS. History—New 1-1-72, Amended 10-20-72, 12-31-74, 1-16-77, 10-3-78, 7-1-79, 8-26-81, 1-19-82, 9-9-82, 10-12-82, 1-18-83, 2-6-84, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-6.01, Amended 2-4-86, 1-12-87, 3-11-87, 2-7-89, 9-5-90, 5-15-91, 11-14-91, Formerly 22B-6.001, Amended 1-25-94, 8-4-94, 4-5-95, 3-12-96, 7-4-96, 12-12-96, 2-24-99, 8-13-03, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Sarabeth Snuggs, Director, Division of Retirement
 NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John P. Miles, Secretary, Department of Management Services
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 18, 2010, Vol. 36/24

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NO.: 60S-9.001 RULE TITLE: Approved Forms

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule development is to change this rule from the rule in which all Division forms are incorporated by reference to a listing of Division forms incorporated by reference throughout Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C.

SUMMARY: This rule has been revised to be a listing of all Division forms incorporated by reference throughout chapter 60S-9, F.A.C. rather than the rule where Division forms are incorporated by reference.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

No State of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. The agency has determined that this rule shall not have an effect on small businesses as defined by Section 288.703, Florida

Statutes, nor on small counties or small cities as defined by Section 120.52, Florida Statutes. Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimate regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein:

Not required because there are no adverse impacts on economic growth, business competitiveness or regulatory costs of more than \$1M in the aggregate within five years of implementation.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 121.031, 121.4501 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 1.01, 112.215, 112.361, 112.363, 120.55, 121.011, 121.015, 122.021, 121.031(2), 121.051, 121.0515, 121.053, 121.081, 121.091, 121.111, 121.115, 121.1122, 121.121, 121.125, 121.35, 121.4501, 121.591, 122.08, 122.09, 215.28, 238.05, 238.06, 238.07, 689.21, 1012.01 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET
 PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director's Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

60S-9.001 Approved Forms.

The following is a list of the forms utilized by the Division of Retirement in its dealings with the public, which are ~~hereby~~ incorporated by reference throughout Chapter 60S, F.A.C. into these rules. A copy of these forms may be obtained from the Division's website (<http://frs.myflorida.com>) or by writing to the Division of Retirement, P. O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-9000. You may also call the Division to request a copy of these forms by calling (850)488-5706. If calling from outside the Tallahassee calling area, you may call the Division toll-free at (877)377-1737.

(1)(a) Bureau of Enrollment and Contributions.

FORM NO./REVISION DATE	TITLE/DESCRIPTION
1. <u>BEN-001</u> (Rev. 6/04)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Beneficiary Designation Form Active Members Only – a one-page form.
2. <u>FRS-400</u> (Rev. 4/00)	Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Membership Law Enforcement/Correctional Officers – a one-page form.
3. <u>FRS-401</u> (Rev. 7/99)	Florida Retirement System Special Risk Credit for Past Service – a one-page form.
4. <u>FRS-402</u> (Rev. 10/01)	Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Equivalent Credit – a one-page form.
5. <u>FRS-404</u> (Rev. 11/02)	Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Administrative Support Class – a one-page form.
6. <u>FRS-405</u> (Rev. 10/03)	Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Membership Firefighters/Paramedics/EMTs – a one-page form.
7. <u>ERQ-1</u> (Rev. 8/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Employment Relationship Questionnaire for Retirees Within the 2nd – 12th Months – a five-page form.
8. <u>BLE-1</u> (8/99)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Ballot for Member of an Existing Retirement System – a one-page form.
9. <u>SMSD-1</u> (Rev. 8/00)	Florida Retirement System Senior Management Service Class Designated Position Form – a two-page document consisting of one-page of instruction and a one-page form.
10. <u>FRS-410</u> (08/05)	Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Class Membership Forensic Discipline <u>from October 2005 through June 2008</u> – a one-page form.
11. <u>FRS-415</u>	<u>Florida Retirement System Application for Special Risk Class Membership for Forensic Discipline effective July 2008 – a one-page form.</u>
11. <u>FR-SUSORP</u> (08/07)	Florida Retirement System Verification of State University Optional Retirement System Service (SUSORP) Service Dates – a one-page form.
(b) State Board of Administration – Enrollment and Election forms.	
FORM NO./REVISION DATE	TITLE/DESCRIPTION
1. <u>OCC-1</u> (Rev. 07/07)	Community College Optional Retirement Program (CCORP) Enrollment Form.
2. <u>OCC-2</u> (Rev. 07/07)	Community College Optional Retirement Program (CCORP) Retirement Plan Conversion Form.
3. <u>SMS-1</u> (Rev. 07/07)	State Senior Management Service Employees Retirement Plan Enrollment Form.
4. <u>SMS-3</u> (Rev. 07/07)	Local Senior Management Service Employees Retirement Plan Enrollment Form.
5. <u>EOC-1</u> (Rev. 07/07)	Elected Officers' Class Retirement Plan Enrollment Form.
6. <u>ELE-1</u> (Rev. 07/07)	GENERAL Retirement Plan Enrollment Form for Regular, Special Risk, and Special Risk Administrative Support Class Employees.
7. <u>ELE-1-EZ</u> (Rev. 07/07)	EZ Retirement Plan Enrollment Form for Regular, Special Risk, and Special Risk Administrative Support Class Employees.
8. <u>ELE-2</u> (Rev. 07/07)	2nd Election Retirement Plan Enrollment Form.
9. <u>ELE-2-EZ</u> (Rev. 07/07)	2nd Election EZ Retirement Plan Enrollment Form.
10. <u>ORP-16</u> (Rev. 7/07)	State University System Optional Retirement Program (SUSORP) Retirement Plan Enrollment Form.
11. <u>CERT</u>	<u>Florida Retirement System (FRS) – Certification Form</u>
11. <u>SMS-4</u> (11/05)	Retirement Plan CONVERSION Form for Local Employer Senior Management Service Class (SMSC) Members.

(2) Bureau of Retirement Calculations.

FORM NO./REVISION DATE	TITLE/DESCRIPTION
(a) FR-9 (Rev. 6/04)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Information Request a one-page form.
(a)(b) FR-11 (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Service Retirement – a two-page document consisting of one page of instruction and a one-page form.
(b)(e) SR-11 (Rev. 9/07)	State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Application for Service Retirement – a two-page document consisting of one page of instruction and a one-page form.
(c)(d) TR-11 (Rev. 9/07)	Teachers' Retirement System Application for Service Retirement – a two-page document consisting of one page of instruction and a one-page form.
(d)(e) FR-28 (Rev. 6/04)	Division of Retirement Pension Plan Application to Purchase Retirement Credit for a Pension Plan Leave of Absence – a two-page document consisting of one page of information and a one-page form.
(e)(f) MF-1 (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Statement of Military Eligibility – a two-page document consisting of one-page of information and a one-page form.
(f)(g) TR-4 (Rev. 4/99)	Florida Retirement System Verification of Out-of-State Teaching Service – a two-page document consisting of one page of instruction and a one-page form.
(h) OSE-1 (Rev. 7/99)	Florida Retirement System Eligibility for In-State or Out of State Service – a one-page form.
(i) WC-1 (Rev. 7/99)	Florida Retirement System Certification of Workers' Compensation – a one-page form.
(j) FC-1 (Rev. 7/04)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Salary Certification – a two-page document consisting of one page of instruction and a one-page form.
(g)(k) MF-2 (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Statement of Military Eligibility to Purchase Military Service Under the Out-of-State Provisions – a two-page document consisting of one-page of information and one-page form.
(h)(l) FR-23 (Rev. 5/05)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Notification of Reemployment or Suspension of Retirement Benefits – a one-page form.
(i)(m) FR-23a (Rev. 5/05)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application to Reactivate Retirement Benefits – a one-page form.
(j)(n) FR-30 (Rev. 7/04)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Verification for In-State or Out-of-State Service Credit – a three-page document consisting of one-page of instruction and a two-page form.
(k)(o) FR-30a (Rev. 7/04)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Out-of-State Employer Request – a one-page form.
(l)(p) FRS-11o (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Option Selection for FRS Members – a one-page form.
(m)(q) FST-11o (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Option Selection for TRS and SCOERS Members – a one-page form.
(n)(r) DP-ELE (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Notice of Election to Participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) and Resignation of Employment – a two-page document with one-page of information and a one-page form.
(o)(s) DP-11 (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Service Retirement and the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) – a two-page form consisting of one page of instruction and a one page form.
(p)(t) DT-11 (Rev. 7/06)	Teachers' Retirement System Application for Service

- (q)(tt) DS-11 (Rev. 7/06) Retirement and the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) – a two-page document consisting of two page of information and a one-page form.
- (r)(vv) DP-EXT (Rev. 7/07) State and County Officers’ and Employees’ Retirement System Application for Service Retirement and the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) – a two-page document consisting of two page of instruction and a one-page form.
- (s)(ww) PRO-1 (Rev. 10/07) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Extension of Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) for Specified K-12 Instructional Personnel – a one page form.
- (t)(xx) HIS-IP (7/04) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan (401(a) Plan) Pretax Direct Rollover/Transfer Form – a one-page form.
- (u)(yy) HIS IP-2 (7/04) Florida Retirement System (FRS) Application for Health Insurance Subsidy for Investment Plan Members – a two-page document consisting of one-page of instruction and a one-page form.
- (v)(zz) SA-1 (5/00) Florida Retirement System Health Insurance Subsidy Certification for Investment Plan Members – a one-page form.

(3) Bureau of Benefit Payments.

FORM NO./REVISION DATE	TITLE/DESCRIPTION
(a) <u>FR-13</u> (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Disability Retirement – a four-page document consisting of two pages of instruction and a two-page form.
(b) <u>FR-13a</u> (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Statement of Disability by Employer – a two-page form.
(c) <u>FR-13b</u> (Rev. 6/06)	Florida Retirement System Physician’s Report of Disability a two-page form.
(d) <u>TR-13</u> (Rev. 10/86)	Teachers’ Retirement System of Florida Application for Disability Retirement – a one-page form.
(e) <u>TR-13a</u> (Rev. 10/86)	Teachers’ Retirement System of Florida Member’s Statement of Disability – a one-page form.
(f) <u>TR-13b</u> (Rev. 10/86)	Teachers’ Retirement System of Florida Physician’s Report of Disability – a one-page form.
(g) <u>SR-13</u> (Rev. 9/71)	State and County Officers’ and Employees’ Retirement System Application for Disability Retirement – a one-page form.
(h) <u>SR-13a</u> (Rev. 9/71)	State and County Officers’ and Employees’ Retirement System Member’s Statement of Disability – a one-page form.
(i) <u>SR-13b</u> (Rev. 9/71)	State and County Officers’ and Employees’ Retirement System Physician’s Report of Disability – a one-page form.
(j) <u>FR-13c</u> (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Retiree’s Report of Continuing Disability – a two-page form.
(k) <u>FR-13f</u> (Rev. 7/06)	Florida Retirement System Physician’s Report of Reexamination – a two-page form.
(l) <u>TR-13e</u> (Rev. 2/88)	Teachers’ Retirement System Retiree’s Report of Continuing Disability – a four page form.
(m) <u>TR-13f</u> (Rev. 7/81)	Teachers’ Retirement System Physician’s Report of Reexamination – a four-page form.
(n) <u>SR-13e</u> (10/86)	State and County Officers’ and Employees’ Retirement System Retiree’s Report of Continuing Disability – a four-page form.
(o) <u>SR-13f</u> (Rev. 7/81)	State and County Officers’ and Employees’ Retirement System Physician’s Report of Reexamination – a four-page form.

- (p) FRS-M81 (Rev. 7/01) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Request for Refund – a one page form.
- (q) HIS-1 (Rev. 7/05) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Health Insurance Subsidy Certification Form – a two-page document consisting of one page of instruction and a one-page form.
- (r) FST-12 (Rev. 12/02) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Beneficiary Designation Form (Retired Members Only) – a one-page form.
- (s) JA-1 (Rev. 12/02) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Change of Joint Annuitant Form (Retired Members Only) – a one-page form.
- (t) AAPS (Rev. 8/00) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Affidavit Attesting to Payee Status – a one-page form.
- (u) FST-11b (Rev. 12/02) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Monthly Retirement Benefits – a one-page form.
- (v) FST-11g (Rev. 12/02) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Benefit Payment – a one-page form.
- (w) TR-11c (Rev. 12/02) Teachers' Retirement System Application for Survivor Benefits – a two-page document consisting of one-page of information and a one-page form.
- (x) SRF-2 (Rev. 7/99) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Student Report Form – a one-page form.
- (y) SRF-3 (Rev. 7/99) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Authorization for Release of Information – a one-page form.
- (z) SVF-1 (Rev. 7/99) ~~Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Student Verification of Enrollment by Institution – a one-page form.~~
- (z)(aa) SVF-2 (Rev. 7/99) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Affidavit Attesting to Eligibility – a one-page form.
- (aa)(bb) DIS-1 (Rev. 4/06) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Disclaimer of Benefits – a two-page document consisting of one-page of instruction and a one-page form.
- (bb)(ee) JA-NUL (Rev. 7/99) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Joint Annuitant Nullification Form – a one-page form.
- (cc)(dd) FR-30b (Rev. 7/99) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Verification for In-State or Out-of-State Service Credit – a two-page form.
- (dd)(ee) DP-TERM (Rev. 6/06) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Termination Notification – a one-page form.
- (ee)(ff) DP-PAYT (Rev. 3/03) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Selected Payout Method – a one-page form.
- (ff)(gg) DP-JOINT (Rev. 9/99) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Joint Annuitant Verification – a one-page form.
- (hh) Rollover (Rev. 7/01) ~~Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Direct Rollover Election Form – a one-page form.~~
- (gg)(ii) DP-12 (Rev. 2/06) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Beneficiary Designation Form for the Alternate Payee of a DROP Participant – a one-page form.
- (hh)(jj) SB-13b (Rev. 3/01) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Physician's Report – a two-page form.
- (ii)(kk) FST-11so2 (Rev. 12/02) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Survivor Benefits – a one-page form.
- (jj)(ll) DP-TEOC (9/01) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Elected Officers' Termination Notification – a one-page form.
- (mm) DROLL (1/02) ~~Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Beneficiary Direct Rollover Election Form – a one-page form.~~
- (kk)(nn) DIS-2 (Rev. 4/06) Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Disclaimer of Benefits

(ll)(oo) <u>DIS-3 (Rev. 4/06)</u>	- a two-page document consisting of one page of instruction and a one-page form. Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Disclaimer of Benefits – a two-page document consisting of one page of instruction and a one-page form.
(mm)(pp) <u>DP-VOID (4/03)</u>	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Void Form – a one-page form.
(nn)(qq) <u>SRA-1 Rev. (Rev. 12/04)</u>	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Service Retirement Agreement – a one-page form.
(oo)(rr) <u>PR-13 (Rev. 7/06)</u>	Florida Retirement System Investment Plan Application for Disability Retirement – a four-page form consisting of two pages of instruction and a two-page form.
(pp)(ss) <u>PR-11o (7/04)</u>	Florida Retirement System Investment Plan Option Selection for FRS Members – a one-page form.
(qq)(tt) <u>DP-TEOC-2</u>	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Elected Officer DROP Termination Notification – a one-page form.
(rr)(uu) <u>DP-TEOC-3</u>	Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Elected Officer Employment Termination Notification – a one-page form.
(ss) <u>SA-2</u>	<u>Florida Retirement System Investment Plan Spousal Acknowledgment Form for Disability Retirement – a one-page form.</u>

(4) Administration.

FORM NO./REVISION DATE
SAPS (Rev. 10/02)

TITLE
Florida Retirement System Statement Attesting to Payee Status – a one-page form.

Rulemaking Authority 121.031 FS. Law Implemented 1.01, 112.215, 112.361, 112.363, 120.55, 121.011, 121.015, 122.021, 121.031(2), 121.051, 121.0515, 121.053, 121.081, 121.091, 121.111, 121.115, 121.1122, 121.121, 121.125, 121.35, 121.4501, 121.591, 122.08, 122.09, 215.28, 238.05, 238.06, 238.07, 689.21, 1012.01 FS. History– New 9-9-82, Amended 2-6-84, 11-6-84, 4-17-85, Formerly 22B-9.01, Amended 6-4-86, 12-5-90, Formerly 22B-9.001, Amended 1-4-93, 1-18-94, 4-26-94, 1-10-95, 11-2-95, 12-28-95, 3-12-96, 12-16-97, 10-14-98, 4-26-99, 1-24-00, 12-19-00, 2-6-01, 3-18-02, 10-23-05, 9-18-07, 5-22-08,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Sarabeth Snuggs, Director, Division of Retirement
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John P Miles, Secretary, Department of Management Services
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 18, 2010, Vol. 36/24

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Division of Retirement

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
60S-11.001	Definitions
60S-11.002	Participation
60S-11.004	Benefits

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect is to amend this rule chapter to correspond with statutory changes up through the 2010 Legislative session, delete obsolete language and make any needed technical changes.

SUMMARY: The amendments to this rule: explain the deferral of Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) initial eligibility date for an elected officer; expand the definition of “DROP Participation” period to include those certain K-12 instructional personnel with certain employers who may extend their DROP participation for up to 36 months beyond the 60 month DROP participation period in accordance with statute; delete the definition of “Instructional Personnel” as it is no longer applicable; clarify that a renewed member and an Investment Plan participant may not participate in DROP in accordance with statute; reflect the statutory changes to termination requirements, reemployment limitations and renewed membership resulting from Chapter 2009-209, Laws of Florida and incorporate by reference five revised Division forms and eight Division forms previously adopted under Rule 60S-9.001, F.A.C.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

No State of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. The agency has determined that this rule shall not have an effect on small businesses as defined by Section 288.703, Florida Statutes, nor on small counties or small cities as defined by Section 120.52, Florida statutes.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The repeal of this rule is not expected to require legislative ratification pursuant to Section 120.541(3)(a)1., F.S., as there will be no impact on economic growth, job creation or employment, private-sector investment, or business competitiveness and no increase in regulatory costs.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 121.031, 121.091(13) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 121.021, 121.091, 121.131, 1012.01 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE:

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m., ET

PLACE: Division of Retirement of the Department of Management Services, Director's Conference Room, Suite 208, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg 8, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Garry Green, Operations and Management Consultant Manager, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 8, Tallahassee FL 32399-1560, (850)488-5706

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

60S-11.001 Definitions.

The definitions in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C., apply to this section unless otherwise expressly stated, and when used in this section, the following words and terms have the meaning indicated:

(1) DEFERRED RETIREMENT OPTION PROGRAM (DROP) – means a program, hereinafter referred to as the DROP, available to certain members who are eligible for retirement under the FRS Pension Plan, under which members effectively retire and have their retirement benefits accumulate, tax deferred, in the FRS Trust Fund while they continue covered employment for a limited time.

(2) DROP ELIGIBILITY DATE – means the first day of the month in which a vested member becomes eligible to elect to participate in DROP by virtue of reaching either his or her

normal retirement date or a deferred eligibility date, if a deferred eligibility date is applicable and elected by the member. Both the 12-month period during which the member may elect to participate in the DROP (except for instructional personnel as provided in subparagraph 60S-11.001(2)(b)4., F.A.C.) and the 60-month period that a member is allowed to participate in DROP begin on the member's DROP eligibility date.

(a) The normal retirement date is achieved when the vested member becomes age 62 (or age 55 for a Special Risk member); or when the member completes 30 years of service (or 25 years of Special Risk service). The member may either include or exclude optional service credit in determining the date on which 30 years of any service (or 25 years of Special Risk service) has been attained.

(b) A deferred eligibility date is achieved as follows:

1. For a member who has completed 30 years of service prior to age 57 (or 25 years of Special Risk service prior to age 52), the DROP eligibility date may be deferred to age 57, or age 52 for a Special Risk member.

2. For a member with dual normal retirement dates, the DROP eligibility date may be determined by the member as the first day of the month in which normal retirement is achieved in either class.

3. For an elected officer member who has reached normal retirement date during a term of office, the DROP initial eligibility date may be deferred to later in that term or during the first day of the month after the beginning date of the next succeeding term of office.

4. Effective February 1, 2003, for a member who satisfies the definition of instructional personnel for grades K-12 as adopted in Section 1012.01(2), F.S., (Chapter 2002-387, Laws of Florida), the DROP eligibility date may be deferred to the first of any month after the member first reaches normal retirement date.

(3) No change.

(4) DEFERRED ELIGIBILITY DATE – means the first day of any month to which a vested member is eligible to defer his or her election to participate in DROP by virtue of meeting the election deferral criteria set forth under rule subsection 60S-11.002(2), F.A.C.

(5) No change.

(6) DROP PARTICIPATION PERIOD – means the period of time a member participates in DROP, not to exceed 60 months. However, K-12 instructional personnel as defined in Section 1012.01(2)(a)-(d), F.S., who are employed by district school boards and authorized by the district school superintendent or K-12 instructional personnel as defined in Section 1012.01(2)(a)-(d), F.S., who are employed the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind and authorized by the Board of Trustees of the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind; or K-12 instructional personnel as defined in Section 1012.01(2)(a), F.S., who are employed by a developmental

research school and authorized by the school's director, or if the school has no director, by the school's principal, may participate in DROP for up to 36 months beyond the 60-month period with Division approval.

(7) No change.

(8) DROP END DATE – means the date DROP participation ceases and shall be the date termination of all employment occurs as defined in paragraph subsection 60S-6.001(69)(b)(63), F.A.C., except as provided in subsection 60S-11.004(10) F.A.C., for elected officers. The DROP end date shall be effective as of the date of the participant's designated deferred resignation, as stated on Form DP-ELE (Rev. 04/09), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Notice of Election to Participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) and Resignation of Employment, herein adopted by reference; or if applicable on Form DP-EXT (Rev. 04/09), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Extension of Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) For Specified K-12 Instructional Personnel, herein adopted by reference, or earlier if the participant terminates prior to the designated resignation date. The participant may cease participation in DROP prior to the designated resignation date only by satisfying the definition of termination as provided in paragraph subsection 60S-6.001(69)(b)(63), F.A.C.

(9) through (10) No change.

~~(11) INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL — means a member who is employed by a District School Board in grades K-12, and satisfies the definition of instructional personnel as defined in Section 1012.01, F.S.~~

~~Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.091(13) FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.091(13) FS. History—New 9-16-03, Amended _____.~~

60S-11.002 Participation.

(1) ELIGIBILITY – A member of the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan, the Teachers' Retirement System, or the State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System shall be eligible to participate in the DROP provided:

(a) The member attains normal retirement date as provided in paragraph 60S-4.003(1)(b) or (c), F.A.C., for Florida Retirement System Pension Plan members, or normal retirement date as specified in Chapter 238, F.S., for Teachers' Retirement System members or in Chapter 122, F.S., for State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System members;

(b) The member is employed in a regularly established position as defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C.; and

(c) The member is not a renewed member under Section 121.122, F.S., a member of the State Community College System Optional Retirement Program as provided in Section 121.051, F.S., the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program as provided in Rule Chapter 60V, F.A.C., or the State University System Optional Retirement Program as

provided in Rule Chapter 60U, F.A.C., or a participant in the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program as provided in Part II of Chapter 121, F.S., more commonly referred to as the FRS Investment plan as defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C.

(2) ELECTION TO PARTICIPATE – An eligible member must elect to participate in DROP within a 12-month period beginning on the member's DROP eligibility date as defined in Rule 60S-11.001, F.A.C., subject to one of the following conditions:

(a) A member who reaches his or her initial eligibility date based on years of service before reaching age 57, or age 52 for a Special Risk Class member, and is therefore eligible to defer the DROP election period as defined in subparagraph 60S-11.001(2)(b)1., F.A.C., may defer his or her election to join DROP to anytime during the period from the initial eligibility date through the end of the twelfth month after he or she attains age 57, or age 52 for a Special Risk Class member. ~~The member may participate for up to 60 months following the DROP begin date.~~

(b) A member may elect to include or exclude any optional service credit from the total service used to establish the DROP begin date when determining the DROP eligibility date.

(c) A member with dual normal retirement dates, due to an employment history in two different classes of membership with different normal retirement date and age requirements, may elect to participate in DROP within 12 months of attaining normal retirement date in either membership class.

(d) An elected officer who reaches his or her DROP eligibility date during a term of office may defer DROP participation until later in that term or during the next term in such office. ~~The officer must elect to participate in DROP within 12 months of the first day of the month following the first month of such succeeding term and may participate for no more than 60 months after such day or until the end of the term, whichever occurs first.~~

(e) Effective February 1, 2003, a member who is filling a ~~an~~ K-12 instructional personnel position (K-12) as defined in Section 1012.01(2), F.S., subsection 60S-11.001(11), F.A.C., may elect to participate in DROP at any time after reaching the initial eligibility date.

(3) APPLICATION TO PARTICIPATE –

(a) Member's Responsibility – It shall be the responsibility of the eligible member to make proper application to the Division to participate in DROP. To qualify for DROP, the member shall submit to the Division:

1. Form DP-ELE, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Notice of Election to Participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) and Resignation of Employment, as adopted in subsection 60S-11.001(8), Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C., which shall specify the DROP begin date and the DROP termination and resignation date, shall be acknowledged by the employer; If the member is simultaneously employed by more than one FRS employer, the member must submit a completed

DP-ELE form from each employer. Such form and shall be received by the Division no later than the end of the last month of the member's 12-month election period described in subsection 60S-11.002(2), F.A.C., or a later date if authorized in subsection 60S-11.002(2), F.A.C. Such termination and resignation date shall constitute a binding letter of resignation with the employer. Failure to complete and submit Form DP-ELE within the limitations of subsection 60S-11.002(2), F.A.C., will result in the member being ineligible for DROP participation.

2. Form DP-11 (Rev. 11/10), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application for Service Retirement and the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP); or as adopted in Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C., Form DS-11 (Rev. 07/06), State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System Application for Service Retirement and the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP); or Form DT-11 (Rev. 07/06), Teachers' Retirement System Application for Service Retirement and the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP). All such forms are herein adopted by reference. Such application which will be accepted by the Division up to 6 months in advance of the intended DROP begin date, and shall establish the member's effective date of retirement and DROP begin date. The effective date of retirement and the DROP begin date shall both be the first day of the month that the member indicates on his or her application as the date he or she wishes his or her DROP participation to begin, provided the Division receives the member's application no later than the close of business on the last day of the month in which the DROP begin date occurs. If a member fails to apply for DROP by the last day of the month in which his or her intended DROP begin date occurs, the effective date of retirement and the DROP begin date shall be the first day of the month in which the Division receives the member's application, provided the application is received within the 12-month election as provided in subsection 60S-11.002(2), F.A.C.

(b) Division's Responsibility – When the Division receives a member's application for DROP the Division will:

1. Acknowledge receipt of the member's application and advise him or her of any required information or documents that have not yet been received. Such information may include, but is not limited to, birth date verification as required by subsection 60S-4.0035(2), F.A.C., beneficiary designation as required by subsection 60S-11.004(2), F.A.C., option selection as required by Rule 60S-4.010, F.A.C., spousal acknowledgment if option 1 or 2 is selected as required by subsection 60S-4.010(9), F.A.C., any payments due the member's account for purchase of additional service credit or a written statement from the member that the member does not wish to claim such service credit, and certification of final salary and accumulated annual leave payments as defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C.

2. Establish the DROP begin date as defined in subsection 60S-11.001(5)(3), F.A.C.

3. Send a follow-up notice, reminding the member of any required information or documents that have not yet been received.

(c) Subject to timely submission of all required documents, the effective date of DROP participation shall be the effective date of retirement as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(25), F.A.C. The DROP participant may not modify or cancel his or her DROP participation retirement benefit after the last day of the month of the DROP begin date as defined in subsection 60S-11.001(5)(3), F.A.C. The DROP benefit shall be deemed cashed or deposited as required in subsection 60S-4.002(4), F.A.C., as of the first last day of the month following the DROP begin date.

(d) Cancellation of DROP Application – If all the required information and documents have not been received by the Division after 3 follow-up notices have been sent to the member, the Division will send the member a certified letter, advising the member that he or she has 21 days to provide such information or documents without loss of his or her DROP begin date. If the Division has not received all of the required information and documents after the 21 days specified in the certified letter, the Division will send a final agency action letter to the member advising the member that his or her application is canceled and that he or she must reapply to join DROP, if eligible, with a new effective DROP begin date to be established upon application.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.091(13) FS. Law Implemented 121.021, 121.091, 1012.01 FS. History—New 9-16-03, Amended _____.

60S-11.004 Benefits.

(1) Calculation of Benefits.

(a) The retirement benefit of a member who has elected to participate in the DROP shall be calculated as provided in Rule 60S-4.004 or 60S-4.006, F.A.C.

(b) A member may choose to receive his or her accumulated annual leave payment, as defined in Rule 60S-6.001, F.A.C., and earned in accordance with agency policy, either upon beginning or terminating DROP.

1. If the member elects to receive this payment at the beginning of DROP, the payment, which must be certified to the Division, will be included in the calculation of the member's average final compensation. This early annual leave payment will be based on the hourly wage of the member at the time he or she begins participation in DROP. Any additional annual leave payment made at the DROP end date according to the employer's leave policy cannot be included in the retirement benefit, which was determined and fixed by law when the member elected to participate in DROP.

2. If the member elects to receive the annual leave payment upon termination of DROP and termination of employment with his or her employer, any accumulated annual leave payment made at that time cannot be included in the retirement benefit, which was determined and fixed by law when the member elected to participate in DROP.

(2) Beneficiary Designation – The beneficiary eligible to receive any accrued DROP benefits payable if the DROP participant dies before the completion of the DROP participation period will be the most recent joint annuitant or beneficiary designated to receive retirement benefits upon the death of the participant, as directed by the participant on the Application for Service Retirement and the Deferred Retirement Optional Retirement Program (Form DP-11), for FRS Pension Plan members as adopted in Rule 60S-11.003, F.A.C.; Form DS-11, for State and County Officers' and Employees' Retirement System members as adopted in Rule 60S-11.003, F.A.C.; or Form DT-11, for Teachers' Retirement System members as adopted in Rule 60S-11.003, F.A.C.); or Form FST-12, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Beneficiary Designation Form (Retired Members Only) as adopted in subsection 60S-4.011(5), F.A.C. However, if the beneficiary or joint annuitant dies during the DROP participation period, the participant may designate a new beneficiary as provided in Rule 60S-4.011, F.A.C., as follows:

(a) If the participant retired under option 1 or 2, he or she may name a new beneficiary on Form FST-12 ~~Beneficiary Designation for Retired Members, adopted in Rule Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C.~~ Such beneficiary will be eligible for both the DROP benefits and any benefits provided by the option selected; or

(b) If the participant retired under option 3 or 4, he or she may name a new qualified joint annuitant or spouse on Form JA-1, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Change of Joint Annuitant Form, adopted in Rule 60S-4.010 (8) Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C. Such beneficiary will be eligible for both the accrued DROP benefits and any continuing benefits; or

(c) If the participant retired under option 3 or 4, he or she may name, on Form FST-12, ~~Beneficiary Designation for Retired Members~~, a new beneficiary who will receive only the accrued DROP benefits. Such beneficiary will not replace the joint annuitant or spouse or be eligible for any continuing benefits.

(d) The participant may not name a beneficiary to receive DROP benefits who is different from the beneficiary designated to receive the retirement benefits.

(3) through (4) No change.

(5) Employment During DROP Participation.

(a) A DROP participant is considered a retiree as defined in subsection 60S-6.001(59)(53), F.A.C. However, participation in DROP does not alter the participant's employment status. Terms and conditions of employment, including, but not limited to, salary, insurance coverage, leave

accrual, and seniority status, do not change as a result of DROP participation. However, employment is not guaranteed during the DROP participation period.

(b) Employment continues during participation in DROP through the date the member preselected to stop participation in DROP, except that elected officers may continue in office after the DROP end date as provided in subsection (10) and (11) and certain instructional personnel, with approval of their employer and the Division may extend their DROP participation for up to 36 calendar months beyond the 60-month period as provided in sub-paragraph 5.

1. A DROP participant may change jobs or have more than one FRS employer, as long as the participant does not have a break in service as defined in subsection 60S-11.001(12)(8), F.A.C. If a break in service occurs, DROP participation will cease as of the end of the month in which no compensation is received for covered employment.

2. If the participant is employed by two employers upon beginning participation in DROP, the member and both employers must complete and submit Form DP-ELE, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Notice of Election to Participate in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) and Resignation of Employment, as adopted by reference in subsection 60S-11.001(8), F.A.C. Only one employer is required to submit Form DP-11. A change or addition of a new employer after commencement of DROP only requires the employee and new employer to submit Form DP-ELE.

3. All employers are required to acknowledge on Form DP-ELE the participant's DROP termination date, which may be extended as provided in subparagraph 4., (but not beyond the maximum 60 months) and to acknowledge potential liability for any additional retirement contributions and interest required if the participant fails to timely terminate employment.

4. If a participant continues employment beyond the preselected DROP end date and prior to completion of the maximum 60 months allowed, a new form DP-ELE must be submitted to the Division prior to the initial preselected DROP end date with a new DROP end date acknowledged by both the participant and any affected employer.

5. DROP participants who are instructional personnel employed by the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind and authorized by the Board of Trustees of the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind, who are instructional personnel as defined in Section 1012.01(2)(a)-(d), F.S., in grades K-12 and authorized by the district school superintendent, or who are instructional personnel as defined in Section 1012.01(2)(a), F.S., employed by a developmental research school and authorized by the schools director, or if the school has no director, by the school's principal, may participate in DROP for up to 36 calendar months beyond the 60-month participation period with Division approval. To apply for extended DROP

participation, the eligible employee must submit to the division a completed Form DP-EXT, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Extension of Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) for Specified K-12 Instructional Personnel, as adopted in subsection 60S-11.001(8), F.A.C., prior to the DROP termination date established for his or her initial 60-month DROP participation period, but no earlier than six months prior to such date. The applicant will receive confirmation from the Division when the DP-EXT is received and when the application for extension is approved or denied.

(6) Disability benefits – DROP participants shall not be eligible for disability benefits as described in Rule 60S-4.0073, F.A.C. ~~If a participant continues employment beyond the preselected DROP end date and prior to completion of the maximum 60 months allowed, a new form DP-ELE must be submitted with a new DROP end date acknowledged by both the participant and any affected employer.~~

(7) DROP benefits shall be subject to the provisions of Rules 60S-4.014 and 60S-4.021, F.A.C., pertaining to assignment, execution, or attachment of benefits, and forfeiture of benefits, respectively. The Alternate Payee of a DROP participant as a result of an approved Qualified Domestic Relations Order may designate a beneficiary on Form DP-12 (Rev. 02/06), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Beneficiary Designation Form for the Alternate Payee of a DROP Participant, herein adopted by reference, in the event the Alternate Payee predeceases the DROP participant during the period of DROP participation.

(8) Death Benefits.

(a) Eligibility to participate in the DROP ends upon the death of the participant.

(b) A DROP participant's survivors shall not be eligible to receive FRS in-line-of-duty death benefits as described in subsection 60S-4.008(4), F.A.C.

(c) If the participant dies on or after the DROP begin date, but prior to the first monthly benefit being credited to his or her DROP account, benefits shall be paid as follows:

1. According to the option selected by the participant at the time he or she entered DROP; or

2. If the beneficiary qualifies as a joint annuitant and the participant had selected an option other than option 3, the beneficiary may choose to receive a benefit payable under option 3 with no payout of DROP accrual, as though the participant had not applied for DROP and had retired on the date of death; or

3. If no option had been selected by the participant, benefits shall be paid according to subsection 60S-4.008(3), F.A.C.

(d) Upon the death of a DROP participant, the designated beneficiary shall be entitled to apply for and receive the accrued benefits in the DROP as provided in subsection 60S-11.004(12)(~~11~~), F.A.C.

(9) Termination of Employment for Participants ~~Other than Elected Officers~~ Not in the Elected Officers' Class A DROP participant, ~~except for an elected officer participating in any membership class, not in the Elected Officers' Class~~ must terminate employment on or before the preselected resignation date specified on Form DP-ELE or if applicable on Form DP-EXT and will be required submit to the Division a completed Form DP-TERM (Rev. 04/10), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Termination Notification, herein adopted by reference, upon termination from DROP. If a participant fails to terminate on or before the DROP termination and resignation date:

(a) Retirement and DROP participation are voided.

(b) The DROP accumulation and any monthly retirement benefits received are forfeited.

(c) Membership in the member's retirement plan will be retroactively reestablished to the date the member initiated DROP participation.

(d) Each employer is liable for payment of or eligible for a refund of, as applicable, the difference between the DROP contributions paid and the required FRS retirement contributions for the applicable class of membership during the period of DROP participation. Payment of additional contributions shall include 6.5 percent interest compounded annually. No interest will be paid on refunds to employers.

(e) Should the DROP participant and his or her respective employer rescind the DROP participant's resignation and employment shall continue beyond the rescinded resignation date, the DROP participant and his or her respective employer shall notify the Division on Form DP-VOID (Rev. 04/03), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Void Form, herein adopted by reference, no earlier than three months prior to, but no later than, the rescinded resignation date.

(10) Termination of Employment for Participants in the Elected Officers' Class – A member of the Elected Officers' Class participating in the DROP may continue to serve in elected office upon reaching the DROP end date as follows:

(a) For such officer who began participating in the DROP prior to July 1, 2002:

1. Such officer shall be required to submit to the Division a completed Form DP-TEOC (09/01), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Elected Officers' Termination Notification, herein adopted by reference, upon termination from DROP.

~~2.1-~~ Payment of the accumulated DROP benefits shall be made as provided in subsection (12)(~~11~~).

~~3.2-~~ Beginning the first month following the DROP end date, monthly retirement benefits shall be paid to the officer in addition to compensation received as an elected officer.

~~4.3-~~ The officer shall be a renewed member in the Elected Officers' Class as provided in subsection 60S-1.0055(4), F.A.C., effective the first day of the month following the DROP end date.

(b) For such officer who began participating in the DROP on or after July 1, 2002 through June 1, 2010:

1. Such officer shall be required to submit to the Division a completed Form DP-TEOC-2 (10/07), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Elected Officer DROP Termination Notification, herein adopted by reference, upon termination from DROP.

~~2.1-~~ No additional DROP benefits shall accumulate on behalf of the officer after the officer's DROP end date, however, cost-of-living adjustments and interest shall continue to accrue as provided in subsection (3) until the officer ceases holding office and satisfies the definition of termination provided in ~~paragraph subsection~~ 60S-6.001(69)(b)(63), F.A.C.

~~3.2-~~ The officer shall not be a renewed member in the Elected Officers' Class and the employer shall not make retirement contributions on the officer's behalf after the officer's DROP end date, however, the employer shall submit health insurance subsidy contributions until the officer ceases holding elective office.

~~4.3-~~ Monthly retirement benefit payments shall be paid to the officer beginning the first month after the officer ceases holding office and satisfies the definition of termination provided in ~~paragraph subsection~~ 60S-6.001(69)(b)(63), F.A.C.

5.4- After satisfying the definition of termination, such officer who is reemployed or reelected shall be subject to the reemployment limitations provided in Rule 60S-4.012, F.A.C.

(c) For such officer who began participating in the DROP on or after July 1, 2010:

1. Such officer shall be required to submit to the Division a completed Form DP-TEOC-2, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Elected Officer DROP Termination Notification, as adopted by reference in paragraph (b), upon termination from DROP.

2. No additional DROP benefits or interest shall accumulate on behalf of the officer after the officer's DROP end date, however, cost-of-living adjustments shall continue to accrue as provided in subsection (3) until the officer ceases holding office and satisfies the definition of termination provided in paragraph 60S-6.001(69)(b), F.A.C.

3. The officer shall not be a renewed member in the Elected Officers' Class and the employer shall not make retirement contributions on the officer's behalf after the officer's DROP end date, however, the employer shall submit health insurance subsidy contributions until the officer ceases holding elective office.

4. Monthly retirement benefit payments shall be paid to the officer beginning the first month after the officer ceases holding office and satisfies the definition of termination provided in paragraph 60S-6.001(69)(b), F.A.C.

5. After satisfying the definition of termination, such officer who is reemployed or reelected shall be subject to the reemployment limitations provided in Rule 60S-4.012, F.A.C.

(11) Termination of Employment for Participants who are Elected Officers not in the Elected Officers' Class – Effective July 1, 2009, a member who is an elected officer participating in the DROP who is not in the Elected Officers' Class may continue to serve in elected office upon reaching his or her DROP end date as provided in subsection (10).

~~(12)(44)~~ DROP Distribution – Upon the participant's termination of all employment as defined in paragraph 60S-6.001(69)(b)(63), F.A.C., the deferred resignation becoming effective, and the conclusion of the DROP participation period, or upon the death of the participant, or for an elected officer as provided in paragraph (10)(a) benefits shall be paid or distributed as follows:

(a) The previously determined normal monthly retirement benefits, plus applicable cost-of-living increases, will commence in accordance with the method of payment chosen by the participant at the time he or she began DROP participation; and

(b) The total accumulated DROP benefits will be distributed to the participant, or, if deceased, to the participant's joint annuitant or beneficiary as appropriate, provided the Division receives:

1. From the non-elected participant ~~only~~, the Form DP-TERM, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Termination Notification, adopted in ~~subsection (10) Rule Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C.~~, signed by both the participant and employer or employers, verifying termination of employment, ~~and~~

2. From the elected officer participant, Form DP-TEOC-3 (10/07), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Elected Officer Employment Termination Notification, herein adopted by reference, signed by both the participant and employer or employers, verifying termination of employment.

3. From the participant who chose Option 4, Form DP-Joint (Rev. 09/99), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Joint Annuitant Verification, herein adopted by reference, signed by the participant verifying that his or her joint annuitant is still living and eligible for the full DROP Payout and the unreduced continuing monthly benefit.

4.2- From all participants, Form DP-PAYT (Rev. 05/11), Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) Selected Payout Method, herein adopted by reference in Rule Chapter 60S-9, F.A.C., submitted by the participant, or if the participant has died, Form FST-11g, Florida Retirement System Pension Plan Application of Beneficiary for Benefit Payment, as adopted in paragraph

60S-4.008(1)(a), F.A.C., must be completed by his or her beneficiary, notifying the Division as to which of the following methods of payment he or she has chosen:

a. Lump sum ~~(if the participant is deceased, a beneficiary, other than a spouse, must receive the lump sum distribution only),~~

b. Direct rollover, or

c. Combined partial lump sum and rollover.

A DROP participant or beneficiary who submits all required forms, but fails to elect a method of payment within 60 days of termination of DROP, will automatically receive a lump sum distribution, less applicable withheld taxes.

~~5.3.~~ If a direct rollover or a partial lump sum and rollover are requested, Form DP-PAYT must be submitted to the Division. A participant who elects a rollover must have the rollover paid directly to the custodian of an eligible retirement plan as defined in s. 402(c)(8)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code. Eligible retirement plans include:

a. An Individual Retirement Account as described in s. 408(a), Internal Revenue Code.

b. An Individual Retirement Annuity as described in s. 408(b), Internal Revenue Code, excluding an endowment contract.

c. A Qualified Plan – a stock bonus, pension, or profit sharing plan of an employer (both defined contribution and defined benefit plans) Trust established in accordance with s. 401(a), or 401(k), Internal Revenue Code, for the sole and exclusive benefit of employees or their beneficiaries, excluding designated 401(k) and 403(b) Roth Individual Retirement Accounts.

d. An Annuity Plan as described in s. 403(a), Internal Revenue Code, ~~excluding a s. 403(b) plan or a s. 457 plan as specified in the Internal Revenue Code.~~

e. An eligible deferred compensation plan described in s. 457(b), Internal Revenue Code which is maintained by an eligible employer as described in s. 457(e)(1)(A), Internal Revenue Code.

f. An annuity contract as described in s. 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.

If the DROP participant dies and the surviving spouse wishes to roll over the DROP account, it can only be rolled over into an arrangement as cited in sub-subparagraphs a. ~~, b., c., or f.~~ of this subparagraph as described in s. 402(c)(9), Internal Revenue Code. However, if the DROP participant dies and the surviving non-spouse beneficiary wishes to roll over the DROP account, it can only be rolled over into an Inherited Individual Retirement account arrangement as cited in sub-subparagraph a. of this subparagraph as described in s. 402(c)(11), Internal Revenue Code.

~~(13)(12)~~ Federal Limits – Benefits accumulating in the DROP are not subject to federal benefit limitations specified in s. 415 of the Internal Revenue Code, until DROP participation ends and the participant begins receiving his or her monthly

retirement benefits. The amount of the accumulated DROP at the time the member ceases DROP is amortized over the member's expected lifetime, in the manner required by the Internal Revenue Code, and the annualized value of the DROP account reduces the federal maximum annual benefit the member is entitled to receive.

~~(14)(13)~~ Reemployment After DROP – Except as otherwise provided in subsection (10):

(a) Upon the conclusion of DROP, the reemployment provisions specified in Rule 60S-4.012, F.A.C., are applicable to DROP participants.

~~(b)1. For DROP participants with DROP termination dates before July 1, 2010, reemployment~~ Reemployment with an employer during the first calendar month after concluding DROP shall result in cancellation of DROP and retirement. The member's DROP application shall be void, and he or she shall be required to repay all DROP and monthly retirement benefits received. The employer who reemploys such member is liable for payment of or eligible for a refund of, as applicable, the difference between the DROP contributions paid and the required FRS retirement contributions for the applicable class of membership during the period of DROP participation. Payment of additional contributions shall include 6.5 percent interest compounded annually. No interest will be paid on refunds to employers.

2. For DROP participants with DROP termination dates on or after July 1, 2010, reemployment with an employer during the first six calendar months after concluding DROP shall result in cancellation of DROP and retirement. The member's DROP application shall be void, and he or she shall be required to repay all DROP and monthly retirement benefits received. The employer who reemploys such member is liable for payment of or eligible for a refund of, as applicable, the difference between the DROP contributions paid and the required FRS retirement contributions for the applicable class of membership during the period of DROP participation. Payment of additional contributions shall include 6.5 percent interest compounded annually. No interest will be paid on refunds to employers.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 121.031, 121.091(13)(k) FS. Law Implemented 121.091, 121.131 FS. History–New 9-16-03, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Sarabeth Snuggs, Director, the Division of Retirement
 NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: John P. Miles, Secretary, Department of Management Services
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 20, 2011
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: June 18, 2010, Vol. 36/24

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Architecture and Interior Design

RULE NO.: 61G1-17.003
RULE TITLE: Professional Fees and Penalties for Individuals Licensed Both as a Registered Architect and Interior Designer

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes to repeal the rule because it duplicates what is otherwise provided for in Section 481.229(5)(b), Florida Statutes.

SUMMARY: The rule will be repealed due to the fact that it duplicates what is otherwise provided for in statute.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

During discussion of the economic impact of the rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule amendment will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this rule will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 481.2055 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.2281, 481.207, 481.221 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Board of Architecture and Interior Design, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G1-17.003 Professional Fees and Penalties for Individuals Licensed Both as a Registered Architect and Interior Designer.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 481.2055 FS. Law Implemented 455.2281, 481.207, 481.221 FS. History--New 6-5-95, Repealed.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Architecture and Interior Design

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Architecture and Interior Design

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 27, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE NO.: 61G15-23.003
RULE TITLE: Procedures for Signing and Sealing Electronically Transmitted Plans, Specifications, Reports or Other Documents

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to delete unnecessary language and to modify language to update the Federal Information Processing Standard Publication and to provide the website address where the standards can be downloaded.

SUMMARY: The rule amendment will delete unnecessary language and to modify language to update the Federal Information Processing Standard Publication and to provide the website address where the standards can be downloaded.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

The Board determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule. These rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 471.025(1), 668.006 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 471.025 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Carrie Flynn, Executive Director, Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-5268

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G15-23.003 Procedures for Signing and Sealing Electronically Transmitted Plans, Specifications, Reports or Other Documents.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) A professional engineer utilizing an electronic signature to seal engineering work shall create a "signature" file that contains the engineer's name and PE number, a brief overall description of the engineering documents, and a list of the electronic files to be sealed. ~~Each file in the list shall be identified by its file name utilizing relative Uniform Resource Locators (URL) syntax described in the Internet Architecture Board's Request for Comments (RFC) 1738, December 1994, which is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference by the Board and can be obtained from the Internet Website: <http://ftp.isi.edu/in-notes/rfc1738.txt>.~~ Each file shall have an authentication code defined as an SHA-1 message digest described in Federal Information Processing Standard Publication 180-34 "Secure Hash Standard," ~~October 2008 1995 April 17,~~ which is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference by the Board and can be obtained from the Internet Website: <http://csrc.nist.gov/publications/fips/fips180-3/fips180-3final.pdf> ~~<http://www.itl.nist.gov/div897/pubs/fip180-1.htm>.~~ The licenses shall then create a report that contains the engineer's name and PE number, a brief overall description of the engineering documents in question and the authentication code of the signature file. This report shall be printed and manually signed, dated, and sealed by the professional engineer in responsible charge. The signature file is defined as sealed if the signature file's authentication code matches the authentication code on the printed, manually signed, dated and sealed report. Each electronic file listed in a sealed signature file is defined as sealed if the listed authentication code in the signature file matches the electronic file's computed authentication code.

Rulemaking Authority 471.025(1), 668.006 FS. Law Implemented 471.025 FS. History--New 8-18-98, Amended 9-4-05, 5-6-09, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Professional Engineers
NAME AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Professional Engineers
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 19, 2011
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 30, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE NO.: 61G15-29.001
RULE TITLE: Certification Definition, Procedures, Prohibitions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to delete unnecessary language and add new language to clarify the certifications procedures.

SUMMARY: The rule amendment will delete unnecessary language and delete unnecessary language and add new language to clarify the certifications procedures.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

The Board determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule. These rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 471.008 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 471.025(3), 471.033(1)(j) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Carrie Flynn, Executive Director, Board of Professional Engineers, 2507 Callaway Road, Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32303-5268

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G15-29.001 Certification Definition, Procedures, Prohibitions.

(1) No change.

(2) When an engineer is presented with a certification to be signed and/or sealed, he or she should carefully evaluate that certification to determine if any of the circumstances set forth in subsection (3) would apply. If any of these circumstances would apply, that engineer shall either: (a) modify such certification to limit its scope to those matters which the engineer shall ~~can~~ properly sign and/or seal, or (b) decline to sign and seal such certification.

(3) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 471.008 FS. Law Implemented 471.025(3), 471.033(1)(j) FS. History--New 1-16-91, Formerly 21H-29.001, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Professional Engineers
NAME AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Professional Engineers
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: July 19, 2011
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 30, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: 61J1-2.001 RULE TITLE: Fees

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to add an application and biennial fee for an appraisal management company.

SUMMARY: An application and biennial fee for an appraisal management company will be added to the rule.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

A Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. During discussion of the economic impact of the rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was necessary, but that the rule amendment will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that the rule will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

The following is a summary of the SERC:

- The estimated total of appraisal management companies' registration is 2,000 applicants at a one-time cost each of \$150.00 for the application fee and a recurring cost of \$300.00, the cost of the biennial fee, within five years, for a total of \$1,050.00.
- The rule will impact small appraiser offices if that small business operates in the capacity of an appraisal management company in Florida. It is estimated the potential for 2,000 registered appraisal management companies exist.
- Licensure of appraisal management companies and related fees were mandated by the Legislature and are not at the Board's discretion. The projections in the 2010 bill analysis included one-time costs to be paid by the Division of Real Estate of \$110,139 in development of licensing standards, \$15,000 recurring contract services, \$8,000 for rule making costs, and recurring expenses of \$20,000 per year for two additional board members when appointed by the Governor.
- There will be no additional cost to any other state and local government entities of implementing the proposed rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 475.614 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 215.34, 455.217, 455.2281, 455.271(6)(b), 475.6147, 475.615, 475.618. 475.6235(3) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Juana Watkins, Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61J1-2.001 Fees.

- (1) The application fee shall be as follows:

Registered Trainee Appraiser	\$50.00
Certified Residential Appraiser	\$100.00
Certified General Appraiser	\$100.00
<u>Appraisal Management Company</u>	<u>\$150.00</u>
- (2) The biennial fee shall be:

Registered Trainee Appraiser	\$175.00
Licensed Appraiser	\$175.00
Certified Residential Appraiser	\$175.00
Certified General Appraiser	\$175.00
<u>Appraisal Management Company</u>	<u>\$300.00</u>

(3) through (15) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 475.614 FS. Law Implemented 215.34, 455.217, 455.2281, 455.271(6)(b), 475.6147, 475.615, 475.618, 475.6235(3) FS. History—New 10-15-91, Amended 6-7-92, 5-6-93, Formerly 21VV-2.001, Amended 9-22-93, 7-5-94, 5-22-95, 8-20-96, 11-11-97, 10-1-98, 10-29-98, 1-7-99, 11-15-99, 11-10-03, 2-21-06, 9-21-06, 12-4-06, 3-13-07, 12-4-07, 7-17-11, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 7, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 8, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: 61J1-7.0065 RULE TITLE: Signatures on Appraisal Report and Certification

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to update signature requirements on an appraisal report and certification.

SUMMARY: Signature requirements on a appraisal report and certification will be updated.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

A Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. During discussion of the economic impact of the rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was necessary, but that the rule amendment will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that the rule will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

The following is a summary of the SERC:

- A total of 6,900 licensed Certified Residential Appraisers and Certified General Appraisers; there are 874 registered trainee appraisers who may sign appraisal reports.
- There will be no impact to business competitiveness because all real estate appraisers across the country are required to follow the same set of standards as developed by the Appraisal Standards Board of the Appraisal Foundation.
- There will be no cost to the department for implementing the proposed rule.
- There will be no cost to any other state and local government entities of implementing the proposed rule.
- An estimated number of the small businesses that would be subject to the rule are more than 5,000.
- The rule amendment will not create a financial impact, but clarifies better definition of signature.
- No small county or small city will be impacted by the proposed rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 475.614, 475.613(2), 475.624(14) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 475.613(2), 475.624(14) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Juana Watkins, Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61J1-7.0065 Signatures on Appraisal Report and Certification.

(1) Each appraiser signing a certification of an appraisal report must sign the certification with the name that the licensee has registered with the Department. A signature may be represented by a handwritten mark or a digitized image controlled by a personal identification number, password, or other security feature. A facsimile signature may be either affixed by hand or electronically by computer software. An appraiser shall at all times maintain direct control of the appraiser's signature.

(2) An appraiser shall develop and maintain a written method by which his or her signature shall be affixed, for its security protection and the prohibition of practices that might discredit its use.

(3) An appraiser shall not grant blanket authority to another to affix the appraiser's signature to an appraisal report or other work performed by the appraiser. Any grant of permission to another to affix an appraiser's signature to an appraisal report or other work performed by the appraiser shall meet the following requirements:

(a) Be in writing;

(b) Extend only to one specific appraisal report; and

(c) Be maintained in the appraiser's work file.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 475.614 475.613(2), 475.624(14) FS. Law Implemented 475.613(2), 475.614 475.624(14) FS. History--New 12-4-06, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 7, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 8, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NO.: 61J1-9.001 **RULE TITLE:** Standards of Appraisal Practice

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to incorporate the current version of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice into the rule.

SUMMARY: The current version of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice will be incorporated into the rule.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

A Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. During discussion of the economic impact of the rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was necessary, but that the rule amendment will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that the rule will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

The following is a summary of the SERC:

- An estimated total of 7,774 appraiser licensees will be affected by the rule amendment.
- There will be no financial impact imposed because the rule is currently in effect as compliance with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice.
- There will be no additional cost to the department for implementing the proposed rule.
- There will be no cost to any other state and local government entities of implementing the proposed rule.
- An estimated number of the small businesses that would be subject to the rule are more than 5,000.
- The language of the rule is specific to the version of USPAP the real estate appraisers are required to follow. The most recent version has been made available online as a free document.
- No small county or small city will be impacted by the proposed rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 475.613(2), 475.628 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 475.613(2), 475.628 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Juana Watkins, Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61J1-9.001 Standards of Appraisal Practice.

All registered, licensed, or certified appraisers shall comply with the 2010-2011 ~~2008-2009~~ Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP), effective January 1, 2010, which is incorporated by reference.

~~Rulemaking Specific Authority 475.614 475.613(2), 475.628 FS. Law Implemented 475.613(2), 475.628 FS. History–New 8-29-06, Amended 3-24-09.~~

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 7, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 8, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

61J1-11.001

Definitions

61J1-11.002

Application for Registration as an Appraisal Management Company

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the creation of new rules to define the address of record and authorized representatives for appraisal management companies and to establish the application process for licensure as an appraisal management company.

SUMMARY: Address of record and authorized representative for appraisal management companies will be defined. The application process for licensure as an appraisal management company will be established.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

A Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared. During discussion of the economic impact of the rules at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was necessary, but that the rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that the rules will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

The following is a summary of the SERCs for both rules:

- The purpose of the promulgation of Rule 61J1-11.001 is for definitions only to provide clarity of the language of the statute. There is no cost associated with the rule.
- There will be no cost to the department for implementing proposed Rule 61J1-11.001.
- There will be no cost to any other state and local government entities of implementing the proposed rules.
- An estimated number of the small businesses that would

be subject to Rule 61J1-11.001 are more than 5,000.

- No small county or small city will be impacted by the proposed rules.
- Pertaining to Rule 61J1-11.002, the Florida Legislature passed HB 303 into law and it became Chapter 2010-84 in 2010. The effective date of the law is July 1, 2011. Any costs associated with this rule are mandated by statute and not at board discretion.
- Pertaining to Rule 61J1-11.002, all estimated 2,000 appraisal management companies registered to conduct business in Florida will be required to comply with the fingerprint requirement at a cost of \$57.25 per applicant.
- Pertaining to Rule 61J1-11.002, the projections in the 2010 bill analysis included one-time costs paid by the Division of Real Estate of \$110,139 in development of licensing standards, \$15,000 recurring contract services, \$8,000 for rule making costs, and recurring expenses of \$20,000 per year for two additional board member appointments.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 475.614 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.275(1), 475.613, 475.6235, 475.624 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE EDITION OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Juana Watkins, Director, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

61J1-11.001 Definitions.

(1) "Address of record" means the mailing address of the appraisal management company.

(2) "Authorized representative" means any person who possesses the authority, directly or indirectly, to direct the management or policies of the appraisal management company, whether through ownership, by contract, or otherwise, as provided in Section 475.6235(2)(f), F.S.

Rulemaking Authority 475.614 FS. Law Implemented 455.275(1), 475.613, 475.6235, 475.624 FS. History—New _____.

61J1-11.002 Application for Registration as an Appraisal Management Company.

(1) An applicant for registration as an appraisal management company shall file a completed application on Form DBPR FREAB-1, "Application for Registering an Appraisal Management Company," effective June 1, 2011. The

form, together with the instructions for completion, is incorporated herein by reference and may be obtained from the Board's office at 400 West Robinson Street, Suite N801, Orlando, Florida 32801-1757 or from its Website located at http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/RE/documents/DBPRF_REAB1-. The application is complete when all items on the application form have been fully answered, all fees specified in subsection 61J1-2.001(1), F.A.C., paid, and all required documentation, certifications, electronic fingerprints through the Department's vendor, explanations of answers, and other items specified in the form and its instructions submitted. Incomplete applications expire one year after the date any portion thereof is received.

(2) At the time of filing the application for registration, the applicant and all authorized representatives must sign a pledge to comply with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice, as defined in Section 475.611(1)(q), F.S., and must indicate in writing that they understand the types of misconduct for which disciplinary proceedings may be initiated.

(3) The applicant and all authorized representatives must make it possible for the Board to determine whether they are competent and qualified to perform appraisal management services with safety to those with whom they may undertake a relationship of trust and confidence and the general public by disclosing all of the following:

(a) Whether they have ever been convicted or found guilty, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere (no contest) to, regardless of adjudication, of a crime in any jurisdiction which directly relates to the activities of an appraiser, or which involves moral turpitude or fraudulent or dishonest conduct;

(b) Whether any civil proceedings are pending against them or whether any civil judgment has been rendered against them in a case wherein the pleadings charged them with fraudulent or dishonest dealings; and

(c) Whether they have had a registration, license, or certification to practice any regulated profession, business, or vocation revoked, suspended, disbarred or otherwise acted against by this or any other state, any nation, or any possession or district of the United States, whether any such proceeding or investigation is now pending, or whether they have had an application for such registration, licensure or certification to practice or conduct any regulated profession, business or vocation denied by this or any other state, any nation, or any possession or district of the United States.

(4) If an applicant and/or any authorized representative discloses information pursuant to subsection (3), above, they must submit certified copies of the following documents along with the application to be considered for registration: criminal judgments and sentences, civil judgments, civil decrees, and/or final orders by administrative and/or regulatory agencies pertaining to licensure. If such documents are no longer retained by a clerk of court or agency clerk or are no longer in

existence, then the applicant and/or any authorized representative must submit proof, such as a written affidavit or statement from a clerk of court or agency clerk, that said documents are no longer retained or are no longer in existence.

Rulemaking Authority 475.614 FS. Law Implemented 475.613, 475.6235, 475.624 FS. History—New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 7, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: July 8, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

RULE NO.: 62-204.800
 RULE TITLE: Federal Regulations Adopted by Reference

PURPOSE, EFFECT AND SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendments (OGC 10-3444) update the department’s adoption-by-reference of air pollution regulations promulgated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. Parts 51, 52, 53 and 58 to incorporate federal requirements for regulation for particulate matter and sulfur dioxide.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 403.8055 FS.
 LAW IMPLEMENTED: 403.061, 403.087, 403.8055 FS.

THIS RULEMAKING IS UNDERTAKEN PURSUANT TO SECTION 403.8055, F.S. WRITTEN COMMENTS MAY BE SUBMITTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE TO: Ms. Patricia E. Comer, Office of General Counsel, Department of Environmental Protection, MS 35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee Florida 32399-3000.

SUBSTANTIALLY AFFECTED PERSONS MAY WITHIN 14 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, FILE AN OBJECTION TO THIS RULEMAKING WITH THE ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION COMMISSION, ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT, DEP, MS 35, 3900 COMMONWEALTH BLVD., TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-3000. THE OBJECTION SHALL SPECIFY THE PORTIONS OF THE PROPOSED RULE TO WHICH THE PERSON OBJECTS AND THE SPECIFIC REASONS FOR THE OBJECTION.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

62-204.800 Federal Regulations Adopted by Reference.

All federal regulations cited throughout the air pollution rules of the Department are adopted and incorporated by reference in this rule. The purpose and effect of each such federal

regulation is determined by the context in which it is cited. Procedural and substantive requirements in the incorporated federal regulations are binding as a matter of state law only where the context so provides.

(1) Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 50, National Primary and Secondary Ambient Air Quality Standards.

(a) The provisions of 40 CFR Part 50, §§ 50.1 through 50.12, revised as of July 1, 2006; amended November 12, 2008, at 73 FR 66963, amended February 9, 2010, at 75 6473; § 50.13, promulgated October 17, 2006, at 71 FR 61143; § 50.14, promulgated March 22, 2007, at 72 FR 13559; amended May 22, 2007, at 72 FR 28612; amended October 6, 2008, at 73 FR 58042; amended November 12, 2008, at 73 FR 66963; amended May 19, 2009, at 74 FR 23307; amended February 9, 2010, at 75 FR 6473; amended June 22, 2010 at 75 FR 35520; § 50.15 promulgated, March 27, 2008, at 73 FR 16435; ~~and~~ § 50.16, promulgated November 12, 2008, at 73 FR 66963; and § 50.17, promulgated June, 22, 2010 at 75 FR 35520; are adopted and incorporated by reference.

(b) The following appendices of 40 C.F.R. Part 50, revised as of July 1, 2006, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:

1. No change.
2. 40 C.F.R. Part 50, Appendix A-1, Reference Measurement Principle and Calibration Procedure for the Measurement of Sulfur Dioxide in the Atmosphere (Ultraviolet Fluorescence Method), promulgated June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.
2. through 18. renumbered 3. through 19. No change.
20. 40 C.F.R. Part 50, Appendix T, Interpretation of the Primary National Ambient Air Quality Standards for Oxides of Sulfur (Sulfur Dioxide), promulgated June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.

(2) Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 51, Requirements for Preparation, Adoption, and Submittal of Implementation Plans.

(a) The following subparts of 40 C.F.R. Part 51, revised as of July 1, 2006, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:

1. No change.
2. 40 C.F.R. Part 51, Subpart I, Review of New Sources and Modifications; amended October 20, 2010, at 75 FR 64864.
3. through 5. No change.

(b) The following appendices of 40 C.F.R. Part 51, revised as of July 1, 2006, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:

1. 40 C.F.R. Part 51, Appendix M, Recommended Test Methods for State Implementation Plans; amended September 21, 2006, at 71 FR 55119; amended May 29, 2008, at 73 FR 30775; amended December 21, 2010, at 75 FR 80118.

2. through 4. No change.

(3) Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 52, Approval and Promulgation of Implementation Plans. The following subparts of 40 C.F.R. Part 52, revised as of July 1, 2003, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:

(a) 40 C.F.R. Part 52, Subpart A, General Provisions; amended June 13, 2007, at 72 FR 32526; amended July 16, 2007, at 72 FR 38787; amended October 20, 2010, at 75 FR 64864.

(b) No change.

(4) Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 53, Ambient Air Monitoring Reference and Equivalent Methods.

The following subparts of 40 C.F.R. Part 53, revised as of July 1, 2006, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:

(a) 40 C.F.R. Part 53, Subpart A, General Provisions; amended October 17, 2006, at 71 FR 61235; amended June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.

(b) 40 C.F.R. Part 53, Subpart B, Procedures for Testing Performance Characteristics of Automated Methods for SO₂, CO, O₃, and NO₂; amended June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.

(c) 40 C.F.R. Part 53, Subpart C, Procedures for Determining Comparability Between Candidate Methods and Reference Methods; amended October 17, 2006, at 71 FR 61235; amended June 12, 2007, at 72 FR 32193; amended November 12, 2008, at 73 FR 66963; amended June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.

(d) through (f) No change.

(5) No change.

(6) Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 58, Ambient Air Quality Surveillance.

(a) The following subparts of 40 C.F.R. Part 58, revised as of July 1, 2006, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:

1. No change.

2. 40 C.F.R. Part 58, Subpart B, Monitoring Network, amended October 17, 2006, at 71 FR 61235; amended June 12, 2007, at 72 FR 32193; amended November 12, 2008, at 73 FR 66963; amended February 9, 2010, at 75 FR 6473; amended June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.

3. through 6. No change.

(b) The following appendices of 40 C.F.R. Part 58, revised as of July 1, 2006, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:

1. 40 C.F.R. Part 58, Appendix A, Quality Assurance Requirements for SLAMS, SPMs and PSD Air Monitoring; amended October 17, 2006, at 71 FR 61235; amended June 12, 2007, at 72 FR 32193; amended November 12, 2008, at 73 FR 66963; amended February 9, 2010, at 75 FR 6473; amended June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.

2. No change.

3. 40 C.F.R. 58, Appendix D, Network Design Criteria for Ambient Air Quality Monitoring; amended October 17, 2006, at 71 FR 61235; amended June 12, 2007, at 72 FR 32193; amended November 12, 2008, at 73 FR 66963; amended February 9, 2010, at 75 FR 6473; amended June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.

4. No change.

5. 40 C.F.R. Part 58, Appendix G, Uniform Air Quality Index (AQI) and Daily Reporting; amended March 27, 2008, at 73 FR 16435; amended June 26, 2009, at 74 FR 30469; amended February 9, 2010, at 75 FR 6473; amended June 22, 2010, at 75 FR 35520.

(7) through (27) No change.

PROPOSED EFFECTIVE DATE DECEMBER 1, 2011.

Rulemaking Authority 403.061, 403.8055 FS. Law Implemented 403.031, 403.061, 403.087, 403.8055 FS. History—New 3-13-96, Amended 6-25-96, 10-7-96, 10-17-96, 12-20-96, 4-18-97, 6-18-97, 7-7-97, 10-3-97, 12-10-97, 3-2-98, 4-7-98, 5-20-98, 6-8-98, 10-19-98, 4-1-99, 7-1-99, 9-1-99, 10-1-99, 4-1-00, 10-1-00, 1-1-01, 8-1-01, 10-1-01, 4-1-02, 7-1-02, 10-1-02, 1-1-03, 4-1-03, 10-1-03, 1-1-04, 4-1-04, 7-1-04, 10-1-04, 1-1-05, 4-1-05, 7-1-05, 10-1-05, 1-1-06, 4-1-06, 7-1-06, 9-4-06, 9-6-06, 1-8-07, 1-31-07, 4-2-07, 5-31-07, 7-2-07, 10-1-07, 2-1-08, 7-1-08, 10-1-08, 10-6-08, 12-1-08, 11-18-09, 6-11-10, 7-1-10, 10-1-10, 12-30-10, 12-1-11.

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

Residential Services

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
63E-7.002	Definitions
63E-7.003	Youth Admission
63E-7.006	Quality of Life and Youth Grievance Process
63E-7.009	Behavior Management
63E-7.010	Residential Case Management Services
63E-7.011	Delinquency Intervention and Treatment Services
63E-7.016	Program Administration

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rule amendments update and clarify conditions of confinement and treatment for delinquent youth in residential commitment programs.

SUMMARY: The rule amendments eliminate the use of behavior management units, clarify provisions for accessing legal services, and specify required delinquency intervention services for youth in residential programs.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has been prepared by the agency.

The total, system-wide cost of the amendments for private providers and state-operated programs has been estimated at just over \$15,000. One of the Department's private providers of residential services qualifies as a "small business." It is estimated that the cost of complying with that portion of the amended rule requiring the revision of position descriptions will cost the impacted, small business provider \$150.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein:

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 985.64 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 985.601(3) FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 15, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: DJJ Headquarters, 2737 Centerview Drive, General Counsel's Conference Room 3223, Tallahassee, Florida. For information about participation by telephone, contact John Milla at (850)921-4129

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: John Milla, 2737 Centerview Dr., Ste. 3200, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3100, e-mail: john.milla@djj.state.fl.us

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

63E-7.002 Definitions.

For the purpose of this rule chapter, the following words shall have the meanings indicated.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) Attorney of Record – An attorney licensed to practice in the State of Florida who represents the youth on a previous or pending case, or an attorney who has entered into a signed agreement with the child's parent or legal guardian to provide representation for the youth.

(5) through (89) renumbered (6) through (90) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 20.316, 985.64, 985.601(3)(a) FS. Law Implemented 985.601(3)(a), 985.03(44), 985.441(1)(b) FS. History—New 9-30-07, Amended 8-25-08, 7-8-09, 12-21-09, 5-4-10, 7-20-10, 12-20-10, _____.

63E-7.003 Youth Admission.

(1) No change.

(2) Admissions must arrive via detention services? Statewide Offender Transportation Program (STOP) unless the youth resides in and will be placed in the same detention coverage area.

(2) through (8) renumbered (3) through (9) No change.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 985.64, 985.601(3)(a), 20.316 FS. Law Implemented 985.601(3)(a), 985.03(44), 985.441(1)(b) FS. History—New 9-30-07, Amended _____.

63E-7.006 Quality of Life and Youth Grievance Process.

(1) A residential commitment program shall establish the expectation that staff will treat youth with dignity and respect, and the program shall provide a positive quality of life for its youth by providing, at a minimum, the following:

- (a) Shelter;
- (b) Safety and security;
- (c) Clothing;
- (d) Food;
- (e) Access to the Department of Children and Families' central abuse hotline addressed in Chapter 39, F.S., or if the youth is 18 years or older, the department's Central Communications Center that serves as the department's incident reporting hotline;
- (f) Healthcare;
- (g) Mental health and substance abuse services;
- (h) Educational and prevocational or vocational services;
- (i) Opportunities for recreation and large muscle exercise;
- (j) Opportunities for expression of religious beliefs;
- (k) Visitation;
- (l) Access to incoming mail and opportunities to send outgoing mail; ~~and~~
- (m) Telephone access; ~~and-~~
- (n) Opportunity to access the courts.

(2) through (5) No change.

(6) If a youth requests to contact an attorney of his or her choice, the facility must enable that process. This supervised process may be done via telephone or the internet. Once the youth identifies an attorney willing to represent the youth, that attorney is to be given attorney of record status. The facility is not required to provide an attorney for the youth.

~~(7)(6)~~ A residential commitment program shall establish written procedures specifying the process for youth to grieve actions of program staff and conditions or circumstances in the program related to the violation or denial of basic rights. These procedures shall establish each youth's right to grieve and ensure that all youth are treated fairly, respectfully, without discrimination, and that their rights are protected.

(a) The procedures shall address each of the following phases of the youth grievance process, specifying timeframes that promote timely feedback to youth and rectification of situations or conditions when grievances are determined to be valid or justified.

1. Informal phase wherein the youth attempts to resolve the complaint or condition with staff on duty at the time of the grieved situation;

2. Formal phase wherein the youth submits a written grievance that requires a written response from a supervisory staff person; and

3. Appeal phase wherein the youth may appeal the outcome of the formal phase to the program director or designee.

(b) Program staff shall be trained on the program's youth grievance process and procedures.

(c) Program staff shall explain the grievance process to youth during their program orientation and shall post the written procedures throughout the facility for easy access by youth.

(d) The program shall provide grievance forms and accompanying instructions at locations throughout the facility so they are readily accessible to youth. When a youth requests assistance in filing a grievance, program staff shall assist the youth as needed.

(e) The program shall maintain documentation on each youth grievance and its outcome for at least one year.

Rulemaking Authority 985.64, 985.601(3)(a), 20.316 FS. Law Implemented 985.601(3)(a), 985.03(44), 985.441(1)(b) FS. History—New 12-24-07, Amended 7-20-10, _____.

63E-7.009 Behavior Management.

(1) through (4) No change.

~~(5) A moderate-risk, high-risk, or maximum-risk residential commitment program with a bed capacity of 50 beds or more may designate a living unit within the facility as a behavior management unit. The purpose of a behavior management unit is to provide a delinquency intervention and treatment environment that provides opportunities for youth to make positive changes in behavior that will facilitate progress in his or her overall treatment in the program. Any behavior management unit shall be designed and operated as follows:~~

~~(a) The program shall document the following before a youth is placed in a behavior management unit:~~

~~1. The youth continues to demonstrate a pattern of maladaptive behavior that is highly disruptive to his or her responsiveness to delinquency interventions and treatment, as well as other youths' ongoing rehabilitation, after the program has documented attempts to address the behavior using less restrictive alternative intervention strategies that have proven to be ineffective;~~

~~2. The youth is assessed and it is determined that he or she is not a danger to self and there are no identified mental health, physical health or other factors that contraindicate placement; and~~

~~3. At least two members of the youth's intervention and treatment team recommends the youth's placement in the behavior management unit, and the program director approves the placement or, in his or her absence, a program management level staff person designated by the program director grants approval.~~

~~(b) A behavior management unit's bed capacity shall not exceed 15. The unit may be secure with locking exit doors, but shall not be comprised of secure rooms wherein youth placed in the unit are kept in lock-down status. Sleeping rooms for youth shall have a minimum of 35 square feet of unencumbered space and shall meet the following specifications:~~

~~1. Solid core hardwood or metal door with a shatter-resistant observation window;~~

~~2. Vents not easily accessible from the toilet, sink or bed that are covered with small mesh or a metal plate (holes no larger than 3/16 inch) with no edges exposed;~~

~~3. A mattress that meets national fire safety performance requirements and that is suitable for use on the floor or a suicide-resistant bed;~~

~~4. Recessed light fixtures covered with shatter-resistant material or alternative lighting reviewed and approved by the department;~~

~~5. Shatter-resistant windows or, if glass windows that are not shatter-resistant, covered with security-rated screens or other materials that prevent access to the glass;~~

~~6. No electrical outlets; and~~

~~7. Electrical switches located outside the sleeping rooms or covered and secured if located inside the rooms.~~

~~(c) The staff-to-youth ratio in a behavior management unit shall be at least that provided in the general population and sufficient to operate the unit safely and securely. Staff whose regular assignment is to work in the behavior management unit shall be trained in implementation of the program's behavior management system, as well as specific intervention strategies as needed to implement the behavioral goals for each youth in the unit.~~

~~(d) The unit shall provide an intervention and treatment environment that focuses specifically on youths' maladaptive behavior and provides opportunities for the youth to make positive changes in behavior that facilitate progress in their overall rehabilitation. Additionally, the program shall provide basic rights, care and services to any youth in a behavior management unit consistent with the other sections of this rule chapter.~~

~~(e) Consistent with the cognitive capacity of each youth placed in the behavior management unit, staff shall engage the youth in a process as follows:~~

~~1. Staff shall discuss with the youth the pattern of maladaptive behavior that resulted in placement in the behavior management unit, as well as the consequences of behavior, alternative acceptable behaviors, harm caused to others as a result of the maladaptive behavior and possible reparations.~~

~~2. Staff shall advise the youth that release from the behavior management unit is based upon his or her achievement of short term goals established by the treatment team to address maladaptive behavior. Staff shall also explain~~

that making positive behavior changes while in the behavior management unit will help him or her progress in the overall program.

(f) Reviews and Release.

1. The youth's intervention and treatment team shall review the case within 72 hours of the youth being placed in a behavior management unit. If the team decides to continue the youth's placement in the unit, they shall develop short-term goals to assist the youth with accountability for behavior and changing or controlling maladaptive behaviors. The youth shall be present when the intervention and treatment team meets and be given an opportunity to give input.

2. Release from the behavior management unit is contingent upon a youth's completion of his or her behavioral goals. While the youth is in the behavior management unit, the intervention and treatment team may revise the youth's behavioral goals to assist him or her in changing the targeted pattern of maladaptive behavior and facilitate release from the unit.

3. If the youth remains in the behavior management unit for 14 days, the intervention and treatment team shall review the youth's progress in attaining the short-term goals to determine whether the youth is to be released or placement continued.

4. Every 72 hours that the youth remains in the behavior management unit after the 14-day review, the intervention and treatment team shall review the youth's progress toward meeting his or her behavioral goals and recommend continued placement or release. At this stage, continued placement requires approval of the program director or, in his or her absence, a management level staff person designated by the program director.

5. If possible, the youth shall participate in all intervention and treatment team reviews, but if not, a representative of the team shall discuss review findings with the youth.

6. The program director or, in his or her absence, a management level staff person designated by the program director, may approve release of a youth from the behavior management unit at any time it is determined that continued placement would be detrimental to the youth's well-being.

(g) Mechanical restraints may be used in the behavior management unit only as a last resort and any use shall be pursuant to Rule 63H-1.005, F.A.C., and documented pursuant to Rule 63H-1.007, F.A.C.

(h) A program with a behavior management unit shall establish a system of documentation and record maintenance to include, at a minimum, the following:

1. Ongoing log of placements, including the name of each youth placed, date of placement, date of release, and the name of the program director or designee who approved the placement;

2. Documentation of intervention and treatment team meetings and reviews while the youth is in the behavior management unit, including initial short-term goals and any subsequent modifications, review date and signatures of participants, description of the youth's progress, and recommendations; and

3. Documentation of the program director's or his or her designee's approval of a recommendation for continued placement resulting from any 72-hour review conducted after the youth's 14th day in the unit.

Rulemaking Authority 985.64, 985.601(3)(a), 20.316 FS. Law Implemented 985.601(3)(a), 985.03(44), 985.441(1)(b) FS. History—New 12-24-07, Amended 8-25-08, 5-4-10.

63E-7.010 Residential Case Management Services.

(1) through (5) No change.

(6) Performance Plan. A residential commitment program shall ensure that each youth has a performance plan with individualized delinquency intervention goals to achieve before release from the program. Based on the findings of the initial assessment of the youth, the intervention and treatment team, including the youth, shall meet and develop the performance plan within 30 days of the youth's admission.

(a) The performance plan, developed to facilitate the youth's successful reintegration into the community upon release from the program, shall include goals that:

1. Specify delinquency interventions with measurable outcomes for the youth that will decrease criminogenic risk factors and promote strengths, skills, and supports that reduce the likelihood of the youth reoffending;

2. Target court-ordered sanctions that can be reasonably initiated or completed while the youth is in the program; and

3. Identify transition activities that are consistent with Rule 63B-1.006, F.A.C., and begin early in the youth's placement to address barriers to successful release targeted for the last 60 days of the youth's anticipated stay in the program.

(b) For each goal, the performance plan shall specify its target date for completion, the youth's responsibilities to accomplish the goal, and the program's responsibilities to enable the youth to complete the goal.

(c) To facilitate the youth's rehabilitation or promote public safety, the intervention and treatment team may revise the youth's performance plan based on the RPACT reassessment results, the youth's demonstrated progress or lack of progress toward completing a goal, or newly acquired or revealed information. Additionally, based on the transition conference addressed in paragraph 63E-7.010(10)(a), F.A.C., the intervention and treatment team shall revise the youth's performance plan as needed to facilitate transition activities targeted for completion during the last 60 days of the youth's stay in the program.

(d) The youth, the intervention and treatment team leader, and all other parties who have significant responsibilities in goal completion shall sign the performance plan, indicating their acknowledgement of its contents and associated responsibilities. The program shall file the original signed performance plan in the youth's official youth case record and shall provide a copy to the youth. Within 10 working days of completion of the performance plan, the program shall send a transmittal letter and a copy of the plan to the committing court, the youth's JPO, the parent or legal guardian, and the DCF counselor, if applicable.

1. Electronic transmittal of the performance plan to the youth's JPO and DCF counselor is acceptable.

2. If the parent or guardian did not participate in the development of the performance plan and if the youth is a minor and not emancipated as provided in Section 743.01 or 743.015, F.S., or is over 18 years of age and incapacitated as defined in Section 744.102(12), F.S., the program shall enclose an additional copy of the plan's signature sheet and shall request in the transmittal letter that the parent or guardian acknowledge receipt and review of the plan by signing the signature sheet and returning it to the program. Any signature sheet signed by the parent or guardian and returned to the program shall be attached to the youth's original performance plan.

(7) through (12) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 985.64 FS. Law Implemented 985.601(3)(a) FS. History—New 12-9-08, Amended 12-21-09, 5-4-10, Amended 7-20-10, _____.

63E-7.011 Delinquency Intervention and Treatment Services.

A residential commitment program shall provide delinquency intervention and treatment services that are gender-specific pursuant to Section 985.02, F.S., and that focus on preparing youth to live responsibly in the community upon release from the program. The program shall design its services and service delivery system based on the common characteristics of its primary target population, including age, gender, and special needs, and their impact on youths' responsivity to intervention or treatment. However, in accordance with Rule 63E-7.010, F.A.C., the program shall individualize and coordinate the provision of delinquency intervention and treatment services based on each youth's prioritized risk and needs as identified through the RPACT and document services delivered in the youth's individual management record.

(1) No change.

(2) Delinquency Intervention Services.

(a) For each youth in its care, a residential commitment program shall implement a delinquency intervention model or strategy that is an evidence-based practice, promising practice

or a practice with demonstrated effectiveness as defined in Rule 63E-7.002, F.A.C., that addresses a priority need identified for that youth.

(b) Education and work experience shall be considered by the Director of Programming when determining staff delivery of delinquency intervention services.

(c) A staff person whose regularly assigned job duties include implementation of a specific delinquency intervention model, strategy or curriculum shall receive training in its effective implementation.

(d) Residential commitment programs shall assure structured, planned programming or activities at least 60% of a youth's awake hours. Included in those activities, the A residential commitment program shall provide delinquency intervention services that include, at a minimum, the following:

1. Educational Services and Career and Vocational Programming. Educational services shall be provided pursuant to Section 1003.52, F.S., the cooperative agreement between the applicable school district and the department as referenced in Section 1003.52(13), F.S., and any applicable provisions of the residential provider's contract with the department. Career and vocational programming services shall be provided pursuant to Chapter 63B-1, F.A.C., and any applicable provisions of the residential provider's contract with the department. The program shall make relevant facility training available to the educational and vocational staff, including program orientation, facility safety and security procedures, the program's behavior management system, and other topics that the program deems necessary to promote coordination of services, as well as safety and security.

2. Life and Social Skill Competency Development. The program shall provide interventions or instruction that focus on developing life and social skill competencies in youth. For purposes of this rule chapter, life skills are those skills that help youth to function more responsibly and successfully in everyday life situations, including social skills that specifically address interpersonal relationships. Non-clinical staff may implement life and social skills interventions or instruction under the supervision of the Director of Programming except when the instructional materials are specifically designed for use by clinical staff or when the skill training is delivered in response to a youth's treatment plan, thereby requiring a clinician's implementation. In a DJJ facility or program designated for Medicaid behavioral health overlay services (BHOS) or Medicaid fee-for-service, individuals providing Medicaid funded life skills or social skills shall meet the specific education and training requirements established by the Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA), as may be found in the Florida Medicaid Community Behavioral Health Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook.

a. The program shall provide life and social skills intervention services that address, at a minimum, identification and avoidance of high-risk situations that could endanger self or others, communication, interpersonal relationships and interactions, non-violent conflict resolution, anger management, and critical thinking including problem-solving and decision-making.

b. Direct care staff shall model prosocial behaviors for youth throughout the course of each day in the program, reinforce delinquency interventions, and guide and re-direct youth toward prosocial behaviors and positive choices. Additionally, staff shall engage youth in constructive dialogue to peacefully resolve conflict when it occurs or, if imminent safety and security issues delay intervention to resolve the conflict, as a follow-up process after safety and security are restored.

3. Impact of Crime Awareness Activities. The program shall provide activities or instruction intended to increase youths' awareness of and empathy for crime victims and survivors and increase youths' personal accountability for their criminal actions and harm to others. These activities or instruction shall be planned or designed to:

a. Assist youth to accept responsibility for harm they have caused by their past criminal actions, challenging them to recognize and modify their irresponsible thinking, such as denying, minimizing, rationalizing, and blaming victims;

b. Teach youth about the impact of crime on victims, their families and their communities;

c. Expose youth to victims' perspectives through victim speakers, in person or on videotape or audiotape, or through victim impact statements, and engage youth in follow-up activities to process their reactions to each victim's accounting of how crime affected his or her life; and

d. Provide opportunities for youth to plan and participate in reparation activities intended to restore victims and communities, such as restitution activities and community service projects.

4. Community Service Projects. The program shall engage youth in community service projects as learning experiences that promote competency development in youth and provide opportunities for them to give back to the community, such as projects that benefit less fortunate or victimized persons. If youth are restricted to the confines of the residential facility grounds pursuant to subsection 63E-7.013(19), F.A.C., the program shall engage them in structured activities that can be accomplished on-site at the program while benefiting the community. Through collaborative community partnerships, the program shall identify service projects that are needed and valued by the community. Although program staff shall be responsible for the direct supervision of youth while engaged in a community service project, the program shall ensure that any community member identified to sponsor or oversee a project serves as a positive role model while providing

guidance needed for youth to successfully complete the project. In order for youth to understand the value of community service, staff shall provide opportunities for youth to give input into the selection of a community service project, involve youth in planning for the project, and de-brief with youth after completion of the project to process what they learned and how the community was benefited.

5. Recreation and Leisure Activities. The program shall provide a range of supervised, structured indoor and outdoor recreation and leisure activities for youth. These activities shall be based on the developmental levels and needs of youth in the program, as well as youths' input about their preferences and interests in various activities. The program shall offer recreation and leisure activities requiring varying degrees of mental and physical exertion, such as board games, creative arts, sports, and physical fitness activities. Activities shall be planned for youths' exposure to a variety of leisure and recreation choices, exploration of interests, constructive use of leisure time, and social and cognitive skill development, as well as to promote creativity, teamwork, healthy competition, mental stimulation, and physical fitness.

a. When engaging youth in active recreation and physical fitness activities, the program shall take the precautionary measures necessary to prevent over-exertion, heat stress, dehydration, frostbite, hypothermia, and exacerbation of existing illness or physical injury.

b. When planning for and engaging youth in active recreation and physical fitness activities, the program shall accommodate youths' limitations due to physical disabilities.

c. The program shall provide each youth with the opportunity to engage in large muscle exercise at least one hour daily. However, a youth shall not engage in such exercise when prohibited by medical contraindications or restrictions documented by a licensed healthcare professional or when a youth is exhibiting signs and symptoms of illness or physical injury pending a licensed healthcare professional's determination as to the necessity for medical restrictions. Additionally, a youth shall be prohibited from large muscle exercise when he or she is temporarily separated from the general population, including when placed on controlled observation or room restriction status pursuant to Rule 63E-7.013, F.A.C. However, if a youth is restricted to a room, the program shall give the youth an opportunity for large muscle exercise as soon as is reasonably possible after the youth is reintegrated into the general population.

d. The program director shall ensure development and implementation of written procedures that establish the conditions, content, and supervision necessary for the use of books and other leisure reading materials, television programming, videos, movies, and video games in the program. Except for academic classroom materials approved by educational personnel, program staff shall screen or preview the content of books and other reading materials, television

programming, videos, movies, and video games to prevent youth's access to content that promotes violence, criminal activity, sexual activity, or abuse. Program staff shall not allow youth to view any television program, video, or movie that is rated above PG-13 unless it is previewed and pre-approved by the program director or his or her designee.

6. Gang Prevention and Intervention Strategies. Consistent with subsection 63E-7.013(8), F.A.C., a residential commitment program shall implement gang prevention and intervention strategies when youth are identified as being a criminal street gang member, are affiliated with any criminal street gang, or are at high risk of gang involvement. Identification of youth to participate in gang prevention or intervention activities shall be based on information obtained through the program's screening, assessment and classification processes, as well as gang-associated behaviors exhibited or the youth's expressed interest or intent while in the program.

(e) Rehabilitative Planning and Follow-up Requirements for Off-Campus Activities. A residential commitment program shall ensure that off-campus activities addressed in this subsection are purposeful, deliberately planned, and related to the rehabilitation of the participating youth. Programs shall comply with eligibility, risk classification, notification and approval, supervision, and other security requirements related to off-campus activities specified in subsection 63E-7.013(19), F.A.C. Additionally, the program shall comply with the following rehabilitative planning and follow-up requirements for youth participating in supervised off-campus activities, such as community service projects, field excursions and other transition-related activities, and unsupervised temporary release activities, such as community employment, or day activities and home visits with youths' parents or guardians. However, the following requirements are not mandatory for supervised recreational off-campus activities earned by youth as incentives in accordance with the program's behavior management system.

1. A participating youth shall have specific, written goals or objectives, consistent with his or her performance plan and transition goals, to accomplish during the above-listed off-campus activities. For a home visit, the youth's home visit goals shall be included on the Home Visit Plan/Notification form. The program shall send the form to the youth's JPO, the youth's post-residential services counselor, if assigned, the youth's parent or guardian as an attachment to a transmittal letter explaining their responsibilities for providing supervision and support during their child's home visit, and the committing court as an attachment to the Home Visit Plan Approval form. When the program sends this form to the committing court, the program shall copy the youth's parent or guardian, the youth's JPO, and the youth's post-residential services counselor, if assigned.

2. After completion of an off-campus activity, program staff shall de-brief with participating youth to process what they learned from the experience, as well as how they performed during the activity, including successes, challenges, and if applicable, alternative behaviors or actions that could have resulted in more positive outcomes. The youth's treatment team shall use information about the youth's performance during off-campus activities when reviewing the youth's overall progress and when planning future off-site and transition activities for the youth. Therefore, the program shall solicit feedback on a youth's performance from the employer of a youth participating in community employment, the community member overseeing a community services project, and the parent or guardian after supervising their child during a day activity or home visit.

(3) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 985.64 FS. Law Implemented 985.601(3)(a) FS. History—New 12-9-08, Amended 12-21-09, 5-4-10, 7-20-10, _____

63E-7.016 Program Administration.

(1) A residential commitment program director shall be accountable for the daily operation of the program, as well as ongoing program planning and evaluation to ensure safety, security, and effectiveness of services provided to youth.

(2) A residential commitment program's mission statement shall be consistent with the department's mission and principles of the restorative justice philosophy.

(3) A residential commitment program's written description shall, at a minimum, address the following:

(a) The program's delinquency intervention strategy and, if specialized services are provided, the treatment model;

(b) Services the program provides; and

(c) The program's service delivery system.

(4) A residential commitment program director shall ensure provisions for staffing that, at a minimum, address the following:

(a) Level 2 pre-employment screening requirements pursuant to Chapter 435 and Section 985.644(5), F.S.;

(b) Staff retention planning that includes steps to minimize turnover and improve employee morale;

(c) Maintenance of an organizational chart that reflects spans of control and lines of authority and specifies the job title, and the primary function if not inherent in the job title, of each program staff and overlay service provider;

(d) Staffing schedules that ensure coverage across shifts and a system for accessing additional staff coverage as needed;

(e) Position descriptions for each staff member that specify required qualifications, job functions or duties, and performance standards. Staff's implementation of the program's behavior management system, and delivery of delinquency intervention services are to be identified as job functions for applicable staff.

(f) A system for evaluating staff at least annually based on established performance standards;

(g) Systems of communication to keep staff informed and give them opportunities for providing input and feedback pertaining to operation of the program;

(h) A dress code for staff that promotes professionalism, safety, and positive role modeling for youth; and

(i) A code of conduct for staff that clearly communicates expectations for ethical and professional behavior, including the expectation for staff to interact with youth in a manner that promotes their emotional and physical safety.

(5) through (16) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 985.64 FS. Law Implemented 985.601(3)(a) FS. History--New 4-13-08, Amended 8-25-08, 12-21-09, 5-4-10, 7-20-10, _____

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
 Laura Moneyham, Assistant Secretary of Residential Services
 NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Wansley Walters, Secretary
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: September 12, 2011
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: December 17, 2010

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B8-1.007
 RULE TITLE: List of Approved Forms; Incorporation

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendments are intended to incorporate the revised application form for dispensing physicians and to delete unnecessary forms from the rule based upon the annual rules review.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendments incorporate the revised physician dispensing registration form into the rule. Additionally, the amendments delete unnecessary forms from the rule based upon the annual rules review.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that these rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.013, 456.0276, 456.036(5), 456.048(1), 458.309, 458.311, 458.312(6), 458.313(4), 458.3137, 458.3145, 458.315(2), 358.317, 358.319, 458.320(8), 458.321(2), 358.345(3), (8), 458.347(13), 458.3475, 358.348(1)(a), 458.351(6) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.013, 456.035, 456.036, 456.048, 456.073, 458.309, 458.311, 458.3124, 458.313, 458.3145, 458.315, 458.316, 458.317, 458.319, 458.320, 458.321, 458.345, 458.347, 458.3475, 458.348, 458.351, 465.0276 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joy A. Tootle, Executive Director, Board of Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B8-1.007 List of Approved Forms; Incorporation.

The following forms used by the Board in its dealings with the public are listed as follows and are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference, and can be obtained from the Board office by writing to the Board of Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1753, or by telephoning (850)245-4131:

(1) through (3) No change.

~~(4) DH-MQA 1013, entitled "Unlicensed Physician Hospital Reporting Form," (12/00).~~

~~(4)(5) DH-MQA 1014, entitled "Financial Responsibility Form," (12/06).~~

~~(5)(6) DH-MQA 1015, entitled "Renewal Notice," (1/00).~~

~~(7) DH-MQA 1016, entitled "Voluntary Relinquishment Form," (1/00).~~

~~(8) HQA FORM 390, entitled "Complaint Form," (10/95).~~

~~(9) DH-MQA 1030, entitled "Physician Office Adverse Incident Report," (rev. 12/05).~~

~~(10) DH-MQA 1031, entitled "Florida Board of Medicine Office Surgery Registration Form," (4/04).~~

~~(6)(11) DH-MQA 1032, entitled "Board of Medicine Application Materials for Initial Registration and Renewal of Intern/Resident/Fellow and House Physician," (10/09).~~

~~(7)(12) DH-MQA 1069, entitled "ARNP/EMT/Paramedic Protocol Form," (9/04).~~

~~(8)(13) DH-MQA 1070, entitled "Physician Dispensing Registration," (7/11) (8/10).~~

~~(9)(14) DH-MQA 1072, entitled "Board of Medicine Medical Faculty Certificate For Allopathic Physicians," (10/09).~~

~~(10)(15)~~ DH-MQA 1076, entitled “Extension of Temporary Licensure Application,” (2/04).

~~(11)(16)~~ DH-MQA 1079, entitled “Board of Medicine Temporary Certificate to Practice Medicine for Educational Purposes For Allopathic Physicians,” (10/09).

~~(12)(17)~~ DH-MQA 1087, entitled “Application for Licensure as an Anesthesiologist Assistant,” (10/09).

~~(13)(18)~~ DH-MQA 1093, entitled “Anesthesiologist Assistant Licensure Renewal Form,” (8/06).

~~(14)(19)~~ DH-MQA 1088, entitled “Anesthesiologist Assistants Financial Responsibility,” (7/04).

~~(15)(20)~~ DH-MQA 1090, entitled “Anesthesiologist Assistant Protocol,” (10/04).

(21) DH-1267, entitled “Application for Refund,” (1/99).

~~(16)(22)~~ DH-MQA 2000, entitled “Application for Licensure as a Physician Assistant,” (10/09).

~~(17)(23)~~ DH-MQA 2001, entitled “Application for Licensure as Prescribing Physician Assistant,” (8/10).

~~(18)(24)~~ DH-MQA 2002, entitled “Application for Changes to Licensure as Prescribing Physician Assistant,” (8/10).

~~(19)(25)~~ DH-MQA 2004, entitled “Supervision Data Form,” (8/10).

Rulemaking Authority 456.013, 456.0276, 456.036(5), 456.048(1), 458.309, 458.311, 458.312(6), 458.313(4), 458.3137, 458.3145, 458.315(2), 358.317, 358.319, 458.320(8), 458.321(2), 358.345(3), (8), 458.347(13), 458.3475, 358.348(1)(a), 458.351(6) FS. Law Implemented 456.013, 456.035, 456.036, 456.048, 456.073, 458.309, 458.311, 458.3124, 458.313, 458.3145, 458.315, 458.316, 458.317, 458.319, 458.320, 458.321, 458.345, 458.347, 458.3475, 458.348, 458.351, 465.0276 FS. History—New 4-17-01, Amended 11-20-01, 8-13-02, 11-10-02, 3-19-03, 6-4-03, 11-17-03, 4-19-04, 1-31-05, 9-29-05, 6-29-06, 12-26-06, 4-2-07, 6-25-08, 1-18-09, 3-17-09, 5-20-09, 10-7-09, 1-7-10, 2-2-10, 12-6-10_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Rules Committee, Board of Medicine

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Medicine

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 6, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 23, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B8-4.029
 RULE TITLE: Registration as a Dispensing Physician; Delegation of Dispensing to Prescribing Physician Assistants

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendment is intended to incorporate the revised Physician Dispensing Registration form into the rule.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendment incorporates the revised Physician Dispensing Registration form into the rule.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that these rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 458.309, 465.0276 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 465.0276, 458.347(4)(e) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joy A. Tootle, Executive Director, Board of Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B8-4.029 Registration as a Dispensing Physician; Delegation of Dispensing to Prescribing Physician Assistants.

A physician may dispense drugs to his or her patient in the regular course of his or her practice provided that the physician is registered as a dispensing physician with the Board of Medicine. In order to register as a dispensing physician, the physician must:

(1) Submit application to the Board on form DH-MQA 1070, entitled “Physician Dispensing Registration,” ~~(7/11)~~ ~~(8/10)~~, which is hereby incorporated by reference and available from the Board of Medicine’s website at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/medical/me_applicant.html;

(2) through (4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 458.309, 465.0276 FS. Law Implemented 465.0276, 458.347(4)(e) FS. History—New 3-24-10, Amended 12-6-10_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Rules Committee, Board of Medicine

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Medicine

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 6, 2011
 DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 23, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B8-8.001
 RULE TITLE: Disciplinary Guidelines

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed rule amendments are intended to set forth recently enacted statutory violations and the disciplinary guidelines for those violations.

SUMMARY: The proposed rule amendments set forth recently enacted statutory violations and the range of disciplinary guidelines for the violations.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that these rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.079, 458.309, 458.331(5) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.50(2), 456.0575, 456.072, 456.079, 458.331(5) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joy A. Tootle, Executive Director, Board of Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B8-8.001 Disciplinary Guidelines.

(1) No change.

(2) Violations and Range of Penalties. In imposing discipline upon applicants and licensees, in proceedings pursuant to Sections 120.57(1) and (2), F.S., the Board shall act in accordance with the following disciplinary guidelines and shall impose a penalty within the range corresponding to the violations set forth below. The verbal identification of offenses are descriptive only; the full language of each statutory provision cited must be consulted in order to determine the conduct included.

RECOMMENDED RANGE OF PENALTY

VIOLATION	FIRST OFFENSE	SECOND OFFENSE	THIRD OFFENSE
(a) through (nnn) No change.			
<u>(ooo) Failure to comply with the controlled substance prescribing requirements of Section 456.44, F.S.</u>	<u>(ooo) From a minimum of suspension of license for a period of six(6) months followed by a period of probation and an administrative fine in the amount of \$10,000.00 to revocation and an administrative fine in the amount of \$10,000.00.</u>	<u>(ooo) From a minimum of suspension of license for a period of one (1) year followed by a period of probation and an administrative fine in the amount of \$10,000.00 to revocation and an administrative fine in the amount of \$10,000.00.</u>	
<u>(456.072)(1)(mm), F.S.</u>			
<u>(ppp) Providing false or deceptive expert witness testimony related to the practice of medicine.</u>	<u>(ppp) From a reprimand to revocation and an administrative fine from \$5,000.00 to \$10,000.00.</u>	<u>(ppp) From suspension to revocation and an administrative fine from \$7,500.00 to \$10,000.00.</u>	
<u>(458.331(1)(oo), F.S.</u>			
<u>(qqq) Failure to comply with the requirements of Section 390.0111(3), F.S., regarding termination of pregnancies.</u>	<u>(qqq) From a letter of concern to a period of probation and an administrative fine in the amount of \$1,000.00 to \$2,500.00.</u>	<u>(qq.) From a reprimand to suspension followed by a period of probation and an administrative fine in the amount of \$2,500.00 to \$5,000.00.</u>	<u>(qqq) From a reprimand to revocation and an administrative fine in the amount of \$5,000.00 to \$10,000.00.</u>
<u>(456.072)(1)(k), F.S.</u>			
(3) through (7) No change.			

Rulemaking Authority 456.079, 458.309, 458.331(5) FS. Law Implemented 456.50(2), 456.0575, 456.072, 456.079, 458.331(5) FS. History—New 12-5-79, Formerly 21M-20.01, Amended 1-11-87, 6-20-90, Formerly 21M-20.001, Amended 11-4-93, Formerly 61F6-20.001, Amended 6-24-96, 12-22-96, Formerly 59R-8.001, Amended 5-14-98, 12-28-99, 1-31-01, 7-10-01, 6-4-02, 9-10-02, 12-11-02, 8-20-03, 6-7-04, 8-17-04, 1-4-06, 8-13-06, 8-29-06, 11-22-06, 1-30-07, 2-18-09, 12-22-09, 7-27-10, 6-21-11,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Rules Committee, Board of Medicine

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Medicine

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 6, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 23, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
64B8-42.001	Licensure by Endorsement
64B8-42.002	Licensure by Examination

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Council proposes the development of rule amendment to address changes for initial licensure application.

SUMMARY: Changes to Initial Licensure application.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the agency.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.017(1), 468.507 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.027, 468.507, 468.509, 468.513 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Allen Hall, Executive Director, Dietetics and Nutrition Council/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

64B8-42.001 Licensure by Endorsement.

(1) Each applicant for certification as a dietitian/nutritionist by endorsement shall file the Application for Dietitian/Nutritionist Licensure, DOH Form DH-MQA 1161, ND APP, Rev. 05/2011 ~~10/2009~~, incorporated by reference, which can be accessed at www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa, and demonstrate the following:

- (a) through (b) No change.
- (2) through (5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 468.507, 468.513 FS. History—New 4-9-89, Formerly 21M-48.001, 61F6-48.001, 59R-42.001, Amended 5-31-09, 2-15-10,_____.

64B8-42.002 Licensure by Examination.

(1) Every applicant for certification by examination shall file the Application for Dietitian/Nutritionist Licensure, DOH Form DH-MQA 1161, ND APP, Rev. 05/2011 ~~10/2009~~, which can be accessed at www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa, and demonstrate to the Council that he meets one of the following:

- (a) through (b) No change.
- (2) through (5) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 456.017(1), 468.507 FS. Law Implemented 456.027, 468.509 FS. History—New 4-9-89, Amended 11-28-90, 3-24-91, 11-9-92, 5-6-93, Formerly 21M-48.002, Amended 11-4-93, 6-9-94, Formerly 61F6-48.002, Amended 11-12-95, Formerly 59R-42.002, Amended 8-19-99, 3-9-08, 5-31-09, 1-26-10,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Dietetic and Nutrition Practice Council

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Dietetic and Nutrition Practice Council

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 5, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 16, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Orthotists and Prosthetists

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
64B14-5.002	Continuing Education Requirement

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to delete outdated language concerning mandatory courses for licensee’s continuing education and correct cites to rulemaking authority and law implemented.

SUMMARY: This rule is being amended to delete outdated language concerning mandatory courses for licensee’s continuing education and correct cites to rulemaking authority and law implemented.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS:

During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that these rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 468.802, 468.806(2), (3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.013(9), 456.024, 468.806(2), (3) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Bruce Deterding, Executive Director, Board of Orthotists and Prosthetists /MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B14-5.002 Continuing Education Requirement.

(1) As a condition of license renewal or recertification, each licensee must complete approved continuing education.

(a) No change.

(b) ~~For the biennium beginning December 1, 2009, Each~~ licensee's continuing education must include the mandatory courses as identified in Rule 64B14-5.005, F.A.C.

(2) through (8) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 468.802, 468.806 FS. Law Implemented 456.013, 456.024, 468.806 FS. History—New 7-1-98, Amended 5-18-00, 7-18-02, 11-11-02, 2-15-05, 11-1-05, 3-2-08, 7-13-09, 3-30-10, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING RULE: Board of Orthotists and Prosthetists

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Orthotists and Prosthetists

DATE OF PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: November 5, 2010

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 23, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Athletic Training

RULE NO.: 64B33-2.001
 RULE TITLE: Licensure Requirements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to modify language for the requirements for licensure and to update form DOH-AT-001, "Board of Athletic Training State of Florida Examination Application for Licensure" revised 6/11, pursuant to Statutory change.

SUMMARY: The rule amendment will modify language for the requirements for licensure and to update form DOH-AT-001, "Board of Athletic Training State of Florida Examination Application for Licensure" revised 6/11, pursuant to statutory change.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

The Board determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule. These rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.013(7), (9), 468.705, 468.707 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.013(7), 468.707 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Athletic Training/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B33-2.001 Licensure Requirements.

All candidates for licensure shall pay the application fee and shall submit to the Department a completed DOH form DOH-AT-001 entitled "BOARD OF ATHLETIC TRAINING STATE OF FLORIDA EXAMINATION APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE" (Revised ~~6-11~~ ~~8-09~~ 6-11) incorporated herein by reference. The application can be obtained by writing the Department of Health, Board of Athletic Training, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258. The application is also available from the Board's website address as follows: http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/athtrain/at_lic_req.html.

(1) Each applicant for licensure shall meet the following requirements:

(a) No change.

(b) The applicant shall submit proof of passing the Board of Certification Entry Level Certification examination, which is hereby approved by the Board, and proof of certification by the Board of Certification.

(c) The applicant shall submit proof of current certification in cardiovascular pulmonary resuscitation with an automated external defibrillator at the professional rescue level from the American Heart Association, the American Red Cross, American Safety and Health Institute, the National Safety Council, or an entity approved by the Board as equivalent.

(2) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 456.013(7), (9), 468.705, 468.707 FS. Law Implemented 456.013(7), 468.707 FS. History—New 5-29-96, Formerly 61-25.002, 64B30-25.002, Amended 8-22-00, 5-9-02, 3-6-07, 8-12-08, 5-27-09, 5-27-10,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Athletic Training

NAME AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Department of Health

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 27, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 30, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Athletic Training

RULE NO.: 64B33-2.003
RULE TITLE: Requirements for Continuing Education

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to update the requirements for continuing education courses, pursuant to Statutory change.

SUMMARY: The Board proposes the rule amendment to update the requirements for continuing education courses, pursuant to Statutory change.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

The Board determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule. These rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.013, 456.034(5), 468.705, 468.711(2), (3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.013(7), 456.034, 468.711(2) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Athletic Training/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B33-2.003 Requirements for Continuing Education.

(1) In the 24 months preceding each biennial renewal period, every athletic trainer licensed pursuant to Chapter 468, Part XIII, F.S., shall be required to complete 24 hours of continuing education in courses approved by the Board. However, athletic trainers who receive an initial license during the second half of the biennium shall be required to complete only 12 hours of continuing education in courses approved by the Board prior to renewal. The hours of continuing education required for renewal must include a minimum of one hour in HIV/AIDS as described in Rule 64B33-2.002, F.A.C., and a two-hour course in prevention of medical errors required by Section 456.013(7), F.S. The continuing education requirement includes current certification in cardiovascular pulmonary resuscitation with an automated external defibrillator at the professional rescue level from the American Red Cross, the American Heart Association, American Safety and Health Institute, the National Safety Council, or an entity approved by the Board as equivalent. Athletic trainers who receive an initial license during the 90 days preceding a renewal period shall not be required to complete any continuing education for that renewal period.

(2) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 456.013, , 456.034(5), 468.705, 468.711(2), (3) FS. Law Implemented 456.013(7), 456.034, 468.711(2) FS. History—New 8-4-98, Formerly 64B30-25.0031, Amended 8-22-00, 3-6-07, 8-12-08, 7-29-09,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Athletic Training

NAME AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Department of Health

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 27, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 30, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Athletic Training

RULE NO.: 64B33-2.005
RULE TITLE: Requirements for Reactivation of an Inactive License

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the rule amendment to modify the language for reactivation of an inactive license.

SUMMARY: The rule amendment will modify the language for reactivation of an inactive license, pursuant to statutory change.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:

The Board determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule. These rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 456.036, 468.705 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.036 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Athletic Training/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

64B33-2.005 Requirements for Reactivation of an Inactive License.

An inactive license shall be reactivated upon demonstration that the licensee has paid the reactivation fee set forth in Rule 64B33-3.001, F.A.C., and has complied with the following requirements:

- (1) As a condition to the reactivation of an inactive license, an athletic trainer must submit proof of successful completion of approved continuing education for each year of inactive status, if initially licensed after January 1, 1998, submit proof of current certification by the Board of Certification and must disclose any criminal convictions or pending disciplinary or criminal charges. In addition, the athletic trainer must submit a written statement which accounts for all employment activity during the period of inactive licensure.

(2) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 456.036, 468.705 FS. Law Implemented 456.036 FS. History--New 8-10-09, Amended 12-3-09.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Athletic Training

NAME AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Department of Health

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: June 27, 2011

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: September 30, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of Insurance Agents and Agency Services

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
69B-157.003	Definition of Terms
69B-157.104	Policy Practices and Provisions
69B-157.105	Refund of Premium
69B-157.106	Required Disclosure Provisions
69B-157.107	Required Disclosure of Rating Practices to Consumers
69B-157.109	Prohibition Against Post-Claims Underwriting
69B-157.111	Reporting Requirements
69B-157.114	Filing Requirement - Out of State Groups
69B-157.118	Nonforfeiture Benefit Requirement
69B-157.120	Standard Format Outline of Coverage

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: These rules are being repealed since they are duplicative of their correspondingly numbered rule in Chapter 690-157, F.A.C., which is administered by the Office of Insurance Regulation.

SUMMARY: These rules are being repealed.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: Knowledge and experience of Department staff.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 624.308(1), 627.9407, 627.9408, 626.9611 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 624.307(1), 626.9541, 627.410, 627.603, 627.6043, 627.646, 627.6645, 627.9402, 627.9405, 627.9407 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: November 15, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 142, Larson Building, 200 E. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Cindy Benefield, (850)413-5404 or Cindy.Benefield@MyFloridaCFO.com.. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Cindy Benefield, Senior Management Analyst, Division of Insurance Agents and Agency Services, 200 E. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)413-5404

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

69B-157.003 Definition of Terms.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1) FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 627.9407 FS. History–New 5-17-89, Formerly 4-81.003, 4-157.003, Repealed.

69B-157.104 Policy Practices and Provisions.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1), (6), 627.9408 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 627.410(6), 627.603, 627.646, 627.9402, 627.9405(2), 627.9407 FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.104, Repealed.

69B-157.105 Refund of Premium.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1), (6), 627.9408 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 627.6043, 627.6645, 627.9407 FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.105, Repealed.

69B-157.106 Required Disclosure Provisions.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1), 627.9408 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 627.6044, 627.9402, 627.9407, 627.94074 FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.106, Repealed.

69B-157.107 Required Disclosure of Rating Practices to Consumers.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1), 626.9611 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.9541(1)(a), (b), (k), 627.9402, 627.9407(1), 627.9408 FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.108, Repealed.

69B-157.109 Prohibition Against Post-Claims Underwriting.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 626.9611, 627.9407(1), 627.9408 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.9541(1)(a), (g), (i), (k), 627.9402, 627.9407(1), 627.9408 FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.109, Repealed.

69B-157.111 Reporting Requirements.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1), 627.9408 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 627.9402, 627.9407(1), 627.410(7) FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.111, Repealed.

69B-157.114 Filing Requirement – Out of State Groups.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1), 627.9408 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 627.410, 627.9402, 627.9406, 627.9407(1), (3), (4), (8), (9), 627.9408 FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.114, Repealed.

69B-157.118 Nonforfeiture Benefit Requirement.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1), 627.9408 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 627.410(6), 627.9402, 627.9407, 627.94072 FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.118, Repealed.

69B-157.120 Standard Format Outline of Coverage.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308(1), 627.9407(1), 627.9408 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 627.9402, 627.9407 FS. History–New 1-13-03, Formerly 4-157.120, Repealed.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Greg Thomas, Director, Division of Insurance Agents and Agency Services

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Jeff Atwater, Chief Financial Officer, Department of Financial Services

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 9, 2011

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of Insurance Agents and Agency Services

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
69B-166.021	Definitions
69B-166.024	Failure to Acknowledge Communications and Act Promptly as to Communications with Respect to Claims and to Implement Standards for the Prompt Investigation of Claims

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Rules 69B-166.021 and 69B-166.024, F.A.C., are repealed since they are duplicative of Rules 690-166.021 and 690-166.024, F.A.C., that are administered by the Office of Insurance Regulation.

SUMMARY: Rules 69B-166.021 and 69B-166.024, F.A.C., are repealed.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: Knowledge and experience of Department staff.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 624.308 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 624.307(1), 624.3161, 626.9541(1)(i)3.a., 627.4131 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: November 14, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 142, Larson Building, 200 E. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Cindy Benefield, (850)413-5404 or Cindy.Benefield@MyFloridaCFOcfo.com.. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Cindy Benefield, Senior Management Analyst, Division of Insurance Agents and Agency Services, 200 E. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)413-5404

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

69B-166.021 Definitions.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.3161 FS. History--New 11-2-92, Formerly 4-166.021, Repealed_____.

69B-166.024 Failure to Acknowledge Communications and Act Promptly as to Communications with Respect to Claims and to Implement Standards for the Prompt Investigation of Claims.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 624.3161, 626.9541(1)(i)3.a., 627.4131 FS. History--New 11-2-92, Formerly 4-166.024, Repealed_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Greg Thomas, Director, Division of Insurance Agents and Agency Services

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Jeff Atwater, Chief Financial Officer, Department of Financial Services

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: August 2, 2011

**Section III
Notices of Changes, Corrections and
Withdrawals**

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Division of Elections

RULE NO.: 1S-2.031
RULE TITLE: Recount Procedures

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 41, October 14, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

The date, time and place for the rule development workshop was inadvertently omitted. This second rule workshop will be held as shown below:

DATE AND TIME: October 31, 2011, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Room 307, R.A. Gray Building, Florida Department of State, 500 S. Bronough Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Any person needing special accommodations to participate in this proposed rule development workshop should contact Eddie L. Phillips, Executive Assistant, Office of General Counsel, Department of State at 1(850)245-6500 or at elphillips@dos.state.fl.us no later than 5 days before the workshop. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired may contact the Department by using the Florida Relay Service with the following toll free numbers: 1(800)955-8770 (voice) or 1(800)955-8771.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE NO.: 6A-4.0021
RULE TITLE: Florida Teacher Certification Examinations

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 37, September 16, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

The notice of proposed rulemaking omitted the following legislative ratification information: The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: 1) no requirement for SERC was triggered under Section 120.541(1), Florida Statutes and 2) based upon prior experience with Florida Teacher Certification Examinations, the proposed revisions will add no additional costs associated with the examination and the adverse impact or regulatory cost, if any, do not exceed nor would be expected to exceed any one of the economic analysis criteria set forth in Section 120.541(2)(a), Florida Statutes.

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
19-11.001	Procedures Regarding Employer Contributions
19-11.006	Enrollment Procedures for New Hires
19-11.007	Second Election Enrollment Procedures for the FRS Retirement Programs
19-11.011	Employer and Employee Contributions

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above rule, as noticed in Vol. 37, No. 28, July 15, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly has been withdrawn.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

St. Johns River Water Management District

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
40C-9.250	Firearms and Similar Equipment

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 40, October 7, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The District has determined that this repeal will not have an adverse impact on small business and is not likely to directly or indirectly increase regulatory costs by more than \$200,000 within one year of taking effect. A SERC has not been prepared by the District. The District has determined no SERC

is required because no regulatory cost is associated with this proprietary rule or its repeal. The rule governs access to District property and is not regulatory in nature. There are no permits, licenses, or fees associated with this rule. There is neither a cost nor an exemption from cost associated with this rule. The repeal of this rule is therefore not expected to require legislative ratification pursuant to subsection 120.541(3), Florida Statutes. The repeal of this rule is, however, subject to legislative review pursuant to subsection 373.1391(6), Florida Statutes.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
61-24.004	Collection and Payment of Fees

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 40, October 7, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

The following language is inserted in the Summary of Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs:

The agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: the economic review conducted by the agency.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Nursing

RULE NO.:	RULE TITLE:
64B9-8.005	Unprofessional Conduct

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Board of Nursing announces a hearing regarding the above rule, as noticed in Vol. 37, No. 40, October 7, 2011 Florida Administrative Weekly.

DATE AND TIME: For Rule 64B9-8.005, at 8:30 a.m. or as soon thereafter as possible, on Friday, December 2, 2011, until business is concluded.

PLACE: Hilton Ft. Lauderdale Airport Hotel, 170 Griffin Road, Dania Beach, FL 33004

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Conscious sedation.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Joe R. Baker, Jr., Executive Director, Board of

Nursing, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C02, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Podiatric Medicine

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
64B18-11.001 Application for Licensure

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 35, September 2, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

The Summary of Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs and Legislative Ratification published in the Notice of Proposed Rule shall read as:

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that these rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

This correction does not affect the substance of the rule as originally published in the September 2, 2011, issue of the F.A.W.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Bruce Deterding, Executive Director, Board of Podiatric Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-3256

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Podiatric Medicine

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
64B18-14.010 Citations

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 36, September 9, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

The Summary of Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs and Legislative Ratification published in the Notice of Change shall read as:

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that these rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

This correction does not affect the substance of the rule as originally published in the September 9, 2011, issue of the F.A.W.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Bruce Deterding, Executive Director, Board of Podiatric Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-3256

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Podiatric Medicine

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
64B18-16.006 Registration Requirements of
Podiatric Residents

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 36, September 9, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

The Summary of Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs and Legislative Ratification published in the Notice of Proposed Rule shall read as:

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that these rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

This correction does not affect the substance of the rule as originally published in the September 9, 2011, issue of the F.A.W.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Bruce Deterding, Executive Director, Board of Podiatric Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-3256

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Podiatric Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B18-24.001
 RULE TITLE: Initial Certification for Podiatric X-Ray Assistants

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 36, September 9, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

The Summary of Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs and Legislative Ratification published in the Notice of Proposed Rule shall read as:

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) was not necessary and that these rule amendments will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time. The Board has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business, or likely increase regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within 1 year after implementation of the rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower regulatory cost alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

This correction does not affect the substance of the rule as originally published in the September 9, 2011, issue of the F.A.W.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Bruce Deterding, Executive Director, Board of Podiatric Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-3256

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Disease Control

RULE NO.: 64D-3.046
 RULE TITLE: Immunization Requirements: Public and Nonpublic Schools, Grades Preschool, Kindergarten Through 12, and Adult Education Classes

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 40, October 7, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

THE RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP SCHEDULED FOR OCTOBER 24, 2011, 10:00 A.M. IS CANCELED.

A HEARING FOR PROPOSED RULE IS SCHEDULED FOR:

DATE AND TIME: October 31, 2011, 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: 2585 Merchants Row Boulevard, Room 105J

GENERAL MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: PROPOSED UPDATES TO THE FORM DH 150-615 IMMUNIZATION GUIDELINES, FLORIDA SCHOOLS, CHILDCARE FACILITIES AND FAMILY DAYCARE HOMES.

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, ANY PERSON REQUIRING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS WORKSHOP/MEETING IS ASKED TO ADVISE THE AGENCY AT LEAST 3 DAYS BEFORE THE MEETING BY CONTACTING: SUSAN LINCICOME, PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR, susan_lincicome@doh.state.fl.us, (850)245-4444, x 2381.

IF YOU ARE HEARING OR SPEECH IMPAIRED, PLEASE CONTACT THE AGENCY USING THE FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) OR 1(800)955-8770 (VOICE).

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Division of Disease Control

RULE NO.: 64D-3.046
 RULE TITLE: Immunization Requirements: Public and Nonpublic Schools, Grades Preschool, Kindergarten Through 12, and Adult Education Classes

NOTICE OF CORRECTION

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the proposed rule in Vol. 37, No. 37, September 16, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

Notice of Correction to Statement of Economic Regulatory Costs (SERC)

The following text replaces the previously published SERC to provide a summary.

Summary

Based on the SERC prepared for this rule amendment, there are no impacts directly or indirectly on the following: economic growth, private-sector job creation or employment, or private-sector investment, business competitiveness, including the ability of persons doing business in the state to compete with persons doing business in other states or domestic markets, productivity, or innovation, in excess of \$1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the implementation of the rule. In addition, the rule will not increase regulatory costs, including any transactional costs in excess of \$1 million in the aggregate within 5 years after the implementation of the rule.

There are no costs to the department or other state and local government entities for implementing this proposed rule. There are no transactional costs to be incurred by individuals and entities required to comply with the rule. There is no impact on small businesses, small counties or small cities.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RULE NO.: 67-48.002 RULE TITLE: Definitions

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that paragraph 16 of the Qualified Allocation Plan incorporated by reference in the Rule 67-48.002(94), F.A.C., "QAP or Qualified Allocation Plan," as noticed in Vol. 37, No. 26, July 1, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly has been withdrawn.

**Section IV
Emergency Rules**

NONE

**Section V
Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule
Variance or Waiver**

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 3, 2011, the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., from Cedar Key Police Department on behalf of four officers for the 2006-2008 (7/1/2006 – 6/30/2008) reporting period subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., requires officers to requalify with a firearm every two years on a course of fire mandated by Commission rule and supervised by a CJSTC-certified firearms instructor. The petition supports the requested waiver by stating that the officers at issue did successfully complete the course of fire, however, the two instructors supervising the requalifications were not CJSTC-certified firearms instructors. Petitioner states

that the officers will suffer a substantial hardship if their certifications are rendered inactive as a result of this situation. Petitioner further states that it would violate the principles of fairness to fail to recognize that the officers did successfully complete the requirement simply because non-CJSTC-certified firearms instructors supervised their 2006-2008 requalifications.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Grace A. Jaye, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by telephoning (850)410-7676.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 4, 2011, the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., from Daytona Beach Police Department on behalf of 32 officers for the 2008 (7/1/2006 – 6/30/2008) and 2010 (7/1/2008-6/30/2010) reporting periods subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., requires officers to requalify with a firearm every two years on a course of fire mandated by Commission rule and supervised by a CJSTC-certified firearms instructor. The petition supports the requested waiver by stating that the officers at issue did successfully complete the course of fire, however, the two instructors supervising the requalifications were not CJSTC-certified firearms instructors. Petitioner states that the officers will suffer a substantial hardship if their certifications are rendered inactive as a result of this situation. Petitioner further states that it would violate the principles of fairness to fail to recognize that the officers did successfully complete the requirement simply because non-CJSTC-certified firearms instructors supervised their 2008 and 2010 requalifications.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Grace A. Jaye, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by telephoning (850)410-7676.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 9, 2011, the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., from Lawtey Police Department on behalf of Captain Troy Bennett for the 2006-2008 (7/1/2006 – 6/30/2008) reporting period. Subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., requires officers to requalify with a firearm every two years on a course of fire mandated by Commission rule and supervised by a CJSTC-certified firearms instructor. The petition supports the requested waiver by stating that the officer at issue was not qualified on all aspects of the requalification shoot for the 2008 reporting cycle while the officer was employed with another agency. Petitioner further states that it would violate the principles of fairness to fail to recognize that the officer did successfully complete all of the requirements for the 2010 reporting cycle and that the

oversight was the result of a different agency failing to ensure Captain Bennett had completed all portions of the firearms requalification for the 2008 reporting cycle.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Grace A. Jaye, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302, or by telephoning (850)410-7676.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 6, 2011, the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, received a petition for an emergency permanent rule waiver of paragraphs 11B-27.00213(4)(a), (b), F.A.C., by Ashley Humphrey. Paragraphs 11B-27.00213(4)(a), (b), F.A.C., requires those who hold Temporary Employment Authorization (TEA) who fail to complete their TEA to wait four years before beginning another TEA. Petitioner states that she failed one class in Basic Recruit Training (BRT) which prevented her from successfully completing BRT. As a result, Petitioner states that she lost her job as a correctional officer trainee. Petitioner asserts that she must be permitted to seek another TEA immediately to provide for her family. Petitioner states that compliance with the rule affects her differently than others subject to it. She states that it would violate the principles of fairness and cause her undue hardship to enforce compliance with this rule upon her in her unique situation.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Grace A. Jaye, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by telephoning (850)410-7676.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 7, 2011, the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., from Lake Hamilton Police Department on behalf of two officers for the 2008 (7/1/2006-6/30/2008) reporting period. Subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., requires officers to requalify with a firearm every two years on a course of fire mandated by Commission rule and supervised by a CJSTC-certified firearms instructor. The petition supports the requested waiver by stating that the officers at issue did successfully complete the course of fire, however, the instructor supervising the requalifications was not a CJSTC-certified firearms instructor. Petitioner states that the officers will suffer a substantial hardship if their certifications are rendered inactive as a result of this situation. Petitioner further states that it would violate the principles of fairness to fail to recognize that the officers did successfully complete the requirement simply because a non-CJSTC-certified firearms instructor supervised their 2008 requalifications.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Grace A. Jaye, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by telephoning (850)410-7676.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 4, 2011, the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., from Lee County Port Authority on behalf of 59 officers for the 2008 (7/1/2006-6/30/2008) reporting period subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., requires officers to requalify with a firearm every two years on a course of fire mandated by Commission rule and supervised by a CJSTC-certified firearms instructor. The petition supports the requested waiver by stating that the officers at issue did successfully complete the course of fire, however, the instructors supervising the requalifications were not CJSTC-certified firearms instructors. Petitioner states that the officers will suffer a substantial hardship if their certifications are rendered inactive as a result of this situation. Petitioner further states that it would violate the principles of fairness to fail to recognize that the officers did successfully complete the requirement simply because non-CJSTC-certified firearms instructors supervised their 2008 requalifications.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Grace A. Jaye, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by telephoning (850)410-7676.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 3, 2011, the Criminal Justice Standards and Training Commission, received a petition for a permanent waiver of subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., from Lee County Port Authority on behalf of 59 officers for the 2006-2008 (7/1/2006 – 6/30/2008) reporting period subsection 11B-27.00212(14), F.A.C., requires officers to requalify with a firearm every two years on a course of fire mandated by Commission rule and supervised by a CJSTC-certified firearms instructor. The petition supports the requested waiver by stating that the officers at issue did successfully complete the course of fire, however, the two instructors supervising the requalifications were not CJSTC-certified firearms instructors. Petitioner states that the officers will suffer a substantial hardship if their certifications are rendered inactive as a result of this situation. Petitioner further states that it would violate the principles of fairness to fail to recognize that the officers did successfully complete the requirement simply because non-CJSTC-certified firearms instructors supervised their 2006-2008 requalifications.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Grace A. Jaye, Assistant General Counsel, Florida Department of Law Enforcement, P. O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302 or by telephoning (850)410-7676.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

The Suwannee River Water Management District (SRWMD) hereby gives notice on September 26, 2011, the SRWMD granted a Final Order. This Order (11-0003) granted variance under Section 120.542, F.S., to Sonja Graham, 997 S.W. Santa Fe Drive, Fort White, FL 32038, for construction of a building with an enclosed lower floor +/- 2.5 feet below the 100-year flood elevation. The petition for variance was received by SRWMD on June 21, 2011. Notice of receipt of petition requesting variance was published in F.A.W., Vol. 37, No. 26, July 1, 2010. No public comment has been received. This Order provides a variance from SRWMD criteria for subsection 40B-4.3030(5), F.A.C., as to the area below the first floor of elevated building left clear and unobstructed except for piles and stairways. The petition was assigned ERP Number 11-0109, S. Graham District Floodway Project – Three Rivers Estates Lots 58 & 59, located in Columbia County, in Township 7 South, Range 15 East, Section 1. SRWMD granted the petition because the petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that a substantial hardship would be created if the petitioners were required to comply with this rule.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Robin Lamm, Business Resource Specialist, Suwannee River Water Management District, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, FL 32060, (386)362-1001 or 1(800)226-1066 in Florida only.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for emergency Variance from East House West House, filed September 8, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 38, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 8.6.5.8 ASME A17.1, 2005 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires a safety bulkhead on the bottom of the hydraulic jack until September 1, 2014, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-304).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for emergency Variance from 933 Office Bldg. #B, filed September 9, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 38, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 3.11.3 ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires upgrading the elevators for firefighters' emergency operations until July 1, 2012, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-307).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for emergency Variance from USF Interdisciplinary Science, filed September 6, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 37, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 2.20.4 and 2.24.2.1 ASME A17.1, 2005 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires 9.5 mm steel rope and a metallic sheave because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-301).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for Variance from Duval County Courthouse, filed May 6, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 20, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the

petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 2.2.2.5 ASME A17.1, 2005 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires a sump pump in the hoistway because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-149).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for emergency Variance from Harbour Towers Condo, filed September 9, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 38, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 3.11.3 ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires upgrading the elevators for firefighters' emergency operations until June 15, 2015, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-310).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 6, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for emergency Variance from Shell Point Village, filed September 7, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 38, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 3.3.2 and 3.10.4(u) ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, from Rule 204.2c(5) ASME A17.1, 1979 edition and 303.3d ASME A17.1, 1981 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires platform guards, in car keyed stop switch, natural ventilation of the car and a shut-off valve in the machine room until August 31, 2014, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute

underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-303).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for Variance from Hilton Longboat Key, filed August 17, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 35, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 3.11.3 ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires upgrading the elevators for firefighters' emergency operations until July 31, 2012, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-273).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for Variance from Norton Park Place, filed August 10, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 34, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 2.7.4 ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires restricted door openings until November 7, 2011, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-266).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for Variance from Edison College Bldg. U, filed July 25, 2011, and

advertised in Vol. 37, No. 32, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 2.4.1.5 and 2.15.9.2 ASME A17.1, 2007 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires the pit be 5 feet deep because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-245).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for Variance from 801 Magnolia Bldg., filed July 26, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 32, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 3.11.3 ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires upgrading the elevators for firefighters' emergency operations until July 15, 2014, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-246).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for Variance from Ironwood Twelfth Condo Assoc., filed August 1, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 32, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 3.11.3 and 2.7.4 ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires upgrading the elevators for firefighters' emergency operations and restricted door openings until June 30, 2015, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute

underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-253).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice: On October 5, 2011 the Division issued an order. The Final Order was in response to a Petition for emergency Variance from FL-1200 Corp. LLC, filed September 13, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 38, of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance grants the Petitioner a variance from Rule 3.11.3 and 2.7.4 ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires upgrading the elevators for firefighters' emergency operations and restricted door openings until August 1, 2013, because the Petitioner has demonstrated that the purpose of the statute underlying the rule will be met and that Petitioner would suffer a substantial hardship if required to comply with this rule (VW 2011-312).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on September 2, 2011, the Department received a letter withdrawing the Petition for variance from Lakewood at Palm Beach, filed August 30, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 36 of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The Petition for variance requested a variance from Rule 1004.2b, 8.6.1.6.3 and 112.5, ASME A17.1, but did not specify what year edition of the code, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code. The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety is taking no further action on the petition (VW 2011-286).

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on September 12, 2011, the Department received a letter withdrawing the Petition for variance from Campus Towers, filed August 18, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 35 of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The Petition

for variance requested a variance from Rule 2.2.1, ASME A17.3, 1996 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires machine space. The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety is taking no further action on the petition (VW 2011-275).

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Department issued a Final Order that was in response to a Petition for Variance from Marina Manor I, filed July 29, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 32 of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance denies the Petitioner a variance because the Petitioner has failed to meet its burden by not providing the Division with the specific rule adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), F.A.C. for which they are requesting the variance from (VW 2011-252).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013, (850)488-1133.

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety hereby gives notice on October 5, 2011, the Department issued a Final Order that was in response to a Petition for Variance from Silver Sands Bldg. B, filed August 12, 2011, and advertised in Vol. 37, No. 34 of the Florida Administrative Weekly. No comments were received in response to the petition. The Final Order on the Petition for Variance denies the Petitioner a variance from Rule 8.7.3.31.8(c), ASME A17.1, 2005 edition, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires firefighters' emergency operations because the requested rule is too broad from a section that, if not complied with, would create a danger to the riding public (VW 2011-267).

A copy of the Order may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013, (850)488-1133.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 3, 2011, the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, received a petition for Bayshore Gardens. Petitioner seeks a variance of the requirements of an unspecified Section of A17.3, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative

Code, which poses a significant economic/financial hardship. Any interested person may file comments within 14 days of the publication of this notice with: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013 (VW 2011-335).

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 3, 2011, the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, received a petition for 20 North Orange. Petitioner seeks an emergency variance of the requirements of an unspecified Section of A17.3, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, which poses a significant economic/financial hardship. Any interested person may file comments within 5 days of the publication of this notice with: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013 (VW 2011-336).

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 5, 2011, the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, received a petition for Corniche. Petitioner seeks a variance of the requirements of an unspecified Section of A17.3, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, which poses a significant economic/financial hardship. Any interested person may file comments within 14 days of the publication of this notice with: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013 (VW 2011-337).

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 6, 2011, the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, received a petition for Lands Ends Condo. Petitioner seeks an emergency variance of the requirements of ASME A17.1, Section 303.3d, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires a shut-off valve in the machine room which poses a significant economic/financial hardship. Any interested person may file comments within 5 days of the publication of this notice with: Mark

Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013 (VW 2011-338 & VW 2011-339).

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 7, 2011, the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, received a petition for Holiday Inn Hotel & Suites. Petitioner seeks an emergency variance of the requirements of ASME A17.1, Section 2.27.2, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, and Section 3003.1, Florida Building Code, that requires emergency standby power which poses a significant economic/financial hardship. Any interested person may file comments within 5 days of the publication of this notice with: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013 (VW 2011-340).

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 7, 2011, the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Bureau of Elevator Safety, received a petition for Sarasota Kennel Club. Petitioner seeks a variance of the requirements of ASME A17.3, Section 3.11.3, as adopted by Chapter 30, Section 3001.2, Florida Building Code, adopted by paragraph 61C-5.001(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, that requires upgrading the elevators with firefighters' emergency operations which poses a significant economic/financial hardship. Any interested person may file comments within 14 days of the publication of this notice with: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013 (VW 2011-341).

A copy of the Petition may be obtained by contacting: Mark Boutin, Bureau of Elevator Safety, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1013.

The Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants hereby gives notice on August 4, 2011, the Department received a Petition for a Routine Variance for paragraph 61C-1.004(2)(a), subsections 61C-4.010(6), (7), Florida Administrative Code, and Section 6-402.11, 2001 FDA Food Code from Clearwater Angler, Clearwater, FL. The above referenced F.A.C. addresses the requirement that at least one accessible bathroom be provided for use by customers and employees. They are requesting to share bathrooms located in the Municipal Marina for use by customers and employees.

The Petition for this variance was published in Vol. 37, No. 37 on September 16, 2011. The Order for this Petition was signed on October 5, 2011, and after a complete review of the variance request, the Division finds that the application of this rule will create a financial hardship to the food service establishment. Furthermore, the Division finds that the Petitioner meets the burden of demonstrating that the underlying statute has been achieved by the Petitioner ensuring the bathrooms located at the east end of the City of Clearwater Municipal Marina are maintained in a clean and sanitary manner and are provided with hot and cold running water under pressure, soap, approved hand drying devices, handwash sign and are available during all hours of operation. The Petitioner shall also ensure directional signage is installed within or outside the establishment clearly stating the location of the bathrooms. If the ownership of City of Clearwater Municipal Marina changes, a signed agreement for use of the bathroom facilities is required immediately.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Lydia.Gonzalez@dbpr.state.fl.us, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1011.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 10, 2011, the Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, received a petition for Roger Diaz, seeking a variance or waiver of Rule 61G6-6.017, Florida Administrative Code, which requires for the purpose of certification, a passing examination score on any part of the examination shall be valid only for a period of two (2) years from the date of the examination.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Juanita Chastain, Executive Director, Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0783. Comments on this petition should be filed with the Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board within 14 days of publication of this notice.

The Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Waiver or Variance which was filed on February 8, 2011, by Rene Suarez. The Notice of Petition for Variance/Waiver was published in Vol. 37, No. 15, of the April 15, 2011, Florida Administrative Weekly. Petitioner sought a waiver or variance from Rule 61G6-6.017, Florida Administrative Code, entitled, "Duration of Examination Scores," which requires for the purpose of certification, a passing examination score on any part of the examination shall be valid only for a period of two (2) years from the date of the examination. The Board considered the instant Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting, held March 17, 2011, in Tampa, Florida.

The Board's Order, filed on September 23, 2011, granted the petition, finding Petitioner had demonstrated that application of the rule to his circumstances would violate the principles of fairness and would impose a substantial hardship on him.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Juanita Chastain, Executive Director, Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750.

The Board of Veterinary Medicine hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Waiver or Variance which was filed on July 28, 2011, by Rita Montano. The Notice of Petition for Variance/Waiver was published in Vol. 37, No. 33, of the August 19, 2011, Florida Administrative Weekly. Petitioner sought a waiver or variance from subsection 61G18-11.002(4), Florida Administrative Code, entitled, "Examination and Licensure," which requires that in order to obtain licensure, the candidate must receive a passing score on each portion of the examination. The candidate must receive a score of 425 on the NAVLE. The Board considered the instant Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting, held September 1, 2011, in St. Augustine, Florida.

The Board's Order, filed on September 23, 2011, granted the petition, finding Petitioner had demonstrated that application of the rule to her circumstances would violate the principles of fairness and would impose a substantial hardship on her.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Juanita Chastain, Executive Director, Board of Veterinary Medicine, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on September 29, 2011, the Board of Accountancy, received a petition for Monica Feliciano, seeking a variance or waiver of subsection 61H1-27.0041(2), F.A.C., which requires that one year of work experience shall be held and understood to mean the rendition of services such as are customarily performed by full-time, regularly employed staff employees of a certified public accountant during the normal workweek as required by the employing certified public accountant, commencing after the completion of the educational requirements set forth in Rule 61H1-27.002(3), F.A.C.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Veloria Kelly, Division Director, Board of Accountancy, 240 N.W. 76th Dr., Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32607. Comments on this petition should be filed with the Board of Accountancy within 14 days of publication of this notice.

The Board of Accountancy hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Waiver or Variance, filed on May 27, 2011, by Melanie A. Humlicek. The Notice of Petition for Waiver or Variance was published in Vol. 37, No.

26, of the July 1, 2011, Florida Administrative Weekly. Petitioner sought a waiver or variance of subsection 61H1-27.0041(2), F.A.C., entitled "One Year of Work Experience," which lists the requirements for work experience supervision as the subsection of the applicant, during employment, to oversight, guidance and evaluation by a supervisor who had the right to control and direct the applicant as to the result to be accomplished by the work and also as to the means by which the result was to be accomplished and which requires that one year of work experience shall be held and understood to mean the rendition of services such as are customarily performed by full-time, regularly employed staff employees of a certified public accountant during the normal workweek as required by the employing certified public accountant, commencing after the completion of the educational requirements set forth in subsection 61H1-27.002(3), F.A.C. The Board considered the instant Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting, held August 12, 2011, in Tampa, Florida.

The Board's Order, filed on September 29, 2011, granted the petition finding that Petitioner had established that the purpose of the underlying statute, Section 473.308(4), Florida Statutes, would be met by granting a variance or waiver from subsection 61H1-27.0041(2), F.A.C. The Board further found that Petitioner established that applying the requirements of the aforementioned rule to her circumstances would violate principles of fairness and impose substantial hardship.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Veloria Kelly, Division Director, Board of Accountancy, 240 N.W. 76th Dr., Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32607.

The Board of Accountancy hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Variance, filed on April 7, 2011, by Ramon Romero. The Notice of Petition for Waiver or Variance was published in Vol. 37, No. 17, of the April 29, 2011, Florida Administrative Weekly. Petitioner sought a waiver or variance of paragraph 61H1-28.0052(1)(b), F.A.C., entitled "Number of Sittings, and Granting of Credit, Release of Grades and Completion of Examination, Transition Rules" which requires candidates to pass all four test sections of the CPA Examination within a rolling eighteen-month period, which begins on the NASBA grade release for the first test section passed. The Board considered the instant Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting held on June 17, 2011, in Tampa, Florida.

The Board's Order, filed on September 29, 2011, granted the petition finding that Petitioner established that the purpose of the underlying statute, Section 473.306, Florida Statutes, would be met by granting a variance from paragraph 61H1-28.0052(1)(b), F.A.C. The Board further found that

Petitioner established that applying the requirements of the aforementioned Rule to his circumstances would violate principles of fairness and impose substantial hardship.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Veloria Kelly, Division Director, Board of Accountancy, 240 N.W. 76th Dr., Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32607.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on September 28, 2011, the Board of Accountancy, received a petition for Laurie Sandoval, seeking a variance or waiver of subsection 61H1-27.0041(2), F.A.C., which requires that one year of work experience shall be held and understood to mean the rendition of services such as are customarily performed by full-time, regularly employed staff employees of a certified public accountant during the normal workweek as required by the employing certified public accountant, commencing after the completion of the educational requirements set forth in subsection 61H1-27.002(3), F.A.C.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Veloria Kelly, Division Director, Board of Accountancy, 240 N.W. 76th Dr., Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32607. Comments on this petition should be filed with the Board of Accountancy within 14 days of publication of this notice.

The Board of Accountancy hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Waiver or Variance, filed on July 5, 2011, by Brian Sullivan. The Notice of Petition for Waiver or Variance was published in Vol. 37, No. 30, of the July 29, 2011, Florida Administrative Weekly. Petitioner sought a waiver or variance of paragraphs 61H1-27.0041(1)(b) and (2), F.A.C., entitled "One Year of Work Experience," which lists the requirements for work experience supervision as the subjection of the applicant, during employment, to oversight, guidance and evaluation by a supervisor who had the right to control and direct the applicant as to the result to be accomplished by the work and also as to the means by which the result was to be accomplished and which requires that one year of work experience shall be held and understood to mean the rendition of services such as are customarily performed by full-time, regularly employed staff employees of a certified public accountant during the normal workweek as required by the employing certified public accountant, commencing after the completion of the educational requirements set forth in subsection 61H1-27.002(3), F.A.C. The Board considered the instant Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting, held August 12, 2011, in Tampa, Florida.

The Board's Order, filed on September 29, 2011, granted the petition finding that Petitioner had established that the purpose of the underlying statute, Section 473.308(4), Florida Statutes, would be met by granting a variance or waiver from paragraphs 61H1-27.0041(1)(b) and (2), F.A.C. The Board

further found that Petitioner established that applying the requirements of the aforementioned rule to his circumstances would violate principles of fairness and impose substantial hardship.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: Veloria Kelly, Division Director, Board of Accountancy, 240 N.W. 76th Dr., Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32607.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on September 22, 2011, the Department of Environmental Protection, received a petition for a variance under Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, from the requirements of paragraph 62-604.400(2)(a), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The petitioner, City of Cape Coral, P. O. Box 150027, Cape Coral, Florida 33915-0027, seeks relief from the requirement for the installation of permanent generators at 3 lift stations which have alternative methods to prevent loss of service. The petitioner is requesting a permanent variance due to their alternative methods and the use of portable generators. The petition has been assigned OGC File No. 11-1357. Public comment must be received by the person below no later than 14 days from the date of publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Gary Maier, Department of Environmental Protection, South District Office, P. O. Box 2549, Ft. Myers, FL 33902, (239)344-5664, gary.maier@dep.state.fl.us.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on September 21, 2011, the Department of Environmental Protection, received a petition for a variance under Section 120.542, Florida Statutes, from the requirements of subsection 62-610.521(6), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The petitioner, Kurvin Qualls, Mayor, Town of Jay, 3695 Highway 4, P. O. Box 66, Jay, Florida 32565, seeks relief from the Part IV, rapid-rate land application systems, setback distance requirement of 100 feet from the edge of the rapid infiltration basins (RIBs) to buildings that are not part of the treatment facility or to the site property line required by subsection 62-610.521(6), F.A.C., for the Town of Jay WWTP's two RIBs. The petitioner is requesting a permanent variance to reduce the setback from 100 feet to a minimum of 22 feet up to approximately 30 feet for the existing two RIBs that were permitted for construction and operation by the Department in 1995. The petition has been assigned OGC File No. 11-1358 and PA File No.: FLA010206-009-DWF/VO. Public comment must be received by the person below no later than 14 days from the date of publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jonathan May, Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, Northwest District,

160 West Governmental Street, Suite 308, Pensacola, Florida 32502-5740, email: jonathan.may@dep.state.fl.us, telephone: (850)595-0609.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 7, 2011, the Board of Medicine, received a petition for waiver or variance filed by Javanshir Janani, M.D., from subsection 64B8-4.009(4) and Rule 64B8-4.010, F.A.C., with regard to the requirement for submission of documentation of medical education directly from Petitioner's medical school and the requirement for a copy of the diploma from Petitioner's medical school.

Comments on this petition should be filed with: The Board of Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3053, within 14 days of publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Joy A. Tootle, Executive Director, Board of Medicine, at the above address, or telephone (850)245-4131.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 6, 2011, the Board of Medicine, received a petition for waiver or variance filed by Mamta Mangal, M.D., from Rule 64B8-4.009, F.A.C., with regard to the requirements for submission of documentation of medical education directly from Petitioner's medical school. Comments on this petition should be filed with the Board of Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3053, within 14 days of publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Joy A. Tootle, Executive Director, Board of Medicine, at the above address, or telephone (850)245-4131.

NOTICE OF CORRECTION – The Board of Opticianry hereby gives notice of the issuance of an Order regarding the Petition for Variance or Waiver for Lucindo Fidalgo, filed on May 23, 2011. It appears the Petitioner was requesting a Variance or Waiver from Rule 64B12-9.0015, Florida Administrative Code. The Notice of Petition for Variance or Waiver was published in Vol. 35, No. 29, of the July 22, 2011, Florida Administrative Weekly. The Board considered the Petition at a duly-noticed public meeting held on August 9, 2011.

The Board's Order, filed on September 7, 2011, denies the Petition for Variance or Waiver. Upon review of the petition, it appears the Petitioner is requesting a waiver of the statute. The Board does not possess the authority to vary or waive the requirements of the statute. Therefore the Board denies the Petition for Declaratory Statement.

A copy of the Board's Order may be obtained by contacting: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Opticianry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on September 28, 2011, the Board of Physical Therapy Practice, received a petition for Angra Chhaya, seeking a variance or waiver of Rule 64B17-3.001, F.A.C., with regard to general education credits deficiency. Petitioner has demonstrated a substantial hardship or a violation of principles of fairness that would justify a waiver or variance.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Allen Hall, Executive Director, Board of Physical Therapy Practice/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3255.

Section VI

Notices of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

The **Division of Historical Resources**, Florida Historical Commission announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 16, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – conclusion

PLACE: R. A. Gray Building, Room 307, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida Historical Commission will hold its November meeting for the purposes of conducting commission business and assisting the Division of Historical Resources in carrying out the purposes, duties, and responsibilities of the division.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Celeste Ivory at 1(800)847-7278 or email: Celeste.Ivory@DOS.MyFlorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Celeste Ivory at 1(800)847-7278. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Celeste Ivory at 1(800)847-7278, email: Celeste.Ivory@DOS.MyFlorida.com.

The **Friends of the Museums of Florida History, Inc.** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: November 1, 15, 29, 2011; December 13, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: R.A. Gray Building, 500 S. Bronough St., Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Fundraising for the Forever Changed permanent exhibit.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Elyse Cornelison, Museum of Florida History, (850)245-6400.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Elyse Cornelison, Museum of Florida History, (850)245-6400. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Elyse Cornelison, Museum of Florida History, (850)245-6400.

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

The **Florida Commission on the Status of Women** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 3, 2011, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Please Call: (850)414-3300 for instructions on participation

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Executive Committee.

DATE AND TIME: November 9, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Please Call: (850)414-3300 for instructions on participation

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Annual Report Committee.

DATE AND TIME: November 15, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Please Call: (850)414-3300 for instructions on participation

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: 4th Quarterly Meeting of the Florida Commission on the Status of Women.

NOTE: In the absence of quorum, items on this agenda will be discussed as workshop, and notes will be recorded although no formal action will be taken. If you have any questions, please call: (850)414-3300.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Commission on the Status of Women, Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050, (850)414-3300, Fax: (850)921-4131.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Florida Commission on the Status of Women, Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050, (850)414-3300, Fax: (850)921-4131. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Florida Commission on the Status of Women, Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050, (850)414-3300, Fax: (850)921-4131.

The **Department of Legal Affairs**, Council on the Social Status of Black Men and Boys announces the following telephone conference meetings for committee planning which all persons are invited to attend.

Subcommittee Teleconference

DATE AND TIME: October 31, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Conference Code: 6532211382. Please be advised that meetings & meeting rooms maybe subject to change. For updates please visit <http://www.cssbmb.com>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Council shall make a systematic study of the conditions affecting black men and boys, including, but not limited to, homicide rates, arrest and incarceration rate, poverty, violence, drug abuse, death rates, disparate annual income levels, school performance in all grade levels including postsecondary levels, and health issues.

A copy of the meeting agenda may be obtained by visiting: <http://www.cssbmb.com>.

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Bureau at least 48 hours prior to the meeting by contacting: Bureau of Criminal Justice

Programs at (850)414-3300. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service 1-800-955-8771 (TDD) or 1-800-955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, contact: Bureau of Criminal Justice Programs at (850)414-3300.

NOTICE OF CORRECTION – The Florida Elections Commission announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: October 11-12, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – until the commission adjourns

PLACE: Office of the Attorney General, Rivergate Plaza, 444 Brickell Ave., Suite 650, Miami, FL 33131 by video teleconference: Office of the Attorney General, 107 W. Gaines St., Suite 224, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This formal hearing has been CANCELLED. Previous notice provided in F.A.W. on September 30, 2011.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

The **Florida Agriculture in the Classroom, Inc.** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Nursery, Growers & Landscape Association, 1533 Park Center Drive, Orlando, FL 32835

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida Agriculture in the Classroom, Inc. board of directors will meet for a regularly scheduled board meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lisa Gaskalla at gaskalla@ufl.edu.

For more information, you may contact: Lisa Gaskalla at gaskalla@ufl.edu.

The Florida **Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 8, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Leroy Collins Building – Innovation Park, 2051 East Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32310, (850)488-0163

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Annual Reports on the Status of the Industry, Research, Promotion and Increased Acreage Committee Reports, Report on Viticulture Trust Fund Collections. Discussion on Research Committee approving contract extensions and Travel Reimbursement suspension.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Tom Thomas, (850)922-9827.

For more information, you may contact: Tom Thomas, (850)922-9827.

The **Florida Forest Service** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 2, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – 12:30 p.m. (EST)

PLACE: Conner Building, Eyster Auditorium, 3125 Conner Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1650

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General meeting of the Off-Highway Vehicle Recreation Advisory Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Steffis Demetropoulos, 3535 N.E. 39th Avenue, Gainesville, Florida 32609, (352)955-2083.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

The **Exceptional Students** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: Executive Committee Meeting, Thursday, December 1, 2011, 10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.; Full Committee Meeting, Thursday, December 1, 2011, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.; Committee Meeting, Friday, December 2, 2011, 8:30 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.; Opportunity for Public Comment, Friday, December 2, 2011, 2:30 p.m.

PLACE: Hotel Duval, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Agenda topics include Bureau of Exceptional Education and Student Services Update; Legislative Update; Special Diploma; Transition; Matrix of Services; State Performance Plan/Annual Performance Report; Rules in Process; and Restraint/Seclusion.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: State Advisory Committee, Bureau of Exceptional Education and Student Services, Florida Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Suite 614, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 28 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Michele Polland, Bureau of Exceptional Education and Student Services at (850)245-0475. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Michele Polland, Bureau of Exceptional Education and Student Services at (850)245-0475.

The **Education Practices Commission** announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: A Teacher Hearing Panel, November 4, 2011, 9:00 a.m. or as soon thereafter as can be heard

PLACE: Hampton Inn & Suites, 3388 Lonnbladh Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850)574-4900

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Hearing Panel of the Education Practices Commission will consider final agency action in matters dealing with the disciplining of certified educators.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Education Practices Commission, 325 W. Gaines Street, 224 Turlington Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Kathleen M. Richards at (850)245-0455. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Lisa Forbess or Kathleen M. Richards at (850)245-0455.

Copies of the agenda for the regular monthly Board meeting will be available for inspection on and after Tuesday, October 25, 2011, and copies will be provided upon written request and the payment of approved duplicating charges.

Any person wishing to address agenda items at the Board of Trustees meeting will be provided an opportunity to do so by appearing before the Board at the meeting.

All objections to this notice or the propriety of the scheduled public meetings should be filed in writing: College President, Florida State College at Jacksonville, on or before November 1, 2011. All legal issues should be brought to the College's attention and an attempt made to resolve them prior to the public meeting. Any person wishing to appeal a decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceeding for such an appeal and may, therefore, need to ensure that a verbatim record is made. Through the months of November and December 2011, the Board will hold informal meetings each Thursday, 12:00 Noon – 4:00 p.m. at the Administrative Offices, Room 403A, for the purpose of discussing College business as appropriate.

The College does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability in employment or the provision of services and is an equal access/equal opportunity/affirmative action college. If special accommodations are required, please advise human resources 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

The **Florida State College at Jacksonville District**, Board of Trustees announces the following meetings to which the public is invited.

STRATEGIC CONVERSATION:

DATE AND TIME: November 1, 2011, 12:00 Noon – 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Advanced Technology Center, Room T-140, 401 W. State St., Jacksonville, FL 32202

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: College Readiness (Joint meeting with Duval County Public Schools).

REGULAR MONTHLY BOARD MEETING:

DATE AND TIME: November 1, 2011, 2:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Administrative Offices, Board Room 405, 501 W. State St., Jacksonville, FL 32202

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular meeting.

DISCUSSION OF COLLEGE OPERATIONAL MATTERS:

DATE AND TIME: November 1, 2011, 3:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Administrative Offices, Room 403A, 501 W. State St., Jacksonville, FL 32202

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: College operational matters.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Florida **Department of Transportation**, District Five announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 25, 2011, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Transportation, District Five Office Building, 719 South Woodland Boulevard, Cypress A & B Conference Rooms, Deland, Florida 32720

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: District Five Tentative Five Year Work Program.

Written comments from all interested parties will be accepted by the Department at the Public Hearing and within ten days after the Public Hearing. Comments should be addressed to: Noranne Downs, District Secretary, Florida Department of Transportation, 719 South Woodland Boulevard, Deland, Florida 32720. Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. The Department's Tentative Five Year Work Program will also be discussed at the Metropolitan Planning Organizations and Transportation Planning Organizations Board Meetings. Please check the Department's website at www.D5WPPH.com/2011 for additional information on meeting locations, dates and times.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vickie Wyche, Florida Department of Transportation FDOT/MPO Liaison, 719 South Woodland Boulevard, Deland, Florida 32720, (386)943-5185, e-mail: Vickie.Wyche@dot.state.fl.us. Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vickie Wyche, Florida Department of Transportation FDOT/MPO Liaison, 719 South Woodland Boulevard, Deland, Florida 32720, (386)943-5185, e-mail: Vickie.Wyche@dot.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

The **Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 1, 2011, 9:00 a.m. (ET)

PLACE: Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This is a meeting of the Trustees of the State Board of Administration to appoint person(s) to serve on the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund Advisory Council pursuant to Section 215.555(8), F.S. The Trustees may also address other general business.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Tracy Allen, (850)413-1341, email: tracy.allen@sbafla.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

FLORIDA PAROLE COMMISSION

The **Florida Parole Commission** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: Wednesday, November 9, 2011; November 16, 2011; November 30, 2011, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Parole Commission, 4070 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2450

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regularly scheduled meeting for all Parole, Conditional Release, Conditional Medical Release, Addiction Recovery, Control Release and all other Commission business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Parole Commission, (850)488-1293.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the

agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Florida Parole Commission at ada@fpc.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Florida Parole Commission** and the Florida Parole Commission Qualifications Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 14, 2011, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Bar's Tampa Meeting Room, 4200 George J. Bean Parkway, Suite 2580, Tampa, FL 33607

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct interviews for the Parole Commissioner position.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Sarah J. Rumph, 4070 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2450, (850)488-4460.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Sarah J. Rumph, 4070 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2450, (850)488-4460. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Sarah J. Rumph, 4070 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2450, (850)488-4460.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a public workshop in the following undocketed matter to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 3, 2011, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Undocketed – The purpose of this workshop is to discuss ways to increase efficiencies in the water and wastewater industry in order to hold and/or lower rates. One or more of the Commissioners of the Florida Public Service Commission may attend and participate in this workshop.

For questions, contact: Commission Staff, JoAnn Chase at (850)413-6978.

Emergency Cancellation of Commission Workshop: If a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the workshop, Commission staff will attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of cancellation of the workshop will also be provided on the Commission's website (<http://www.psc.state.fl.us/>) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling: Office of the General Counsel at (850)413-6199.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact: Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), Florida Relay Service.

The Florida **Public Service Commission** staff announces a meeting of the Lifeline Working Group as created by Section 364.10(2)(g)3., Florida Statutes, on the following matter to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, November 7, 2011, 9:30 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Room 140, Easley Building (Internal Affairs Room), 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Undocketed – Lifeline Working Group. The purpose of this meeting is to discuss procedures to be implemented to increase Lifeline enrollment, specifically, three items:

The new 2011 language contained in Section 364.10(2)(h), Florida Statutes (implemented July 1, 2011), which states, "The commission may undertake appropriate measures to inform low-income consumers of the availability of the Lifeline and Link-Up programs."

The 2011 Final Report by the National Regulatory Research Institute which recommends that the Commission staff should work with Florida telecommunications providers to determine how they can assume the majority of Lifeline outreach over the long term.

Recommendations from the Florida Legislature Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability that eligible telecommunications carriers develop outreach materials for specific consumer groups, such as young and rural populations, and wireless users; and develop outreach strategies.

In accordance with Section 364.10(2)(g)3., Florida Statutes, the Lifeline Working Group shall consist of the Commission, the Department of Children and Families, the Office of Public Counsel, and each eligible telecommunications carrier offering Lifeline and Link-Up services in Florida. Interested Parties may also participate. One or more Commissioners may attend and participate in the meeting.

Members of the Lifeline Working Group are asked to come to the meeting prepared to answer the following questions:

How do you interpret the new language in Section 364.10(2)(h), Florida Statutes, which states, "The commission may undertake appropriate measures to inform low-income consumers of the availability of the Lifeline and Link-Up programs?"

What are the appropriate measures (as stated above), and how should they be funded?

How should Florida telecommunications providers assume the majority of Lifeline outreach over the long term?

What period of time is necessary for Florida telecommunications providers to assume the majority of Lifeline outreach?

What outreach materials need to be developed for specific consumer groups, such as young and rural populations, and wireless users?

What outreach strategies need to be developed?

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact: Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, via 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), Florida Relay Service.

Emergency Cancellation of Meeting: If a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the meeting, Commission staff will attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of cancellation of the meeting will also be provided on the Commission's website (<http://www.psc.state.fl.us/>) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling the Office of the General Counsel at (850)413-6199.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THIS MEETING IS: Bob Casey, Division of Regulatory Analysis, 2540 Shumard Oak Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850, (850)413-6974.

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a prehearing conference in the following docket to which all persons are invited.

TITLE: Application for increase in water/wastewater rates in Alachua, Brevard, DeSoto, Hardee, Highlands, Lake, Lee, Marion, Orange, Palm Beach, Pasco, Polk, Putnam, Seminole, Sumter, Volusia, and Washington Counties by Aqua Utilities Florida, Inc.

DOCKET NUMBER 100330-WS

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 8, 2011, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Room 148, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of this prehearing conference is to: (1) simplify the issues; (2) identify the positions of the parties on the issues; (3) consider the possibility of obtaining admissions of fact and of documents which will avoid unnecessary proof; (4) identify exhibits; (5) establish an order of witnesses; and (6) consider such other matters as may aid in the disposition of the action.

Emergency Cancellation of Prehearing Conference: If a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the prehearing conference, Commission staff will attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of cancellation of the prehearing conference will also be provided on the Commission's website (<http://www.psc.state.fl.us/>) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling: Office of the General Counsel at (850)413-6199.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact: Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), Florida Relay Service.

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a public customer meeting in the following docket to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Oak Bend Clubhouse, 10620 S.W. 27th Avenue, #125A, Ocala, FL 34476

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Docket No. 110020-WS – Application for certificates to provide water and wastewater service in Marion County by OB Utility Systems, L.L.C. The purpose of the meeting is to give customers and other interested persons an opportunity to offer comments regarding the quality of service the utility provides, the appropriate rates, and to ask questions and comment on other issues. One or more of the Commissioners of the Florida Public Service Commission may attend and participate in this meeting.

Emergency Cancellation of Customer Meeting: If a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the meeting, Commission staff will attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of cancellation of the meeting will also be provided on the Commission's website (<http://www.psc.state.fl.us/>) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling: Office of the General Counsel at (850)413-6199 or the Office of Commission Clerk, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact: Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard

Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, via 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), Florida Relay Service.

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a public customer meeting in the following docket to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: Grand Island Clubhouse, 35920 Citrus Blvd., Grand Island, Florida 32735

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Docket No. 110021-WS – Application for certificates to provide water and wastewater service in Lake County by COL Utility Systems, L.L.C. The purpose of the meeting is to give customers and other interested persons an opportunity to offer comments regarding the quality of service the utility provides, the appropriate rates, and to ask questions and comment on other issues. One or more of the Commissioners of the Florida Public Service Commission may attend and participate in this meeting.

Emergency Cancellation of Customer Meeting: If a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the meeting, Commission staff will attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of cancellation of the meeting will also be provided on the Commission's website (<http://www.psc.state.fl.us/>) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling: Office of the General Counsel at (850)413-6199, or the Office of Commission Clerk, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact the Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, via 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), Florida Relay Service.

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a public customer meeting in the following docket to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 9, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Mid-Florida Lakes Clubhouse, 188 Forest Drive, Leesburg, Florida 34788.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Docket No. 110023-WS – Application for certificates to provide water and wastewater service in Lake County by MFL Systems, L.L.C. The purpose of the meeting is to give customers and other interested persons an opportunity to offer comments regarding the quality of service the utility provides, the appropriate rates, and to ask questions and comment on

other issues. One or more of the Commissioners of the Florida Public Service Commission may attend and participate in this meeting.

Emergency Cancellation of Customer Meeting: If a named storm or other disaster requires cancellation of the meeting, Commission staff will attempt to give timely direct notice to the parties. Notice of cancellation of the meeting will also be provided on the Commission's website (<http://www.psc.state.fl.us/>) under the Hot Topics link found on the home page. Cancellation can also be confirmed by calling: Office of the General Counsel at (850)413-6199, or the Office of Commission Clerk, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate at this proceeding should contact: Office of Commission Clerk no later than five days prior to the conference at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, via 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD), Florida Relay Service.

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

The **North Central Florida Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 2, 2011, 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, Board Room, 1907 Voyles Street, Live Oak, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the Suwannee County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 2009 N.W. 67 Place, Gainesville, Florida 32653-1603.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 business days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (352)955-2200. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **North Central Florida Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 2, 2011, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: Santa Fe Meeting Room, Florida Department of Transportation, District 2, Jeffery Maintenance Complex, 710 Lake Jeffery Road, Lake City, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the Columbia County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 2009 N.W. 67 Place, Gainesville, Florida 32653-1603.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 business days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (352)955-2200. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Northeast Florida Regional Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIMES: November 3, 2011, Planning & Growth Management Committee, 9:00 a.m.; Personnel, Budget & Finance Committee, 9:00 a.m.; Full Board of Directors, 10:00 a.m.; Legislative Policy Committee immediately following the Board meeting; Awards Selection Ad Hoc Committee immediately following Legislative Committee meeting

PLACE: 6850 Belfort Oaks Place, Jacksonville, FL 32216

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular Monthly Meetings.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Sheron Forde, (904)279-0880 or sforde@nefrc.org.

The **Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council**, Regional Planning Advisory Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: 4000 Gateway Centre Blvd., Suite 100, Pinellas Park, FL 33782

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the Regional Planning Advisory Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Avera Wynne, (727)570-5151, ext. 30.

For more information, you may contact: Avera Wynne, (727)570-5151, ext. 30.

The **Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 3, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Martin County Public Safety Complex, Fire Rescue Training Room, 800 S.E. Monterey Road, Stuart, FL 34996

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the quarterly meeting of Council's Florida District X Local Emergency Planning Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kathryn Boer at (772)221-4060.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Kathryn Boer at (772)221-4060. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Kathryn Boer at (772)221-4060.

The **Jackson County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, November 7, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (CT)

PLACE: JTrans Office, 3988 Old Cottondale Road, Marianna, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the adoption of the annual evaluation of the CTC, grievance procedures, and board bylaws. The public is invited to the annual public hearing that will follow this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571 or email: arpc7@fairpoint.net.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The **Calhoun County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, November 7, 2011, 2:00 p.m. (CT)

PLACE: Calhoun County Senior Citizens Center, 16859 N.E. Cayson Street, Blountstown, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the adoption of the annual evaluation of the CTC, grievance procedures, and board bylaws. The public is invited to the annual public hearing that will follow this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571 or email: arpc7@fairpoint.net.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The **Wakulla County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (ET)

PLACE: Wakulla County Public Library, 4330 Crawfordville Highway, Crawfordville, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the adoption of the annual evaluation of the CTC, grievance procedures, and board bylaws. The public is invited to the annual public hearing that will follow this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571 or email: arpc7@fairpoint.net.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Liberty County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 8, 2011, 2:00 p.m. (ET)

PLACE: Veterans Memorial Park Civic Center, 10405 N.W. Theo Jacobs Way, Bristol, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the adoption of the annual evaluation of the CTC, grievance procedures, and board bylaws. The public is invited to the annual public hearing that will follow this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571 or email: arpc7@fairpoint.net.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Franklin County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 9, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (ET)

PLACE: Franklin County Courthouse Annex Courtroom, 33 Market Street, Apalachicola, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the adoption of the annual evaluation of the CTC, grievance procedures, and board bylaws. The public is invited to the annual public hearing that will follow this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571 or email: arpc7@fairpoint.net.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The **Gulf County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 9, 2011, 2:00 p.m. (ET)

PLACE: Gulf County Transportation Office, 122 Water Plant Road, Port St. Joe, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the adoption of the annual evaluation of the CTC, grievance procedures, and board bylaws. The public is invited to the annual public hearing that will follow this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571 or email: arpc7@fairpoint.net.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The **Jefferson County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 10, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (ET)

PLACE: Jefferson County Health Department Annex, 1175 W. Washington Street, Monticello, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the adoption of the annual evaluation of the CTC, grievance procedures, and board bylaws. The public is invited to the annual public hearing that will follow this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571 or email: arpc7@fairpoint.net.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Gadsden County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 10, 2011, 2:00 p.m. (ET)

PLACE: William A. McGill Library, 732 Pat Thomas Parkway, Quincy, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the adoption of the annual evaluation of the CTC, grievance procedures, and board bylaws. The public is invited to the annual public hearing that will follow this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571 or email: arpc7@fairpoint.net.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vanita Anderson, ARPC Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinator at (850)674-4571. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

The **St. Johns River Water Management District** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

Land Management Review Team – Meeting/Review (MRT)

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 2, 2011, 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Sunnyhill Restoration Area in Marion County. We will meet at the Blue House. The entrance to Sunnyhill Restoration Area is located on the north side of State Road 42, approximately 6 miles east of Weirsdale, just east of the Ocklawaha River bridge. Please Call: (386)329-4381 or email: jbmiller@sjrwmd.com if you are interested in attending the MRT meeting/review.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO CONSIDER: The meeting/review will include a review of the resource and recreation management accomplishments within the Restoration Area since 2006. One or more Governing Board members may attend.

Central Recreational Public Meeting (CRPM)

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 2, 2011, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Sunnyhill Restoration Area, 19561 S.E. Hwy. 42, Umatilla, FL 32784

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Includes a review of the resource and recreation management accomplishments and land acquisition updates since the previous CRPM in May, 2011. One or more Governing Board members may attend.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: J.B. Miller, (386)329-4381 or jbmiller@sjrwmd.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: J.B. Miller, (386)329-4381 or email: jbmiller@sjrwmd.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **St. Johns River Water Management District** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIMES: Tuesday, November 8, 2011, 8:15 a.m., Chair's Meeting; 9:00 a.m., Finance, Administration and Audit Committee; 10:00 a.m., Regulatory Committee followed by Governing Board Meeting and Public Hearing on Land Acquisition

PLACE: District Headquarters, 4049 Reid Street (Hwy. 100 West), Palatka, FL 32177

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Discussion and consideration of District business including regulatory and non-regulatory matters. Staff may recommend approval of external amendments which affect the adopted budget.

NOTE: One or more Governing Board members may attend and participate in the meetings by means of communications media technology.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: St. Johns River Water Management District, Attention: Missy McDermont, 4049 Reid Street, Palatka, FL 32177, by phone: (386)329-4101 or by visiting the District's website: www.floridaswater.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: District Clerk at (386)329-4500. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **St. Johns River Water Management District** announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, immediately following the Regulatory Committee Meeting that begins at 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: St. Johns River Water Management District Headquarters, Executive Building, 4049 Reid Street, Palatka, Florida 32177

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Continuation of public hearing from October 11, 2011 to adopt amendments to Rule 40C-2, regarding CUP Streamlining. The scope of the CUP Streamlining is described in detail in the Notice of Proposed Rule published in the August 19, 2011, edition of the Florida Administrative Weekly, Vol. 37, No. 33. The District will consider amendments to the language proposed in the Notice of Proposed Rule to address comments by staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee (JAPC).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Wendy Gaylord, Rules Coordinator, Office of General Counsel, St. Johns River Water Management District, 4049 Reid Street, Palatka, Florida 32177-2529, (386)326-3026, email: wgaylord@sjrwmd.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: St. Johns River Water Management District, Clerk at (386)329-4500. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD)** announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 1, 2011, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: University of South Florida, Patel School of Global Sustainability, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, FL 33620

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Water Choices Forum IV – facilitating public-private partnerships as a mechanism to help solve water challenges. SWFWMD Governing Board and Advisory Committee members may participate.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Earth Foundation, (561)686-3688 or contact@floridaearth.org. For more information, you may contact: Lou.Kavouras@watermatters.org, 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4604 (Ad Order EXE0172).

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 1, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Tampa Service Office, 7601 US 301, Tampa, FL 33637

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Permit/Application No. and Project Name

20001118.006 Floral City Water Association Inc./Floral City Water Association

43000920.003 SR 60 (Courtney Campbell Causeway) Multi-Use Trail

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Patty McLeod, Southwest Florida Water Management District, PMO, 2379 Broad Street, Brooksville, FL 34609-6749 or by visiting the District's website: www.watermatters.org.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: SWFWMD Human Resources Director at 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4702, TDD (FL Only) or 1(800)231-7103, email: ADACoordinator@swfwmd.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD)** announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 2, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: T. Mabry Carlton, Jr. Water Treatment Plant, 1255 Mabry Carlton Way, Venice, FL 34292

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Dedication Ceremony to celebrate completion of the Phase 3A Pipeline. Governing Board members may attend.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Linda Stewart, Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority, (941)316-1776 or LStewart@regionalwater.org.

For more information, you may contact: Lou.Kavouras@watermatters.org, 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4604 (Ad Order EXE0171).

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD)** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 3, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: SWFWMD, Tampa Service Office, 7601 US Highway 301 North, Tampa, FL 33637

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Governing Board Surplus Lands Subcommittee Meeting: Consider committee business including evaluation of methodologies used to evaluate portions of SWFWMD lands for potential surplus. Board members and Advisory Committee members may attend. Some Board members may participate in the meeting via communications media technology.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: WaterMatters.org – Boards, Meetings & Event Calendar, 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: SWFWMD Human Resources Director at 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4702, TDD (FL Only) 1(800)231-6103 or email: ADACoordinator@swfwmd.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Teri.Hudson@watermatters.org 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4602 (Ad Order EXE0173).

The **Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD)** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, November 4, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: SWFWMD, Tampa Service Office, 7601 Highway 301 North, Tampa, FL 33637

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This will be a joint meeting of the following Advisory Committees: Agricultural Advisory Committee; Environmental Advisory Committee; Green Industry Advisory Committee; Industrial Advisory Committee; and Public Supply Advisory Committee, to discuss committee business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: WaterMatters.org-Boards, Meetings & Event Calendar; or the Planning Department 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the SWFWMD Human Resources Director at 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4702, TDD

(FL Only) 1(800)231-6103 or email: ADACoordinator@swfwmd.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Teri.Hudson@watermatters.org or 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4402 (AD order #63753).

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION – The **Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD)** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIMES: November 8, 2011, 9:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: SWFWMD, Tampa Service Office, 7601 Highway 301 North, Tampa, FL 33637

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: THESE MEETINGS HAVE BEEN CANCELLED: Industrial Advisory Committee and Public Supply Advisory Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Teri.Hudson@watermatters.org or 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4402.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: SWFWMD Human Resources Director at 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4702; TDD (FL Only) 1(800)231-6103 or email ADACoordinator@swfwmd.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Teri.Hudson@watermatters.org or 1(800)423-1476 (FL Only) or (352)796-7211, ext. 4402 (AD order #47729).

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

Special Governing Board Meeting

DATE AND TIME: October 28, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Headquarters, B-1 Building, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33406. All or part of these meetings may be conducted as a teleconference in order to permit maximum participation by Governing Board members. The Governing Board may take official action at the meeting on any item appearing on the agenda and on any item that is added to the agenda as a result of a change to the agenda approved by the presiding officer of the meeting pursuant to Section 120.525, Florida Statutes.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the meeting is to conduct Attorney Client Sessions regarding pending District litigation and for the Governing Board to discuss and consider District business, including

regulatory and non-regulatory matters, and may include an amendment to the District's Fiscal Year 11-12 budget to revise revenues and expenditures.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jacki McGorty, (561)682-2087 or website: <http://my.sfwmd.gov/portal/page/portal/xweb%20about%20us/gb%20application>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: District Clerk's office at (561)682-2087. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Jacki McGorty at (561)682-2087 or jmcgorty@sfwmd.gov.

The **Water Resources Advisory Commission (WRAC)** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 3, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Miami-Dade Water and Sewer, Training Rooms A & B, 3071 S.W. 38th Ave., Miami, FL 33233-0316

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: A Public Meeting of the Water Resources Advisory Commission (WRAC) regarding water resources protection, water supply and flood protection issues. The public is advised that it is possible that one or more members of the Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District may attend and participate in this meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Megan Jacoby at (561)682-6517 or at our website: <http://my.sfwmd.gov/wrac>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: The District Clerk's office at (561)682-2087. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED

The **Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. – until completion

PLACE: Commission Headquarters, 2740 Centerview Drive, Suite 1A, Tallahassee, FL 32301; Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Conference Code: 524736

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss regular Commission business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Vicki Scheffer, 605 Suwannee Street, MS-49, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)410-5700 or 1(800)983-2435.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Vicki Scheffer, 605 Suwannee Street, MS-49, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)410-5700 or 1(800)983-2435. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES

The **Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIMES: Wednesday, November 2, 2011, Board Meeting, 9:30 a.m.; Dedication Ceremony, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: T. Mabry Carlton Jr., Water Treatment Plant, 1255 Mabry Carlton Parkway, Venice, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Board of Directors will convene to conduct regular business of the Authority. Immediately following the board meeting, the Authority will host a dedication ceremony in celebration of the completion of the Phase 3A Interconnect in Sarasota County. Authority Board members, Sarasota County Commissioners, local government elected officials and members of the Southwest Florida Water Management District's Governing Board may be in attendance.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority, 6311 Atrium Drive, Suite 100, Bradenton, Florida 34202.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (941)316-1776. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: (941)316-1776.

DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS

The Florida **Department of Elder Affairs** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 4, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (EST)

PLACE: 4040 Esplanade Way, Room 315P, Tallahassee, FL 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Department of Elder Affairs Advisory Council Conference Call.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Josh Spagnola, Legislative Affairs Director, DOEA, (850)414-2155, email: Spagnolaj@elderaffairs.org.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

The **Agency for Health Care Administration** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, November 4, 2011, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Conference Code: 8509210813#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Governor's Panel on Excellence in Long-Term Care will be meeting to review applications received for consideration for the Gold Seal Award designation. Other business as needed may also be discussed.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jacquie Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850)412-4437.

For more information, you may contact: Jacquie Williams, Agency for Health Care Administration, 2727 Mahan Drive, Mail Stop #33, Tallahassee, Florida 32308, (850)412-4437.

The **Agency for Health Care Administration** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 25, 2011, 1:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m.

PLACE: Agency for Health Care Administration, Headquarters, 2727 Mahan Drive, Building 3, Conference Room C, Tallahassee, Florida 32308

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Medical Care Advisory Committee Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Carla Sims, (850)412-4013, carla.sims@ahca.myflorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 24 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Carla Sims, (850)412-4013, email: carla.sims@ahca.myflorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The **Department of Management Services** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 26, 2011, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: 4075 Esplanade Way, Conference Room 166, Tallahassee, Florida 32399

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In accordance with Section 120.525 Florida Statutes, a Pre-Bid Vendor Conference (non-mandatory) is hereby noticed within the timeline for the Invitation to Bid (Number: 08-885-000-A) for Water Treatment Chemicals. The Department reserves the right to issue amendments, addenda, and changes to the timeline and specifically to the meeting notice listed above. Notice of any changes or additional meetings will be posted within the Vendor Bid System (VBS) in accordance with Section 287.042(3), Florida Statutes, and will not be re-advertised in the Florida Administrative Weekly (FAW). The VBS can be accessed at: http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main_menu.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Trey Collins at (850)488-9996, trey.collins@dms.myflorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Trey Collins at (850)488-9996, trey.collins@dms.myflorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Trey Collins at (850)488-9996, trey.collins@dms.myflorida.com.

The **State Retirement Commission** announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, November 7, 2011, 8:30 a.m. (Eastern Time)

PLACE: Crowne Plaza Jacksonville Airport, Fern Room, 14670 Duval Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32218

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct hearings pursuant to Section 121.23, Florida Statutes and to consider other matters related to the business of the Commission.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Department of Management Services, State Retirement Commission, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950, (850)487-2410.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 15 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Department of Management Services, State Retirement Commission, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950, (850)487-2410. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Department of Management Services, State Retirement Commission, 4050 Esplanade Way, Suite 160, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950, (850)487-2410.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The **Construction Industry Licensing Board** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, November 7, 2011, 1:00 p.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Conference Code: 4879516

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Recovery Fund committee meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1039, (850)487-1395.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1039, (850)487-1395. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1039, (850)487-1395.

The **Construction Industry Licensing Board** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Conference Code: 4879516

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: CE/Exams/Public Awareness committee meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1039, (850)487-1395.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1039, (850)487-1395. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1039, (850)487-1395.

The **Construction Industry Licensing Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: Wednesday, November 9, 2011, 12:00 Noon; Thursday, November 10, 2011, 8:00 a.m.; Friday, November 11, 2011, 8:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Hampton Inn & Suites Amelia Island, 19 South 2nd Street, Fernandina Beach, FL 32034

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General business, disciplinary and committee meetings of the board.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1039, (850)487-1395.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL

32399-1039, (850)487-1395. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Amanda Wynn, Construction Industry Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1039, (850)487-1395.

The **Board of Accountancy** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 9, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Conference Code: 1332505

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Education Committee to consider items relating to the education requirements to sit for the CPA examinations.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Dewayne McBride, 240 N.W. 76th Drive, Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32607.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: DeWayne McBride. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Board of Accountancy** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: Thursday, December 1, 2011, Probable Cause; Board Meeting, Friday, December 2, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – until all business is concluded

PLACE: Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Board Room, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Probable Cause Panel will meet to conduct hearings on disciplinary matters. These meetings are closed to the public; however, there may be cases where probable cause was previously found which are to be reconsidered. This is a public meeting. The Board will meet to consider enforcement proceedings including consideration of investigation officers' reports, rules, and other general business. This is a public meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: June Carroll, Administrative Assistant II, Board of Accountancy, 240 N.W. 76th Drive, Suite A, Gainesville FL 32607.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: June Carroll. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: June Carroll.

NOTICE OF CORRECTION – Department of Business and Professional Regulation hereby gives notice that the following correction has been made to the date for the November 2011 Probable Cause Panel of the Florida Real Estate Appraisal Board (FREAB) in Vol. 37, No. 41, October 14, 2011.

CORRECTED DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 2, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

All other information is correctly stated.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, Bureau of Assessment and Restoration Support, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 1, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: St. Johns County Utility Department, Matanzas Room, 1205 State Road 16, St. Augustine, Florida 32084

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting is to present the final lists of waterbodies and water segments within the Upper East Coast basin verified as impaired pursuant to Chapter 62-303, Florida Administrative Code, and waters proposed for delisting from Florida's 303(d) list. The final lists will be placed on the Department's Watershed Assessment website at: <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/water/watersheds/assessment/index.htm> by October 21, 2011, and will be provided upon request to interested parties by mail or via e-mail distribution. The Department will accept written comments on the final lists beginning October 21, 2011 and ending November 18, 2011.

Any and all written comments should be directed to: Ms. Julie Espy, Watershed Assessment Section, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, M.S. #3555, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, by e-mail: julie.espy@dep.state.fl.us.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ms. Renee Gray, Watershed Assessment Section, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #3555, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, by e-mail: renee.gray@dep.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ms. Renee Gray at (850)245-8346. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, Bureau of Assessment and Restoration Support announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 2, 2011, 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Melbourne Beach Community Center, 507 Ocean Avenue, Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting is to present the final lists of waterbodies and water segments within the Indian River Lagoon basin verified as impaired pursuant to Chapter 62-303, Florida Administrative Code, and waters proposed for delisting from Florida's 303(d) list. The final lists will be placed on the Department's Watershed Assessment website at <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/water/watersheds/assessment/index.htm> by October 21, 2011, and will be provided upon request to interested parties by mail or via e-mail distribution. The Department will accept written comments on the final lists beginning October 21, 2011 and ending November 18, 2011.

Any and all written comments should be directed to: Ms. Julie Espy, Watershed Assessment Section, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, M.S. #3555, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, by e-mail: julie.espy@dep.state.fl.us.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ms. Renee Gray, Watershed Assessment Section, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #3555, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, by e-mail: renee.gray@dep.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ms. Renee Gray at (850)245- 8346. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The **Department of Environmental Protection** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 3, 2011, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Douglas Building, Conference Room A, 3900 Commonwealth Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Department will brief the Environmental Regulation Commission (ERC) on its draft revisions to Chapter 62-302 (Surface Water Quality Standards) and Chapter 62-303 (Identification of Impaired Surface Waters), F.A.C., which contain numeric nutrient criteria for lakes, flowing waters (streams), springs, and estuary specific criteria for several Florida estuaries, including Clearwater Harbor, Tampa Bay, Sarasota Bay, Charlotte Harbor, Southwest Florida, Biscayne Bay, Florida Bay, and the Florida Keys. The Department's rules, if approved by the ERC, ratified by the Florida Legislature, and approved by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), are intended to replace USEPA's numeric nutrient criteria that were promulgated for Florida's lakes and flowing waters last November. No final decision has been made whether the Department will proceed to publication of a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking for these rules. The Department will also brief the ERC on rules that the Department is proposing to repeal as duplicative, unnecessarily burdensome or no longer necessary pursuant to the Governor's Executive Orders 11-01 and 11-72. The Department will brief the ERC on the following rules to be repealed: Rules 62-204.240; 62-204.260; 62-212.600; 62-212.710; 62-252.500; 62-252.900; 62-285.420; 62-296.407; 62-296.411; 62-296.413; 62-702.300; 62-702.400; 62-702.570 and 62-702.600, F.A.C.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kay Buchanan at (850)245-2293, by email: kay.buchanan@dep.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Kay Buchanan at (850)245-2293, by email: kay.buchanan@dep.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Kay Buchanan, 3900 Commonwealth Blvd., MS #35, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000, (850)245-2293, kay.buchanan@dep.state.fl.us.

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, Bureau of Assessment and Restoration Support announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, November 7, 2011, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Ellie Schiller Homosassa Springs Wildlife State Park, Main Building, Florida Room, 4150 South Suncoast Blvd., Homosassa, Florida 34446-1168

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting is to present the final lists of waterbodies and water segments within the Springs Coast basin verified as

impaired pursuant to Chapter 62-303, Florida Administrative Code, and waters proposed for delisting from Florida's 303(d) list. The final lists will be placed on the Department's Watershed Assessment website: <http://www.dep.state.fl.us/water/watersheds/assessment/index.htm> by October 21, 2011, and will be provided upon request to interested parties by mail or via e-mail distribution. The Department will accept written comments on the final lists beginning October 21, 2011 and ending November 18, 2011.

Any and all written comments should be directed to: Ms. Julie Espy, Watershed Assessment Section, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, M.S. #3555, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, by e-mail: julie.espy@dep.state.fl.us.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ms. Renee Gray, Watershed Assessment Section, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #3555, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, by e-mail: renee.gray@dep.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ms. Renee Gray at (850)245-8346. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The Florida Coordinating Council for the **Deaf and Hard of Hearing** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

QUARTERLY MEETING

DATE AND TIME: November 10, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.
PLACE: Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Event Code: 5221678031#; The meeting is also accessible via remote CART: <http://www.streamtext.net/text.aspx?event=FCCDHH>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The current state of and policy recommendations for accessibility, supports and service for persons who are deaf, hard of hearing, late-deafened or deaf-blind in the State of Florida, publication of a Florida Civil Rights Handbook and other committee reports.

PUBLIC COMMENTS received prior to 4:00 p.m. (EST), will be read toward the end of the meeting. Please submit public comments to info@fccdh.org or directly through the website: <http://www.fccdh.org/pages/public-comment-card.html>.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Info@fccdh.org or marygrace_tavel@doh.state.fl.us or via telephone: (850)245-4913/Toll Free: 1(866)602-3275, TTY: (850)245-4914/Toll Free TTY 1(866)602-3276.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 14 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: website: Info@fccdh.org, email: marygrace_tavel@doh.state.fl.us or via telephone: (850)245-4913/Toll Free: 1(866)602-3275, TTY: (850)245-4914/Toll Free TTY: 1(866)602-3276. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Mary Grace Tavel, contact information provided above.

The Florida **Department of Health** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, October 31, 2011, 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Room 301, Tallahassee, Florida 32399; Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Conference Code: 1634613

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Statewide Drug Policy Advisory Council will meet to discuss an overview, mission, and role of the council through various presentations and will be setting future goals of the council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Michael Forrester, Office of Legislative Affairs at (850)245-4444, ext. 2114 or michael_forrester@doh.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Michael Forrester, (850)245-4444, ext. 2114. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Lennie Zeiler, Director of Legislative Affairs, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1702, (850)245-4343.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

The **Department of Children & Families**, Central Region, Orange County Alliance Nomination Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 9, 2011, 7:30 a.m.

PLACE: 400 W. Robinson Street, Suite 1129, Hurston Building, South Tower, Orlando, FL 32801

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Meeting of the Nomination Committee to discuss potential recruits and to make recommendations to the Alliance for new membership.

Please note that The Hurston Building does not officially open for business till 8:00 a.m. Persons planning on attending the meeting should notify: Kristin Gray to arrange for entry.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kristin_Gray@dcf.state.fl.us, (407)317-7000, ext. 7042.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Kristin_Gray@dcf.state.fl.us, (407)317-7000, ext. 7042. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Kristin_Gray@dcf.state.fl.us, (407)317-7000, ext. 7042.

The **Orange County Alliance for Children and Families** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 9, 2011, 11:15 a.m.

PLACE: Heart of Florida United Way Building, 1940 Traylor Boulevard, Orlando, FL 32804 (Conference Room to be determined)

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Monthly meeting to discuss child welfare and family preservation issues.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kristin Gray, (407)317-7000, ext. 7042, by email: Kristin_Gray@dcf.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Kristin Gray, (407)317-7000, ext. 7042, by email: Kristin_Gray@dcf.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Kristin Gray, (407)317-7000, ext. 7042, by email: Kristin_Gray@dcf.state.fl.us.

The Florida **Department of Children and Families** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 2, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 6, Second Floor, Conference Room B, Tallahassee, FL 32399; Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Access Code: 2644622331

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: RFP # 09H11GC1 – Workforce Development Center. Meeting of Department Evaluators to distribute proposals received in response to the above mentioned RFP and provide instructions to evaluators.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Tarha Sondesky, (850)717-4346; tarha_sondesky@dcf.state.fl.us.

The Florida **Department of Children and Families** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 9, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 6, Room 335, Tallahassee, FL 32399; Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Access Code: 4872920

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: RFP # 09D11GC1 – Workforce Development Center. Meeting of Department Evaluators to distribute proposals received in response to the above mentioned RFP and provide instructions to evaluators.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Michele Staffieri, (850)717-4354, michele_staffieri@dcf.state.fl.us.

The Florida **Department of Children and Families** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 16, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 6, Room 335, Tallahassee, FL 32399; Conference Call: 1(888)808-6959, Access Code: 4872920

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: RFP # 09D11GC1 – Workforce Development Center. Debriefing Meeting of Department Evaluators to record scores for recommendation of contract award and collect all materials distributed at the initial Meeting of Department Evaluators.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Michele Staffieri, (850)717-4354, michele_staffieri@dcf.state.fl.us.

The **Agency for Persons with Disabilities, Area 14**, Family Care Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Faith Lutheran Church, 211 Easton Drive, Lakeland, FL 33803

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Monthly Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: APD Area 14, (863)413-3360.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 72 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: APD Area 14, (863)413-3360. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: APD Area 14, (863)413-3360.

The **Agency for Persons with Disabilities, Area 14**, Family Care Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 18, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Children's Advocacy Center, 1000 S. Highlands, Avenue, Sebring, Florida 33872

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Monthly Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: APD Area 14, (863)413-3360.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 72 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: APD Area 14, (863)413-3360. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: APD Area 14, (863)413-3360.

NAVIGATION DISTRICTS

The **West Coast Inland Navigation District** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, November 4, 2011, 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: Venice City Hall, 401 W. Venice Avenue, Venice, FL 34285

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the Navigation District.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: WCIND, 200 E. Miami Avenue, Venice, FL 34285.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (Tallahassee Local Time)

PLACE: The Offices of Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of tax-exempt bonds by Florida Housing to provide additional financing for the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below:

Captiva Cove Apartments, a 92-unit multifamily residential rental development located on or about 1201 South Dixie Highway West, Pompano Beach, Broward County, Florida 33060. The owner and operator of the development is Captiva Cove Associates, Ltd., 2100 Hollywood Boulevard, Hollywood, Florida 33020 or such successor in interest in which CSG Development Services, LLC, or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The prospective manager of the proposed development is CSG Management Services, LLC, 2100 Hollywood Boulevard, Hollywood, Florida 33020. The tax-exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$20,500,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (Tallahassee Local Time), November 7, 2011, and should be addressed to the Attention: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (Tallahassee Local Time)

PLACE: The Offices of Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of tax-exempt bonds by Florida Housing to provide additional financing for the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below:

Foxwood Apartments, a 100-unit multifamily residential rental development located on 1701 Hamilton Avenue in Panama City, Bay County, Florida 32405. The owner and operator of the development is Foxwood Acquisition Partners, LP, 2430 Estancia Boulevard, Clearwater, FL 33761 or such successor in interest in which Southport Financial Services, Inc. or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The prospective manager of the proposed development is Cambridge Management, Inc., 1916 64th Avenue West, Tacoma, WA 98466. The tax-exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$5,600,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (Tallahassee Local Time), November 7, 2011, and should be addressed to the Attention: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197. If you

are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (Tallahassee Local Time)

PLACE: The Offices of Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of tax-exempt bonds by Florida Housing to provide additional financing for the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below:

Georgia Ayers Apartments, a 72-unit multifamily residential rental development located at and around 13280 Port Said Road in Opa-Locka, Miami-Dade County, Florida 33054. The owner and operator of the development is Georgia Ayers Apartments, LLC, 150 S.E. 2nd Avenue, Suite 1302, Miami, FL 33131 or such successor in interest in which Biscayne Housing Group, LLC, The Carrie Meek Foundation, Inc. and /or Georgia Ayers Development LLC, or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The prospective manager of the proposed development is Royal American Management, Inc., 1022 West 23rd Street, Suite 400, Panama City, Florida 32405. The tax-exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$7,000,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (Tallahassee Local Time), November 7, 2011, and should be addressed to the Attention: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (Tallahassee Local Time)

PLACE: The Offices of Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of tax-exempt bonds by Florida Housing to provide additional financing for the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below:

The Preserve at Boynton Beach, Phase I, a 122-unit multifamily residential rental development located on scattered sites at or about 1866 Northeast 5th Street, Boynton Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida 33435. The owner and operator of the development is Boynton Village Associates, Ltd., 2100 Hollywood Boulevard, Hollywood, Florida 33020 or such successor in interest in which CSG Development Services, LLC, or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The prospective manager of the proposed development is CSG Management Services, LLC, 2100 Hollywood Boulevard, Hollywood, Florida 33020. The tax-exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$11,700,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (Tallahassee Local Time), November 7, 2011, and should be addressed to the Attention: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (Tallahassee Local Time)

PLACE: The Offices of Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of tax-exempt bonds by Florida Housing to provide additional financing for the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below:

Royal Coast Apartments, a 174-unit multifamily residential rental development located on 9001 S.W. 156th Street in Palmetto Bay, Miami-Dade County, Florida 33157. The owner and operator of the development is Royal Coast Preservation, L.P. or such successor in interest in which Royal Coast Developer, L.L.C. or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The prospective manager of the proposed development is TRG Management Company of Florida. The tax-exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$9,250,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (Tallahassee Local Time), November 7, 2011, and

should be addressed to the Attention: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (Tallahassee Local Time)

PLACE: The Offices of Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of tax-exempt bonds by Florida Housing to provide additional financing for the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below:

Towers of Jacksonville Apartments, a 194-unit multifamily residential rental development located on 1400 LeBaron Avenue in Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida 32207. The owner and operator of the development is Towers of Jacksonville, L.P. or such successor in interest in which TOJ GP, LLC and/or The Towers of Jacksonville, Inc., or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The prospective manager of the proposed development is The Towers of Jacksonville, Inc. The tax-exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$15,000,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed.

Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (Tallahassee Local Time), November 7, 2011, and should be addressed to the Attention: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

The **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 8, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (Tallahassee Local Time)

PLACE: The Offices of Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of tax-exempt bonds by Florida Housing to provide additional financing for the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below:

Villa Capri, a 220-unit multifamily residential rental development located on or about 14500 S.W. 280th Street, Homestead, Miami-Dade County, Florida 33032. The owner and operator of the development is Villa Capri Associates, Ltd. or such successor in interest in which CSG Development Services II, L.L.C., or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The prospective manager of the proposed development is CSG Management Services, L.L.C. The tax-exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$16,500,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (Tallahassee Local Time), November 7, 2011, and should be addressed to the Attention: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Len Stirrat, Multifamily Bond Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation at (850)488-4197. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS

The **Department of Military Affairs** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 2, 2011, 3:30 p.m.

PLACE: Adjutant General's Conference Room, St. Francis Barracks, 82 Marine Street, St. Augustine, Florida 32084

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Armory Board Meeting. The Armory Board will consider action on contracts, leases, agreements and other business relative to real property and facility management issues under its control.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Armory Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Sondra Vaughn, (904)823-0201.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the

agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Sondra Vaughn, (904)823-0201. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Sondra Vaughn, (904)823-0201.

FACC SERVICES GROUP

The **Florida Local Government Investment Trust** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 28, 2010, 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: The Offices of Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., 2502 Rocky Point Drive, Suite 1060, Tampa, FL 33607

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General Administrative Operations.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Bryant E. Gries, Trust Manager at (850)921-0808 or email: bgries@flclerks.com.

For more information, you may contact: Bryant E. Gries, Trust Manager at (850)921-0808 or email: bgries@flclerks.com.

ORANGE COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

The **Orange County Research and Development Authority** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 10, 2011, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Central Florida Research Park, 12424 Research Parkway, Suite 100, Orlando, FL 32826

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General Business Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Joe Wallace, (407)282-3944.

SOUTHWOOD SHARED RESOURCE CENTER

The **Southwood Shared Resource Center** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, October 31, 2011, 1:30 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. or until Board business is concluded

PLACE: Turlington Building, Room 1721, 325 W. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Special meeting of the SSRC Board of Trustees to review FY12-13 budget, spend plan, and customer impacts.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Rick Mitchell, (850)488-9895 or email: rick.mitchell@ssrc.myflorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Rick Mitchell, (850)488-9895 or email: rick.mitchell@ssrc.myflorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Rick Mitchell, (850)488-9895 or email: rick.mitchell@ssrc.myflorida.com.

HERNANDO COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT

The **Hernando County Transportation Disadvantaged, Local Coordinating Board** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, October 26, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: John Law Ayers County Commission Chambers, Hernando County Government Center, 20 North Main Street, Room 160, Brooksville, FL 34601

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular quarterly meeting. Items scheduled on the agenda include the Annual Operations Report of the Community Transportation Coordinator, and the Community Transportation Coordinator's regular quarterly report.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Steve Diez, Transportation Planner II, Hernando County Metropolitan Planning Organization, 20 North Main Street, Room 262, Brooksville, FL 34601, (352)754-4057, email: mpo@hernandocounty.us. The meeting agenda may be viewed online at www.hernandocounty.us/mpo.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Steve Diez, Transportation Planner II, Hernando County Metropolitan Planning Organization, 20 North Main Street, Room 262, Brooksville, FL 34601, (352)754-4057. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

JACKSONVILLE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

The **Jacksonville Transportation Authority** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 3, 2011, 4:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

PLACE: Gateway Shopping Center, 5258-12 Norwood Avenue, Jacksonville, FL 32208

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To launch the starting phase of the BRT (Bus Rapid Transit) North Corridor engineering design and construction phase. The project, expected to be completed by 2013/2014 will provide enhanced transit service throughout the corridor which extends north from downtown Jacksonville generally along Broad Street, Jefferson, Boulevard Street, Golfair Blvd. and 44th Street to the Gateway Mall, continuing north along Norwood Avenue/Lem Turner Road, ending south of the I-295/Lem Turner Interchange.

System features will include enhanced branded bus shelters with schedule information, traffic signal priority (TSP) intersection technologies, sidewalks and other improvements.

The meeting will be conducted as an open house. There will be a continuous looped slide show and other informational materials available for review. Citizens are invited to view the materials, discuss the project with staff and provide comments. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Traci Powell at (904)632-5548.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Winova Mayer at (904)630-3185, email: whart@jtafla.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

The **Hendry Soil and Water Conservation District** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 27, 2011, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: 1085 Pratt Blvd., LaBelle, Florida 33935

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General Board Meeting.

For more information, you may contact: Barbara Tillis, (863)674-4160.

ENTERPRISE FLORIDA, INC.

Enterprise Florida, Inc. announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

Florida Development Finance Corporation – Board of Directors

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, October 20, 2011, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Enterprise Florida Office – Orlando, 800 North Magnolia Avenue, Suite 1100, Orlando, FL 32803

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting will discuss on-going issues, developing issues and other matters.

If an accommodation is needed for a disability or physical impairment, please contact: Jay Robinson, (407)956-5607 at least one (1) day prior to the activity. Persons who are hearing or speech impaired can contact the Florida Dual Party Relay System at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Enterprise Florida, Inc.**, Stakeholders Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 2, 2011, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Hyatt Pier Sixty-Six in Fort Lauderdale, 2301 S.E. 17th Street Causeway, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting will discuss on-going issues, developing issues and other matters.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 1 day before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com.

The **Enterprise Florida, Inc.**, Legislative Policy Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, November 2, 2011, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Hyatt Pier Sixty-Six in Fort Lauderdale, 2301 S.E. 17th Street Causeway, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting will discuss on-going issues, developing issues and other matters.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 1 day before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner

Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com.

The **Enterprise Florida Inc.**, Board of Directors announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 3, 2011, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Hyatt Pier Sixty-Six in Fort Lauderdale, 2301 S.E. 17th Street Causeway, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting will discuss on-going issues, developing issues and other matters.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 1 day before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Lisa Templin-Rayborn, Director of Partner Relations at LRayborn@eFlorida.com.

REGION XII TRAINING COUNCIL

The **Region XII Training Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 3, 2011, 8:45 a.m.

PLACE: Clayton Hutchinson Agricultural Center, Exhibit Hall "A", 559 North Military Trail, West Palm Beach, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The agenda will include but is not limited to F.D.L.E./C.J.S.T.C. updates: Palm Beach State College/Criminal Justice Institute Assessment Center Updates; Region XII budget approval and any other business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Sue Voccola at (561)868-3403.

FLORIDA WORKERS' COMPENSATION JOINT UNDERWRITING ASSOCIATION, INC.

The **FWCJUA, Audit Committee** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 17, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (EST)

PLACE: To participate in the teleconference meeting, please contact Kathy Coyne, (941)378-7408

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Agenda items shall include the Audit Committee Charter procedures checklist and the 2012 meeting schedule.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408 or the FWCJUA's website: www.fwcjua.com.

The **FWCJUA, Investment Committee** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 18, 2011, 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time)

PLACE: To participate in the teleconference meeting, please contact Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The agenda item shall be a compliance review of the investment portfolio.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408 or the FWCJUA's website: www.fwcjua.com.

The **FWCJUA, Operations Committee** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 29, 2011, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: To participate in the teleconference meeting, please contact Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Agenda topics may include the 2012 Business Plan & Forecast; disaster recovery matters; telecommuting policy; budget expense considerations; and a report on operations.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408, or from the FWCJUA's website: www.fwcjua.com.

The **FWCJUA, Executive Compensation Committee** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 30, 2011, 11:00 a.m. (Eastern Time)

PLACE: To participate in the teleconference meeting, please contact Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Agenda items shall include a Committee overview and executive compensation.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408 the FWCJUA's website: www.fwcjua.com.

The **FWCJUA, Reinsurance Committee** announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 30, 2011, 2:00 p.m. (Eastern Time)

PLACE: To participate in the teleconference meeting, please contact Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Agenda items shall include 2012 reinsurance program options; commutation matters; and reinsurance intermediary selection process.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Kathy Coyne at (941)378-7408 or the FWCJUA's website: www.fwcjua.com.

BLUEPRINT 2000 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCY

NOTICE OF CHANGE – The **City of Tallahassee**, Leon County Blueprint 2000 Intergovernmental Agency announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIMES: Thursday, October 27, 2011, 5:00 p.m. – 6:30 p.m.; Presentation, 5:30 p.m.

PLACE: CHANGE OF MEETING LOCATION: City Hall, Commission Chambers, 300 South Adams Street, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of this meeting is to provide the community with information related to improving Franklin Boulevard drainage by enclosing the open ditch along Franklin Boulevard and installing a box culvert. Staff will also discuss the potential inclusion of bike facilities, sidewalks and reducing the number of lanes from 4-lanes to 2-lanes. Construction is scheduled to start in January 2012.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Carlana Hoffman, Blueprint 2000 Public Information Officer, (850)219-1076.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 4 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Carlana Hoffman, Blueprint 2000 Public Information Officer at (850)219-1076 or email her at: carlana.hoffman@blueprint2000.org. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Carlana Hoffman, Blueprint 2000 Public Information Officer at (850)219-1076.

HDR, INC.

The Florida **Department of Transportation (FDOT)**, District Five announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

Financial Management No. 238319-1-22-01

Project Description: Project Development and Environment (PD&E) Study for State Road (SR) 19 in Lake County
 DATE AND TIMES: Tuesday, November 15, 2011, Open House, 5:00 p.m.; Presentations, 5:30 p.m. and 6:30 p.m.
 PLACE: Mid-Lakes Christian Church, 3800 SR 19, Tavares, FL 32778

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The FDOT is holding a meeting to discuss the SR 19 Project Development and Environment (PD&E) Study for proposed widening of State Road (SR) 19 to four lanes from County Road (CR) 48 to CR 561, including the Howey Bridge over Little Lake Harris, a distance of 4.76 miles. This meeting is being held to share the initial information gathered for the study with area residents, business owners, other interested parties and stakeholders. It is to provide the opportunity for interested citizens to work with the project team to identify issues, areas of concern, desired design elements, and share ideas about the future of this corridor. Public Participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family status.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the meeting by contacting: Ms. Mindy Heath, Public Information Coordinator, HDR Engineering, 315 East Robinson Street, Ste. 400, Orlando FL 32801, by Fax: (407)420-4242, by email: mindy.heath@hdrinc.com, by phone: (407)420-4245. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact: Ms. Heath using the Florida Relay service 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information or for a copy of the agenda, please contact: Ms. Mindy Heath at the contact information listed above.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

A.G. HOLLEY HOSPITAL

The **A.G. Holley Hospital** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: October 26, 2011, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: 1199 W. Lantana Road, Lantana, FL 33462

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct its quarter Governing Body Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The CEO's Office at (561)582-5666.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by

contacting: (561)582-5666. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

MRG MIAMI

The Florida **Department of Transportation (FDOT)**, District Six announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 10, 2011, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Elk's Lodge, 12495 N.E. 2 Avenue, North Miami, Florida 33161

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: FDOT District Six is conducting a Project Development and Environment (PD&E) Study for the N.E. 125 Street/N.E. 6 Avenue/West Dixie Highway intersection. This Public Meeting is being conducted to give residents the opportunity to provide input on the preferred transportation improvements for the N.E. 125 Street/N.E. 6 Avenue, West Dixie Highway intersection, which is identified as a high-priority crash location. The primary purpose of this study is to improve safety and traffic operations in the intersection.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Alejandro Martinez, Project Manager, Florida Department of Transportation District Six, 1000 N.W. 111 Avenue, Room 6111-A, Miami, Florida 33172, (305)470-5298, Fax: (305)470-5205 ore-mail: alejandro.martinez@dot.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Mr. Martinez, (305)470-5298, in writing: 1000 N.W. 111 Avenue, Room 6111-A, Miami, Florida 33172 or via e-mail: alejandro.martinez@dot.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Mr. Martinez at (305)470-5298, in writing: 1000 N.W. 111 Avenue, Room 6111-A, Miami, Florida 33172 or e-mail: alejandro.martinez@dot.state.fl.us.

INWOOD CONSULTING

NOTICE OF CORRECTION – Florida **Department of Transportation**, (FDOT) announced the following public hearing in Vol. 37, No. 41, October 14, 2011 issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly.

Project Description: State Road (SR) 40 Design Projects in Volusia County

DATE AND TIME: November 10, 2011, 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.; Open House: 5:30 p.m.; Presentations: 6:30 p.m.

PLACE: Salty Church, Oasis Campus, 85 South Tymber Creek Road, Ormond Beach, FL 32174

Notice is hereby given that the following correction has been made to the Financial Management Numbers for this project as follows: 240836-1-32-01 and 240837-1-32-01.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Bill Walsh, Project Manager, Florida Department of Transportation District Five, 719 South Woodland Boulevard, M.S. 1-501, DeLand, Florida 32720 or by e-mail at William.Walsh@dot.state.fl.us.

The **Department of Transportation, District One** announces a public information meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 17, 2011, 5:30 p.m. – 7 p.m., Open House

PLACE: Turner Agri-Civic Center, Exhibit Hall, 2250 N.E. Roan Street, Arcadia, FL 34266

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

This meeting is being held to afford interested persons an opportunity to ask questions and express their views concerning the widening of United States Highway (US) 17 from Southwest Collins Street to County Road (CR) 760A in DeSoto County, a distance of approximately five miles. Financial Project ID Number: 417876-1-32-01. The design proposes to widen US 17 from a two-lane roadway to a four-lane roadway in order to improve safety and mobility. The meeting will be conducted in an “open house” format with exhibits and documents available for review. FDOT Staff and engineering design consultants will be in attendance.

This project is being developed in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes. Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family status. Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should contact: Ms. Robin Parrish at (863)519-2675, by e-mail: robin.parrish@dot.state.fl.us or by mail: P. O. Box 1249, Bartow, Florida 33831 at least seven days prior to the public information meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800) 955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800) 955-8770 (Voice).

HDR ENGINEERING, INC.

The Florida **Department of Transportation (FDOT), District Three** announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 1, 2011, 5:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. (Central Time)

PLACE: Ramada Plaza Beach Resort (Ambassador Room), 1500 Miracle Strip Parkway, S.E., Fort Walton Beach, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida Department of Transportation will conduct a public hearing regarding proposed improvements to State Road 30 (US 98) (Miracle Strip Parkway/Air Command Boulevard) at Cody Avenue in Okaloosa County, Florida. This location is in the unincorporated area of Florosa which is between Mary Esther, FL and Fort Walton Beach, FL. This intersection leads to the main gate at Hurlburt Field. The proposed improvements would reconstruct and reconfigure the intersection to provide increased capacity and improved traffic operations. Multiple alternative configurations, including the No Action Alternative, were analyzed in an Environmental Assessment (EA). The proposed configuration is an overpass known as a Single Point Urban Interchange with US 98 over Cody Avenue.

The proposed action would elevate US 98 over Cody Avenue by constructing two, two-lane bridges. The bridges would provide two 12-foot travel lanes in each direction along US 98 with ramps to and from Cody Avenue. The project limits would extend approximately 3,350 feet west of the intersection of US 98 with Cody Avenue and 2,500 feet east of the intersection. Project design and sequencing would be used to minimize traffic and infrastructure impacts during construction. The project includes construction of stormwater management facilities, relocation of utilities, and coordination with Hurlburt command regarding security and base access. Construction would require approximately 4.9 acres (2.2 acres on the north side of US 98 and 2.7 acres on the south side of US 98) of federally-owned property at Hurlburt Field. The proposed configuration would have the least amount of impacts to federally-owned property at Hurlburt Field.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Howard C. Hodge, III, PE, FDOT Project Manager, 1074 Highway 90, Chipley, FL 32428, (850)415-9510 or via email: howard.hodge@dot.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Howard C. Hodge, III, PE, FDOT Project Manager, 1074 Highway 90, Chipley, FL 32428, (850)415-9510 or via email: howard.hodge@dot.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Howard C. Hodge, III, PE, FDOT Project Manager, 1074 Highway 90, Chipley, FL 32428, (850)415-9510 or via email: howard.hodge@dot.state.fl.us.

METRIC ENGINEERING, INC.

The Florida **Department of Transportation** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 15, 2011, 5:00 p.m. (CST)

PLACE: West Florida Regional Planning Council Office, 40181 E. Olive Rd., Suite A, Pensacola FL

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, November 17, 2011, 5:00 p.m. (CST)

PLACE: Santa Rosa County Auditorium, 4530 Old Bagdad Highway, Milton, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) invites you to attend the kick-off meeting. Each meeting will begin with a formal presentation at 5:00 p.m. (CST) followed by an Open House. These meetings are being held to introduce the project information and schedule. The purpose is to update the Master Plan for I-10 and to ensure proposed concepts will accommodate the travel demands on I-10 in Escambia and Santa Rosa Counties through 2040.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Quinton Williams, FDOT Project Manager, 1(888)638-0250, ext. 426.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Quinton Williams, FDOT Project Manager, 1(888)638-0250, ext. 426. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Quinton Williams, FDOT Project Manager, 1(888)638-0250, ext. 426.

PBSJ – TAMPA

The Florida **Department of Transportation, District Seven** announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 15, 2011, 2:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Online: <https://www2.gotomeeting.com/register/412526402> OR one of the following viewing locations: Countryside Public Library, Meeting Room A, 2741 State Road (SR) 580, Clearwater, FL 33761; Florida Department of Transportation, District Seven, Auditorium, 11201 N. McKinley Drive, Tampa, FL 33612

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: A Virtual Public Hearing (VPH) for the SR 580 (Main Street) median modifications at US 19, FPN: 427163-1-52-01.

You may participate in the VPH in several ways: 1) From any computer with an internet connection by registering at: <https://www2.gotomeeting.com/register/412526402> or 2) Attend in person at one of the locations listed above. If you plan to participate over the internet, advance registration is required. Once registered, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the hearing. The VPH will open at 2:00 p.m. and the presentation will start promptly at 2:15 p.m.

This public hearing is being conducted to afford affected property and business owners, interested persons, and organizations the opportunity to provide comments to the Department regarding the potential impacts of the proposed median changes on SR 580 at US 19. Proposed changes include lengthening the eastbound and westbound left turn lanes on SR 580 at US 19 to relieve traffic congestion. A concrete traffic separator will be constructed along the lengthened left turn lanes closing the existing median openings.

This hearing is being held pursuant to Chapters 120, 335.18 and 335.199, Florida Statutes. The Department will receive verbal and written comments online and at each virtual hearing location. Written comments not received at the hearing can be emailed to: roadwork@dot.state.fl.us or mailed to: Florida Department of Transportation, District Seven, 11201 N. McKinley Drive, MS #7-600, ATTN: VPH #: 427163-1, Tampa, Florida 33612. All comments must be postmarked by November 28, 2011, to become part of the official public hearing record.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: roadwork@dot.state.fl.us or by calling: Alice Price, AICP, (813)281-8302 or alice.price@atkinsglobal.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: roadwork@dot.state.fl.us or by calling: Alice Price, AICP, at (813)281-8302, alice.price@atkinsglobal.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: roadwork@dot.state.fl.us or by calling: Alice Price, AICP, (813)281-8302, alice.price@atkinsglobal.com.

THE CUNNINGHAM GROUP

The Florida **Department of Transportation, District VI** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: November 16, 2011, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Miami Firefighters' Benevolent Association Hall, 2980 N.W. South River Drive, Miami, FL 33125

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This hearing is being held to allow interested persons an opportunity to express their views concerning the location and conceptual design, as well as social, economic, and environmental effects of the proposed improvements to the

Tamiami Canal Historic Swing Bridge crossing on N.W. South River Drive between N.W. 32nd Avenue and N.W. 19th Street in Miami Dade County, Florida; Financial Management Number: 416658-1-22-01, Federal Aid Project Number: BR4-001-B.

The proposed action includes: replacing the existing swing bridge with a single leaf bascule bridge carrying four lanes of traffic across the Tamiami Canal; removing the impediment to flow in the canal caused by the piers of the existing bridge; widening N.W. South River Drive from two lanes to four lanes; constructing a 10-ft. wide sidewalk between N.W. 32nd Avenue and N.W. 20th Street; adding left turn lanes on N.W. South River Drive at the intersections of N.W. 32nd Avenue and N.W. 20th Street; and relocating the existing bridge to a site on the South Fork of the Miami River to be used as a pedestrian bridge connecting two City of Miami parks.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Jorge Gomez, Florida Department of Transportation District VI, 1000 N.W. 111th Avenue, Room 6111A, Miami, FL 33172 or by e-mail: Jorge.Gomez@dot.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Mr. Alejandro Martinez at (305)470-5298. Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family status. Anyone needing project or public hearing information or special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should write to the address given below or by e-mail: Alejandro.Martinez@dot.state.fl.us or call Mr. Alejandro Martinez at (305)470-5298. Special accommodation requests under the Americans with Disabilities Act should be made at least seven days prior to the Public Hearing. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

INFINITE SOURCE COMMUNICATIONS GROUP, LLC

The Florida **Department of Transportation**, District Six announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 1, 2011, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Sunkist Grove Community Center, 12500 N.W. 13 Avenue, North Miami, FL 33167

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) District Six will hold a public hearing for a roadway project on State Road (SR) 924/N.W. 119 Street at N.W. 7 Avenue, N.W. 10 Avenue, N.W. 22 Avenue and N.W. 27 Avenue to discuss the project's design and scope of work. The project identification numbers are 425273-1, 425273-2, 425273-3 and 425273-4. The public will

have the opportunity to view the project plans and graphic displays from 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. and FDOT representatives will be available to discuss the project and answer questions. Your participation is encouraged and will give us the opportunity to listen to your comments and address any concern that you may have.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Public Information Specialist, Amparo Vargas at (305)470-5349, email: Amparo.Vargas@dot.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Brian Rick at (305)470-5349 or in writing: FDOT, 1000 N.W. 111 Avenue, Miami, FL 33172, email: brian.rick@dot.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Public Information Specialist Amparo Vargas at (305)470-5349, email: Amparo.Vargas@dot.state.fl.us.

STANLEY CONSULTANTS, INC.

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), District Four, announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: CANCELLED THE PUBLIC KICK-OFF MEETING WHICH WAS SCHEDULED FOR Thursday, October 20, 2011, Open House from 5:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m.

PLACE: CANCELLED MEETING PLACE:

The Peter and Julie Cummings Library, 2551 S.W. Matheson Avenue, Palm City, Florida 34990

CANCELLATION INFORMATION:

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: THE PUBLIC KICK-OFF MEETING IS CANCELLED. A NEW NOTIFICATION WILL BE PUBLISHED AT A LATER DATE WHEN THE MEETING IS RESCHEDULED for the I-95 Project Development and Environment Study (PD&E) being conducted from South of SW High Meadow Avenue to North of Becker Road in northern Martin County and southern St. Lucie County, Florida. (Financial Project Identification Number 422681-1-22-01, ETDM Number 13063, Federal Aid Projects Number 0952-145-I).

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: JULIO DELGADO, Project Manager, Florida Department of Transportation, District Four, 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309, or julio.delgado@dot.state.fl.us.

For more information, you may contact: JULIO DELGADO, Florida Department of Transportation, District Four, 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309, by

telephone (954)777-4390 or toll free at 1(866)336-8435, ext. 4390 or by email at julio.delgado@dot.state.fl.us or by visiting the project website, <http://www.I95martinnorth.com>.

HOLT COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

The **City of Miami Beach** announces a workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, November 15, 2011, 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

PLACE: Miami Beach Regional Library, 227 22 Street, Miami Beach, FL 33139

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The City of Miami Beach has initiated a Project Development and Environment (PD&E) Study of a new low-level bridge over the Collins Canal at West Avenue, from 17 Street on the south to Dade Boulevard on the north. This Alternatives Workshop is being held to present potential alternatives for the bridge to the public. During the workshop, maps, drawings and other project information will be available for review and the public will have the opportunity to ask questions and provide comments to the project team. A presentation of the alternatives will begin at 6:15 p.m. followed by a question and answer period. The West Avenue Bridge PD&E Study, Financial Project ID Number 4209101, is a Local Area Program (LAP) conducted in conjunction with the Florida Department of Transportation, District Six.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Yvette Holt, Public Information Officer, 250 Catalonia Avenue, Suite 401, Coral Gables, Florida 33134, Phone: (786)552-0000, Email: info@westavenuebridgeproject.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least Seven (7) days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Yvette Holt at the phone number or address listed above. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice). For more information, you may contact: Darlene M. Fernandez, E.I., City of Miami Beach Project Manager, Engineering/Transportation Division, Public Works Department, 1700 Convention Center Drive, Miami Beach, Florida 33139, Phone: (305)673-7080, Ext. 6401, Email: DarleneFernandez@miamibeachfl.gov.

Section VII Notices of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida, has received the petition for declaratory statement from Wayne H. Allen, Jr., Petitioner, In re: Legacy Dunes Condominium Association, Inc., Docket No. 2011049302, filed on October 7, 2011. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of Section 718.112(2)(f), Florida Statutes, as it applies to the petitioner.

Whether Legacy Dunes Condominium Association, Inc. must amend its bylaws to adopt a pooling method for reserve accounts under Section 718.112(2)(f), Florida Statutes.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Division Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2217.

Please refer all comments to: Janis Sue Richardson, Chief Assistant General Counsel, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida, has received the petition for declaratory statement from Desmond J. Fowles and James A. Savarese, Petitioners, In Re: Lansbrook Village Condominium Association, Inc., Docket No. 2011048847, on October 4, 2011. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of Section 718.112(2)(d), Florida Statutes, as it applies to the petitioner.

Whether a corporate bulk buyer of 509 units of 774 units at Lansbrook Village Condominium may designate five candidates for election to five board seats under Section 718.112(2)(d), Florida Statutes.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Division Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2217.

Please refer all comments to: Janis Sue Richardson, Chief Assistant General Counsel, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida, has declined to rule on the petition for declaratory statement filed by Dennis Schor, Unit Owner, In Re: Sunrise Island Condominium Association, II, Inc., Docket No. 2011036592 on July 25, 2011. The following is a summary of the agency's declination of the petition:

The Division has declined to issue a declaratory statement because it cannot determine the rights of third parties who are not parties to the declaratory statement; or where the facts have already taken place and are disputed in related pending litigation between the parties.

A copy of the Order Declining of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Division Clerk, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2217.

Please refer all comments to: Janis Sue Richardson, Chief Assistant General Counsel, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on September 23, 2011, the Board of Veterinary Medicine has issued an order disposing of the petition for declaratory statement filed by Maron B. Calderwood Mays, D.V.M., on June 2, 2011. The following is a summary of the agency's disposition of the petition:

The Notice of Petition for Declaratory Statement was published in Vol. 37, No. 30, of the July 29, 2011, Florida Administrative Weekly. The petition seeks the Board's interpretation of Sections 474.202(9), (11), (13) and 474.203(1), (2), (4), F.S., concerning whether a diagnostic veterinary pathologist working in a private veterinary diagnostic laboratory in Florida must be licensed to practice veterinary medicine in Florida. It is the Board's opinion that veterinary pathologists working in a private Florida veterinary diagnostic laboratory must be Florida licensed veterinarians.

A copy of the Order Disposing of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Juanita Chastain, Executive Director, Board of Veterinary Medicine, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0783.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Environmental Protection has received the petition for declaratory statement from Charles E. Strange, Jr., on October 5, 2011. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of Notice of Intent to Issue an Environmental Resource Permit, File No. 09-0302742-001, to the Southwest Florida Water Management District to fill approximately 0.85 acres of freshwater marsh in order to construct a new 425-linear foot tie-back berm with an associated access road and 12-foot wide airboat slide within Potts Preserve in Citrus County as it applies to the petitioner.

The petitioner appears to request the Department to "survey and identify" the location of sovereignty submerged lands and the mean high water line at the location of the proposed project through the Petition for Declaratory Statement.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Lea Crandall, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of General Counsel, 3900 Commonwealth Blvd., M.S. 35, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000, (850)245-2242 or email: Lea.Crandall@dep.state.fl.us.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Department of Financial Services, Division of State Fire Marshal, has received the petition for declaratory statement from the City of Cape Canaveral on August 29, 2011. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of Sections 509.215, 633.022 and 633.025(11), Florida Statutes, and Chapter 69A-43, Florida Administrative Code as it applies to the petitioner.

The Petition has been assigned the Number: 120353. Petitioner seeks a Declaratory Statement concerning the application of the uniform fire safety standards for transient public lodging establishments to a condominium complex.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Jacek Stramski, Attorney, Department of Financial Services, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0333, (850)413-4172.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Department of Financial Services, Division of State Fire Marshal has received the petition for declaratory statement from David Raines, Fire Code Official/Fire Marshal for the City of Fort Lauderdale, filed on or about September 20, 2011. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of clarify F.S. 633.01 and 633.025(4), NFPA 1, 2006 edition, sections: 25.6.1.1, 1.4.2 and 1.4.6, NFPA 33, 2003 edition, sections: 1.1.4, 6.2.1, 5.1.6, 4.1, 5.1.7, and Chapter 9 as it applies to the petitioner.

AHJ statutory jurisdictional authority is being challenged. The universal equal application of the Florida Fire Prevention Code from industry to industry is also being challenged, in particular

the requirements of NFPA 33 as it applies to spray-painting (refinishing) mega-size yachts, other boats of various sizes, and miscellaneous vessel parts and or equipment. Lauderdale Marine Center (LMC), who occupies a 50-plus acre site in the City of Fort Lauderdale, claims that their spray-painting activity needs and the spray-painting needs for the entire marine industry are so unique that they cannot comply with the prescriptive requirements of the Fire Code; in particular the requirement to confine their spray-painting to spray booths, spray rooms, or spray areas.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Linje Rivers, Assistant General Counsel, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0333, (850)413-4230, Fax: (850)488-0697 (please advise if you would like it mailed or faxed to you and please include your phone number on your request in case any question arises) or by e-mailing your request to: Linje.Rivers@myfloridacfo.com.

Section VIII
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination have been filed by the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

Allapattah Housing Partners, LLC, Tower Road Gardens, LTD, and City River Apartments vs. Florida Housing Finance Corporation; CASE NO.: 11-3971RP; RULE NO.: 67-48.002; Invalid

Section IX
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X
Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee

NONE

Section XI
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Invitation to Bid

As a Contractor, you are invited to submit a bid to the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Florida Forest Service, hereinafter referred to as Owner, for the construction of building facilities at Valrico Forestry Station, 118 N. Dover Road, Dover, Florida. The Project Budget is estimated to be \$330,000.00.

The Department is seeking a Contractor for the construction of building facilities for the Valrico Forestry Station. The contractor shall provide all materials, labor, equipment and inspection fees necessary for the construction of building facilities in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Invitation to Bid.

PROJECT NAME AND LOCATION: Construction of Building Facilities at Valrico Forestry Station, 118 N. Dover Road, Dover, Florida.

SOLICITATION DOCUMENT: The entire solicitation document, which includes specifications, may be viewed and downloaded from the Vendor Bid System at <http://myflorida.com>, click on Business, Doing Business with the State of Florida, Everything for Vendors and Customers, Vendor Bid System, Search Advertisements, Bid Number: ITB/FFS-11/12-09, or by calling the Purchasing Office at (850)617-7181.

PLANS AND DRAWINGS: Architectural and Civil Drawings, including technical specifications and a copy of the bid document can be viewed at Rapid Blueprint II, 333 N. Falkenburg Blvd. No. B229, Tampa, Florida, (813)643-6200 or Seminole Blueprint, 2915 Park Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida 32301, Phone (850)671-2714. These documents are available for purchase, and they are listed as follows: Architectural Plans, Architectural Specification Book, Civil Engineering Plans, and Invitation to Bid for Valrico Forestry Station.

MANDATORY PRE-BID CONFERENCE/SITE VISIT: Each bidder must, before submitting a bid, attend the mandatory pre-bid conference/site visit. The pre-bid conference/site visit

will be held on November 9, 2011, 10:30 a.m., at the Florida Farm Bureau, 100 S. Mulrennan Road, Valrico, Florida 33594, (813)685-5673 or (813)654-3707. After the pre-bid conference at the Florida Farm Bureau, the Meeting will reconvene at the Valrico Forestry Station site (approximately 1/2 mile to the East at Dover Road and Highway 60), and prospective bidders can have the Site Visitation Form signed at this time. It is the bidders' responsibility to consider any and all site conditions or requirements for the project.

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME INFORMATION STATEMENT: A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, F.S., for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

DISCRIMINATION, DENIAL OR REVOCATION FOR THE RIGHT TO TRANACT BUSINESS WITH PUBLIC ENTITIES: An entity or affiliate who had been placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity.

PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND: Each bid shall be accompanied by a Performance Bond in the amount of one-hundred percent (100%) of the Base Bid Price.

BID BOND: Each bid shall be accompanied by a Bid Bond Guarantee payable to the Department in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Base Bid Price.

Sealed bids will be received, publicly opened and read aloud on:

DATE AND TIME: December 1, 2011, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 407 S. Calhoun Street, SB-8, Mayo Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0800, (850)617-7181.

CONTRACT AWARD: The official Notice of Award Recommendation will be by electronic posting at: http://fcn.state.fl.us/owa_vbs/owa/vbs_www.main_menu.

Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. If no protest

is filed, the contract will be awarded to the qualified, responsive low bidder in accordance with Chapter 60D-5, F.A.C. by the Owner.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Notice of Bid

The University of Florida, Purchasing Services will receive sealed bids for the following: ITB12MB-121, UF SL-1 & SL-2 Chilled Water Main Cross Connect, estimated budget: \$500,000, to be opened November 29, 2011, 2:00 p.m., 101 Elmore Hall, Radio Road, Gainesville, FL.

Scope of Work: Mechanical work required for addition of piping, valves and manholes between Physics and Mechanical & Aerospace-A Buildings. See bid documents at website below. Mandatory pre-bid meeting and voluntary site visit will be held: November 1, 2011, 10:00 a.m., Conference Room #150, PPD Bldg. 700, Radio Road, Gainesville, FL. Doors will be locked promptly at 10:00 a.m. Questions should be directed to: Mercedes Bongiovanni, mbongio@ufl.edu or (352)392-1331, ext. 210. For more information visit: www.purchasing.ufl.edu.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITY ACT OF 1991 – If special accommodations are needed in order to attend the Pre-Bid Meeting or the Bid opening, contact: Purchasing, purchasing@ufl.edu or (352)392-1331 within three (3) days of the event.

The Florida International University Board of Trustees announces that services in the discipline of Architecture/Engineering are required for the project identified below:

Project Name and Number: Mixed Use Building, BT-886

Project Location: Modesto A. Maidique Campus (MMC), Miami, Florida

Project Description:

The new building will include the following:

College of Business Administration

- R. Kirk Landon Undergraduate School of Business office suite
- Undergraduate Advising (offices for 24 advisors)
- Student Services, including Student Organization Room
- PhD student offices
- Professional BBA program staff
- Center for International Business and Research office suite
- Classrooms (2) and break out rooms (8)
- FIU Online
- FIU Online Staff (64 offices and call center)
- Collaboration Space (2 Training Rooms and 5 conference rooms)
- Recording Studio (3 rooms and large office)
- Testing Center (150 Seat Testing Lab)
- Multimedia Editing Labs
- Business Services

- A retail food court featuring three to four food venues
- A full service catering kitchen with prep area and cooking equipment
- An upscale seating area designed to be closed off when needed for a private catering event or private party
- A general seating area featuring a mix of high quality movable low and high top tables and chairs, soft/lounge seating with coffee and side tables and bar type countertops with stools

The total building construction cost is approximately \$22,500,000 and the total project cost is approximately \$29,500,000. The University is committed to producing buildings that comply with sustainable energy conservation strategies and standards (minimum LEED Silver Certification).

INSTRUCTIONS:

Firms desiring to apply for consideration shall submit a letter of application. The letter of application should have attached:

1. A completed "Florida International University Professional Qualifications Supplement (FIUPQS)." The official FIUPQS forms must be downloaded from the FIU web site at: <http://facilities.fiu.edu/projects/BT-886.htm>. Applications on any other form will not be considered.
2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate Governing board. An applicant must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be properly chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

Submit Seven (7) bound copies of the required proposal data and one CD copy in Adobe Acrobat PDF format of the requested qualifications to: Selection Committee, Florida International University, Real Estate Development and Planning, Campus Support Complex, 11555 S.W. 17th St., Room CSC142, Modesto A, Mardique Campus, Miami, Florida 33199. Applications that do not comply with the above instructions will not be considered. Application material will not be returned. The University reserves the right to suspend or discontinue the selection process at any time and to return or reject any or all submissions of qualifications without obligation to the respondent. The award of this contract is subject to availability of funds.

The plans and specifications prepared by the A/E are subject to reuse in accordance with the provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor, or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

FIU HAS CREATED STANDARD CONTRACT FORMS AND STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO A/E'S FOR A/E AND OTHER LICENSED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFICIENT AND EFFECTIVE PROCESS. THESE FORMS ARE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW AND CAN BE FOUND AT: <http://facilities/fiu.edu/formsandstandards.htm>.

ALL APPLICANTS SHOULD REVIEW THE APPLICABLE FIU CONTRACT FORM AND STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS CAREFULLY PRIOR TO MAKING A DECISION AS TO WHETHER OR NOT TO RESPOND TO THIS ADVERTISEMENT.

The Project Fact Sheet, which describes the selection process schedule for this Project and additional information regarding the Project scope, may be obtained from the web-site <http://facilities.fiu.edu/projects/BT-886.htm>. Requests for meetings by individual firms will not be granted. Once the firm acquires the required forms, questions may be directed to: Real Estate Development and Planning at (305)348-4090 or via email: griffith@fiu.edu

Submittals must be received between 8:30 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. or 1:30 p.m. and 4:00 p.m. (Local Time), Friday, November 18, 2011. Submittals will not be accepted before or after the times and date stated above. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

FSDB A/E Selection Results PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT OF A/E SELECTION RESULTS

The Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind announces its intention to negotiate, in accordance with the Consultants Competitive Negotiation Act, for the following:

PROJECT NAME: Swimming Pool Renovation and Addition, Building #24

PROJECT NUMBER: 20120004

1. Ebert Norman Brady Architects
2. Powell Design Group, Inc.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

BID NO.: BDC 16-11/12

The Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks, Bureau of Design and Construction is soliciting formal competitive bids from certified or registered contractors licensed to work in the jurisdiction for the project listed below:

PROJECT NAME: John U. Lloyd Beach State Park-Jetty Rehabilitation

SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the necessary labor, materials, equipment, and supervision required for sand tightening approximately 175 linear feet of the west end of the Port Everglades Entrance Channel South Jetty and restoration of 1008 feet of recreational walkway on

top of the jetty. All work below MHW will be limited to the southern face of the existing jetty. Approximately 2,000 cubic yards of sand will be excavated to create a trench at the base of the jetty. The sand will be stockpiled above the MHW line to reuse. Existing voids in the rock mound jetty will be identified and filled with smaller rocks. The jetty face will then be covered with geotextile fabric and a second layer of bedding stone will be used for cover. The excavated trench will then be backfilled with the previously stockpiled sand and shall be graded to the design elevation. Restoration of 1008 feet of recreational walkway on top of the jetty shall include filling voids, pouring new concrete walkway with railings and solar lighting.

Pursuant to Executive Order 07-126 and Section 255.252(3), F.S. the Department requires the proposed project be designed and constructed in accordance with green building standards where applicable.

PROJECT BUDGET: \$700,000.00

PARK LOCATION: John U. Lloyd Beach State Park, 6503 N. Ocean Drive, Dania Beach in Broward County, Florida.

PROJECT MANAGER: Michael Foster, P.E., Bureau of Design and Construction, Alfred B. Maclay Gardens State Park, 3540 Thomasville Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32309, (850)488-5372, Fax: (850)488-1141.

INSTRUCTIONS: Any firm desiring a Project Manual for this project may obtain a copy by writing to the address or calling the telephone number below. A Compact Disk (CD) containing the plans and specifications will be available on October 21, 2011, at John U. Lloyd State Park, 6503 N. Ocean Drive, Dania, Florida 33004, Attention: Sidney Leve, Park Manager, (954)924-3859, Fax: (954) 923-2904.

NOTICE TO ALL VENDORS: All bid solicitations are subject to change. It is the responsibility of the vendor to verify with the Department of Management Services, Vendor Bid System website for any future addendums, questions, revisions, etc., prior to the bid opening. Failure to do so will be the sole responsibility of the vendor. Addenda will be posted only on the Vendor Bid System website. Addenda will not be sent directly to plan holders, except in limited circumstances and at the discretion of the Department. When the Department determines that circumstances warrant sending addenda directly to plan holders, a notice will be posted on the website notifying vendors that addenda have been sent. Addenda must be acknowledged and included in each vendor's bid package. Failure to include acknowledged addenda in the bid package is grounds for disqualification of the vendor's bid.

MINORITY BUSINESS REQUIREMENT: The Department of Environmental Protection supports diversity in its Procurement Program and requests that all sub-contracting opportunities afforded by this bid embrace diversity enthusiastically. The award of sub-contracts should reflect the

full diversity of the citizens of the State of Florida. The Department will be glad to furnish a list of Minority Owned Firms that could be offered sub-contracting opportunities.

PREQUALIFICATION: When the total Bid including Alternates exceeds \$200,000, each Bidder whose field is governed by Chapter 399, 455, 489 or 633, Florida Statutes, for licensure or certification, must submit the following prequalification data of their eligibility to submit bids 240 hours (10 days) PRIOR TO the Bid Opening date, unless the Bidder has been previously qualified by the Department of Environmental Protection for the current biennium (July 1- June 30) of odd numbered years in accordance with subsection 60D-5.004(2), F.A.C., as evidenced by a letter from DEP to the Bidder, which letter shall be presented to DEP upon request. If the Department requires clarification or additional information, Bidder shall submit such information by 120 hours (5 days) prior to Bid Opening. Material submitted after those deadlines shall disqualify the Bidder.

ADA REQUIREMENTS: Any person with a qualified disability shall not be denied equal access and effective communication regarding any bid/proposal documents or the attendance at any related meeting or bid/proposal opening. If accommodations are needed because of disability, please contact: Michael Renard, Bureau of Design and Construction, (850)488-5372 at least five (5) workdays prior to openings. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Services by calling 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

BID SUBMITTAL DUE DATE: No later than 4:00 p.m. (ET), Tuesday, November 22, 2011 to the below address: Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Design and Construction, 3540 Thomasville Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32309, Attention: Michael Renard, Construction Projects Administrator, Bureau of Design and Construction, (850)488-5372. The Department reserves the right to reject any or all bids.

BID POSTING DATE: No later than 2:00 p.m. (ET), Tuesday, November 29, 2011, unless extended by the Department for good cause.

NOTICE OF RIGHTS: Notice of Intent to Protest the Bid Specifications must be filed with (received by) the Agency Clerk, Lea Crandall, Department of Environmental Protection, Office of General Counsel, MS #35, 3900 Commonwealth Blvd., Tallahassee FL 32399-3000, (850)245-2242, Fax: (850)245-2303, Lea.Crandall@dep.state.fl.us during the 72-hour period after Bid Specifications are posted on the Vendor Bid System. Failure to file a Notice of Intent to Protest or a formal, written Protest in accordance with Chapter 28-110, F.A.C., within ten days after the 72-hour period ends, as prescribed in Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, shall constitute a waiver of your right to an administrative hearing on the Bid Specifications under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. Rules for bid protests can be found in Sections 120.569 and

120.57, F.S., and Chapter 28-110, Florida Administrative Code. A bid protester shall comply with these statutes and rules.

NOTICE OF INVITATION TO BID

BID NO. BDC 15-11/12

The Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks, Bureau of Design and Construction is soliciting formal competitive bids from Florida Department of Transportation prequalified bridge contractors (Minor Bridge Work Class). Only bids from Florida Department of Transportation prequalified bridge contractors (Minor Bridge Work Class) will be accepted. Contractors will need to have built a minimum of three projects in the past three years of the Minor Bridge Work Class. Documentation for experience evaluation will be included in bid specifications.

PROJECT NAME: Lake Kissimmee State Park-Cow Camp Bridge Replacement

SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the necessary labor, materials, equipment, and supervision required to construct erosion control mechanisms, remove existing bridge structure and construct new bridge with a three span concrete bridge, concrete flat slab construction founded on concrete pre-stressed piles according to the plans and specifications.

Pursuant to Executive Order 07-126 and Section 255.252(3), F.S. the Department requires the proposed project be designed and constructed in accordance with green building standards where applicable.

PROJECT BUDGET: \$400,000.00

PARK LOCATION: Lake Kissimmee State Park, off SR 60 15 miles N.E. of Lake Wales in Polk County, Florida.

PROJECT MANAGER: Alison Denny, Bureau of Design and Construction, Alfred B. Maclay Gardens State Park, 3540 Thomasville Road, Tallahassee, FL 32309, (850)488-5372, Fax: (850)488-1141.

INSTRUCTIONS: Any firm desiring a Project Manual for this project may obtain a copy by writing to the address or calling the telephone number below. A Compact Disk (CD) containing the plans and specifications will be available on October 21, 2011, at Lake Kissimmee State Park (Administration), 14248 Camp Mack Road, Lake Wales, Florida 33898, Attention: Joel (Andy) Noland, Park Manager, (863)696-1112, Fax: (863)696-2656.

NOTICE TO ALL VENDORS: All bid solicitations are subject to change. It is the responsibility of the vendor to verify with the Department of Management Services, Vendor Bid System website for any future addendums, questions, revisions, etc., prior to the bid opening. Failure to do so will be the sole responsibility of the vendor. Addenda will be posted only on the Vendor Bid System website. Addenda will not be sent directly to plan holders, except in limited circumstances and at the discretion of the Department. When the Department

determines that circumstances warrant sending addenda directly to plan holders, a notice will be posted on the website notifying vendors that addenda have been sent. Addenda must be acknowledged and included in each vendor's bid package. Failure to include acknowledged addenda in the bid package is grounds for disqualification of the vendor's bid.

MINORITY BUSINESS REQUIREMENT: The Department of Environmental Protection supports diversity in its Procurement Program and requests that all sub-contracting opportunities afforded by this bid embrace diversity enthusiastically. The award of sub-contracts should reflect the full diversity of the citizens of the State of Florida. The Department will be glad to furnish a list of Minority Owned Firms that could be offered sub-contracting opportunities.

PREQUALIFICATION: When the total Bid including Alternates exceeds \$200,000, each Bidder whose field is governed by Chapter 399, 455, 489 or 633, Florida Statutes, for licensure or certification, must submit the following prequalification data of their eligibility to submit bids 240 hours (10 days) PRIOR TO the Bid Opening date, unless the Bidder has been previously qualified by the Department of Environmental Protection for the current biennium (July 1-June 30) of odd numbered years in accordance with subsection 60D-5.004(2), F.A.C., as evidenced by a letter from DEP to the Bidder, which letter shall be presented to DEP upon request. If the Department requires clarification or additional information, Bidder shall submit such information by 120 hours (5 days) prior to Bid Opening. Material submitted after those deadlines shall disqualify the Bidder.

ADA REQUIREMENTS: Any person with a qualified disability shall not be denied equal access and effective communication regarding any bid/proposal documents or the attendance at any related meeting or bid/proposal opening. If accommodations are needed because of disability, please contact: Michael Renard, Bureau of Design and Construction, (850)488-5372 at least five (5) workdays prior to openings. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Services by calling (800)955-8771 (TDD) or (800)955-8770 (Voice).

BID SUBMITTAL DUE DATE: No later than 3:30 p.m. (ET), Tuesday, November 22, 2011 to the below address: Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Design and Construction, 3540 Thomasville Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32309, Attention: Michael Renard, Construction Projects Administrator, Bureau of Design and Construction, (850)488-5372. The Department reserves the right to reject any or all bids.

BID POSTING DATE: No later than 2:00 p.m. (ET), Tuesday, November 29, 2011 unless extended by the Department for good cause.

NOTICE OF RIGHTS: Notice of Intent to Protest the Bid Specifications must be filed with (received by) the Agency Clerk, Lea Crandall, Department of Environmental Protection,

Office of General Counsel, MS #35, 3900 Commonwealth Blvd., Tallahassee FL 32399-3000, (850)245-2242, Fax: (850)245-2303, Lea.Crandall@dep.state.fl.us during the 72-hour period after Bid Specifications are posted on the Vendor Bid System. Failure to file a Notice of Intent to Protest or a formal, written Protest in accordance with Chapter 28-110, F.A.C., within ten days after the 72-hour period ends, as prescribed in Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, shall constitute a waiver of your right to an administrative hearing on the Bid Specifications under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. Rules for bid protests can be found in Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. and Chapter 28-110, Florida Administrative Code. A bid protester shall comply with these statutes and rules.

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

RFP 2011-04 Capital and Rehabilitation Needs Assessment
The Florida Housing Finance Corporation invites all qualified Offerors to submit proposals for consideration in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Request for Proposals 2011-04. Florida Housing expects to retain one or more companies with expertise in carrying out Capital Needs Assessments for asset management purposes on affordable multifamily properties to advise Florida Housing on the sample for such purposes and to carry out said Capital Needs Assessments. Florida Housing expects assessments to be carried out on 10-25 properties in its portfolio.

Proposals shall be accepted until 2:00 p.m. (Eastern Time), Tuesday, November 18, 2011, to the Attention: Sherry Green, Contracts Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1329.

For questions or additional information, please contact: Sherry Green at (850)488-4197 or sherry.green@floridahousing.org. To obtain a copy of the Request for Proposals, which outlines selection criteria and applicant's responsibilities, please submit your request to the Attention: Sherry Green, or you can download the Request for Proposals from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation web site at: http://apps.floridahousing.org/StandAlone/FHFC_ECM/AppPage_LegalRFPs.aspx.

Any modifications that occur to the Request for Proposals will be posted at the web site and may result in an extension of the deadline.

RFP 2011-05 Extremely Low Income (ELI) Households

The Florida Housing Finance Corporation invites all qualified Applicants to submit proposals for consideration in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Request for Proposals 2011-05.

This Request for Proposal is open to Applicants where the Applicant's development has a mortgage note guaranteed by the Florida Affordable Housing Guarantee Program which closed by 09/30/2003 and the Applicant commits to provide additional ELI Set-Aside units.

Florida Housing is soliciting sealed proposals from qualified Applicants that commit to set aside additional units for ELI Households by converting units at or above the 50 percent Area Median Income (AMI) committed to in their LURA or EUA down to the ELI AMI level so that the total ELI set-aside is less than or equal to 25 percent of the total units in the proposed Development in accordance with the terms and conditions of this RFP, applicable laws, rules, and regulations, and Florida Housing's generally applicable construction and financial standards.

Florida Housing anticipates that approximately \$28,660,000 in State Apartment Incentive Loan (SAIL) funding, plus any available SAIL payments, SAIL de-obligations, and SAIL investment income will be available as loans under this RFP.

Proposals shall be accepted until 2:00 p.m., Eastern Time, on Tuesday, November 9, 2011, to the Attention: Sherry Green, Contracts Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1329.

For questions or additional information, please contact: Sherry Green, (850)488-4197 or sherry.green@floridahousing.org. To obtain a copy of the Request for Proposals, which outlines selection criteria and applicant's responsibilities, please submit your request to the attention of Sherry Green, or you can download the Request for Proposals from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation web site: http://apps.floridahousing.org/StandAlone/FHFC_ECM/AppPage_LegalRFPs.aspx.

Any modifications that occur to the Request for Proposals will be posted at the web site and may result in an extension of the deadline.

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS

INVITATION TO BID

The State of Florida, Department of Military Affairs, Construction and Facility Management Office requests bids from State of Florida registered licensed General and/or Building Contractors (as required by Florida Law) for the following project located at Florida National Guard Armory, 2500 US Highway 27 South, Avon Park, FL 33525.

FOR COMPLETE INFORMATION, AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS YOU MUST GO TO THE WEBSITE: MYFLORIDA.COM, VENDOR BID SYSTEM ON OR AFTER 10/21/2011: http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main_menu. FUNDING: The State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon availability of funding and an annual appropriation by the Legislature. These projects will be awarded based upon the availability of Federal

Cooperative Agreement End of Year Funding. There is no promise or guarantee this project will be awarded in Fiscal Year 2011 or Fiscal Year 2012 if funds are not received.

BID OPENING DATE: As stated on the Vendor Bid System (late bids will not be accepted)

MANDATORY PRE-BID/SITE VISIT DATE: As stated on the Vendor Bid System

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Florida Armory Renovation Program (FARP)

Florida National Guard Armory Renovation – Avon Park, Highlands County, Florida.

The Scope of Work for the renovation and remodeling of the existing Armory consists of all work needed to bring the existing Armory up to current building codes, life safety codes, accessibility codes and energy efficiency standards. The scope of work includes, but is not limited to: Removal of existing interior non-load bearing office and restroom partitions, windows, doors, interior finishes, ventilation devices, plumbing, and electrical devices. New construction includes, but is not limited to: New administration offices, kitchen, Drill Hall, handicap-accessible restrooms and shower rooms, supply rooms, storage rooms, electrical rooms, and a pre-engineered metal building for storage. In addition, the remodeled Armory will receive new wall and roof insulation; new wall, ceiling and flooring finishes; plumbing and plumbing fixtures; and electrical wiring, electrical devices and lighting.

The Department reserves the right to reject any and all submissions, or accept minor irregularities in the best interest of the DMA.

POINT OF CONTACT: Department of Military Affairs, Construction and Facility Management Office, Contract Management Branch, (904)823-0256, (904)827-8544 or email: cfmocontracting@ng.army.mil.

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION

INVITATION TO BID

BID NUMBER: 11-10-1202

BID TITLE: FIRE/RESCUE VEHICLES & OTHER FLEET EQUIPMENT

ADVERTISEMENT: OCTOBER 14, 2011
OCTOBER 21, 2011

PRE-BID CONFERENCE: OCTOBER 27, 2011, 9:00 A.M.

PRE-BID CONFERENCE TO BE HELD AT:

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION
TRAINING CENTER
2617 MAHAN DRIVE
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32308

BID DUE DATE: DECEMBER 2, 2011, 12:00 NOON

BID RESPONSE LOCATION:

FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION
COOPERATIVE BID COORDINATOR’S OFFICE
2617 MAHAN DRIVE (32308)
P. O. BOX 12519
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32317-2519

BIDS MUST BE CONTAINED IN A SEALED CONTAINER ADDRESSED TO THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION. INDICATE ON THE OUTSIDE THE BID NUMBER, TITLE, OPENING DATE AND TIME.

VENDORS WILL BE REQUIRED TO HAVE THEIR BIDS TO FSA BY 12:00 NOON, FRIDAY, DECMEBER 2, 2011.

ALL QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THIS BID SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO: LYNN MEEK, FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION AT: lmeek@flsheriffs.org.

MOSS AND ASSOCIATES

North Broward Regional Service Center – Chiller Replacement Moss & Associates, LLC (CGC #042160) anticipates receiving bids for the Department of Management Services (DMS) – Chiller Replacement Project in Ft. Lauderdale, Florida.

Sealed bids are expected to be received and opened publicly in mid December, 2011. Work includes replacement of existing air cooled chillers with new water cooled chillers, construction of a new 900 sf chiller enclosure building and the installation of a new cooling tower, associated piping and electrical work.

The scope of work will also include earthwork, site grading, chain link fence, concrete foundations, SOG and elevated slab, CMU walls, roofing, doors frames and hardware, stucco, painting, plumbing, HVAC and electrical. Chillers will be selected by DMS and purchased by the CM for installation by the selected responsive HVAC subcontractor.

Construction Documents are expected to be available early November, 2011. Bid Packages will be available mid November 2011. The Bid Package will contain further information important to submission of a bid including instructions to bidders, bid forms, schedule, and scope of work. This Project will be administered through Federal Grant Agreement No. ARE004 and is subject to those laws set forth in the Federal Funding Grantee, Subgrantee and Contractor Provisions that are applicable to the Project.

Moss and Associates, LLC, is committed to providing opportunities for M/WBE, SBE and DV Business Enterprise firms and encourages their participation.

Interested bidders may inquire about this project and obtain further information by contacting Sohail Rana by phone at (352)291-2940 or via email: srana@mossemail.com.

SARASOTA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

**REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS TO
CONTRACT FOR ARCHITECTURAL AND
ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR
URGENT CARE CENTER AT UNIVERSITY PARKWAY
FOR THE SARASOTA COUNTY PUBLIC HOSPITAL
BOARD SARASOTA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
SARASOTA, FLORIDA**

The Sarasota County Public Hospital Board of Sarasota County, Florida is accepting statements of qualifications from Architectural/Engineering Consulting firms. The scope of work may include programming, demolition drawings, schematic design, design development, construction documents, and construction administration for all architectural, civil, site work, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire protection, and structural design work for a new freestanding 6,000 square foot plus or minus, 1 story urgent care center to be sited on a parcel located on the southeast corner of Honore Road and University Parkway Blvd. Firms to submit include Architectural/Engineering firms or an association of firms under the direction of the Architect. Services required may include architectural, civil, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire protection, and structural. Firms are required to submit 5 bound qualification statements that include at least the following data, in the order listed below:

1. A copy of Florida Professional and Corporate Registration certificates.
2. Proof of General and Professional Liability Insurability.
3. Proof if the firm or any of the associations are a Minority Business Enterprise
4. Proposed design team with resumes
5. Completed urgent care center (UCC) projects OR a collection of projects that contain components of a UCC.
6. Additional information the respondent considers relevant for this submittal
7. Location of the firms' main office.

Comments:

1. The Hospital reserves the right to reject any or all submittals and to discontinue the selection process at any time.
2. The Hospital reserves the right to request information or the submittal of documentation in addition to that set forth above.
3. Questions regarding submissions shall be during business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. (EST), and directed to:
Tom Perigo
(941)685-9066
4. Only the person listed as the contact person shall be contacted. No other SMH staff, administrators, or board members shall be contacted. Failure to comply could result in immediate disqualification at the discretion of the contact person listed.

Submissions shall be titled

Sarasota Memorial Health Care System

Statement of Qualifications for Professional Design Services
for the Urgent Care Center at University Parkway

Qualification Statements shall be received no later than Thursday, November 17, 2011, 2:00 p.m. Submittals received after this time will remain unopened and available for pick up.

Attention: Tom Perigo

Sarasota Memorial Health Care System

1515 S. Osprey, Ave., Building A

Sarasota, Florida 34239-3555

A public meeting will be held at Sarasota Memorial Hospital, Main Campus, Monday, December 12, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon, The Auditorium, First Floor, Sarasota Memorial Hospital, 1700 S. Tamiami Trail, Sarasota, FL 34239. The top three firms will be ranked. Negotiations with the number one ranked firm shall begin Monday, December 19, 2011. Time will be coordinated with the number one ranked firm. Sarasota Memorial Health Care System (SMHCS) will have 15 working days to negotiate an agreement with the number one ranked firm. If unsuccessful within 15 working days SMHCS will begin negotiations with the number two ranked firm, and have 15 working days to reach an agreement. If unsuccessful within 15 working days SMHCS will begin negotiations with the number three ranked firm and have 15 working days to reach an agreement. If SMHCS cannot reach agreement with any of the top three ranked teams, this Request for Qualifications will be deemed terminated.

**REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS TO
CONTRACT FOR GENERAL CONTRACTING WORK
FOR URGENT CARE CENTER AT UNIVERSITY
PARKWAY FOR THE SARASOTA COUNTY PUBLIC
HOSPITAL BOARD SARASOTA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
SARASOTA, FLORIDA**

The Sarasota County Public Hospital Board of Sarasota County, Florida is accepting statements of qualifications from General Contracting Firms. The scope of work may include pre-construction phase services such as cost estimating, value engineering, critical path method scheduling, constructability reviews and cost control, in addition to the construction and construction management services for a new freestanding 6,000 square foot plus or minus, 1 story urgent care center to be sited on a parcel located on the southeast corner of Honore Road and University Parkway Blvd. Firms interested in being considered as candidates are required to submit five bound statements of qualifications that include at least the following data, to be organized in the following order:

1. A copy of Florida construction licensure and corporate registration certificates.
2. Completed AIA Document A305 Contractor's Qualification Statement, latest edition.

3. Proof of general, automobile and workers' compensation liability insurance coverage.
4. Proof as to whether the firm is a Minority Business Enterprise.
5. A list of at least five client references consisting of all contact information and project name(s) for each project.
6. Resumes of key personnel that would be used on this project.
7. Past experience of a successfully completed urgent care centers OR the completion of similar projects.
8. Location of the firms' main office.

Comments:

1. The Hospital reserves the right to reject any or all submittals and to discontinue the selection process at any time.
2. The Hospital reserves the right to request information or the submittal of documentation in addition to that set forth above.
3. Questions regarding submissions shall be during business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. (EST), and directed to:
Tom Perigo
(941)685-9066
4. Only the person listed as the contact person shall be contacted. No other SMH staff, administrators, or board members shall be contacted. Failure to comply could result in immediate disqualification at the discretion of the contact person listed.

Submissions shall be titled

Sarasota Memorial Health Care System

Statement of Qualifications for General Contracting Work for the Urgent Care Center at University Parkway

Qualification Statements shall be received no later than Thursday, November 17, 2011, 2:00 p.m. Submittals received after this time will remain unopened and available for pick up.

Attention: Tom Perigo

Sarasota Memorial Health Care System

1515 S. Osprey, Ave., Building A

Sarasota, Florida 34239-3555

A public meeting will be held at Sarasota Memorial Hospital main campus, Monday, December 12, 2011, 1:00 p.m. until 4:00 p.m., The Auditorium, First Floor, Sarasota Memorial Hospital, 1700 S. Tamiami Trail, Sarasota, FL 34239. The top three firms will be ranked. Pre-construction negotiations with the number one ranked firm shall begin Tuesday, December 20, 2011. Sarasota Memorial Health Care System (SMHCS) will have 15 working days to negotiate an agreement with the number one ranked firm. If unsuccessful within 15 working days SMHCS will begin negotiations with the number two ranked firm, and have 15 working days to reach an agreement. If unsuccessful within 15 working days SMHCS will begin negotiations with the number three ranked firm and have 15 working days to reach an agreement. If SMHCS cannot reach agreement with any of the top three ranked teams, this Request for Qualifications will be deemed terminated.

REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS TO CONTRACT FOR ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR A HYBRID OPERATING ROOM FOR THE SARASOTA COUNTY PUBLIC HOSPITAL BOARD SARASOTA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL SARASOTA, FLORIDA

The Sarasota County Public Hospital Board of Sarasota County, Florida is accepting statements of qualifications from Architectural/Engineering Consulting firms. The scope of work may include programming, demolition drawings, schematic design, design development, construction documents, and construction administration for all architectural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire protection, and structural design work for a new hybrid operating room suite located at the Main Campus, Main Building, Level Two, 1700 S. Tamiami Trail, Sarasota, FL 34239-3555. Firms to submit include Architectural/Engineering firms or an association of firms under the direction of the Architect. Services required may include architectural, civil, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire protection, and structural. Firms are required to submit 5 bound qualification statements that include at least the following data, in the order listed below:

1. A copy of Florida Professional and Corporate Registration certificates.
2. Proof of General and Professional Liability Insurability.
3. Proof if the firm or any of the associations are a Minority Business Enterprise
4. Proposed design team with resumes
5. Completed projects of operating room suites and design of sterile area hospital environments.
6. AHCA project experience
7. Additional information the respondent considers relevant for this submittal
8. Location of the firms' main office.

Comments:

1. The Hospital reserves the right to reject any or all submittals and to discontinue the selection process at any time.
2. The Hospital reserves the right to request information or the submittal of documentation in addition to that set forth above.
3. Questions regarding submissions shall be during business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. (EST), and directed to:
Tom Perigo
(941)685-9066
4. Only the person listed as the contact person shall be contacted. No other SMH staff, administrators, or board members shall be contacted. Failure to comply could result in immediate disqualification at the discretion of the contact person listed.

Submissions shall be titled
 Sarasota Memorial Health Care System
 Statement of Qualifications for Professional Design Services
 for the Hybrid Operating Room Suite
 Qualification Statements shall be received no later than Thursday,
 November 17, 2011, 2:00 p.m. Submittals received after this time
 will remain unopened and available for pick up.
 Attention: Tom Perigo
 Sarasota Memorial Health Care System
 1515 S. Osprey, Ave., Building A
 Sarasota, Florida 34239-3555

A public meeting will be held at Sarasota Memorial Hospital,
 Main Campus, Thursday, December 15, 2011, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00
 Noon, The Auditorium, First Floor, Sarasota Memorial Hospital,
 1700 S. Tamiami Trail, Sarasota, FL 34239. The top three firms will
 be ranked. Negotiations with the number one ranked firm shall
 begin December 21, 2011. The time will be coordinated between
 the firm and SMHCS. Sarasota Memorial Health Care System
 (SMHCS) will have 15 working days to negotiate an agreement
 with the number one ranked firm. If unsuccessful within 15 working
 days SMHCS will begin negotiations with the number two ranked
 firm, and have 15 working days to reach an agreement. If
 unsuccessful within 15 working days SMHCS will begin
 negotiations with the number three ranked firm and have 15
 working days to reach an agreement. If SMHCS cannot reach
 agreement with any of the top three ranked teams, this Request for
 Qualifications will be deemed terminated.

REQUEST FOR STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS TO
 CONTRACT FOR GENERAL CONTRACTING WORK
 FOR A HYBRID OPERATING ROOM
 FOR THE SARASOTA COUNTY PUBLIC HOSPITAL
 BOARD SARASOTA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
 SARASOTA, FLORIDA

The Sarasota County Public Hospital Board of Sarasota
 County, Florida is accepting statements of qualifications from
 General Contracting Firms. The scope of work may include
 pre-construction phase services such as cost estimating, value
 engineering, critical path method scheduling, constructability
 reviews and cost control, in addition to the construction and
 construction management services for a new hybrid operating
 room, Main Campus, Main Building, Level Two, 1700 S. Tamiami
 Trail, Sarasota, FL 34239-3555. Firms interested in being
 considered as candidates are required to submit five bound
 statements of qualifications that include at least the following
 data, to be organized in the following order:

1. A copy of Florida construction licensure and corporate
 registration certificates.
2. Completed AIA Document A305 Contractor’s
 Qualification Statement, latest edition.
3. Proof of general, automobile and workers’
 compensation liability insurance coverage.

4. Proof as to whether the firm is a Minority Business
 Enterprise.
 5. A list of at least five client references consisting of all
 contact information and project name(s) for each project.
 6. Resumes of key personnel that would be used on this
 project.
 7. Past experience of a successfully completed operating
 room(s) suite(s) and past experience working in hospital
 sterile areas.
 8. AHCA related project experience.
 9. Location of the firms’ main office.
- Comments:

1. The Hospital reserves the right to reject any or all submittals
 and to discontinue the selection process at any time.
2. The Hospital reserves the right to request information or the
 submittal of documentation in addition to that set forth above.
3. Questions regarding submissions shall be during business
 hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. (EST), and directed to:
 Tom Perigo
 (941)685-9066
4. Only the person listed as the contact person shall be contacted.
 No other SMH staff, administrators, or board members shall be
 contacted. Failure to comply could result in immediate
 disqualification at the discretion of the contact person listed.

Submissions shall be titled
 Sarasota Memorial Health Care System
 Statement of Qualifications for General Contracting Work for
 the Hybrid Operating Room
 Qualification Statements shall be received no later than Thursday,
 November 17, 2011, 2:00 p.m. Submittals received after this time
 will remain unopened and available for pick up.
 Attention: Tom Perigo
 Sarasota Memorial Health Care System
 1515 S. Osprey, Ave., Building A
 Sarasota, Florida 34239-3555

A public meeting will be held at Sarasota Memorial Hospital main
 campus, Thursday, December 15 2011, 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.,
 Auditorium, First Floor, Sarasota Memorial Hospital, 1700 S.
 Tamiami Trail, Sarasota, FL 34239. The top three firms will be
 ranked. Pre-construction services negotiations with the number one
 ranked firm shall begin Wednesday, December 21, 2011. The time
 will be coordinated with the firm and SMHCS. Sarasota Memorial
 Health Care System (SMHCS) will have 15 working days to
 negotiate an agreement with the number one ranked firm. If
 unsuccessful within 15 working days SMHCS will begin
 negotiations with the number two ranked firm, and have 15 working
 days to reach an agreement. If unsuccessful within 15 working
 days SMHCS will begin negotiations with the number three

ranked firm and have 15 working days to reach an agreement. If SMHCS cannot reach agreement with any of the top three ranked teams, this Request for Qualifications will be deemed terminated.

Section XII Miscellaneous

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF COMMUNICATIONS

SERVICES TAX ADDRESS/JURISDICTION DATABASE

Section 202.22(2), F.S., requires the Department of Revenue to create and maintain an electronic siting database that assigns customer service addresses to local taxing jurisdictions for purposes of the communications services tax. The update to the Address/Jurisdiction Database, as posted on October 3, 2011, becomes effective on January 1, 2012. The database can be accessed at <http://geotax.state.fl.us>. The next update to the database will be effective July 1, 2012, and is required to be posted 90 days in advance of the effective date. Local governments are required to submit changes and additions for inclusion in the July 1, 2012, update no later than March 3, 2012.

Additional information concerning procedures for requesting changes and additions to the database is available from the Department of Revenue Local Government Unit by telephone at (850)717-6630 or by e-mail: local-govt-unit@dor.state.fl.us. Persons with hearing or speech impairments may call the TDD line at 1(800)367-8331 or (850)922-1115.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the publication of Broward Automotive, Inc. d/b/a Audi Lighthouse Point, for a relocation of Sales of Audi automobiles (line-make AUDI) as a motor vehicle franchise dealership in Broward County by Volkswagen Group of America, Inc, published in Vol. 37, No. 36, pages 2782-2783 of the Florida Administrative Weekly on September 9, 2011, and for the relocation of their Service facility published in Vol. 37, No. 38, page 2936 of the Florida Administrative Weekly on September 23, 2011, has been withdrawn.

Notice of Publication for a New Point

Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, notice is given that JH Global Services, Inc., intends to allow the establishment of Jeffrey-Allen, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of low-speed vehicles manufactured by JH Global Services,

Inc. (line-make STAR) at 4401 U.S. Highway 301 North, Tampa (Hillsborough County), Florida 33610, on or after November 21, 2011.

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of Jeffrey-Allen, Inc., are dealer operator(s): Ben Sverdlow, 4401 U.S. Highway 301 North, Tampa, Florida 33610; principal investor(s): Ben Sverdlow, 4401 US Highway 301 North, Tampa, Florida 33610 and Craig Sverdlow, 4401 U.S. Highway 301 North, Tampa, Florida 33610.

The notice indicates intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Nalini Vinayak, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, MS #65, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by U.S. Mail to: Jane Zhang, JH Global Services, Inc., 378 Neely Ferry Road, Simpsonville, South Carolina, 29681.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Office of Intergovernmental Programs

The state is coordinating reviews of federal activities and federally funded projects as required by Section 403.061(40), F.S. A list of projects, comments deadlines and the address for providing comments are available at: <http://approd.dep.state.fl.us/clearinghouse/>. For information, call: (850)245-2161. This public notice fulfills the requirements of 15 CFR 930.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order of Emergency Restriction Order with regard to the license of N. Jay Tow, L.M.H.C. License #MH 7063. This Emergency Restriction Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes. The State Surgeon

General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Anna J. Snider, L.M.T., License # MA 63033. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 10, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Irwin Beretsky, M.D., License #ME 62661. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Beau Richard Boshers, M.D., License #ME 98041. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Jacob Dreszer, M.D., License #ME 77250. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Aurea Moraima Guevara, M.D., License #ME 35815. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Vacating Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order Lifting Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Juan Manuel De Oleo, P.A., License #PA 9101496. The Department orders that the emergency Suspension of License be lifted and your license be reinstated.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 7, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Mark K. Sachs, M.D., License #ME 49598. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 10, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order Lifting Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Quinnetta Denise Addison, CNA, License #CNA46370. The Department orders that the emergency Suspension of License be lifted and your license be reinstated.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 10, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order Lifting Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Demetrius C. Anderson, CNA, License #CNA90609. The Department orders that the emergency Suspension of License be lifted and your license be reinstated.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Arseno Bright, R.N., License #RN 3334742. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State

Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 10, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Robyn Holling, C.N.A., License #CNA 232013. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Johnathan Ivan Lynn, R.N., License #RN 9235701. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 10, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Allison Pasko, RN, License #RN 9167526. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 10, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order Lifting Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Maureen E. Wilson, CNA, License #CNA88501. The Department orders that the emergency Suspension of License be lifted and your license be reinstated.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Ty Reso Anderson, D.O., License #OS 7064. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the

public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of James Paul Oakes, D.O., License #OS 8258. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 11, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the permit of Izz & Sons, Inc., Permit #PH 17042. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 11, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the permit of Izz & Sons, Inc., Permit #PH 15895. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 6, 2011, State Surgeon General issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the license of Rajnish Mehta, R.Ph., License #PS 41956. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State

Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 11, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the permit of Pharmalife Consultant, Inc., Permit #PH 25182; PH 24230. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public. \

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 11, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the permit of Pharmacy One, Inc., Permit #PH 17820. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

Notice of Emergency Action

On October 11, 2011, State Surgeon General, issued an Order of Emergency Suspension Order with regard to the permit of RDS Pharmacy Management, Inc., Permit #PH 21474. This Emergency Suspension Order was predicated upon the State Surgeon General's findings of an immediate and serious danger to the public health, safety and welfare pursuant to Sections 456.073(8) and 120.60(6), Florida Statutes (2010). The State Surgeon General determined that this summary procedure was fair under the circumstances, in that there was no other method available to adequately protect the public.

SARASOTA COUNTY PUBLIC HOSPITAL BOARD

Requests for Qualifications for capital projects titled "Urgent Care Center at University Parkway" and "Hybrid Operating Room" were publicly announced in this publication on October 7, 2011. Such public announcements were erroneously mislabeled due to a publication error. The corrected public announcements for these capital projects will be published October 21, 2011 and October 28, 2011, and will contain the dates by which Responses are due and all other dates relating to the competitive award process. Please govern yourself accordingly.

Section XIII
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week

**RULES FILED BETWEEN October 3, 2011
 and October 7, 2011**

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
State Board of Education

6A-2.0040	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/15	37/36
6A-4.0163	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/33	
6A-4.0233	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/33	
6A-6.0571	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/15	37/28
6A-6.0573	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/33	37/34
6A-6.0785	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/33	
6A-6.0902	10/6/11	10/26/11	37/20	37/35
6A-6.09021	10/6/11	10/26/11	37/20	
6A-6.0903	10/6/11	10/26/11	37/20	37/35
6A-6.09031	10/6/11	10/26/11	37/20	
6A-10.0342	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/33	
6A-14.031	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/33	

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Division of Child Support Enforcement

12E-1.0051	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/27	
------------	---------	----------	-------	--

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

33-503.001	10/6/11	10/26/11	37/30	37/35
33-601.731	10/3/11	10/23/11	37/27	
33-602.201	10/6/11	10/26/11	37/27	

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Division of Purchasing

60A-1.063	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60A-8.001	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	

Correctional Privatization Commission

60AA-1.003	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60AA-1.004	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60AA-1.005	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60AA-102.101	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

Division of Building Construction

60D-7.005	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
-----------	---------	----------	-------	--

Division of Retirement - Social Security

60X-1.001	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60X-2.001	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60X-2.0015	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60X-2.0016	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60X-2.002	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60X-2.0031	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	
60X-2.004	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/33	

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
Board of Dentistry

64B5-14.008	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/28	
64B5-14.009	10/6/11	10/26/11	37/28	
64B5-14.010	10/6/11	10/26/11	37/28	

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
Division of Insurance Agents and Agency Services

69B-125.004	10/4/11	10/24/11	37/31	
-------------	---------	----------	-------	--

Finance

69V-180.040	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/26	
69V-180.080	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/26	37/33
69V-180.090	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/26	
69V-180.100	10/5/11	10/25/11	37/26	37/33

**LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE
 APPROVAL PURSUANT TO (CHAPTER 2010-279,
 LAWS OF FLORIDA)**

**DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER
 SERVICES**

Division of Standards

5F-11.002	7/7/11	*****	37/14	
-----------	--------	-------	-------	--